
 
 

 
VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST  

SPECIAL VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 
Monday, September 17, 2018 – 6:00 PM 

Oak Park River Forest Room of the Koehneke Community Center on the 
Concordia University Chicago Campus, 7400 Augusta Street, River Forest, IL 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

2. Citizen Comments 

3. Consent Agenda 
a. Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes – August 27, 2018 
b. Executive Session Meeting Minutes –August 27, 2018 
c. Proclamation – National Suicide Prevention Awareness Month 
d. Change Order #1 (Final) – 2018 Curb & Sidewalk Program for $8,658.12 – Resolution  
e. Change Order #1 (Final) – 2018 Chicago Avenue Watermain Project for $9,006.41 – Resolution  
f. Award of Bid and Contract for Gale Street Alley Project to A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. for $203,167.75 
g. Waiver of Formal Bid (Due to Competitive Quotation) and Award of Contract for Street Lighting Electricity with 

AEP Energy, Inc. at a rate of $.031 per kilowatt hour 
h. Waiver of Formal Bid (Due to Competitive Quotation) and Award of Contract for Pump Station Electricity with 

MC2 Energy Inc. at a rate of $.061 per kilowatt hour 
i. Right-of-Way Encroachment Waiver and Agreement for an Irrigation System Located at 400 Ashland Avenue 
j. Right-of-Way Encroachment Waiver and Agreement for an Irrigation System Located at 554 Forest 
k. Right-of-Way Encroachment Waiver and Agreement for an Irrigation System Located at 316 Lathrop 
l. Recommendation of the Sustainability Commission Regarding Opposition to Local Preemption for Federal 

Pesticide Legislation 
m. Monthly Department Reports 
n. Monthly Performance Measurement Report 
o. Monthly Financial Report – August 2018  
p. Accounts Payable – August 2018 - $1,834,151.94  
q. Village Administrator’s Report 
r. Waiver for Formal Bid and Purchase of a 2019 Ford Explorer through Currie Motors Fleet through the Suburban 

Purchasing Cooperative for $27,233.00 
s. Amendment to the Mutual Aid Agreement for the Northern Illinois Police Alarm System (NIPAS) – Resolution 
t. Change Order #1 (Final) – 2018 Pavement Cracksealing for $71.42 – Resolution 
 

4. Consent Items for Separate Consideration (Trustee Vazquez Common Law Conflict of Interest) 
a. Invoices from the Economic Development Fund ($695.13), Madison Street TIF Fund ($1,083.91) and North 

Avenue TIF Fund ($5,406.04)  

5. Recommendations of Boards, Commissions and Committees   
 

6. Unfinished Business 

7. New Business 
a. Approval of a Redevelopment Agreement for the 7756 Madison Street Skin Care Company Spa Salon Development 

Comprising a Part of the Madison Street TIF District – Ordinance   
b. Discussion: Village Residential Fire Suppression and Monitoring Requirements 

 
8. Executive Session 

9. Adjournment 
 



 1 

VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES 

August 20, 2018 
 

A special meeting of the Village of River Forest Board of Trustees was held on Monday, August 9, 
2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the Community Room of the Village Hall, 400 Park Avenue, River Forest, Illinois. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m.  Upon roll call, the following persons were: 
 
Present: President Adduci, Trustees Cargie, Conti, Vazquez, Henek, Gibbs and Corsini 
Absent: None 
Also Present: Village Clerk Kathleen Brand-White, Village Administrator Eric Palm, Assistant 

Village Administrator Lisa Scheiner, Management Analyst Jon Pape, Police Chief 
James O’Shea, Deputy Police Chief Dan Dhooghe, Fire Chief Kurt Bohlmann, Public 
Works Director John Anderson, Public Works Superintendent Mark Janopoulos, 
Assistant Finance Director Cheryl Scott, Village Attorney Michael Marrs 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President Adduci led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 
4. ELECTED OFFICIAL COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Trustee Corsini welcomed the members of the public and thanked them for coming.  She 
congratulated the boys 11U baseball team state championship and all the teams that participated in 
the play-offs.  She noted that school will be in session this week and reminded pedestrians and 
motorists to be cautious.  Trustee Corsini said she spoke with River Forest resident, Mr. Grant, 
regarding the Village’s sprinkler ordinance and policies, which the Board plans to review in 
September.  She also extended her condolences to the Dooley family for the loss of a family member.   
 
Trustee Cargie also extended his condolences to the Dooley family. 
 
Trustee Vazquez also extended his condolences to the Dooley family.  He stated that he, Trustee 
Henek and Village Clerk Brand-White recently took a tour of the Village’s facilities and thanked the 
staff that provided the tour.  
 
Village Clerk Brand-White echoed Trustee Vazquez’s sentiment regarding the tour of the Village’s 
facilities.  She also extended her condolences to the Dooley family.  
 
Trustee Conti stated she shares the shock and sadness regarding the Dooley family’s loss.   



 2 

Trustee Henek stated she also extends her condolences to the Dooley family.  She also thanked staff 
for the tour of the Village’s facilities.  She announced the September 11 Lemon Aid event from 3-7 
p.m. in the 700 block of Bonnie Brae Place.  She stated that New Moms and A House in Austin will 
benefit from the event.  
 
Trustee Gibbs extended his condolences to the Dooley family.  He thanked the Public Works 
Department for posting signs regarding school starting this week.  
 
In response to a question from Trustee Gibbs, Public Works Director Anderson stated that Nicor 
and AT&T are relocating their utility lines and that, once they are done, the Village will proceed with 
the Chicago Avenue resurfacing project.  
 
President Adduci extended her condolences to the Dooley family.  She noted that the 11U baseball 
team will attend the September Village Board Meeting.  She stated that in addition to the upcoming 
Lemon Aid event, the Food Truck Rally will be held this Saturday.  She said she and Village 
Administrator Palm met with Antonio Martinez, the new President and CEO of the Oak Park-River 
Forest Community Foundation. President Adduci said she also recently participated in the trailside 
museum deep roots project.  
 
Trustee Corsini and the other Village Trustees extended their condolences to Village Administrator 
Palm on the passing of his mother-in-law.  
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a. Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes – July 9, 2018 
b. Special Village Board Meeting Minutes – July 9, 2018 
c. FY2018 Budget Amendment – Ordinance 
d. Plat of Consolidation – 830 Park Avenue 
e. Change Order #1 (Final) – 2018 Sewer Lining Project - $2,550.80 – Resolution 
f. Monthly Department Reports 
g. Monthly Performance Measurement Report 
h. Financial Report – June & July, 2018 
i. Accounts Payable – June 2018 - $1,733,384.10 
j. Accounts Payable – July 2018 - $1,772,078.20 
k. Village Administrator’s Report 
l. Waiver of Formal Bid and Award of Contract (through competitive cooperative purchasing 

program) for Public Works Garage Improvements to Garland/DBS for $111,529 
m. Waiver of Formal Bid and Authorization to Purchase a 2019 Aquatech B-10 Sewer Truck 

from R.N.O.W., Inc., West Allis, Wisconsin for $355,641.12 
 
Trustee Gibbs made a motion, seconded by Trustee Vazquez, to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
In response to a question from Trustee Corsini, Assistant Village Administration Scheiner explained 
that the lot at 830 Park was being consolidated because the property owner plans to construct a 
new home on the property, which currently consists of a lot and a half, and the new home would 



 3 

extend over the property line unless consolidated.  She stated that the new home will be required 
to comply with zoning requirements.  
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, Henek and Vazquez 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Motion Passes. 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS FOR SEPARATE CONSIDERATION 

 
a. Accounts Payable from the Economic Development Fund ($4,437.36), Madison Street TIF 

Fund ($7,402.32 & $6,296.69) and North Avenue TIF Fund ($12,301.62 & $525.00) (Trustee 
Vazquez Common Law Conflict of Interest) 

 
Trustee Corsini made a motion, seconded by Trustee Gibbs, to approve payments from the 
Economic Development Fund in the amount of $4,437.36, the Madison Street TIF Fund in the 
amounts of $7,402.32 and $6,296.69, and the North Avenue TIF Fund in the amounts of $12,301.62 
and $525.00. 
 
Trustee Vazquez stated that he is abstaining from the vote due to a common law conflict of interest. 
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, and Henek 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Trustee Vazquez 
Motion Passes. 
 

b. Accounts Payable from the General Fund to Anderson Elevator for $620.00 (Trustee Gibbs 
Common Law Conflict of Interest) 

 
Trustee Corsini made a motion, seconded by Trustee Henek, to approve payment to Anderson 
Elevator in the amount of $620.00.  
 
Trustee Gibbs stated that he is abstaining from the vote due to a common law conflict of interest.  
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Henek and Vazquez 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Trustee Gibbs 
Motion Passes. 
 



 4 

7. RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 
 
a. Joint Review Board – North Avenue Tax Increment Financing District 

i. An Ordinance Designating the Village of River Forest North Avenue Tax Increment 
Financing District Redevelopment Project Area 

ii. An Ordinance Approving the Village of River Forest North Avenue Tax Increment 
Financing District Redevelopment Project Area Redevelopment Plan and Project 

iii. An Ordinance Adopting Tax Increment Financing for the Village of River Forest North 
Avenue Tax Increment Financing District 

 
Erica Bachner, 7208 LeMoyne Street, stated that there is still confusion about the TIF proposal.  She 
asked that the Village conduct more community forums to facilitate more discussion.  She said she 
believes that the Village only had the number of community forums required by law and she asked 
that they do more so that residents can ask questions and state their concerns.  Ms. Bachner said 
that people are wondering if it is worth bringing in developers and if they would come even if the 
Village didn’t have a TIF.  She said there are concerns about removing tax revenue from other taxing 
bodies.  Ms. Bachner continued that there is still confusion on intent for commercial development 
versus residential repair and development.  She said maintaining affordable housing is an issue.  She 
said she would like assurance from the Trustees that eminent domain will not be used on residential 
properties. 
 
Trustee Vazquez stated that he is abstaining from the vote due to a common law conflict of interest. 
 
Trustee Gibbs made motions, seconded by Trustee Cargie, to approve an Ordinance designating the 
Village of River Forest North Avenue Tax Increment Financing District Redevelopment Project Area, 
an Ordinance Approving the Village of River Forest North Avenue Tax Increment Financing District 
Redevelopment Project Area Redevelopment Plan and Project, and an Ordinance adopting tax 
increment financing for the Village of River Forest North Avenue Tax Increment Financing District. 
 
In response to a question from Trustee Cargie, President Adduci confirmed that the same provision 
that was in the Madison Street TIF is in the North Avenue TIF regarding eminent domain.  Trustee 
Cargie said the assurance sought is included in the Ordinance.  
 
Village Administrator Palm stated that the Village held three meetings for residents and businesses 
owners beyond what the law requires.  
 
Trustee Henek said she understands residents’ concerns but reiterated that the development 
process includes resident input.  
 
Trustee Cargie stated that the other taxing bodies are not affected because they can still levy taxes 
up to their cap and it will not deprive them of that revenue.  He stated that they will not receive the 
revenue from new construction (during the life of the TIF), however, but for the TIF there is no new 
construction.  
 
President Adduci stated that the Village tried to get information out.  She said she reached out to 
people along North Avenue, a resident was appointed to the Joint Review Board, the Village held 



 5 

more meetings than what is required, she wrote about it every month in the Village’s e-newsletter, 
it was posted on the Village’s website and the Villages’ Facebook page.  President Adduci said she 
welcomes continuous conversations with residents about this issue.  
 
Michael Marrs, Village Attorney, asked that a separate roll call vote be conducted for each 
Ordinance. 
 
Approval of an Ordinance Designating the Village of River Forest North Avenue Tax Increment 
Financing District Redevelopment Project Area: 
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, and Henek 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Trustee Vazquez 
Motion Passes. 
 
Approval of an Ordinance Approving the Village of River Forest North Avenue Tax Increment 
Financing District Redevelopment Project Area Redevelopment Plan and Project 
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, and Henek 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Trustee Vazquez 
Motion Passes. 
 
Approval of an Ordinance Adopting Tax Increment Financing for the Village of River Forest North 
Avenue Tax Increment Financing District 
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, and Henek 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Trustee Vazquez 
Motion Passes. 
 

b. Zoning Board of Appeals – Text Amendment – Small Cell Regulations – Ordinance 
 
Trustee Henek made a motion, seconded by Trustee Vazquez, to approve an Ordinance amending 
the Zoning Code relative to small wireless facility regulations.  
 
Village Administrator Palm suggested that questions on this matter be directed to Village Attorney 
Marrs who is an expert on this subject matter.  He explained that the Board is considering a text 
amendment to the Zoning Ordinance relating to small wireless facilities being added in the Village 
that establishes the use on private property as permitted in the C-1 Zoning District and a special use 



 6 

in all other zoning districts.  He stated that staff has met with AT&T who intends to install these 
facilities in the Village.  
 
In response to a question from Trustee Corsini, Village Administrator Palm explained that an 
application for a small wireless facility outside the C-1 zoning district would require a public hearing 
for consideration as a special use and that the Village can place conditions on approval.  
 
In response to a question from Trustee Corsini, Mr. Marrs explained that the new State law only 
covers what is defined as a small cell.  The Act is defined to allow the industry (i.e. AT&T, Sprint and 
T-Mobile) to rollout 5G in a way that is effective for them.  He said the industry’s primary goal is to 
place the antennas on ComEd poles and existing streetlights and he explained the fees that the 
carriers would be required to pay based on the location of the antennas. He stated that the carriers 
must still obtain a permit from the Village and comply with the Village’s standards.  
 
In response to a question, Mr. Marrs explained that public right-of-ways are defined very broadly in 
the State law to include utility easements that are for compatible uses, and that the definition does 
not apply to a sewer or water easements where the pipes are underground.   
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, Henek and Vazquez 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Motion Passes. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
None. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a. Approval of Livable Housing Policy for the North Avenue TIF District 
 
Daniel Lauber, 7215 Oak Street, expressed concern that future Village Boards may attempt to 
eliminate affordable multiple family housing. He acknowledged that the Village Board has made an 
effort with the proposed livable housing policy. He stated that developers have made it clear they 
cannot build housing that households of modest income can afford because the cost of new 
construction is too high. Mr. Lauber suggested that the Village Board require developers of 
residential projects in TIF Districts make 15% to 20% of the units affordable to households of 
modest incomes, if the developers request allowances above the authorized densities in the Zoning 
Ordinance.  
 
Trustee Conti made a motion, seconded by Trustee Henek, to approve the Livable Housing Policy 
for the North Avenue TIF District. 
 



 7 

President Adduci explained that the policy is meant to invest and preserve housing along North 
Avenue. She explained that investment and preservation of housing will result in dividends in the 
future. This policy is to assist residents who live in the Village and want to stay in the Village. She 
explained that Village staff reviewed data in drafting the policy to determine which units would 
qualify for potential assistance under the policy. President Adduci stated that the Village’s new 
comprehensive plan would also address this issue.  
 
Trustee Gibbs stated that the Village Board received the policy on Thursday and have not had much 
time to look at it. He stated that it is not in the Village’s best interest to start putting restrictions on 
potential developers.  He asked that discussion on the policy continue on September 17, so it can be 
reviewed further.  
 
Trustee Cargie stated that the policy does not contain criteria by which an applicant would qualify, 
and that it is up to the Village staff and the Board. He said that he would like the policy to have more 
details about limits on what would and would not be eligible for grant funding. 
 
President Adduci stated that she does not think the policy provides that the Village and property 
owners will work together so that residents can stay in their homes.  She said the process that would 
be followed and what would qualify for assistance will be worked out by the Village once the policy 
is adopted.  
 
Village Administrator Palm explained the impact this policy could have on homeowners coming 
together to work with the Village.  
 
The Village Board discussed the matter further and expressed a desire for additional details in the 
policy, regarding whether the incentives would be provided to individual units, common areas, and 
so on. The consensus of the Village Board was to table the livable housing policy to allow for further 
review and refinement.  
 
Trustee Conti made a motion, which was seconded by Trustee Cargie, to table this matter.  
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, and Henek 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Trustee Vazquez 
Motion Passes. 
 

b. Incentives for Relocation of Businesses to Madison Street Tax Increment Financing District 
– Discussion 

 
Village Administrator Palm stated that he is looking for direction regarding potential relocation 
assistance for two businesses in the Lake and Lathrop at the conclusion of their lease terms. He 
stated that he had a meeting with the two businesses and they are looking for assistance from the 
Village to contribute to the build out cost of their new facilities.  
 



 8 

He explained that assisting in this way would help to voluntarily relocate business from the Lake 
and Lathrop site to another location in the Village which will result in improved property values 
and the rehabilitation and reinvestment in an existing site on Madison Street.  He explained that if 
the Village Board has a consensus to move forward with this item, staff will meet with the tenants 
and get an idea of their costs and negotiate relocation packages.  
 
In response to a question from Trustee Corsini, which Village Administrator Palm explained that 
the request came from the tenants. 
 
Trustee Cargie and Village Administrator Palm discussed the relocation of the tenants and the 
timelines in the redevelopment agreement between the Village and the Lake and Lathrop developer. 
  
Trustee Corsini stated that there is no precedent yet for this type of situation, and expressed 
concern about setting a precedent because the Village is negotiating directly with leaseholders as 
opposed to the landlord. 
 
Village Administrator Palm said that the overarching goal is to increase assessed value in the Village. 
He explained that the Town Center development in the Village was different because it had national 
chain tenants, not locally owned businesses. 
 
Trustee Henek expressed concern that if the Village gives a tenant an incentive and the owner sells 
the building, the Village could potentially have lost the benefit of giving the incentive. President 
Adduci noted that claw back language would be utilized to address that concern and would have to 
be in line with the lease agreement.  
 
Trustee Conti expressed her support for providing tenants with relocation assistance in order to 
help development within the Village. 
 
President Adduci stated that she agreed with Trustee Conti, and that the Madison Street TIF District 
would be benefited by the relocation. 
 
Trustee Gibbs stated that the relocations would be a benefit to the Madison Street TIF District, and 
would show residents near Madison Street that redevelopment in that TIF District will not only 
involve demolition and ground-up redevelopment. 
 
After further discussion, the consensus of the Village Board was that Village Administrator Palm 
have continued negotiations with the tenants and bring back proposals to the Village Board for 
consideration. 
 

c. Leak Detection Sensors for Water System - Discussion 
 
Public Works Director Anderson and Superintendent Janopoulos stated that Village staff has 
researched different technologies to assist with water loss from the Village’s water system.  Director 
Anderson explained that there is always going to be some water loss due to small leaks in the system 
but that staff is trying to detect these leaks as soon as possible.  He said Village staff has evaluated 
leak sensors that would attach to the water system valves and transmit information to a secure 



 9 

website that sends an alarm when a leak is detected.  He said that staff currently completes an 
annual leak survey.  
 
There was discussion amongst the Village Board and staff regarding costs of the system, warranty 
period and the system’s technical details. 
 
Trustee Gibbs noted that Village residents interested in sustainability would be interested in water 
conservation, and that sinkholes caused by water leakage are expensive to repair. He stated that it 
is in the Village’s best interest to address these system leaks because they end up breaking 
something else as a result of the leak.  
 
There was discussion amongst the Village Board and staff regarding the number of sensors staff 
recommended be purchased and the costs involved. The consensus of the Village Board was that 
staff move ahead with a quote for the purchase of leak detection sensors for the Village Board’s 
consideration and action at a future meeting. 
 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Trustee Conti made a motion, seconded by Trustee Gibbs, to adjourn into Executive Session at 8:50 
p.m. for the purpose of discussing: the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 
performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body; collective negotiating matters 
between the public body and its employees or representatives, and deliberations concerning salary 
schedules for one or more classes of employees; the purchase or lease of real property for the use 
of the public body, including meetings held for the purpose of discussing whether a particular parcel 
should be acquired; and, setting a price for sale or lease of property owned by the public body. 
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, Henek and Vazquez 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Motion Passes. 
 
RECONVENED SPECIAL MEETING 
 
The Special Meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of August 20, 2018 was reconvened at 
9:15 p.m.  Upon roll call, the following persons were: 
 
Roll call: 
Present: Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, and Henek 
Absent: None 
Also Present: Village Administrator Palm, Assistant Village Administrator Scheiner, Village 

Attorney Michael Mars 
 



 10 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Cargie made a motion, seconded by Trustee Vazquez, that the Special Meeting of August 9, 
2018 be adjourned at 9:20 p.m.  
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, Henek and Vazquez 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Motion Passes. 
 
 
___________________________________________     
Kathleen Brand-White, Village Clerk 

 
 
 



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2018 

 
An executive session meeting of the Village of River Forest Board of Trustees was held on Monday, 
August 20, 2018 at 8:57 p.m. in the Community Room of Village Hall, 400 Park Avenue, River Forest, 
Illinois.  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  
 
The meeting was called to order. Upon roll call, the following persons were:  
 
Present:  President Adduci, Trustees Conti, Corsini, Henek, Vazquez, and Gibbs  
Absent:  Trustee Cargie 
Also Present:  Village Administrator Eric Palm, Assistant Village Administrator Lisa Scheiner, Village 

Attorney Gregory Smith, Management Analyst Jon Pape, Village Clerk Kathleen Brand-
White 

 
II. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Collective negotiating matters between the Village and its employees or representatives, and 
deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of employees 
 
Village Administrator Palm updated the Village Board on the status of the Fire Lieutenants’ petition 
to join the Firefighters’ bargaining unit and informed them that the ruling was not in the Village’s 
favor, however, the Village and its attorneys believe the ALJ misapplied the law regarding some 
aspects of the decision and so an appeal with the Illinois Labor Relations Board has been filed.  He 
stated that, at the request of the Firefighters, their collective bargaining agreement will not be 
settled until the matter with the Lieutenants is resolved. 
 
Setting of a price for sale or lease of property owned by the public body 
 
Village Administrator Palm discussed a plan to lease the Village-owned single family home at 10 
Lathrop Avenue.  The Village Board suggested the repairs be prioritized and concurred that a 
monthly rent of $1,800 was appropriate.  
 
The Village Board discussed the status of the Village-owned Lutheran Family and Children’s 
Services property at 7620 Madison Street and agreed that the repairs needed are considerable.  
There was a consensus that leasing the property would not be likely.  
 
Village Administrator Palm updated the Village Board on the efforts to purchase the single family 
residence at 406 Lathrop.  He said the Village’s initial offer was not accepted and he would be 
making another offer.  
 



Appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of Village employee 
  
Village Administrator Palm informed the Village Board that Dawn Haney resigned her position as 
Executive Assistant effective August 15, 2018 and that she and the Village had entered into a 
separation agreement.  He stated that he planned to modify the position before it is filled and that 
the modification would result in some cost savings to the Village.  He stated that he would like to 
reinvest those savings into Jon Pape with a possible title change and commensurate salary increase.   
 
Village Administrator Palm updated the Village Board of Trustees regarding the status of the 
Village’s efforts to fill the Finance Director position given the anticipated retirement of Joan Rock.  
He stated that the application process had concluded, numerous applications were received, and 
the Village was scheduled to review the top candidates selected by the Village’s recruiting 
consultant. Village Administrator Palm continued that interviews were scheduled for mid-
September and that the hope was to have a candidate on board before Ms. Rock’s retirement.  He 
also briefly summarized the Village’s transition plan for the position.  
 
III. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Trustee Corsini made a motion seconded by Trustee Vazquez to adjourn from Executive Session at 
9:14 p.m.  
 
Roll call: 
Ayes:  Trustees Cargie, Conti, Corsini, Gibbs, Henek and Vazquez 
Absent: None 
Nays:  None 
Motion Passes. 
 
 
___________________________________________     
Kathleen Brand-White, Village Clerk 

 



 

Village of River Forest  

PROCLAMATION 

September Is National Suicide Prevention Awareness Month 
 
WHEREAS; September is known around the United States as National Suicide Prevention 
Awareness Month and is intended to help promote awareness surrounding each of the Suicide 
Prevention resources available to us and our community. The simple goal is to learn how to help 
those around us and how to talk about suicide without increasing the risk of harm; and 
 
WHEREAS; Suicidal thoughts can affect anyone regardless of age, gender, race, orientation, 
income level, religion, or background; and   
 
WHEREAS; According to the CDC, each year more than 41,000 people die by suicide; and  
 
WHEREAS; Suicide is the 10th leading cause of death among adults in the US, and the 2nd 
leading cause of death among people aged 10-24; and  
 
WHEREAS; the Village of River Forest is no different than any other community in the country, 
but chooses to publicly state and place our full support behind local educators, mental health 
professionals, athletic coaches, pack leaders, police officers, and parents, as partners in 
supporting our community in simply being available to one another; and  
 
WHEREAS; local organizations like Suicide Prevention Services (SPS) and national 
organizations like the National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) are on the front lines of a 
battle that many still refuse to discuss in public, as suicide and mental illness remain too taboo a 
topic to speak on; and 
 
WHEREAS, every member of our community should understand that throughout life’s struggles 
we all need the occasional reminder that we are all silently fighting our own battles; and   
 
WHEREAS, I encourage all residents to take the time to inquire as to the wellbeing of their 
family, friends, and neighbors over the next few days and to genuinely convey their appreciation 
for their existence by any gesture they deem appropriate. A simple phone call, message, 
handshake, or hug can go a long way towards helping someone realize that suicide is not the 
answer.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I, Catherine Adduci, do hereby proclaim the month of 
September 2018, as National Suicide Prevention Awareness Month in the Village of River Forest. 
 
Dated this 17th day of September, 2018. 

 
______________________________ 

Catherine Adduci 
Village President 



MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: September 17, 2018 
 
TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
FROM: John Anderson, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order – 2018 Curb and Sidewalk Replacement Project 
  
 
Issue: Construction of the 2018 Curb and Sidewalk Replacement Project was completed during the 
month of July, 2018. Initially, $65,000 was budgeted for this work ($10,000 within the Water/Sewer 
Fund and $55,000 within the General Fund). 
 
Analysis: The original construction contract for this project was awarded to Strada Construction Co., 
in the amount of $57,000.00 on April 23, 2018. Due to beneficial unit pricing, the scope of the 
project was increased to maximize the amount of work completed within the existing budget. The 
cost of this increased scope of work put the overall total of work completed over the awarded amount 
of $57,000.00 and over the existing budget of $65,000.00. The final cost of all curb and sidewalk 
replacement work completed is $65,658.12, a total of $8,658.12 over the awarded amount for this 
work and $658.12 over the approved budget for this work.  
 
Recommendation:  Consider a Motion to approve a Change Order in the amount of $8,658.12 for 
the construction of the 2018 Curb and Sidewalk Replacement Project. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



 382825_1 1 

RESOLUTION NO.   ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER NO.    1      

TO THE  STRADA CONSTRUCTION CO.       CONTRACT RELATING TO  
THE    2018 CURB AND SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROJECT   

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of River Forest (“Village”) is an Illinois municipal corporation 

organized under the Illinois Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, on ___April 23, 2018___, the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village approved and authorized the execution of a contract (“Contract”) for the ___2018 Curb 

and Sidewalk Replacement Project___ (“Project”) with ___Strada Construction Co.___ 

(“Contractor”). The original amount of the Project was ___fifty seven thousand and (00/100)___ 

Dollars ($57,000.00). The anticipated completion date for the Project was ___August 20___, 

2018 (“Project Completion Date”); and  

 WHEREAS, the Contractor has filed a request for payment of Change Order No. _1_ in 

the amount of ___eight thousand six hundred fifty eight and (12/100) ___ Dollars ($8,658.12), 

due to the need to ___increase the scope of work based on beneficial unit pricing___, and a 

request for an extension of time to the Project Completion Date of an additional ___zero___ 

(_0_) days. A copy of Change Order No. _1_ is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part 

hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, based on the recommendation of the Contractor, the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village make the following findings and determinations in accordance 720 ILCS 

5/33E-9 regarding Change Order No. _1_ to the Contract: 

1.  Change Order No. _1_ (or a series of change orders): (a) are made necessary by 

circumstances not foreseeable at the time the Contract was signed; (b) are germane to 

the Contract as originally signed; and (c) are in the best interests of the Village. 



 382825_1 2 

WHEREAS, in addition, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village find and 

determine that, pursuant to 50 ILCS 525/5, Change Order No. _1_ (or a series of change orders) 

does not increase the original Contract price by fifty percent (50%) or more of the original 

Contract price, and thus the Village is not obligated to re-bid the additional work proposed under 

Change Order No. _1_; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village, pursuant to their powers 

as provided by 720 ILCS 5/33E-9, find that it is in the best interests of the Village and the public 

to approve Change Order No. _1_ because it relates to a public project and is for a public 

purpose.  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois: 

 SECTION 1: Each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated by reference into this 

Section 1 and made a part hereof as material and operative provisions of this Resolution. 

 SECTION 2: The President and Board of Trustees of the Village approve Change Order 

No. _1_ in the amount of ___ eight thousand six hundred fifty-eight and (12/100) ___ Dollars 

($8,658.12). The President and Board of Trustees further authorize and direct the Village 

President and the Village Clerk, or their designees, to execute Change Order No. _1_, execute 

the check or other payment to the Contractor in an amount not to exceed the amount of ___sixty 

five thousand six hundred fifty eight and (12/100)__ Dollars ($65,658.12) and execute any other 

necessary documents to implement Change Order No. _1_. The President and Board of Trustees 

also recognize and approve an increase in the completion time for the Project, as set forth in the 

Contract, by thirty (30) days or more. 

 
 



 382825_1 3 

 ADOPTED on a roll call vote of the Corporate Authorities on the _17__ day of 

September_, 2018. 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT: 

  
 

 APPROVED by me this _17__ day of _September__, 2018. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Village President 
 
 

 APPROVED and FILED in my office this _17__ day of __September__, 2018 and 
published in pamphlet form in the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois. 
 

   ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
  Village Clerk 

  



 382825_1 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 
CHANGE ORDER NO. _1_ TO THE CONTRACT  

(attached) 



jloster
Text Box
       Exhibit "A"



MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: September 17, 2018 
 
TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
FROM: John Anderson, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order – 2018 Water Main Improvement Project 
  
 
Issue: Construction of the 2018 Water Main Improvement Project was completed during the month 
of July, 2018. Initially, $345,000 was budgeted for this work. 
 
Analysis: The original construction contract for this project was awarded to Cerniglia Company, in 
the amount of $274,640.00 on May 14, 2018. Due to additional work required on the project, the 
final cost has exceeded the awarded contract amount. Reasons for these cost overruns include: 
 

· An additional valve was added - During the course of construction, it was determined that 
the installation of an additional valve (not originally anticipated) along Chicago Avenue, just 
east of Thatcher Avenue, would provide a much greater ability to isolate shutdowns in the 
future. This will minimize the amount of residents impacted if a future shutdown is required. 

· Sewer collapse repair – During the installation of water main at the intersection of Chicago 
and Forest, a sewer collapse occurred. The sewer serving the 700 block of Forest collapsed at 
its connection with the “trunkline” sewer which runs east/west along Chicago Avenue. As 
the contractor was already on-site, Staff elected to have them complete the repair and restore 
sewer service to the area.  

· Additional concrete base patch – With the Chicago Avenue Resurfacing Project coming 
behind the water main project, the area of concrete base patch was expanded slightly. 
Normally, the area of concrete base patch would be narrow and only within the water main 
trench. However, in areas where the trench showed insufficient base material under the 
surrounding pavement, areas of concrete base patch were expanded to help strengthen the 
pavement.  

 
The cost of this increased scope of work put the overall total of work completed over the awarded 
amount of $274,640.00, though it is still well within the approved budget for this work. The final 
cost of all work completed is $283,646.41, a total of $9,006.41 over the awarded amount for the 
project.  
 
Recommendation:  Consider a Motion to approve a Change Order in the amount of $9,006.41 for 
the construction of the 2018 Water Main Improvement Project. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



 382825_1 1 

RESOLUTION NO.   ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER NO.    1      

TO THE  CERNIGLIA COMPANY       CONTRACT RELATING TO  
THE    2018 WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT   

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of River Forest (“Village”) is an Illinois municipal corporation 

organized under the Illinois Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, on ___May 14, 2018___, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 

approved and authorized the execution of a contract (“Contract”) for the ___2018 Water Main 

Improvement Project___ (“Project”) with ___Cerniglia Company___ (“Contractor”). The original 

amount of the Project was ___two hundred seventy four thousand six hundred forty and 

(00/100)___ Dollars ($274,640.00). The anticipated completion date for the Project was   July 

20___, 2018 (“Project Completion Date”); and  

 WHEREAS, the Contractor has filed a request for payment of Change Order No. _1_ in 

the amount of ___nine thousand six and (41/100) ___ Dollars ($9,006.41), due to the need to 

___increase the scope of work based on field conditions___, and a request for an extension of 

time to the Project Completion Date of an additional ___zero___ (_0_) days. A copy of Change 

Order No. _1_ is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, based on the recommendation of the Contractor, the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village make the following findings and determinations in accordance 720 ILCS 

5/33E-9 regarding Change Order No. _1_ to the Contract: 

1.  Change Order No. _1_ (or a series of change orders): (a) are made necessary by 

circumstances not foreseeable at the time the Contract was signed; (b) are germane to 

the Contract as originally signed; and (c) are in the best interests of the Village. 



 382825_1 2 

WHEREAS, in addition, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village find and 

determine that, pursuant to 50 ILCS 525/5, Change Order No. _1_ (or a series of change orders) 

does not increase the original Contract price by fifty percent (50%) or more of the original 

Contract price, and thus the Village is not obligated to re-bid the additional work proposed under 

Change Order No. _1_; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village, pursuant to their powers 

as provided by 720 ILCS 5/33E-9, find that it is in the best interests of the Village and the public 

to approve Change Order No. _1_ because it relates to a public project and is for a public 

purpose.  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois: 

 SECTION 1: Each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated by reference into this 

Section 1 and made a part hereof as material and operative provisions of this Resolution. 

 SECTION 2: The President and Board of Trustees of the Village approve Change Order 

No. _1_ in the amount of ___nine thousand six and (41/100) ___ Dollars ($9,006.41). The 

President and Board of Trustees further authorize and direct the Village President and the Village 

Clerk, or their designees, to execute Change Order No. _1_, execute the check or other payment 

to the Contractor in an amount not to exceed the amount of ___two hundred eighty three 

thousand six hundred forty six and (41/100)__ Dollars ($283,646.41) and execute any other 

necessary documents to implement Change Order No. _1_. The President and Board of Trustees 

also recognize and approve an increase in the completion time for the Project, as set forth in the 

Contract, by thirty (30) days or more. 

 
 



 382825_1 3 

 ADOPTED on a roll call vote of the Corporate Authorities on the _17__ day of 

September_, 2018. 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT: 

  
 

 APPROVED by me this _17__ day of _September__, 2018. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Village President 
 
 

 APPROVED and FILED in my office this _17__ day of __September__, 2018 and 
published in pamphlet form in the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois. 
 

   ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
  Village Clerk 

  



 382825_1 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 
CHANGE ORDER NO. _1_ TO THE CONTRACT  

(attached) 



jloster
Text Box
          Exhibit A



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: September 17, 2018 

TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 

FROM: John Anderson, Director of Public Works 

SUBJECT: Award of Contract – Gale Ave Alley Improvements 

Issue: Staff is seeking the award of a contract for the Gale Avenue Alley Improvements. 

Analysis: The FY19 budget includes $950,000 for the improvement of alleys. This money was 
originally planned for the Thomas St. Alley (north of Thomas St., between Bonnie Brae and Harlem 
Ave) as well as 2 other alleys in need. It was anticipated that the Gale Ave Alley Improvements (0-
hundred block, between Gale Ave and Keystone Ave) would be completed during FY18. Due to 
administrative tasks associated with receiving a $75,000 grant from the Metropolitan Water 
Reclamation District (MWRD) the construction of this alley has been delayed until FY19.    

Staff received and opened five competitive bids on September 5, 2018. The project was bid in two 
different ways. The “Base Bid” solicited prices for the alley (sides only) to be constructed with 
asphalt. The “Bid Alternate” solicited prices for the alley (sides only) to be constructed with 
concrete. Both bids included a 3-foot strip of permeable pavers in the middle, similar to the recently 
constructed William St. Alley and the Quick Ave. Alley. As the attached bid tabulation indicates, A 
Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. was the lowest bidder for both the Base Bid and Bid Alternate 
with  bid amounts of $172,901.25 and $203,167.75, respectively. Based on unit pricing 
submitted, the $75,000 reimbursement grant from the MWRD and the longevity associated with 
concrete pavement vs. asphalt pavement, Staff is recommending approval of the Bid 
Alternate. A Lamp has not previously worked for the Village, however, multiple references have 
been checked and all provided positive feedback. As such, Staff recommends the award of the 
contract for the Gale Avenue Alley Improvements to A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc.   

In addition to this work in FY19, the Village also approved a contract with Hancock Engineering for 
the design of three additional alley improvements. A cost estimate has been established for this work 
in the amount of approximately $750,000. These alleys will be permitted and competitively bid over 
the winter months with construction on all three to follow in March/April of 2019.  

While the Thomas St. Alley was originally planned for FY19, it is anticipated that this alley will be 
designed, permitted and bid over the winter months with construction to follow in early FY20.  



Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of this contract with the following motion: Motion 
to award a contract to A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc.  in the amount of $203,167.75 for the Gale 
Avenue Alley Improvements and authorize the Village Administrator to execute the contract 
agreement.  
 
Attachments:  Bid Tabulation 



Village of River Forest

Gale Ave Alley Improvements

Bid Tabulation

9/5/2018

ITEM NO. ITEM UNIT QUANTITY Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 Construction Staking LSUM 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

2 Saw Cut (Special) FOOT 1775 $0.10 $177.50 $1.50 $2,662.50 $3.50 $6,212.50 $1.00 $1,775.00 $1.65 $2,928.75

3 Traffic Control, Maintenance of Traffic, Detours LSUM 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $3,750.00 $3,750.00 $1,900.00 $1,900.00

4 Additional Hauling Surcharge, Non-Hazardous Special Waste LOAD 2 $10.00 $20.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $360.00 $720.00 $2,750.00 $5,500.00 $1,450.00 $2,900.00

5 PCC Sidewalk Removal SQ FT 50 $5.00 $250.00 $5.00 $250.00 $4.00 $200.00 $2.00 $100.00 $20.00 $1,000.00

6 PCC Sidewalk, 6" SQ FT 150 $10.00 $1,500.00 $11.75 $1,762.50 $10.00 $1,500.00 $8.00 $1,200.00 $11.85 $1,777.50

7 Detectable Warnings SQ FT 20 $25.00 $500.00 $45.00 $900.00 $36.00 $720.00 $55.00 $1,100.00 $30.00 $600.00

8 PCC Pavement Removal SQ YD 1150 $11.00 $12,650.00 $7.50 $8,625.00 $16.00 $18,400.00 $25.00 $28,750.00 $45.00 $51,750.00

9 Driveway Pavement Removal SQ YD 50 $15.00 $750.00 $15.00 $750.00 $16.00 $800.00 $15.00 $750.00 $45.00 $2,250.00

10 Hot-Mix Asphalt Driveway Pavement, 3" SQ YD 10 $65.00 $650.00 $100.00 $1,000.00 $82.00 $820.00 $65.00 $650.00 $95.00 $950.00

11 PCC Driveway Pavement, 6" SQ YD 40 $70.00 $2,800.00 $84.00 $3,360.00 $82.00 $3,280.00 $85.00 $3,400.00 $106.65 $4,266.00

12 Exploratory Trench (Special) CU YD 5 $1.00 $5.00 $11.50 $57.50 $86.00 $430.00 $100.00 $500.00 $10.00 $50.00

13 Earth Excavation CU YD 400 $42.00 $16,800.00 $40.00 $16,000.00 $46.00 $18,400.00 $40.00 $16,000.00 $18.00 $7,200.00

14 PCC Alley Pavement, 8" SQ YD 50 $85.00 $4,250.00 $95.00 $4,750.00 $88.00 $4,400.00 $225.00 $11,250.00 $130.00 $6,500.00

15 PCC Base Patch, 8" SQ YD 10 $85.00 $850.00 $111.00 $1,110.00 $96.00 $960.00 $250.00 $2,500.00 $175.00 $1,750.00

16 Class D Patches, Type I, 2" SQ YD 10 $50.00 $500.00 $100.00 $1,000.00 $75.00 $750.00 $75.00 $750.00 $155.00 $1,550.00

17 Selected Granular Backfill, CA-6 (Under HMA) CU YD 160 $10.00 $1,600.00 $45.00 $7,200.00 $46.00 $7,360.00 $36.00 $5,760.00 $65.00 $10,400.00

18 Bituminous Materials (Prime Coat) POUND 435 $3.00 $1,305.00 $0.01 $4.35 $1.10 $478.50 $1.00 $435.00 $3.60 $1,566.00

19 Leveling Binder (Machine Method) N50 TON 220 $105.00 $23,100.00 $100.00 $22,000.00 $120.00 $26,400.00 $150.00 $33,000.00 $475.00 $104,500.00

20 Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Course, Mix D, N50 TON 110 $110.00 $12,100.00 $100.00 $11,000.00 $118.00 $12,980.00 $165.00 $18,150.00 $515.00 $56,650.00

21 Geotextile SQ YD 625 $4.50 $2,812.50 $1.25 $781.25 $3.00 $1,875.00 $2.00 $1,250.00 $1.65 $1,031.25

22 Pervious Pavers SQ YD 185 $100.00 $18,500.00 $110.00 $20,350.00 $120.00 $22,200.00 $144.00 $26,640.00 $60.00 $11,100.00

23 Setting Bed Aggregate (CA-16) SQ YD 185 $6.25 $1,156.25 $15.00 $2,775.00 $13.00 $2,405.00 $5.00 $925.00 $10.00 $1,850.00

24 Aggregate Base Course, CA-7 SQ YD 185 $12.50 $2,312.50 $15.00 $2,775.00 $22.00 $4,070.00 $14.00 $2,590.00 $20.50 $3,792.50

25 Aggregate Base Course, CA-1 SQ YD 185 $34.50 $6,382.50 $50.00 $9,250.00 $36.00 $6,660.00 $37.00 $6,845.00 $45.50 $8,417.50

26 Pipe Underdrain, 6" FOOT 525 $35.00 $18,375.00 $52.25 $27,431.25 $33.00 $17,325.00 $42.00 $22,050.00 $21.50 $11,287.50

27 Storm Sewer, 6" FOOT 40 $45.00 $1,800.00 $53.50 $2,140.00 $43.00 $1,720.00 $48.00 $1,920.00 $47.00 $1,880.00

28 Sewer Check Valve, 6" EACH 1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,175.00 $3,175.00 $960.00 $960.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $750.00 $750.00

29 Construct Manhole Over Existing Sewer EACH 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $9,800.00 $9,800.00 $7,860.00 $7,860.00 $6,895.00 $6,895.00 $2,735.00 $2,735.00

30 Catch Basin, 3' Diameter, Type 1 Frame, Closed Lid EACH 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,575.00 $3,575.00 $1,920.00 $1,920.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $1,950.00 $1,950.00

31 Parkway Restoration, Salt Tolerant Sod SQ YD 15 $50.00 $750.00 $100.00 $1,500.00 $36.00 $540.00 $35.00 $525.00 $200.00 $3,000.00

32 Supplemental Watering UNIT 5 $1.00 $5.00 $0.01 $0.05 $1.00 $5.00 $125.00 $625.00 $60.00 $300.00

33 Mobilization LSUM 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,915.60 $20,915.60 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00

As Calculated $172,901.25 $192,900.00 $195,851.00 $220,835.00 $312,482.00

(see next page for BID ALTERNATE results) As Read $172,901.25 $192,900.00 $195,851.00 $220,835.00 $312,482.00

BASE BID

Schroeder and Schroeder

7306 Central Park

Skokie, IL 60076Elgin, IL 60120

A Lamp Concrete

1900 Wright Boulevard

Schaumburg, IL 60193 Woodstock, IL 60098

1166 Lake Avenue

Chicagoland Paving

225 Telser Road

Lake Zurich, IL 60047

Alliance ContractorsMartam Construction

1200 Gasket Drive



ITEM NO. ITEM UNIT QUANTITY Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 Construction Staking LSUM 1 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

2 Saw Cut (Special) FOOT 665 $0.10 $66.50 $1.00 $665.00 $3.50 $2,327.50 $1.50 $997.50 $4.40 $2,926.00

3 Traffic Control, Maintenance of Traffic, Detours LSUM 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $3,750.00 $3,750.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,900.00 $1,900.00

4 Additional Hauling Surcharge, Non-Hazardous Special Waste LOAD 2 $10.00 $20.00 $2,750.00 $5,500.00 $360.00 $720.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,450.00 $2,900.00

5 PCC Sidewalk Removal SQ FT 50 $10.00 $500.00 $2.00 $100.00 $4.00 $200.00 $5.00 $250.00 $20.00 $1,000.00

6 PCC Sidewalk, 6" SQ FT 150 $20.00 $3,000.00 $8.00 $1,200.00 $10.00 $1,500.00 $9.00 $1,350.00 $11.85 $1,777.50

7 Detectable Warnings SQ FT 20 $35.00 $700.00 $42.00 $840.00 $36.00 $720.00 $37.00 $740.00 $30.00 $600.00

8 PCC Pavement Removal SQ YD 1150 $11.00 $12,650.00 $12.00 $13,800.00 $16.00 $18,400.00 $7.50 $8,625.00 $45.00 $51,750.00

9 Driveway Pavement Removal SQ YD 75 $15.00 $1,125.00 $12.00 $900.00 $16.00 $1,200.00 $15.00 $1,125.00 $45.00 $3,375.00

10 Hot-Mix Asphalt Driveway Pavement, 3" SQ YD 25 $45.00 $1,125.00 $65.00 $1,625.00 $82.00 $2,050.00 $100.00 $2,500.00 $95.00 $2,375.00

11 PCC Driveway Pavement, 6" SQ YD 50 $75.00 $3,750.00 $63.00 $3,150.00 $82.00 $4,100.00 $67.00 $3,350.00 $106.65 $5,332.50

12 Exploratory Trench (Special) CU YD 5 $10.00 $50.00 $100.00 $500.00 $86.00 $430.00 $11.50 $57.50 $10.00 $50.00

13 Earth Excavation CU YD 400 $42.00 $16,800.00 $40.00 $16,000.00 $46.00 $18,400.00 $40.00 $16,000.00 $18.00 $7,200.00

14 PCC Alley Pavement, 8" SQ YD 1150 $58.00 $66,700.00 $63.00 $72,450.00 $61.00 $70,150.00 $66.50 $76,475.00 $112.50 $129,375.00

15 PCC Base Patch, 8" SQ YD 10 $55.00 $550.00 $125.00 $1,250.00 $96.00 $960.00 $80.00 $800.00 $175.00 $1,750.00

16 Class D Patches, Type I, 2" SQ YD 10 $35.00 $350.00 $75.00 $750.00 $75.00 $750.00 $100.00 $1,000.00 $155.00 $1,550.00

17 Selected Granular Backfill, CA-6 (Under HMA) CU YD 130 $10.00 $1,300.00 $36.00 $4,680.00 $46.00 $5,980.00 $45.00 $5,850.00 $65.00 $8,450.00

18 Bituminous Materials (Prime Coat) POUND 0 $0.00 $0.00 $1.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3.60 $0.00

19 Leveling Binder (Machine Method) N50 TON 0 $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $188.00 $0.00

20 Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Course, Mix D, N50 TON 0 $0.00 $0.00 $165.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $228.00 $0.00

21 Geotextile SQ YD 625 $4.00 $2,500.00 $2.00 $1,250.00 $3.00 $1,875.00 $1.25 $781.25 $1.65 $1,031.25

22 Pervious Pavers SQ YD 185 $100.00 $18,500.00 $121.50 $22,477.50 $120.00 $22,200.00 $110.00 $20,350.00 $60.00 $11,100.00

23 Setting Bed Aggregate (CA-16) SQ YD 185 $6.25 $1,156.25 $5.00 $925.00 $13.00 $2,405.00 $15.00 $2,775.00 $10.00 $1,850.00

24 Aggregate Base Course, CA-7 SQ YD 185 $12.50 $2,312.50 $14.00 $2,590.00 $22.00 $4,070.00 $15.00 $2,775.00 $20.50 $3,792.50

25 Aggregate Base Course, CA-1 SQ YD 185 $34.50 $6,382.50 $37.00 $6,845.00 $36.00 $6,660.00 $50.00 $9,250.00 $45.50 $8,417.50

26 Pipe Underdrain, 6" FOOT 525 $35.00 $18,375.00 $42.00 $22,050.00 $33.00 $17,325.00 $52.25 $27,431.25 $21.50 $11,287.50

27 Storm Sewer, 6" FOOT 40 $50.00 $2,000.00 $48.00 $1,920.00 $43.00 $1,720.00 $53.50 $2,140.00 $47.00 $1,880.00

28 Sewer Check Valve, 6" EACH 1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $960.00 $960.00 $3,175.00 $3,175.00 $750.00 $750.00

29 Construct Manhole Over Existing Sewer EACH 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,895.00 $6,895.00 $7,860.00 $7,860.00 $9,800.00 $9,800.00 $2,735.00 $2,735.00

30 Catch Basin, 3' Diameter, Type 1 Frame, Closed Lid EACH 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $1,920.00 $1,920.00 $3,575.00 $3,575.00 $1,950.00 $1,950.00

31 Parkway Restoration, Salt Tolerant Sod SQ YD 15 $50.00 $750.00 $35.00 $525.00 $36.00 $540.00 $100.00 $1,500.00 $200.00 $3,000.00

32 Supplemental Watering UNIT 5 $1.00 $5.00 $125.00 $625.00 $1.00 $5.00 $0.01 $0.05 $60.00 $300.00

33 Mobilization LSUM 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $21,227.45 $21,227.45 $2,400.00 $2,400.00

As Calculated $203,167.75 $205,512.50 $218,927.50 $229,900.00 $274,304.75

As Read $203,167.75 $205,512.50 $218,927.50 $229,900.00 $274,304.75

A Lamp Concrete Martam ConstructionSchroeder and Schroeder Alliance ContractorsChicagoland Paving

BID ALTERNATE
1900 Wright Boulevard 1200 Gasket Drive7306 Central Park 1166 Lake Avenue

Schaumburg, IL 60193 Elgin, IL 60120Skokie, IL 60076

225 Telser Road

Lake Zurich, IL 60047 Woodstock, IL 60098



MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 
TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
FROM:  John Anderson, Director of Public Works  
 
SUBJECT:  Electric Power Supplier Agreements – Street Lighting and Pumping Station

  

 
Issue: The Village purchases electricity for its street light system and Pumping Station, 
while the power for the Village Hall and Public Works Garage are provided free of charge 
by ComEd pursuant to our franchise agreement.  Satori Energy, Inc. (previously Energy 
Choices, Inc.), an energy broker the Village has used in recent years, was asked to solicit 
bids from pre-qualified suppliers as the electricity supply agreements for both street 
lighting and the Pumping Station are set to expire in December 2018.  These accounts do 
not have a ComEd fixed rate option and must choose service from another supplier to 
maintain budget certainty.   
 
Analysis: In January 2007, ComEd eliminated subsidized fixed-rate electricity service for 
non-franchise municipal accounts.  To bring a cost-effective electricity supply alternative to 
municipalities in northern Illinois, the Metropolitan Mayors Caucus and Energy Choices 
joined forces to create the Metropolitan Energy Collaborative.  The “Collaborative” sought 
supply from a multitude of pre-qualified suppliers to secure lower-priced electricity to 
municipalities.  Satori Energy Inc. currently serves over 25 municipal clients in Illinois, with 
the continuing endorsement of the Metropolitan Mayor’s Caucus providing cost-effective 
electricity supply to municipalities for pumping and street lighting accounts. 
 
A price history is attached of all accounts.  Pricing will be decreasing this year for the street 
lighting account.  However, the pricing for the pumping station account will increase due to 
the inconsistent time intervals that power is used compared to the predictable overnight 
usage times for street lighting.  The lowest energy rates are for 36 month agreements on 
both street lighting and pumping station accounts. 
 
Recommendation: Motion to approve a 3-year electricity supply contract and permission 
to sign a new pumping station contract at the not to exceed price of $0.061/kWh with MC2 
Energy Inc. and a new street lighting contract at the not to exceed price of $0.031/kWh 
with AEP Energy, Inc. and authorize the Village Administrator to execute the contract 
agreement. 



@satorienergy
www.satorienergy.com
P 312.850.2300 F 312.264.6200
300 S. Wacker Dr., Suite 800, Chicago, IL 60606

@satorienergy
www.satorienergy.com
P 312.850.2300 F 312.264.6200
300 S. Wacker Dr., Suite 800, Chicago, IL 60606 e n e r g y

SATORI ENERGY

Services & 
Capabilities

In each relationship, Satori Energy creates 
a customized solution that best meets our 
client’s specific needs. We recognize that 
we are in business to serve our clients, 
and we make it our goal to exceed client 
expectations every time. 

Bottom Line: Our clients get a better price and 
more value by working with us.

List of firm services and capabilities

•  Energy procurement (including risk management services) 

•  Ongoing energy market price monitoring services  

•  Ongoing contract administration services 

•  Strategic market timing recommendations 

•  Due Diligence services when purchasing or selling an asset  

•  Evaluation of demand-side curtailment programs  

•  Energy audit services 

•  Capacity PLC notification services 

•  Invoice auditing services 

•  Budgeting & forecasting 

•  Contract negotiation/review 

•  Energy Star Certification & Benchmarking 

•  Utility variance reporting 

•  Renewable energy options

The Energy Professionals Assoication 
(TEPA) named Satori Energy as a  
recipient of the 2017 ABC of the Year 
award, given to the outstanding ABC  
in the retail energy community.

Energy Research Consulting Group 
ranked Satori Energy as #1 in Overall 
Supplier Satisfaction in 2017. Satori 
Energy is the first ABC to recieve this 
award in back-to-back years.

ENERGY STAR® awarded Satori Energy 
Service & Product Provider Partner 
status for its effort in helping clients 
improve energy performance and 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions.



QUOTE 

DATE:

Projected Start Date:

Utility:

Number of Accounts:

December 2018Contract End Date:

$11,569

$11,743

$12,087

$11,949

Annual Contract Expense

CURRENT PROVIDER INFORMATION

Annual Supply Cost: $14,434

QUOTE INFORMATION

FixedProduct:

Electric Rate ($/kWh):

Supply Provider:

24 Months

36 Months

18 Months

12 Months

Term Length

Product Quoted: Fixed

QUOTE PRESENTATION

$0.03171

36 Months

$0.03220

24 Months

100%Approved

$0.02923 AEP Energy

Supplier

 ↓ 18.6%

 ↓ 16.3%

 ↓ 17.2%

Annual Impact (%)

 ↓ 19.9%

Credit Status Bandwidth

Constellation

Electric Supply Pricing Proposal 7/24/2018

Constellation

$0.03647

Rate ($/kWh)

$0.03019

$0.03054

$0.02967

MOST COMPETITIVE SUPPLY QUOTES

AEP Energy

AEP Energy

AEP Energy

June 2018 - May 2019

Annual kWh: 395,788

$0.03261

1

ComEd - IL

December 2018

12-MONTH QUOTE COMPARISON

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

0

$0.03019

$0.03525

$0.07300

$0.06623

$0.07622

$0.06601

$0.03330

$0.06757

$0.06535

$0.07726

$0.03380

$0.03054

$0.06490

$0.07423

0 0 0 0.0%

0

100.0%

Approved

Approved

Approved

$0.06595

$0.06780

100%$0.03492 Approved

$0.07290

$0.03250

$0.02923 Approved

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Approved

Approved$0.07190

$0.06505

$0.07374

$0.06427

USAGE HISTORY

$0.03412

All-inclusive electricity quotes are comprised of six major 

components: energy, capacity, transmission, ancillary costs, 

line losses, and Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) costs. 

Capacity itself is a regulated cost, meaning that the cost will 

be the same regardless of which supplier you choose to 

purchase your energy from. The table to the right shows the 

fluctuating costs of capacity over the next several years.

$0.02079

Est. Cost ($/kWh)

100%

Approved

Approved

Approved

June 2019 - May 2020

CAPACITY INFORMATION

0 0.0%

NOTES AND DISCLAIMERS

June 2021 - May 2022

$0.02209

June 2020 - May 2021 $0.01908

$0.02007

June 2017 - May 2018

Planning Year

$0.01600

0 0 0 0.0%

Service AddressAccount Number

0 0 0 0.0%

Annual kWh Usage %

4272018009 0 Village of River Forest, River Forest, IL 60305 395,788

mc2 Energy Services

Engie Resources

$0.03448

$0.06630

Supplier

$0.03515

$0.06671

-

$0.03312

$0.06605

$0.06860Entrust Energy

$0.03481

$0.03310

$0.03520

$0.02967

Ambit Energy

NextEra Energy

18 Months

Direct Energy

Agera Energy

Hudson Energy

AEP Energy

Dynegy Energy Services

• All savings and expense impact figures displayed in the above proposal are estimates based on historical usage.

$0.07160

$0.06663

$0.07020

Village of River Forest (Streetlight)

• Pricing as quoted is valid until 5PM CST of the Quote Date.
• This offer is presented on behalf of the named providers and is to the best knowledge of Satori Energy.
• Satori Energy is not responsible for any changes relative to this offer that are unknown to us.
• Historical annual kWh is determined by calculating the last 12 months of usage as provided from the local utility.
• This proposal incorporates all costs except meter rentals, facility costs, delivery costs, and any city, county, or state sales tax and gross receipts tax (which are not subject to deregulation).
• This analysis is only for the named client's review and the client agrees not to share this proprietary information with any third parties unless required by law. Either party breaking this covenant will be liable for damages.
• All suppliers retain the ability to adjust prices due to a change in law imposed by a Governmental Authority or the regional Independent System Operator ("ISO").

↓ $2,486

Total Contract Impact ($)

↓ $2,866

↓ $2,691

↓ $2,486

Annual Impact ($)

↓ $2,347

↓ $8,597

↓ $5,383

↓ $3,521

$0.03649

12 Months

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Monthly Historical Usage (kWh)

$0.000

$0.020

$0.040

$0.060

$0.080

$0.100

Current Rate vs. Supplier Quotes (12 Months)

Satori Energy

CONFIDENTIAL



QUOTE 

DATE:

Projected Start Date:

Utility:

Number of Accounts:

December 2018Contract End Date:

$22,593

$22,764

$23,385

$23,112

Annual Contract Expense

CURRENT PROVIDER INFORMATION

Annual Supply Cost: $19,944

QUOTE INFORMATION

FixedProduct:

Electric Rate ($/kWh):

Supply Provider:

24 Months

36 Months

18 Months

12 Months

Term Length

Product Quoted: Fixed

QUOTE PRESENTATION

$0.06168

36 Months

$0.06211

24 Months

100%Pending Approval

$0.05961 mc2 Energy Services

Supplier

↑ 14.1%

↑ 17.3%

↑ 15.9%

Annual Impact (%)

↑ 13.3%

Credit Status Bandwidth

Constellation

Electric Supply Pricing Proposal 7/24/2018

mc2 Energy Services

$0.05262

Rate ($/kWh)

$0.06098

$0.06170

$0.06006

MOST COMPETITIVE SUPPLY QUOTES

mc2 Energy Services

Hudson Energy

mc2 Energy Services

June 2018 - May 2019

Annual kWh: 379,015

$0.06261

1

ComEd - IL

December 2018

12-MONTH QUOTE COMPARISON

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

0

$0.06302

$0.06172

$0.07140

$0.06631

$0.06791

$0.06601

$0.06100

$0.07933

$0.06631

$0.06780

$0.06170

$0.06369

$0.06490

$0.06618

0 0 0 0.0%

0

100.0%

Approved

Approved

Approved

$0.07727

$0.06740

100%$0.06061 Approved

$0.07130

$0.05980

$0.06159 Approved

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Approved

Approved$0.07040

$0.06515

$0.06573

$0.06427

USAGE HISTORY

$0.05961

All-inclusive electricity quotes are comprised of six major 

components: energy, capacity, transmission, ancillary costs, 

line losses, and Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) costs. 

Capacity itself is a regulated cost, meaning that the cost will 

be the same regardless of which supplier you choose to 

purchase your energy from. The table to the right shows the 

fluctuating costs of capacity over the next several years.

$0.02079

Est. Cost ($/kWh)

100%

Approved

Approved

Approved

June 2019 - May 2020

CAPACITY INFORMATION

0 0.0%

NOTES AND DISCLAIMERS

June 2021 - May 2022

$0.02209

June 2020 - May 2021 $0.01908

$0.02007

June 2017 - May 2018

Planning Year

$0.01600

0 0 0 0.0%

Service AddressAccount Number

0 0 0 0.0%

Annual kWh Usage %

0636015015 7525 W. Berkshire, River Forest, IL 60305 379,015

mc2 Energy Services

Engie Resources

$0.06006

$0.07764

Supplier

$0.06177

$0.07855

-

$0.06330

$0.06605

$0.06810Entrust Energy

$0.06098

$0.06050

$0.06086

$0.06200

Ambit Energy

NextEra Energy

18 Months

Direct Energy

Agera Energy

Hudson Energy

AEP Energy

Dynegy Energy Services

• All savings and expense impact figures displayed in the above proposal are estimates based on historical usage.

$0.07010

$0.06671

$0.06980

Village of River Forest (Pumping)

• Pricing as quoted is valid until 5PM CST of the Quote Date.
• This offer is presented on behalf of the named providers and is to the best knowledge of Satori Energy.
• Satori Energy is not responsible for any changes relative to this offer that are unknown to us.
• Historical annual kWh is determined by calculating the last 12 months of usage as provided from the local utility.
• This proposal incorporates all costs except meter rentals, facility costs, delivery costs, and any city, county, or state sales tax and gross receipts tax (which are not subject to deregulation).
• This analysis is only for the named client's review and the client agrees not to share this proprietary information with any third parties unless required by law. Either party breaking this covenant will be liable for damages.
• All suppliers retain the ability to adjust prices due to a change in law imposed by a Governmental Authority or the regional Independent System Operator ("ISO").

↑ $3,169

Total Contract Impact ($)

↑ $2,649

↑ $2,820

↑ $3,169

Annual Impact ($)

↑ $3,441

↑ $7,948

↑ $5,640

↑ $5,162

$0.06291

12 Months

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Monthly Historical Usage (kWh)

$0.000

$0.020

$0.040

$0.060

$0.080

$0.100

Current Rate vs. Supplier Quotes (12 Months)

Satori Energy

CONFIDENTIAL



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 10, 2018 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees  
 
From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
Subj: License Agreement with Property Owner at 400 Ashland Avenue for an Underground Sprinkler 

System in the Public Right-of-Way 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Issue: The Property Owner of 400 Ashland Avenue, Viktor Jakovljevic, would like to install a underground 
irrigation system with certain components in the Village right-of-way and needs permission from the 
Village Board of Trustees to do so.  
 
Analysis: The Village Code does not permit obstructions nor does it allow homeowners to install anything 
in the public right-of-way, unless permission is granted by the Village typically through an agreement.  
The attached agreement is the standard document that is utilized by the Village for these matters.   
 
The placement of an irrigation system within the public right-of-way is common throughout the Village.  
The typical installation includes a row of sprinkler heads along the private side of the sidewalk and 
another row of heads along the public side of the sidewalk and/or the back of the curb.  While this is fairly 
common throughout the Village, it does pose challenges for capital improvement projects that involve 
excavation within the right-of-way and residents can incur damage to the system when the work occurs.  
Bills for repairs to the system are then forwarded to Village Staff for reimbursement.  
 
In an effort to minimize Village expenses for private infrastructure within the public right-of-way, Staff 
has developed a policy that all irrigation systems that are proposed for installation within the public right-
of-way should require a Right-of-Way Encroachment Waiver and Agreement as a condition of permit 
approval.  This will help avoid future damage to irrigation systems by allowing the Village to document 
the existence of these systems.  This is similar to the process followed for any other private infrastructure 
proposed within public space (e.g. in-pavement heating elements, fences, decorative light pole). 
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Village Administrator to execute a right-of-way encroachment waiver 
and agreement for an irrigation system in the public right-of-way with the property owner at 400 Ashland 
Avenue. 
 
Attachment: License Agreement with Property Owner at 400 Ashland Avenue for a Underground 
Sprinkler System in the Public Right-of-Way 
 



THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED
BY, AND AFTER RECORDING
RETT]RN TO:

Klein Thorpe & Jenkins, Ltd.
20 North Wacker Drive. Suite 1660
Chicago, tL 60606
Gregory T. Smith

[The above space for recording purposes]

RIGHT.OF-WAY ENCROACHMENT WAIVER AND AGREEMENT

as !\cE - IlOa- r Iof \tAa*rr E^.,f.*^ (insert

business name)] represent that
commonly known as:

v \ k\oL -r 4,.^J L1(1J\cis the legal owner ("Legal Ownei') ofreal property

qs6 NSA!A,J , River Fore st, Illinois 60305
(the "Benefi ned Property")

PrN(S) #

(Survey of property containing legal description of said Benefitted Property is attached and made a part hereof as
..EXHIBIT A)

Legal Owner is undertaking the following Project at the above stated Benefitted Property and on adjacent Public
Right-of-way that will encroach on the Public Right-of-way:

Project: r )sJ()€(u (o.n,o\)t str :9c_\ Fr,< L €{t \ \ \r€)"--

I/We, on behalf of Legal Owner, understand that the Village of River Forest Village Code does not permit any
obstructions in the Public Right-of-Way and does not allow for the placement of (the

"Encroachment") within the Public Right-of-Way for the purpose of

I/We agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that the Encroachment placed by Legal Owner or an agent for the benefit of
the Benefitted Property owned by the Legal Owner, and which encroach upon the Public Right-of-Way at the above

address, will be the responsibility of the Legal Owner to maintain, repair, and replace if necessary, due to any

damage by the Village or other public agencies for whatever reason, including but not limited to excavation in the

Public Right-of-Way by the Village for the purposes ofrepairing a water main break, installation or replacement of a

water main or other utilities, replacement or reconstruction ofthe street, or due to normal wear and tear.

IAMe further agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that any work to be performed on or underneath the Public Right-of-
Way shall be in a good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and county
laws and regulations and the Village codes, ordinances, and regulations.

# 284162

ttwe, E FQ-e r.t 7.oQl.A ,

I



I/We further agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that the Legal Owner shall be responsible for any and all costs of
restoring any disturbances of the Public Right-of-Way caused by its installation and use of the Encroachment in the

Public Right-of-Way, and any and all repairs or damage to the Public Right-of-Way arising fiom the misuse or
damage to same by it, or its officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, successors, and assigns, to the

reasonable satisfaction ofthe Village. Upon completion ofinstallation or any subsequent repair or maintenance, the

Legal Owner shall return the Public Right-of-way to good order, condition and repair. In the event the Legal Owner
fails, in a timely manner, to restore any disturbances or make any and all repairs of the Public Right-of-Way as set

forth above, the Village may make such restoration or repairs. In the event the Village makes such restorations or
repairs, the Legal Owner agrees to pay the costs of such restoration or repairs upon written demand, or the Village
may remove the Encroachment and/or lien the Benefitted Property for the costs ofsuch restoration or repair. Legal

Owner waives all rights and claims ofany kind against the Village arising out ofthe Village's restoration or repair
ofthe Public Right-of-way or removal ofthe Encroachment under this paragraph.

I/We funher agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that Legal Owner shall not place or allow any liens, mortgages,

security interests, pledges, claims of others, equitable interests, or other encumbrances to attach to or to be filed
against title or ownership of the Public Right-of-Way. The Village retains the right to gmnt easemenls, licenses, or
any other property interests in and to the Public Right-of-Way in which the Encroachment is located, as determined

by the Village in the Village's sole discretion. This Agreement shall not limit or prohibit the Village llom granting

easements, licenses, or any other property interests in or to the Public Right-of-Way in which the Encroachment is

located, as determined by the Village in the Village's sole discretion.

I/We further agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that if the Village, in its sole discretion, determines that the

Encroachment should be removed for any reason, or no reason, or that the further existence or use of the

Encroachment in the Public Right-of-Way is, or will be, hazardous to the public or to the Public Right-of-Way,
Legal Owner agrees to, upon written notice by the Village, make modifications or remove the Encroachment at the

Legal Owner's sole expense. In the event the Legal Owner fails to make required modifications within a reasonable

time liame, or if such modifications cannot be completed within said time fiame, the Village may make the

necessary modifications or remove the Encroachment. In the event the Village installs and/or makes the necessary

modifications, Legal Owner agrees to pay the costs of such modifications or improvements upon wriften demand to
the Village, or the Village may remove the Encroachment in its Public Righlof-Way and./or lien the Benefitted
Property for the costs of such modifications. Legal Owner waives all rights and claims of any kind against the

Village arising out of the Village's modifications to the Encroachment or the Public Right-of-Way or removal of the

Encroachment under this paragraph.

I/We, on behalf of the Legal Owner, also understand that as a condition of the Village of fuver Forest granting
permission to utilize the Public Right-of-Way abutting the Benefitted Property for the aforesaid purposes, the Legal

Owner covenants and agrees not to sue and to protect, indemrifo, defend, and hold harmless the Village of River
Forest, and it's elected officials, employees, agents, volunteers, and attorneys against any and all claims, costs,

actions, losses, demands, injuries and expenses of whatever nature, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees,

related to this Agreement or such Encroachment being located in the Public Right-of-Way and/or Ilom acts or
omissions by the Legal Owner, its contractors, sub contractors, or agents or employees in maintaining the same

and./or conjunction with the use of the Public Righcof-Way abutting the Benefifted Property for th€ aforesaid
purposes.

I/We, on behalf of Legal Owner, understand that the terms and condilions contained herein apply uniquely to the

Public Right-of-Way adjacent to the Benefitted Property at the above address as legally described in Exhibit A and it
is the intent of myself and the Village to have the terms and conditions of this instrument run with the land and be

binding on subsequent purchasers ofthe Benefitted ProPerty.

This document shall be notarized and recorded with the Cook County Recorder ofDeeds.

2# 28,1162



NOTE: THE UNDERSIGNED OFFICER(S) CERTIFY THAT HEITHEY HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO BIND
.THE 

T,EGAL OWNER HEREIN,

ame

Ni

Date qlar lr?

Name

Date:
t- --t

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)SS

COUNTYOFCOOK )

I, the undersigned, otary Public in Cook County, in the State of lllinois, do hereby certiry that
is/are

aN
ll known to me to be the OU-.lZf and

Corporation (the
"Corporation")], and are the same persons whose names are subscribe d to the foregoing instrument, appeared beforc
me this day in person and severally acknowledged that as such and

respeclively[, of the Corporation, they signed and delivered this instrument and
caused the seal of the Corporation to be affixed thereto, pursuant lo authority given by the Board of Directors ofthe
Corporation,] and as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of the Corporation, for
the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given under my hand and notarial seal tliAl Oayof 20l I

ir 4oo lr(- , a

t I

Notary Signature h/" t ISE , , l.Jl.hl Uofqurtcl la"I .ITISTYI,IJ'O.
I1OU J AUVN

oaOa tr r.$.EO

.)n 284162



. t;l
.p,Sr,td

LOT 7 "g
p' 6

4 STORY BRICK
BUILDING

# 410 /2.
"52'47" Ei

89'

CYCLONE FENCE IS
0.24'5 & r.57vv

ASPHALT AREA
z
(J

.3.04

ozo

o
ocl
o
2

o

00'.81
FENCE

x ts 2.35W

CYCLONE FENCE
rs 2.'t7'w

CYCLONE FENCE
LINE

CYCLONE FENCE IS
0.61119,.3.,5.I

coNc.
APRON

(

tsf
.,1
.t.0.'.4

q$

8:

6=
ELorZ-TO
Eb
::.2

I

G
(

I
:CONC. APRON

d- CURB c
?-bBF < i+-

d1'

"#
--7r( -h-r?a-a

df
5\9+e i'll u tLL rb€

Bloui ou-1 bv {\n'Press't ts

eL\eOL\ wrnkr-4u -ToTar heaJs

0.5s',S
4.10'E

I

s PARCEL 2 E
N

oo{
It

0.5851'38"W

PARK AR

N
9.r
@o
oo2# 7706-7712

PARC

1 STORY
CONC. BLOCK LOT 8

BUILDING

2.93N
4.22',E -o\

s

_#e&
,P'

,19/dge

CLEANOU

B

oc o

oe

ROFLOTS
P.O.B.

EAST

o
8Hz

.ct e

+'
oN8

L
4

T SIGN Eret-ux
r* stcN

L
TEL.MHM

N89"51

& GUTTER

"t?'

I



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 10, 2018 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees  
 
From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
Subj: License Agreement with Property Owner at 554 Forest Avenue for a Lawn Sprinkler System in 

the Public Right-of-Way 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Issue: The Property Owner of 554 Forest Avenue, Mike McGovern, would like to install a lawn irrigation 
system with certain components in the Village right-of-way and needs permission from the Village Board 
of Trustees to do so.  
 
Analysis: The Village Code does not permit obstructions nor does it allow homeowners to install anything 
in the public right-of-way, unless permission is granted by the Village typically through an agreement.  
The attached agreement is the standard document that is utilized by the Village for these matters.   
 
The placement of an irrigation system within the public right-of-way is common throughout the Village.  
The typical installation includes a row of sprinkler heads along the private side of the sidewalk and 
another row of heads along the public side of the sidewalk and/or the back of the curb.  While this is fairly 
common throughout the Village, it does pose challenges for capital improvement projects that involve 
excavation within the right-of-way and residents can incur damage to the system when the work occurs.  
Bills for repairs to the system are then forwarded to Village Staff for reimbursement.  
 
In an effort to minimize Village expenses for private infrastructure within the public right-of-way, Staff 
has developed a policy that all irrigation systems that are proposed for installation within the public right-
of-way should require a Right-of-Way Encroachment Waiver and Agreement as a condition of permit 
approval.  This will help avoid future damage to irrigation systems by allowing the Village to document 
the existence of these systems.  This is similar to the process followed for any other private infrastructure 
proposed within public space (e.g. in-pavement heating elements, fences, decorative light pole). 
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Village Administrator to execute a right-of-way encroachment waiver 
and agreement for an irrigation system in the public right-of-way with the property owner at 554 Forest 
Avenue. 
 
Attachment: License Agreement with Property Owner at 554 Forest Avenue for a Lawn Sprinkler System 
in the Public Right-of-Way 
 



.TII 
IS DOCU]\IENT WAS PRl]PARED

B\" AND AFTER RECORDTNC
RETURN TO:

Klcin ]'horpe &.lcnkins. l,td.
20 Nonh Wscker Drive. Suirc I660
Chicato. ll. 60606
CrcgoD' T. Smilh

I'fhe abole space for rccordinS purposesl

ltilk Mr 60w.,, 0v e. lol 5 51 [-ortr,i- hw, ( in\(r ta5

bu'in"'isthelegalolvner(..Legalowner.')ofrcalpropcn1
commonly knorvn as:

SY tl Fort+ $e , River Forest, Illinois 60105

t5- tL- !91 .oJq - qooq
(Survey of propeny containing legal description ofsrid Benefitted Propcny is attached and nrade a part hcreol-as
..EXHIBIT A")

Legal Owner is undenaking the follorving Projcct at thc above stated llenelixed Propeny and on adjaccnt Public
Right-of-way rhat \till encroach on the Public Right-of-wa).,:

Projecr L0.v ( rln

l/We, on behalf of Lcgal Owncr, undersland that the Village of River l'orest Village Code docs not
placcnrcnt ol' SJt' hls.

DCTIRII JI!\
\tnll,r,.obsftuctions in thc Public Right-of-Wa), and does not allorv lbr the

"Encroachment") rvithin the Public Risht-of-Wav for the purpose of I
l/We agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that the Encroachment placed by Legal O\yner or an agenl lbr rhe benetlr ol
the Benetified Propeny orvned by the l,egal Owner, and which encroach upon the l'ublic Right-of-Way ar the abore
address, will be the responsibility of the Legal Owncr to maintain. repair, and replace if nccessar), due lo an1
damage by the Village or olher public agcncies for whatever rcason, including bul not linlited ro e\cavatioo in rhc
Public Right-of-Way by the Villagc for the purposes ofrepairing a rvater main break. installation or replaccment ofa
water main or olher ulilitics, replacemcnt or reconstruclion ofthe streel, or due to rrormal rvear lnd (car.

l,'We funher agree. on behalfofLcgal O\r,ner. that any work to be pcr[ormcd on or undcrnearh thc Public Righl-ol-
Way shall be in a good and rvorknranlike manner and in accordancc wilh all applicable federal, state, and counry
laws and regulations and the Village codcs, ordinances, and regulations.

i:8Jlr,:

RICIIT-()F'.WAY IiNCRoACH I\T I'NT \YAIVIiIt AND A(;IIEETIENl'

(the'Benelltted Propcrt)'').

I'lN(S) c:__

I



I/We funher agree, on behalf of Legal Orvner, lhat the Legal Owner shall be responsible for any and all costs ol'
restoring any disturbances of lhe Public Righl.of-W0y caused by its inslallation and usc of lhc Encroachnlcnt in thc
Public Righl-of-way. and any and all repairs or damage ro the l'ublic Right-of-way arising from thc misuse or
damage to sane by it, or its olllcers. agents. enrplo,ees, contractors. subcontractors, successors. and assigns. lo lhc
reasonable satisfaction ofthe Village. Upon corrrpletion ofinstallation or any subsequent repair or mainlcnancc. lhc
Legal O\rner shall rcturn lhe Public RighGof-Way to good order, condition and repair. ln Ihe evcnt the l-egal O\r'n.r
fails, in a timely manner, to rcstore ny disturbances or make any and all repairs ofthe Public Right-of-Way s set
fonh above, the Village may nrake such resloration or repairs. ln lhe evenl thc Village makes such resrorarions or
rcpairs, the Legal Owncr agrees lo pay the costs of such restoration or repairs upon rvritten demand, or the Villagc
may remove (he Encroachment and/or lien the Benefitted Propeny for the costs of such restoralion or repair. Legal
Owner waives all rights and claims of any kind against the Village arising out of the Village's rcstoration or rep.rir
oIthe Public Right-of-Way or removal ofthc Encroachmcnt under this paragraph.

I/We funhcr agree, on behalf of Legal Orvner, rhat Legal Orvncr shall not place or allou' an1' licns. nrongagcs,
security interests, pledges, claims of others, cquitable interests, or olher cncumbranccs lo altach to or to bc filcd
against title or owncrship of the Public Right-of-Way. The Villagc retains the righl to grant eascnrents. licenses. or
any other propeny interests in and to the Public Right-of-Way in which thc Encroachment is located, as detennincd
by the Village in the Village's sole discretion. This Agreemenl shall not limit or prohibit the Village from granting
easements. licenses, or any other propeny interests in or to the Public Right-of-Way in which thc Encroachmenr is

locatcd, as determined by the Village in the Village's sole discrction.

l/We further agree. on behalf of l-egal O*'ner, that if the Villagc, in its sole discrction, detcrmines lhirr lhc
Encroachmcnt should be removed lbr any reason, or no reason, or thal the funher eristencc or use of thc
Encroachmenl in the Public Right-of-Way is, or rvill be, hazardous to the public or to the Public Righr-ol'-\\ u\.
Lesal Ori'ner agrees to, upon wrilten noticc by the Village, make modifications or remove the Flncroachmcnl at the
Legal Owner's sole expense. In the cvenl thc Legal Orvner fails to make required rrroditications rvithin a reasonahle
time frame, or if such modifications cannor be completed within said time frame, the Village may make lhe
necessary modifications or remove the Encroachnrenl. ln the cvenl the Village installs and/or makes the reccssar)
modifications, Legal Orvner agrees to pay lhe costs of such modificalions or improvemcnts upon writlen demind lo
the Villagc, or the Village may rcmove the Encroachment in its Public Right-Ol-Way and/or licn thc Benclltlcd
Propenl' for lhc costs of such ntodifications. Legal Orvner rvaives all rights and claims of any kind against the
Village arising out ol the Village's nrodifications to the Encroachment or the Public Right-of-Way or removcl ofthe
Encroachment under this paragraph.

l/We, on behalfofthe Legal Orvner, also understand that as a condition ofthe Villags ofRiver f-orest granling
permission to utilizc the Public Right-of-Way abutling lhe Denefitted Property for the aforesaid purposes, thc Lcgul
Owner covenants and agrees not to sue and to protect, indemnify. defend, and hold harmless lhe Village of River
Forest, and it's elected ollicials, employees, agents, volunteers, and anorneys against any and all claims, cosrs,

aclions, losses, demands, injuries and erpenses of whatever nature. including, but not limited to anomeys' fecs.
relarcd to this Agreement or such Encroachmenr being located in the Public Right-of-Way and/or from acts or
omissions by the Legal Oryner, ils contractors, sub conlractors, or agents or employecs in mainlaining thi same

and/or conjunction with the use of the Public Right-ol-Way abuiling the Benefined Propeny for the aforesaid
purposes.

l/We, on behalf of Legal Owner, understand that the tcrms and conditions conlained herein apply uniquely to the
Public Right-of-Way adjacent to the Benelined Propeny at the above address as legally described in Exhibit A and it
is lhe intenl of myself and lhe Village lo have lhe terms and conditions of this instrument run with the land and be
binding on subsequent purchasers ofthe Bcnefi(ed Property.

This document shall be notarized and recorded rvith tlre Cook County Recorder ofDeeds.

2r:S{l.l



NOTE: THE TJNDERSIGN D OIII'ICER(S) CERTIFY THAT HE/THEY HAVE'T E AUTHORI Y TO BIN t)
THE LECAL OWNER HEREIN.

Name

f)ate E-l( -,8
Nanrc

blic in Cook County. in lhe State of lllinois. do hert-by" cenit.r thar
known to me to be the 0wxcr

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)ss

COUNTYOFCOOK )

6"ri I trar

I. the undersiuncrl- a Notan Pu

t\.r\rt hi 6urr r^ iJare oersonallv(rq hdiJ-
and

"Corporation")1, and are the samc pcrsons lr'lrose nanrcs are subscribed to the forcgoing inrtrument, appeared bcforc
me this day in person and severalll' acknowledged that as such- 

[of trvc . , a

and
, respectivelyt, of the Corporation, they signed and delivered this instrumenr xnd

caused the seal of lhe Corporation to be affixed therelo, pursuant to authori(y given by the lloard of Directors o[ thc
Corporation,] and as their free and voluntary acl, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of the Corporation. lbr
the uses and purposes therein set fonh.

CNolan Signaturc lsLAr-l

.x, .N

lI.)'afi "

llY Cor,r:

a€z
r ltrc

\ |rzl

J

-Grur, s oyr{tr.:Sr

(
uEt,[E?Drrpt C,Ct\at

! 18fl61

Date:

Corporalion (lhe

Given under my hand and norarial sealthis\dayor Aql,Ui , zo-Il.

lCllf-;EZ
t SLtc 8lA ,)F

FYPTP'

SEAL





Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 10, 2018 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees  
 
From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
Subj: License Agreement with Property Owner at 316 Lathrop Avenue for a Lawn Sprinkler System in 

the Public Right-of-Way 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Issue: The Property Owner of 316 Lathrop Avenue, Gilbert Burns, would like to install a lawn irrigation 
system with certain components in the Village right-of-way and needs permission from the Village Board 
of Trustees to do so.  
 
Analysis: The Village Code does not permit obstructions nor does it allow homeowners to install anything 
in the public right-of-way, unless permission is granted by the Village typically through an agreement.  
The attached agreement is the standard document that is utilized by the Village for these matters.   
 
The placement of an irrigation system within the public right-of-way is common throughout the Village.  
The typical installation includes a row of sprinkler heads along the private side of the sidewalk and 
another row of heads along the public side of the sidewalk and/or the back of the curb.  While this is fairly 
common throughout the Village, it does pose challenges for capital improvement projects that involve 
excavation within the right-of-way and residents can incur damage to the system when the work occurs.  
Bills for repairs to the system are then forwarded to Village Staff for reimbursement.  
 
In an effort to minimize Village expenses for private infrastructure within the public right-of-way, Staff 
has developed a policy that all irrigation systems that are proposed for installation within the public right-
of-way should require a Right-of-Way Encroachment Waiver and Agreement as a condition of permit 
approval.  This will help avoid future damage to irrigation systems by allowing the Village to document 
the existence of these systems.  This is similar to the process followed for any other private infrastructure 
proposed within public space (e.g. in-pavement heating elements, fences, decorative light pole). 
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Village Administrator to execute a right-of-way encroachment waiver 
and agreement for an irrigation system in the public right-of-way with the property owner at 316 Lathrop 
Avenue. 
 
Attachment: License Agreement with Property Owner at 316 Lathrop Avenue for a Lawn Sprinkler 
System in the Public Right-of-Way 
 



THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED
BY, AND AFIER RECORDING
RETURN TO:

Klcin Thorpe & Jenkins, Ltd.
20 North Wacker Drive, Suitc 1660
Chicsgo, IL 60606
Gregory T. Smith

[The above space for recording purposes]

RIGHT.OF.WAY ENCROACHMENT WAIVER AND AGREEMENT

ArlJbL lofVWe,
'I

as msert

business name)] represent that
commonly known as:

is the legal owner ("Legal Owner") of real property

3 River ForesL Illinois 60305
(the "Benefi tted Property")

PrN(S) # 16 - \L- ?oe- ozl - O

Legal Owner is undertaking the following Project ar the above stated Benefitted Property and on adjacent Public
Right-of-Way that \dill encroach on the Public tught-of-Way:

Project: UpbFttLnup$ LrtdD SPrta,,(
I/We, on behalf of Legal Owner, understand that the Village of fuver Forest Village Code does not permit any
obstructions in the Pubtic Right-of-Way and does not allow for the Placement of (the

"Encroachment") within the Public Right-of-Way for the purpose of-
ywe agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that the Encroachment placed by Legal Owner or an agent for the benefit of
the Benefitted Property owned by the Legal Owner, and which encroach upon the Public Right-of-Way at the above
address, will be the responsibility of the Legat Owner to maintain, repair, and replace if necessary, due to any
damage by the Village or other public agencies for whatever reason, including but not limited to excavation in the

Public Right-of-Way by the Village for the purposes ofrepairing a water main break, installation or rcplacement of a
water main or other utilities, replacement or reconsmJction ofthe street, or due to norEral wear and tear.

LAMe further agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that any work to be performed on or underneath the Public Right-of-
Way shall be in a good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and county
laws and regulations and the Village codes, ordinances, and regulations.

1| 284162

(Survey of property containing legal description of said Benefitted Proporty is attached and made a part hereof as
.EXHIBIT A")



/
Name: Name:

Date: ts-21-z.ot@ Date:

STATE OF ILLINOIS

COUNTY OF COOK

respectively[, of the Corporation, they signed and delivered lhis irstrument aod

caused the ofthe Corporation to be affxed thereto, pursuant to authority given by the Board ofDirectors ofthe
Corporalion,] and as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed oflhe Corporalion, for
the uses and purposes therein set forth.

SS
)
)
)

Given under my hand and seal ,4unr,,, ?o lgof

XEAIBEB C lmt8
offhill S..t

llotrry Public - Sttt. ol tinoit
My Commrssron Erpiras May 1't, 2020

Notary S ISEAL]

3128,rt62



I/We further agree, on behalf of Lega.l Owner, that the Legal Owner shalt be responsible for any and all costs of
restoring any disturbances ofthe Public Right-of-Way caused by its installation and use of the Encroachment in the

Public fuglrt-of-Way, and any and all repairs or damage to the Public Right-of-Way arising from the misuse or
damage to same by it, or its officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, successors, and assigns, to the

reasonable satisfaction of the Village. Upon complelion of installation or any subsequent repair or maintenance, the

Legal Owner shall retum the Public Right-of-Way lo good order, condition and repair. In the event the Legal Owner
fails, in a timely manner, to restore any disturbances or make any and all repairs ofthe Public Right-of-Way as set

forth above, the Village may make such restoration or repahs. In the event the Village makes such restorations or
repairs, the Legal Owner agrees to pay the costs of such restoration or repairs upon written demand, or the Village
may remove the Encroachment and/ff lien the Benefitted koperty for the costs ofsuch restoration or repair. Legal
Owner waives all rights and claims of any kind against the Village arising out of the Village's restoration or repair
ofthe Public Rightof-Way or removal ofthe Encroachment under this parugraph.

I/We further agee, on behalf of Legal Ovmer, that Legal Owner shall not place or allow any liens, mortgages,

secu ty interests, pledges, claims of others, equitable interests, or other encumbrances to attach to or to be filed
against title or ownership ofthe Public Right-of-Way. The Village retains the right to grant easements, licenses, or
any other property interests in and to the Pubtic Right-of-Way in which the Encroachment is located, as determined

by the Village in the Village's sole discretion. This Agreement shall not limit or prohibit the Village from granting
easements, licenses, or any other property interests in or to the Public Right-of-Way ir which the Encroachment is

located, as determined by the Village in th€ Village's sole discretion.

l/We ftrther agree, on behalf of Legal Owner, that if the Village, in its sole discr€tion, determines that the
Encroachment should be removed for any reason, or no reason, or that the fi.utlrcr existence or use of the

Encroachme in the Public Right-of-Way is, or will be, hazardous to the public or to the Public Right-of-Way,
Legal Owner agrees to, upon written notice by the Village, make modifications or remove the Encroachment at the

Legal Owner's sole expense. In the event the Legal Owner fails to make requted modifications within a reasonable
time frame, or if such modifications cannot be completed within said time frame, the Village may make the
necessary modifications or remove the Encroachment. In the event the Village installs and/or makes the necessary
modifications, Legal Owner agrees to pay the costs of such modifications or improvements upon written demand to
the Village, or the Viltage may remove the Encroachment in its Public Right-Of-Way andlor lien the Benefitted
Property for the costs of such modifications. Legal Owner waives all rights and clairns of any kind against the
Viltage arising out ofthe Village's modifications to the Encroachment or the Public Right-of-Way or removal ofthe
Encroachment under this paragraph.

I/We, on behalf of the Legal Owner, also understand that as a cordition of the Village of River Foresl granting
permission to utilize the Public Riglt-of-Way abutting the Benefitted Property for the aforesaid purposes, the Legal
Owner covenants and agrees not to sue and to protect, indemniry, defend, and hold harmless the Village of Riyer
Forest, and it's elected officials, employees, agents, yoluntee$, and attomeys against any and all claims, costs,
actions, losses, demands, injuries and expenses of whatever nature, including, bul not limited to attomeys' fees,
related to this Agreement or such Encroachment being located in the Public fught-of-Way and/or Ilom acts or
omissions by the Legal Owner, its contractors, sub contsactors, or agents or employees in maintaining the same
and/or conjunction with the use of the Public Right-of-Way abutting the Benefitted Property for the aforesaid
purposes.

I/We, on behalf of Legal Ovner, understand that the terms and conditions contained herein apply uniquely to the
Public Right-of-Way adjacent to the Benefitted Property at the above address as legally described in Exhibit A and it
is the intent of myself and the Village to have the terms and conditions of this instrument run with the land and be
binding on subsequent puchasers ofthe Ben€fitted Property.

This document shall be notarized and recorded with the Cook Counry Recorder ofDeeds.

2# 284162





MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 
TO:  Catherine Adduci, Village President 
  Village Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  River Forest Sustainability Commission 
 
SUBJECT: Letter to U.S. Congressional Leadership to Help Fight Preemption in the Farm Bill 
 
  
  

The Sustainability Commission strongly urges the Village President to sign a letter of concern 
about a provision within the House farm bill that would take away our community’s right to 
enact sensible pesticide reform that protects human health and the environment. 
  
The provision, Section 9101, would undo decades of Supreme Court precedent which 
specifically grants local governments the ability to enact policies that are stricter than federal 
pesticide law. There is concern that without the voices of local elected officials, this provision 
could end up in the final farm bill as part of a compromise deal worked out by the farm bill 
conference committee. Over 150 local pesticide laws are at risk if this provision is ultimately 
included in the final farm bill.   
  
Non-profit groups including Beyond Pesticides and Friends of the Earth have contacted the 
Sustainability Commission with a sign on letter for local elected officials to join to express their 
concern about this provision to Congressional leadership.  The Sustainability Commission 
strongly urges you to join with other local officials across the country by signing on to this 
letter today. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 

 



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 
 

Village of River Forest  

POLICE DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

TO: Eric Palm- Village Administrator 

FROM: James O’Shea- Chief of Police 

DATE: September 11, 2018 

SUBJECT: August 2018 Monthly Report 

 

Crime Statistics 
 

The month of August 2018 showed a slight decrease in Part I offenses, and slight decrease in Part II reported 

crimes compared to August 2017. Part I decreased by 4% in reported crimes compared to August 2017. Part 

II offenses decreased by 4% in reported crimes in August 2018 in comparison to August 2017. A decrease in 

Burglary to Motor Vehicle offenses contributed to the Part I decline. Slight decreases in Disorderly Conduct 

offenses contributed to the Part II reduction. Overall, Part I crimes have decreased by 15% year-to-date compared 

to 2017, and Part II crimes have decreased by 13% year-to-date compared to 2017.        

 

 Aug Aug Diff. % YTD YTD Diff. % 
2018 2017 +/- +/- 2018 2017 +/- +/- 

Part I* 23 24 -1    -4%  172 203 -31   -15% 

         
Part II** 71 74 -3  -4%  557 638 -81  -13% 

         
Reports*** 177 204 -27     -13% 1285 1490 -205 -13% 

         
Events**** 1236 2517 -1,281 -51%   12784 18408 -5,624  -31% 

 

*Part I Offenses include homicide, criminal sexual assault, robbery, aggravated battery, burglary, theft, and motor vehicle 

theft. 

**Part II Offenses include simple battery, assault, criminal trespass, disorderly conduct, and all other misdemeanor and 

traffic offenses. 

***Reports (new category as of September 2015) include total number of reports written by officers during the month.  

****Events (new category as of September 2015) include all activities conducted by officers, including foot patrols, 

premise checks, traffic stops, and all other calls for service not included as PART I and PART II offenses. 

 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

Town Center 
 

The Police Department conducted ninety-three (93) calls for service at the Town Center properties in August 

2018; of those calls there were fourteen (14) reported crimes, which included nine (9) Retail Thefts, one (1) 

Theft, and four (4) Panhandler/Criminal Trespass events. These totals reflect a 33% decrease in criminal 

activity in comparison to last month.     

 

Collaboration and Relationship Strengthening 

 

 Afternoon shift conducted extra foot patrols in parks and at sports games, plus interacting 

with parents and children. 

 Midnight shift continued extra patrols of parks after hours for underage drinking or other 

illicit activity.   

 Day and afternoon shifts worked in concert with Crime Prevention Officer Czernik to 

partner up on bike patrol missions throughout the Village.  

 Day and afternoon shifts represented Village at block parties. 

 Extra traffic missions conducted on Thatcher due to citizen complaints. 

 Extra traffic missions conducted near school zones with the start of school. 

 Assisted BOFPC with Entry Level Candidate Selection Process and Sergeant’s Promotional 

Testing Planning.   

 Meeting with KLOA reference Safe School Routes Draft Plan on Aug 7, 2018. 

 Meeting with Dominican University Public Safety and Residence Life Directors on Aug 9, 

2018.   

 The shift attended the Touch- A- Truck Block Party on Aug 15, 2018.  

 The shift attended the Back to School event at St. Vincent’s on Aug 21, 2018. 

 The shift attended the Food Truck Rally and events at Trinity and Concordia on Aug 25, 2018. 

 Attended and provided information at DRB Meeting for Chicago and Harlem Project on Aug 

30, 2018.    
 

School and Community Support 

During this period, the SRO/CSO Division continued to focus on addressing safety and security concerns by 

meeting with community organizations and schools. Some of these concerns included general traffic, 

construction related hazards, and personal safety related issues.    

 

The OEO conducted parking enforcement throughout the village, resulting in 37 tickets for: 

 

32 “Daily Fee” parking violations 



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

2 “Time Limit” parking violations 

1 “Resident Only” parking violation 

1 “Permit” parking violation 

1 “Fire Lane” parking violation 

 

The OEO used 1 Sick Day and 2 Vacation Days in August. 

 

School Resource/Community Service Officer Activity Summary for August 2018 

 

Written Reports 2 

Foot Patrols / Premise Checks 10 

I-Search and Too Good For Drugs 

Activities 

0 

Calls for Service 24 

Other Assignments 14 assignments /  22 hours  

Special Assignments 15 assignments / 35 hours (see below) 

 

Notable Performance  

 Ofc. Czernik recently scored #1 on the newly posted Sergeants Promotional List. 

 Ofc. Czernik was recently given the Elderly Service Officer of the Year Award by the Illinois Attorney 

General’s Office.  Ofc. Czernik will be presented with the award on September 12, 2018 at the Illinois 

State TRIAD Conference in Aurora 

 

School and Community-Support Activity Highlights for August 2018 
 

Ofc. Czernik completed the following: 

 Met with a local family regarding juvenile/school issues on 8/1/18. 

 Met w/D90 regarding emotional well-being strategies for school safety on 8/3/18. 

 Attended meeting with KLOA regarding safe walking routes to school on 8/7/18. 

 Facilitated community service for juveniles on 8/8/18. 

 Worked WEDGE detail on 8/9/18. 

 Reassigned to Patrol day shift on 8/10/18. 

 Provided training to Concordia Public Safety department on 8/14/18 and 8/17/18. 

 Attend River Forest Library Touch-A-Truck event on 8/15/18. 

 Attended a crossing guard meeting on 8/16/18. 

 Conducted a station tour for a local family on 8/21/18. 

 Attended an ISEARCH meeting on 8/22/18. 

 Attended a crossing guard training seminar on 8/22/18. 

 Attended an Opioid Task Force meeting in Oak Park on 8/23/18. 

 Provided ride-alongs for Concordia security guards on 8/23/18 and 8/24/18. 

 Conducted a safety presentation for Concordia incoming freshmen on 8/24/18. 

 Conducted Bike Safety program at Lincoln School on 8/28/18 and 8/29/18. 

 Facilitated lockdown drill at Lincoln School on 8/29/18. 



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

 Assisted patrol shift with traffic control around schools on several dates. 

 

UPCOMING School and Community Support Activities for September 2018 

 

Ofc. Czernik will: 

 Attend planned NIPAS call-out in Park Ridge on 9/3/18. 

 Meet with First Presbyterian Church to assess safety and security on 9/5/18. 

 Observe Lockdown drills at OPRF on 9/6/18. 

 Attend River Forest Safety Committee Meeting on 9/7/18. 

 Attend mandatory NIPAS training on 9/10/18-9/12/18. 

 Receive ESO of the year award in Aurora on 9/12/18. 

 Attend Youth Network Council meeting in Oak Park on 9/13/18. 

 ISEARCH at Grace Lutheran on 9/19/18. 

 Attend M-Team meeting in Oak Park on 9/20/18. 

 Meet with OPPD and stakeholders about safety in Oak Park, River Forest churches on 9/20/18. 

 Conduct station tour for Dominican University journalism students on 9/25/18. 

 Conduct crime prevention presentation for area realtors in Oak Park on 9/26/18. 

 Conduct in-house training and deploy new NARCAN supplies and program. 

 Continue regular Foot Patrols throughout the business district. 

 Continue Bike patrols throughout the parks and business districts. 

 Continue assisting patrol shift with traffic control around schools. 

 Prep, schedule, and begin ISEARCH and Too Good For Drugs lessons. 

 

Sgt. Grill will: 

 

 Assist with Red Light hearings. 

 Assist with Adjudication hearings and manage caseload. 

 Manage movie and commercial film details, permits, and requests. 

 Assist with Information Technology projects. 

 Address subpoenas, FOIA requests and other records requests for various sources of police video used 

in police response and criminal investigations. 

 Manage various grant activities. 

 Assist with Vehicle Maintenance and Equipment. 

 

OEO Kaniecki will: 

 

 Monitor parking issues near the various schools. 

 Monitor parking issues near the River Forest Community Center. 

 Monitor and enforce parking regulations in Daily Fee, Time Zone, Resident Only Zones, and 

Handicapped Parking Only Areas etc. 

 Assist with Evidence Management. 

 Assist with Court records communications. 

 Assist with Animal related calls for service. 



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

 Provide traffic control services during Fire and Police related events. 

 
 

Active Solicitor Permits 

Individual or Organization Description Expires 

Pointe Pest Control Pest control   24-May-19 

College Works Painting   Home Repair 27-Apr-19 

Constellation Exelon Utility Services  26-July-19 

Constellation Exelon Utility Services  20-Aug-19 

Weed Man Lawn Care 25-Apr-19 

IGS Energy Utility Services 02-Aug-19 

 

Budget and Fiscal Monitoring  

 

August 01 – August 31, 2018 

During the month of August, parking citation revenue was above monthly projections for the fiscal year 

(FY2019). Administrative tow revenue was on track and local ordinance revenue was lagging.  Overtime was 

slightly below monthly projections for the FY2019. We will be monitoring any notable patterns or anomalies over 

the next few months.     

 

Revenue/Expenditure Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Significant Incidents and Notable Arrests: 
 

18-01125  Unlawful Use of a Weapon/Warrant Arrest 

On August 3, 2018 River Forest units were dispatched to the area of Lake and Bonnie Brae reference to 

suspicious persons in the area.  Officers arrived and located the subjects, a 29-year old male from Des Plaines 

and a 22-year old male from Chicago.  The subjects gave conflicting stories on their actions and why they were 

in the area.  Both subjects gave false names to the officers on scene.  Though the investigation, officers were 

able to identify the subjects who both had warrants.  Upon a search of the 22-year old’s back pack, officers 

recovered a loaded .380 caliber hand gun.  Both subjects were arrested and transported to the station. The 

Category  Total # 

Paid FY19 

08/18 

Total # Paid 

FY19 

Y-T-D 

Expenditure/ 

Revenue FY19 

08/18 

FY19 Y-T-D 

Expenditure/Revenue 

Parking/Compliance 

Citations 

288 1329 $11,197 $64,865 

Admin. Tows 22 78 $11,000 $39,000 

Local Ordinance  8 16 $1,222.50 $1,985.31 

Overtime   150 hrs.     847 hrs. $10,070 $56,647 



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

States Attorney’s office was contacted and approved a felony charge of Aggravated Unlawful Use of a Weapon 

charge, Possession of Ammunition without a FOID card and Obstructing Identification against the 22-year old 

offender.  The offender was later transported to the Maybrook court house for bond hearing.  The 29-year old 

offender was charged with Obstructing Identification and was later released after posting bond.  

 

18-01129  Retail Theft 

On August 3, 2018 a River Forest officer was driving in the Walgreen’s parking lot when he observed a 49-year 

old male subject enter the store as he removed an empty plastic bag from his rear pocket.  A short time later two 

Walgreen’s employees stated that subject who the officer observed stole what was later determined to be 42 

sticks of deodorant valued at $244.79.  The male subject was apprehended a short distance from the store where 

he and the proceeds were positively identified by the store employees.  Because of his extensive prior larceny 

criminal history, and currently on parole, he was charged with felony Retail Theft at the approval of the Cook 

County State’s Attorney’s Office. 

 

18-01200   Battery Arrest 

On August 19, 2018 a River Forest Officer arrested a subject for battery.  The subject, a 27-year old female from 

Berwyn had been involved in a domestic disturbance in the 300 block of Ashland.  The female was charged 

with battery and transported for a bond hearing. 

 

18-01208  Felony DUI Arrest 

On August 19, 2018 a River Forest Officer conducted a traffic stop at Harlem and Washington for numerous 

IVC violations.  The driver, a 23-year old male from River Grove displayed signs of impairment, failed street 

field sobriety tests and was arrested for DUI.  He was charged with felony DUI due to not having a valid 

driver’s license, other IVC violations and was transported for a bond hearing.  

 

The following chart summarizes and compares the measured activity for all three Patrol Watches during the 

month of August 2018:   

 

 

 Midnights 

2230-0630  

Day Watch 

0630-1430 

 

Third Watch 

1430-2230 

Criminal Arrests  9 10 7 

Warrant Arrests 1 8 5 

D.U.I Arrests 4 2  0 

Misdemeanor Traffic Arrests 10 7 8 

Hazardous Moving Violations 64 80 56 

Compliance Citations 50 20 39 

Parking Citations 196 44 9 

Traffic Stop Data Sheets 128 145 166 

Quasi-Criminal Arrests/ L.O 2 2 0 

Field Interviews 23 31 28 



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

Premise Checks/Foot Patrols 167 116 217 

Written Reports 25 58 79 

Administrative Tows 9 7  9 

Booted vehicles 0 0 0 

Sick Time used (in days) 1 2 4 

 

Detective Division 
 

Detective Fries worked seventeen (17) scheduled days performing detective duties.  

 

Sergeant Greenwood worked twenty-three (23) scheduled days performing detective duties. 

 

Sergeant Greenwood was assigned to WEDGE on 09-10AUG2018. WEDGE Officers assisted the DEA with an 

operation on 09AUG2018. WEDGE Officers assisted Riverside Police with a Search Warrant to a storage unit in 

Chicago on 10AUG2018. Officers recovered proceeds from Residential Burglaries. The proceeds included rifles, 

bicycles, and electronics. 

 

Sergeant Greenwood completed one (1) background investigation for the position of Police Officer. Sergeant 

Greenwood initiated another background investigation for the position of police officer that is near completion. 

 

Detective Fries initiated and completed one (1) background investigation for the position of Police Officer. 

 

Detective Fries participated in the Sergeant’s Promotional Testing including Assessment Center and Oral 

Interview. Detective Fries ranked third (3rd) on the initial Sergeant’s list. 

 

Sergeant Greenwood attended the Midwest Security and Police Conference Expo on 14AUG2018. The Expo 

features technology and equipment vendors that serve the law enforcement community.  

 

Detective Fries attended the John Reid Interview and Interrogation class and the Advanced John Reid Interview 

and Interrogation class on 14-17AUG2018. 

 

During the month of August, the Detective Unit opened up/reviewed sixteen (16) cases for potential follow-up. 

Of those cases, five (5) were Administratively Closed, three (3) were Exceptionally Cleared, one (1) was 

Unfounded and seven (7) are Pending.  The Unit also continued to investigate open cases from previous months 

in which three (3) arrests were made.   

 

Year to Date Arrest Statistics 
 

Quantity Arrested # Felony  

Charges 

# Misdemeanor 

Charges 

# Warrants 

 26  10 14 2 

 



 

 
Page 8 

 
  

August 2018 Case Assignment Summary 

 
Part I # Cases Cleared by 

Arrest 

Adm 

Closed 

Screen 

Out 

Susp Except Pend Refer Unfound 

Burglary-Garage 2      2   

Burglary-Residential 1      1   

Motor Vehicle Theft 1  1       

Theft 1      1   

Theft-Bicycle 2  1    1   

Part I Total 7  2    5   

Part II # Cases Cleared by 

Arrest 

Adm 

Closed 

Screen 

Out 

Susp Except 

Clear 

Pend Refer Unfound 

Fleeing & Eluding 1      1   

Information for Police 1  1       

Retail Theft 4     3 1   

Sex Offender Registration 1  1       

Suspicious Person 2  1      1 

Part II Total 9  3   3 2  1 

TOTALS 16  5   3 7  1 

 

August 2018 Juvenile Arrests 
 

 

New Investigations 
 

18-01223/01230  Burglary to Garage 

River Forest Police were dispatched to two Garage Burglaries that occurred overnight between 0000-0745hrs on 

22AUG2018 in the 700 block of Forest. In both cases, bicycles were removed by the offenders. In one of the cases, the 

offender climbed through a side window of the garage. Fingerprint evidence was recovered and has been submitted to the 

Illinois State Police Crime Lab for analysis and an identification of the offender. 

 

18-01242   Retail Theft 

River Forest Police were dispatched to CVS Pharmacy, 7929 W. North Avenue, for a Retail Theft on 24AUG2018 at 

2040hrs. The offender entered the business and removed over $2000 worth of merchandise from the store without paying 

for it. The offender had forced locked cabinets open to gain access to more expensive items.  

 

A bulletin was created and distributed. The witness to the case contact police on 04SEP2018 and said the offender had 

returned to the store. River Forest Police located the offender in the 7000 block of North Avenue. The offender, now known 

as John Berdicia-Velazquez, 36 years old, of 1621 N. Francisco, Chicago, fought with officers as they took him into custody. 

Berdicia-Gonzalez was identified by the witness on scene. Charges of Felony Retail Theft and Aggravated Battery to a 

Police Officer are pending at this time. 

 

Old Cases 
 

17-01731  Criminal Damage to Property 

Offenses Adjusted Cited Petitioned Referred 

Possession of Cannabis   
 

1 
  

Total (1)  1   



 

 
Page 9 

 
  

River Forest Police were dispatched to 721 Monroe on 15OCT2017 at 1340hrs. The resident discovered that 

someone had broken in the basement door of the home but had not made entry. Evidence Technicians recovered 

fingerprint evidence which was submitted to the Illinois State Police Crime Lab for analysis. 

 

Detectives received information from Illinois State Police that an offender had been identified based on the 

fingerprint. Detectives learned that the offender, Elliot C. Britt, 26, of Chicago, was in custody at the Cook County 

Jail on an unrelated case. Detectives met with Britt for an interview in which he denied being the offender. Britt 

was charged with Criminal Damage to Property and assigned the 07SEP2018 court date. 

 

18-00521  Forgery   

On April 19, 2018 the pharmacy manager at CVS located at 7929 North Ave. related that a subject came in an 

attempt to fill an Oxycodone prescription for who he alleged was his friend.  The subject provided his name as 

Dion Trisby M/B 09/25/59, and the pharmacist contacted the physician who allegedly issued the prescription.  

The physician related that the prescription was not issued by her and was a counterfeit.  She advised 

investigators that multiple counterfeit prescriptions have recently been filled using her DEA number, and most 

recent in Elmwood Park.  The pharmacist positively identified Trisby in a photo lineup, and probable cause has 

been established to place Trisby into custody for Forgery.  A Critical Reach Bulletin has been disseminated, and 

investigators will continue to look for Trisby.   

 

Detectives learned that Trisby was in custody at the Cook County Jail. Detectives met with Trisby and he did 

not provide a statement. Felony Review was contacted and Trisby was charged with Unlawful Possession of a 

Fraudulent Prescription. Trisby was scheduled to appear in court on 16AUG2018 for Preliminary Hearing. 

 

Training 
 

During the month of August 2018, twelve (13) officers attended training classes for a total of one hundred and 

sixty-two (162) hours of training. The Department members, courses, and total number of hours included in the 

course are detailed below. 

 

Officer Name Course Title Start End Hours 

Casey safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/01/2018  3 

Dhooghe safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Eberling safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Fields safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/01/2018  3 

Fine safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/01/2018  3 

Fries safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/01/2018  3 

Fries John Reid Interview & Interrogations 08/14/2018 08/16/2018 24 

Fries Advanced John Reid Interview & Interrogations 08/17/2018  8 

Greenwood safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Humphreys safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/01/2018  3 



 

 
Page 10 

 
  

Officer Name Course Title Start End Hours 

Landini safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Landini 40 Hour Rifle/Carbine Instructor 08/20/2018 08/24/2018 40 

Ludvik safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Ostrowski Breath Analysis for Alcohol Training 08/21/2018 08/22/2018 16 

Pluto safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Ransom safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/01/2018  3 

Szczesny safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Szczesny John Reid Interview & Interrogations 08/14/2018 08/16/2018 24 

Szczesny Advanced John Reid Interview & Interrogations 08/17/2018  8 

Tagle safeTALK Workshop-Suicide Awareness 08/02/2018  3 

Total Hours    162 

 

THRIVE Counseling Center in collaboration with the Village of River Forest conducted a Suicide Awareness 

Workshop named safeTALK at the Village Hall on 31JUL-02AUG2018. The workshop was led by safeTALK 

Master Trainer Therese Hustis and focused on awareness and detection of people contemplating suicide and 

talking with people to ask them about their thoughts, listening to what they have to say, and offering them help 

and services. Twenty-one (21) members of the Police Department participated in the program over the three-day 

period. 

 



 
 
   
     

              MEMORANDUM                        
 

TO:  Eric J. Palm 
    Village Administrator 
 
                          Kurt Bohlmann 

FROM: Kurt Bohlmann 
  Fire Chief  
 
DATE:  September 10, 2018 
 

   SUBJECT: Monthly Report – August – 2018  
 
The Fire Department responded to 172 calls during the month of August. This is well above our 
average number of calls in comparison to 2017. We experienced 10 fire related calls for the 
month. Emergency Medical Service calls represent 61% of our response activity for the month of 
August. 
 
 

Incident Group Count 
100 – Fire 10 
200 – Rupture/Explosion 0 
300 – Rescue/EMS 105 
400 – Hazardous Condition 9 
500 – Service Calls 8 
600 – Good Intent 17 
700 – False Alarm  23 
800 – Severe Weather 0 
900 – Special Incidents 0 

 
 
The month of August was another busy month for call volume.  We have responded to 1498 calls 
through August, compared to 1310 last year, a 14% increase. 
 
 
 



P a g e  | 2 
 
 
The Fire Department attended the River Forest Public Library Touch-A-Truck program.  Lots of area 
residents and children got an up-close look at our engine and ambulance.  
 

   
 

   
 
The Fire Department completed training on SAFETalk, a suicide intervention program.  Members of 
the department are more able to recognize signs when someone is considering suicide.  Thank you to 
Thrive, who facilitated the presentation. 
 
I attended the IRMA Fire Chiefs’ Steering Committee.  An overview of IRMA grants was presented.  
A new program, Tactical Athlete, is being tested by several towns.  The program seeks to get 
employees back to work quicker by streamlining and expediting doctor visits, testing, treatments and 
therapy. 
 
The Fire Department spent a lot of time in August working on updating the Village’s building and fire 
codes.  A lot of hard work goes into finding a balance between safety and keeping construction costs 
down. 
 



P a g e  | 3 
 
 
 
 
 
Incidents of Interest 

 
The Fire Department responded to a vehicle fire in River Forest.  A quick response led to our 
crew quickly putting out the fire and limiting the damage. 
 

See details below. 
 

 
Suppression Activities 
 
For the month of August, we responded to 172 emergency calls, which is above our normal 
amount of calls. Of this total, 10 were fire related incidents. Six of these fire incidents occurred 
in River Forest.  The other four fire incidents occurred outside of River Forest. 
 
The first incident was a vehicle fire in River Forest. Upon arrival, our crew noticed smoke and 
small flames from the rear bottom of the engine compartment.  We began to extinguish the fire 
with a hose line and disconnected the car battery.  The crew noted some charring to the fire wall.  
The Owner informed the crew that a few days prior to this incident he had the radiator replaced 
on his vehicle by a mechanic. We then turned the scene over to the police.  Damage was 
estimated at $500.   
 
The second incident was open burning in River Forest. Our crew responded to a call for smoke in 
the area of 1500 Jackson. On arrival, we found the resident was burning yard waste in his 
backyard. The resident was advised that open burning is against Village ordinance. We then 
instructed the resident to extinguish the fire with a garden hose. The resident complied and the 
yard waste was extinguished. 
 
The third incident was a structure fire in Cicero. Chief Bohlmann responded mutual aide to assist 
command in the rear sector until released. 
 
 
The other seven fires were cooking fires that caused no damage. Four of these occurred in River 
Forest, two in Elmwood Park, and one in Forest Park. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P a g e  | 4 
 
 
Training  
 
This month the department participated in various training activities such as: 
 

 All shifts continued their assigned building inspections. 
 All shifts working with new members to acquaint with our procedures 
 Lt. Carter certified in Blue Card training. 
 Lt. Howe continuing Blue Card training 
 All shifts instructed on the use of the Hose Monster hydrant tester and started 

hydrant testing 
 All shifts toured Roosevelt and Lincoln schools 
 Black shift attended Touch a Truck at River Forest Library 
 Loyola CE was SOP scenarios 
 All shifts attended a Suicide Prevention class 
 FF/PM Krall successfully completed and is now a certified OSFM Advanced 

Technician Firefighter 
 FF/ PM attended and completed Fire Investigator Mod I, II and III in Waukegan, 

waiting on written test results 
 Div 11 TRT drill in Stickney Mt. Auburn cemetery. Subject was trench 
 Div 11 Haz-Mat drill in North Riverside. Subject was Area RAE meters and rig 

maintenance 
 
 
Paramedic Activity  
 
We responded to 105 ambulance calls in August.  Other numbers were unavailable at the time of 
this report. 
  

A detailed monthly EMS report is currently unavailable.  
 
 
Fire Prevention   
 
During the month of August, the Fire Prevention Bureau conducted 11 Regular Inspections, 19 
Company Inspections and 2 Plan Reviews with 36 Violations noted and 9 violations corrected.  
 

A detailed monthly Fire prevention report is available for review.  



 - 1 - 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 

DATE:  September 6, 2018 
 
TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
FROM:  John Anderson, Director of Public Works  

 
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – August 2018 
  
 
Executive Summary 
 
In the month of August, the department of Public Works continued with summer operations 
and focused on tree and stump removals, street sweeping, sewer jetting & televising, and sign 
fabrication.  The Public Works Director was able to attend the national Public Works Expo 
(PWX) conference in Kansas City, Missouri in August.  This conference had many interesting 
education sessions on a variety of topics in the field of public works.  It was a beneficial time to 
discuss current areas that affect the field and network with other public works professionals.  
The Public Works Department participated in the Library’s “touch-a-truck” event on Jackson 
Ave.  Several employees were there to assist and show the vehicles and equipment to the 
general public.  The crack sealing project was completed for area streets throughout the 
Village.  This is performed on streets that are still in good condition, but have minimal cracking. 
 Taking the proactive step of sealing the cracks before they get too large prevents water from 
entering the cracks and causing further damage to the pavement.  The Gale Avenue alley 
reconstruction (planned fall construction) project is currently out to bid and the other planned 
alley projects are being designed.  The Chicago Ave. resurfacing project is also planned for fall 
construction and the ComEd and Nicor utility conflicts at several intersections have been 
addressed. 
 
Public Works items approved by the Village Board of Trustees in August: 
 

 Waiver of Formal Bid and Award of Contract (through competitive purchasing program) 
for Public Works Garage Improvements to Garland/DBS for $111,529 

 Waiver of Formal Bid and Authorization to Purchase a 2019 Aquatech B-10 Sewer Truck 
from R.N.O.W., Inc. West Allis, Wisconsin for $355,641.12 

 Leak Detection Sensors for Water System - Discussion 
 
Sustainability Commission Items Discussed: 
 

 Greenest Region Reporting and Tracking Task Force 

 Community Solar Initiatives in the region 

 Updates to Sustainability portion of the Village website 



 - 2 - 

 Deep Roots Inspirational Edible Garden Project 

 River Forest Library touch a truck event participation 

 Concordia Homecoming and Carnival event 

 Healthy Lawn Healthy Family Initiative 

 

Engineering Division Summary 
 

 Received and processed 9 grading permits and three utility permits 

 Conducted monthly Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) inspection 

 Continued coordination of Safe Walking Routes to Schools Project 

 Met with Verizon regarding future small cell antenna work in River Forest 

 Completed inspections and established scope of work for the 2018 Street Patching 

Project 

 Completed construction of the 2018 Street Maintenance (Crack Sealing) Project 

 Completed permitting and advertised the Gale Ave Alley Improvement Project for bid 

 Completed preliminary review of the proposed development at Chicago and Harlem 

and attended the associated Development Review Board Meeting.  

Public Works – Operations 
 
The following is a summary of utility locate requests received from JULIE (Joint Utility Locating 
Information for Excavators) and work orders (streets, forestry, water, sewer, etc.) that were 
received and processed during the past 12 months:     
 

 Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug 

Utility Locates 170 123 88 28 45 34 104 149 258 152 198 168 

Work Orders 30 29 25 14 11 8 18 25 51 56 60 45 

 
Water and Sewer 
Monthly Pumpage:  August’s average daily pumpage of 1.62 million gallons (MG) is higher than 
August’s average of 1.59 MG in 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 - 3 - 

Volume of Water Pumped into the Distribution System (Million Gallons) 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2016

2017

2018

 
In the month of August residents and businesses were notified of backflow violations; they were 
given notice to comply or have the water shut off on a specific date for non-compliance.  The 
purpose of this program is to remain in compliance with IEPA requirements.   
 
On 8/14 a water service leak was found at 625 Forest Avenue while Ryan Geyer Plumbing was 
performing a sewer repair.  Ryan Geyer Plumbing was the hired by the Village to repair the water 
service line.  This was the replacement of 2 feet of 1” copper pipe with 2 flared couplers.  The 
water was off for 30 minutes and it affected 49 homes in the 500 and 600 blocks of Forest Ave. 
between 2:15pm and 2:45pm. 
 
On 8/15 a water leak was found in the parkway next to the b-box at 107 Keystone Ave.  This was 
the resident’s responsibility and Ryan Geyer Plumbing completed the work.   
 
On 8/30 while the Fire Department was flushing the hydrant at 222 Park Ave. the operating seat 
gasket broke causing the water to not shut off.  The hydrant was running for approximately 30 
minutes before it was able to be shut down.  Since this hydrant is rate at 1000 gpm it is estimated 
that 30,000 gallons of unaccountable water was lost. 
 
The Water Division personnel performed these additional tasks in August: 
 

 Responded to 410 service calls 

 Installed 3 water meters 

 Exercised 42 valves 
 
 
 



 - 4 - 

Streets and Forestry 
Staff in the Streets and Forestry division focused heavily on tree and stump removals, sewer jetting 
& televising, and street sweeping.  These are the details of the tasks performed frequently in the 
month of August: 
 

Description of Work Performed Quantity 

Trees Trimmed 1 

Trees Removed 29 

Stumps Removed 27 

Street Sweeping (curb miles) 175 

Sign Repairs/Fabrication 13 

Sewer Jetting (linear feet) 14,212 

Sewer Televising (linear feet) 13,965 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: September 10, 2018 
 
To: Eric Palm, Village Administrator 
 
From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
Subj: Building & Zoning Report - August, 2018 
  

The Village issued 170 permits in August, 2018, compared to 123 during the same month in 
2017.  Permit revenue collected in August, 2018 totaled $48,707.19, compared to $52,617.04 
in July.  Fiscal Year to date building permit revenue is 43% of the $514,500 budgeted.  The 
following noteworthy permits were issued by the Building Department in August, 2018: 

 7400 Augusta – Verizon Wireless Antenna and Equipment Installation at Concordia 

University 

Planned Development Project Updates 

Below please find a summary of the status of approved planned development permits as well 
as certain pending applications.  
 
Approved: 
 The Promenade (7820 W. Madison Street - Approved July 13, 2015) – Construction and 

inspection of the interior of the unoccupied townhomes continues.  Occupancy permits have 
been issued to 13 of the 29 units.   

 Concordia University Residence Hall (Bonnie Brae Place - Approved July 12, 2016) – The 
Village received plans for the build-out of the fourth and fifth floors in February, 2018.  Work 
on this project is complete.  No further updates will be provided.  

 The Avalon (Bonnie Brae Condominiums - 1101-1111 Bonnie Brae Place - Approved 
November 17, 2016) – The Village Board granted a major amendment regarding setback 
requirements in March, 2018.  Under the terms of a minor amendment that was granted in 
January, 2018, the developer had been required to commence construction by  
July 30, 2018.  On July 9, 2018, the Village Board of Trustees approved a second extension 
to construction commencement deadline to March 30, 2019. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 Concordia University (7400 Augusta) 
o Cell Tower/Parking Garage (Approved July 9, 2019) – A permit was issued for this 

project in August, 2018.  Under the Planned Development Ordinance, the University 
has until April 9, 2019 to obtain a building permit, October 9, 2019 to commence 
construction, and April 9, 2021 to complete construction for the permit to remain 
valid.  

o West Annex/Christopher Center Link (Approved July 9, 2019) – Plans have been 
submitted for a construction permit and are currently under review.  Under the 
Planned Development Ordinance, the University has until April 9, 2019 to obtain a 
building permit, October 9, 2019 to commence construction, and April 9, 2021 to 
complete construction for the permit to remain valid.  

 
Pending: 
 Mixed Use Development (Lake and Lathrop) – Public hearings were held on June 28, 2018 

and July 26, 2018, and have been continued to August 23, 2018. On August 23 the 
Development Review Board voted to recommend approval of the project.  This 
recommendation will be presented to the Village Board for final action on September 17, 
2018.  

 Senior Care Community (Chicago and Harlem) – Public hearings were held on August 30 
and September 6, 2018.  On September 6 the Development Review Board voted to 
recommend approval of this project.  The Development Review Board will meet again in 
September to adopt findings of fact.  This recommendation will be presented to the Village 
Board for final action in October, 2018.  

 Cigar Oasis (400 Ashland Avenue) – The owner of Cigar Oasis wishes to relocate his 
business from his current location on Lake Street to an existing building located at 400 
Ashland Avenue.  He appeared before the Development Review Board for a pre-filing 
conference on April 19, 2018 and held a neighbor meeting on April 26, 2018.  To-date, no 
application has been received and the Village has been informed that the applicant has 
chosen to relocate outside of River Forest.  No further updates will be provided unless this 
application is reinitiated.  

 
Permit and Real Estate Transfer Activity Measures 

Permits 

Month FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 

May 113 124 178 128 205 

June 104 144 179 153 135 

July 112 150 140 194 131 

August 84 144 145 123 170 

September 111 180 130 152  

October 120 149 140 119  

November 55 72 98 79  

December 43 79 55 71  

January 24 66 107 69  



Page 3 of 3 
 

Month FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 

February 22 67 87 58  

March 41 109 120 93  

April 78 97 148 136  

Two Month Comparison 196 294 285 317 301 

Fiscal Year Total 907 1,381 1,527 1,375 641 

 
Real Estate Transfers 

 August 
2018 

August 
2017 

FY 2019  
YTD Total  

FY 2018 
Total 

Transfers 33 23 123 232 
 

Residential Property Demolition 

 August 
2018 

FY 2019 
 YTD Total  

FY 2018 
Total 

FY 2017 
Total 

Residential Demolitions 0 1 4 7 

 
Demolition permit(s) were issued for the following single family home(s): 
 
Address   Architectural Survey Notes 
- -  



1 

 

Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  September 12, 2018 

To: Eric Palm, Village Administrator 

From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator  

Subj: Village-Wide Performance Measurement Report – August 2018  

 
 

Building Department Performance 
Measures 

FY 2018 
Actual 

FY 2019 
Goal 

August 
 Actual 

FY 2019 
YTD 

Plan reviews of large projects completed 
in 21 days or less 

73% 
  (99 of 135) 

95% 
25% 

  (3 of 12) 
62% 

  (36 of 58) 

Average length of review time for plan 
reviews of large projects 

17.2 days 
(Monthly Avg) 

>21 23.42 days 
21.1 days 

(Monthly Avg) 

Re-reviews of large projects completed 
in 14 days or less 

85% 
  (158 of 185) 

95% 
85% 

  (17 of 20) 
89% 

  (71 of 80) 

Average length of review time for plan 
re-reviews of large projects 

9.0 days 
(Monthly Avg) 

>14 10.55 days 
11.2 days 

(Monthly Avg) 

Plan reviews of small projects 
completed in 7 days or less 

100% 
  (202 of 202) 

95% 
100% 

  (34 of 34) 
100% 

  (119 of 119) 

Express permits issued at time of 
application 

100% 
  (228 of 228) 

100% 
100% 

  (24 of 24) 
100% 

  (90 of 90) 

Inspections completed within 24 hours 
of request 

100% 
  (2107 of 

2107) 
100% 

100% 
  (137 of 137) 

100% 
  (625 of 625) 

Contractual inspections passed 
88% 

  (1844 of 
2107) 

80% 
98% 

  (134 of 137) 
92% 

  (576 of 625) 

Inspect vacant properties once per 
month 

100% 
  (301 of 301) 

100% 
100% 

  (15 of 15) 
100% 

  (81 of 81) 

Code violation warnings issued 180 N/A 15 75 

Code violation citations issued 73 N/A 4 21 

Conduct building permit survey 
quarterly 4 

1 per 
quarter 1 2 

Make contact with existing business 
owners 60 

5/month 
60/year 5 20 

     



2 

 

Fire Department Performance 
Measures 

FY 2018 
Actual 

FY 2019 
Goal 

August 
 Actual 

FY 2019 
YTD 

Average fire/EMS response time for 
priority calls for service (Includes call 
processing time) 

4:00 
 minutes 

5 Min 
4:15 

 minutes 
4:16 

 minutes 

Customer complaints and/or public 
safety professional complaints  

0% <1% 0% 0% 

All commercial, multi-family and 
educational properties inspected 
annually 

784 
335 

inspections 
30 97 

Injuries on duty resulting in lost time 5 <3 0 1 

Plan reviews completed 10 working 
days after third party review 

4.94 days on 
average 

<10 
6.5 days on 

average 
3.23 days on 

average 

Complete 270 hours of training for each 
shift personnel 

7356.3 4824 453.5 1688.3 

Inspect and flush fire hydrants semi-
annually 

1530 
892 

annually 
31 31 

     Police Department Performance 
Measures 

FY 2018 
Actual 

FY 2019 
Goal 

August 
 Actual 

FY 2019 
YTD 

Average police response time for 
priority calls for service (Does not 
include call processing time) 

3:49 
 minutes 

4:00 
5:01 

 minutes 
4:51 

 minutes 

Injuries on duty resulting in lost time 0 0 Days Lost 0 0 

Reduce claims filed for property & 
vehicle damage caused by the Police 
Department by 25% 

1 <3 0 3 

Maintain positive relationship with the 
bargaining unit and reduce the number 
of grievances 

0 0% 0 0 

Reduce overtime and improve morale 
by decreasing sick leave usage  

159 days 
10% 

reduction 
2 days 25.5 days 

Track accidents at Harlem and North to 
determine impact of red light cameras 

18 accidents 
10% 

reduction 
2 accidents 5 accidents 

Decrease reported thefts (214 in 2012) 195 
5% 

reduction 
20 65 

Formal Citizen Complaints 0 0 0 0 

Use of Force Incidents 7 0 0 1 

Send monthly crime alerts to inform 
residents of crime patterns and 
prevention tips 

56 
1 email/ 

month; 12 
emails/year 

12 57 

     

     

     



3 

 

Public Works Performance Measures 
FY 2018 
Actual 

FY 2019 
Goal 

August 
 Actual 

FY 2019 
YTD 

Complete tree trimming/pruning 
service requests within 7 working days  

97% 
  (151 of 156) 

95% 
100% 

  (15 of 15) 
96% 

  (55 of 57) 

Complete service requests for 
unclogging blocked catch basins within 
5 working days 

100% 
  (6 of 6) 

95% 
N/A 

  (0 of 0) 
100% 

  (4 of 4) 

Percent of hydrants out of service more 
than 10 working days 

0.00% 
  (0 of 4840) 

<1% 
0.00% 

  (0 of 440) 
0.00% 

  (0 of 1760) 

Replace burned out traffic signal bulb 
within 8 hours of notification 

100% 
  (1 of 1) 

99% N/A N/A 

Complete service requests for patching 
potholes within 5 working days  

100% 
  (15 of 15) 

95% 
100% 

  (1 of 1) 
100% 

  (8 of 8) 

Repair street lights in-house, or 
schedule contractual repairs, within five 
working days of notification    

100% 
  (45 of 45) 

95% 
100% 

  (4 of 4) 
100% 

  (9 of 9) 

Safety: Not more than two employee 
injuries annually resulting in days off 
from work 

0 ≤2 0 1 

Safety: Not more than one vehicle 
accident annually that was the 
responsibility of the Village 

0 ≤1 0 0 

Televise 2,640 lineal feet of combined 
sewer each month from April – 
September 

244% 
  (38685 of 

15840) 

2,640/ 
month 

(15,840/ 
year) 

529% 
  (13965 of 

2640) 

236% 
  (24871 of 

10560) 

Exercise 25 water system valves per 
month 

68% 
  (188 of 275) 

25/month 
(300/year) 

168% 
  (42 of 25) 

76% 
  (76 of 100) 

Complete first review of grading plans 
within 10 working days 

100% 
  (108 of 108) 

95% 
100% 

  (9 of 9) 
100% 

  (46 of 46) 

     N/A: Not applicable, not available, or no service requests were made 
   



1 
 

Village of River Forest 
 

MONTHLY FINANCE REPORT 
Fiscal Year 2019 through August 31, 2018 

 

 
 

This report includes financial information for Fiscal Year 2019 through August 31, 2018 which represents 
33.3% of the fiscal year. A revenue and expenditure report by fund and account and an investment report for 
August 2018 are attached.  

GENERAL FUND 

  

Revenues 
Fiscal year-to-date revenues are at 39.61% of the budgeted amount.  Property Tax Revenue is at 45.70%. A 
significant portion of the 2nd installment of the 2017 levy was collected in July and August.  Real Estate Transfer 

Percent
Budget Actual Rec/Exp

REVENUES
Taxes
  Property Taxes $6,411,182 $2,930,110 45.70%
  General Sales Taxes 1,917,570 608,091 31.71%
  Non Home Rule Sales Tax 885,137 279,628 31.59%
  Utility Taxes 625,660 186,568 29.82%
  Restaurant Tax 162,082 56,009 34.56%
  Telecommunications Tax 266,650 92,808 34.81%
  Real Estate Transfer Tax 122,630 67,755 55.25%
Intergovernmental Revenue
  Personal Property Replacement Tax 142,838 50,962 35.68%
  Use Tax 293,824 96,534 32.85%
  State Income Taxes 1,070,278 389,971 36.44%
Licenses and Permits 1,267,774 638,392 50.36%
Charges for Services
  Garbage Collections 1,067,161 350,035 32.80%
  Other Charges for Services 685,916 221,524 32.30%
Fines 282,522 101,766 36.02%
Investment Income 92,276 20,618 22.34%
Grants and Contributions 38,521 12,966 33.66%
Miscellaneous Revenues 323,716 97,712 30.18%
  TOTAL REVENUES $15,655,737 $6,201,449 39.61%

EXPENDITURES
Administration 1,544,016$     520,638$        33.72%
E911 401,856 97,476 24.26%
Boards & Commissions 104,425 14,598 13.98%
Building and Development 463,983 139,214 30.00%
Legal Services 132,000 54,730 41.46%
Police Department 6,019,887 2,082,544 34.59%
Fire Department 4,397,040 1,506,183 34.25%
Public Works 2,754,091 745,228 27.06%
Transfer to TIF 50,000 50,000 100.00%
  TOTAL EXPENDITURES $15,867,298 $5,210,611 32.84%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($211,561) $990,838

2019

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Fiscal Year 2019 through August 31, 2018



Fiscal Year 2019 Monthly Finance Report                                                              August 2018 

2 
 

Tax revenue is higher due to elevated home values and summer real estate sales.  Utility tax payments are 
typically up during the warmer summer (electric) and cooler winter (gas) months and vary based on weather 
conditions.  Other tax revenues are doing well. 
 
Income tax payments beginning in August of 2017 for the month of July reflected the State’s FY 2018 10% 
reduction.  Beginning with the August 2018 distribution the State’s income tax reduction is 5%.  The payment 
received in May is for April 2018 collections which is normally the highest revenue month.  License and permit 
revenue includes spring building permit activity and annual vehicle sticker revenue. Vehicle stickers were 
required to be displayed by July 14th and a significant portion of that revenue is reflected in the report. Late 
notices were mailed in August.  Grants and Contributions include the ISEARCH Grant, the IDOT Traffic Safety 
Grant and bullet-proof vest and training reimbursements. 
 
Expenditures 
Expenditures are at 32.84% of the budgeted amount. Salaries and benefits, with the exception of overtime, 
include payment for services rendered through the end of the month.  Other expenditures are slightly lower 
because there is about a month lag between the time that goods are received or services are performed, and 
when the vendor payment is made for the goods or services. Payments made in May for goods received and 
services performed prior to May 1st were posted to the prior fiscal year.   
 

WATER AND SEWER FUND 

   
Water and Sewer revenues are as expected.  Expenses are slightly lower but reflect semi-annual debt service 
payments. Personnel expenses are about on target. Contractual services and commodities are lower due to 
the delay in receiving and paying invoices. There is a one-month lag in payments to the City of Chicago for 
FY 2019 water usage. Debt Service expenses include payments on the IEPA loan, the Community Bank loan 
and the 2008B GO Bonds.   
 

Percent
Budget Actual Rec/Exp

Operating Revenues
Permit Fees 19,350$        9,950$          51.42%
Water Sales 3,296,587 1,092,772 33.15%
Sewer Sales 2,161,431 714,589 33.06%
Water Penalties 28,588 10,924 38.21%
Miscellaneous 30,686 24,161 78.74%

Total Operating Revenues 5,536,642$    1,852,396$    33.46%

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 1,163,689$    385,526$      33.13%
Contractual Services 572,366 120,446 21.04%
Water From Chicago 1,666,525 464,318 27.86%
Materials and Supplies 58,645 20,536 35.02%
Depreciation/Debt Service 1,499,625 512,359 34.17%
Transfer to CERF 95,305 31,768 33.33%

Operating Expenses including Depreciation 5,056,155$    1,534,953$    30.36%

Operating Revenues over Operating Exp 480,487$      317,443$      
Capital Improvements (720,000)$     (416,987)$     57.91%
Total Revenues over Expenses (239,513)$     (99,544)$       

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position
Fiscal Year 2019 through August 31, 2018

2019



Fiscal Year 2019 Monthly Finance Report                                                              August 2018 

3 
 

 
 

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES VS. BUDGET – OTHER FUNDS 
 

  
 

CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

  
 

 
AUGUST 2018  FINANCE ACTIVITIES 

 
1. The Police and Firefighters Pension Fund Actuarial Reports were reviewed and the GASB 68 spreadsheets 

and entries were prepared. Additional information was gathered for the auditors as requested. 
2. The Police and Firefighters Pension Fund Illinois Department of Insurance reports were reviewed. 
3. The utility billing direct debit payment form was updated and made available on the Village’s website and 

at the front counter. 
4. Meetings were held regarding the acquisition of a license plate reader for parking enforcement and the 

Passport online parking permit module. 
5. The Finance Director’s Procedures Manual was updated. 
6. Staff continued to work on the implementation of JetPay, the new software that will be used to process 

credit card transactions at the front counter. 
7. A Laserfiche time off form was created to automate staff time off requests. 
8. Late notices were mailed for delinquent vehicle stickers. 
9. Staff viewed an IGFOA webinar on budgeting and attended an IRMA seminar on teamwork across the 

generations. 
 
 

Revenues
Fund 2019 2019 % 2019 2019 %

# Fund Budget YTD Actual Rec Budget YTD Actual Exp
03 Motor Fuel Tax 410,616$    100,107$    24.38% 650,060$    172,599$    26.55%
05 Debt Service Fund 263,047$    116,377$    44.24% 255,084$    -$              0.00%
13 Cap Equipmnt Replcmnt 622,149$    201,166$    32.33% 778,688$    18,913$      2.43%
14 Capital Improvement 867,483$    319,679$    36.85% 1,597,400$ 210,662$    13.19%
16 Economic Development 3,499$       1,083$       30.95% 185,641$    1,003$       0.54%
31 TIF-Madison 119,037$    56,385$      47.37% 74,500$     7,677$       10.30%/
32 TIF-North 50,000$      50,189$      100.38% 50,000$     14,602$      29.20%.
35 Infrastructure Imp Bond 2,500$       2,423$       96.92% 250,000$    161,500$    64.60%

Expenditures

Cash and IMET
Fund Money Convenience

# Fund Markets Fund Investments Total

1 General 1,038,694$          623,579$         4,291,033$       5,953,306$         
3 Motor Fuel Tax 396,680$             -$                   150,667$         547,347$           
5 Debt Service Fund 233,722$             80,032$           -$                   313,754$           
13 Capital Equip Replacement 598,010$             329,445$         2,809,374$       3,736,829$         
14 Capital Improvement 516,655$             480,724$         783,838$         1,781,217$         
16 Economic Development Fund 82,779$               136,484$         -$                   219,263$           
31 TIF-Madison Street 88,880$               -$                   -$                   88,880$             
32 TIF- North Avenue 37,967$               -$                   -$                   37,967$             
35 Infrastructure Imp Bond Fund 341,057$             -$                   -$                   341,057$           
2 Water & Sewer 494,529$             152,174$         393,090$         1,039,793$         

Total 3,828,973$          1,802,438$     8,428,002$     14,059,413$      



General Ledger
Village of River Forest

User: jrock
Printed: 9/12/2018 8:55:12 AM
Period 04 - 04
Fiscal Year 2019

Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01 General Fund
00
01-00-00-41-1000 Property Tax-Prior Years 3,103,116.00 1,897,494.38 0.00 1,032,615.48 2,930,109.86 173,006.14 94.42
01-00-00-41-1021 Property Tax-Current

Year
3,308,066.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,308,066.00 0.00

Property Taxes 6,411,182.00 1,897,494.38 0.00 1,032,615.48 2,930,109.86 3,481,072.14 45.70

01-00-00-41-1150 Replacement Tax 142,838.00 48,802.23 0.00 2,160.12 50,962.35 91,875.65 35.68
01-00-00-41-1190 Restaurant Tax 162,082.00 42,233.27 0.00 13,775.51 56,008.78 106,073.22 34.56
01-00-00-41-1200 Sales Tax 1,917,570.00 435,039.51 0.00 173,051.52 608,091.03 1,309,478.97 31.71
01-00-00-41-1205 State Use Tax 293,824.00 71,381.10 0.00 25,152.60 96,533.70 197,290.30 32.85
01-00-00-41-1210 Non-Home Rule Sales

Tax
885,137.00 197,818.68 0.00 81,809.22 279,627.90 605,509.10 31.59

01-00-00-41-1250 Income Tax 1,070,278.00 319,715.97 0.00 70,255.14 389,971.11 680,306.89 36.44
01-00-00-41-1450 Transfer Tax 122,630.00 48,613.00 0.00 19,142.00 67,755.00 54,875.00 55.25
01-00-00-41-1460 Communication Tax 266,650.00 69,036.33 0.00 23,771.94 92,808.27 173,841.73 34.81
01-00-00-41-1475 Utility Tax Elec 435,660.00 97,605.94 0.00 46,643.83 144,249.77 291,410.23 33.11
01-00-00-41-1480 Utility Tax Gas 190,000.00 36,725.99 0.00 5,592.23 42,318.22 147,681.78 22.27

Other Taxes 5,486,669.00 1,366,972.02 0.00 461,354.11 1,828,326.13 3,658,342.87 33.32

01-00-00-42-2115 Pet Licenses 2,100.00 690.00 0.00 100.00 790.00 1,310.00 37.62
01-00-00-42-2120 Vehicle Licenses 305,000.00 263,203.00 115.00 14,848.00 277,936.00 27,064.00 91.13
01-00-00-42-2345 Contractor's License Fees 84,660.00 19,000.00 0.00 18,400.00 37,400.00 47,260.00 44.18
01-00-00-42-2350 Business Licenses 17,000.00 2,205.00 0.00 525.00 2,730.00 14,270.00 16.06
01-00-00-42-2355 Tent Licenses 300.00 90.00 0.00 0.00 90.00 210.00 30.00
01-00-00-42-2360 Building Permits 514,500.00 138,157.90 3,675.00 43,368.95 177,851.85 336,648.15 34.57
01-00-00-42-2361 Plumbing Permits 37,260.00 14,365.00 0.00 5,125.00 19,490.00 17,770.00 52.31
01-00-00-42-2362 Electrical Permits 49,930.00 12,733.25 0.00 4,328.75 17,062.00 32,868.00 34.17
01-00-00-42-2364 Reinspection Fees 5,000.00 2,625.00 0.00 825.00 3,450.00 1,550.00 69.00
01-00-00-42-2365 Bonfire Permits 60.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 30.00 50.00
01-00-00-42-2366 Beekeeping Permit 500.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 450.00 10.00
01-00-00-42-2368 Solicitors Permits 500.00 725.00 25.00 200.00 900.00 -400.00 180.00
01-00-00-42-2370 Film Crew License 4,800.00 1,950.00 0.00 1,850.00 3,800.00 1,000.00 79.17
01-00-00-42-2520 Liquor Licenses 23,500.00 400.00 0.00 200.00 600.00 22,900.00 2.55
01-00-00-42-2570 CableVideo Svc Provider

Fees
222,664.00 53,053.34 0.00 43,158.32 96,211.66 126,452.34 43.21

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 1



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

Licenses & Permits 1,267,774.00 509,277.49 3,815.00 132,929.02 638,391.51 629,382.49 50.36

01-00-00-43-3065 Police Reports 2,200.00 545.00 0.00 200.00 745.00 1,455.00 33.86
01-00-00-43-3070 Fire Reports 700.00 100.00 0.00 50.00 150.00 550.00 21.43
01-00-00-43-3180 Garbage Collection 1,067,161.00 242,259.33 224.64 108,000.42 350,035.11 717,125.89 32.80
01-00-00-43-3185 Penalties on Garbage Fees 7,560.00 1,665.00 114.91 1,458.29 3,008.38 4,551.62 39.79
01-00-00-43-3200 Metra Daily Parking 31,961.00 11,375.52 0.00 5,450.35 16,825.87 15,135.13 52.65
01-00-00-43-3220 Parking Lot Permit Fees 74,538.00 21,092.53 0.00 5,201.65 26,294.18 48,243.82 35.28
01-00-00-43-3225 Administrative Towing

Fees
144,700.00 28,000.00 0.00 11,000.00 39,000.00 105,700.00 26.95

01-00-00-43-3230 Animal Release Fees 0.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 -5.00 0.00
01-00-00-43-3515 NSF Fees 200.00 50.00 0.00 25.00 75.00 125.00 37.50
01-00-00-43-3530 5050 Sidewalk Program 10,000.00 5,343.42 0.00 0.00 5,343.42 4,656.58 53.43
01-00-00-43-3536 Elevator Inspection Fees 4,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,300.00 0.00
01-00-00-43-3537 Elevator Reinspection

Fees
400.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 -100.00 125.00

01-00-00-43-3540 ROW Encroachment Fees 0.00 500.00 0.00 300.00 800.00 -800.00 0.00
01-00-00-43-3550 Ambulance Fees 340,000.00 91,407.26 792.56 37,662.54 128,277.24 211,722.76 37.73
01-00-00-43-3554 CPR Fees 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00
01-00-00-43-3557 Car Fire & Extrication

Fee
500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 100.00

01-00-00-43-3560 State Highway
Maintenance

57,657.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 57,657.00 0.00

01-00-00-43-4030 Workers Comp Payments 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00
Charges for Services 1,753,077.00 402,843.06 1,132.11 169,848.25 571,559.20 1,181,517.80 32.60

01-00-00-44-4230 Police Tickets 160,900.00 54,317.33 668.51 12,301.37 65,950.19 94,949.81 40.99
01-00-00-44-4240 Automated Traffic Enf

Fines
35,531.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,531.00 0.00

01-00-00-44-4300 Local Ordinance Tickets 5,075.00 682.73 11.76 1,222.50 1,893.47 3,181.53 37.31
01-00-00-44-4430 Court Fines 55,714.00 11,363.55 0.00 5,929.06 17,292.61 38,421.39 31.04
01-00-00-44-4435 DUI Fines 7,632.00 6,060.13 0.00 420.00 6,480.13 1,151.87 84.91
01-00-00-44-4436 Drug Forfeiture Revenue 6,110.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,110.00 0.00
01-00-00-44-4439 Article 36 Forfeited

Funds
6,560.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,560.00 0.00

01-00-00-44-4440 Building Construction
Citation

5,000.00 10,150.00 0.00 0.00 10,150.00 -5,150.00 203.00

Fines & Forfeits 282,522.00 82,573.74 680.27 19,872.93 101,766.40 180,755.60 36.02

01-00-00-45-5100 Interest 92,276.00 14,941.79 0.00 2,844.35 17,786.14 74,489.86 19.27
01-00-00-45-5200 Net Change in Fair Value 0.00 730.61 0.00 2,101.03 2,831.64 -2,831.64 0.00

Interest 92,276.00 15,672.40 0.00 4,945.38 20,617.78 71,658.22 22.34

01-00-00-46-6408 Cash OverShort 0.00 9.90 0.00 0.00 9.90 -9.90 0.00
01-00-00-46-6410 Miscellaneous 35,300.00 2,531.79 0.00 136.43 2,668.22 32,631.78 7.56
01-00-00-46-6411 Miscellaneous Public

Safety
4,500.00 494.47 0.00 35.00 529.47 3,970.53 11.77

01-00-00-46-6412 Reimbursements-Crossing
Guards

62,626.00 33,191.39 0.00 0.00 33,191.39 29,434.61 53.00

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 2



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01-00-00-46-6415 Reimbursement of
Expenses

7,500.00 2,224.80 0.00 2,029.53 4,254.33 3,245.67 56.72

01-00-00-46-6417 IRMA Reimbursements 45,000.00 9,989.69 0.00 12,198.34 22,188.03 22,811.97 49.31
01-00-00-46-6510 T-Mobile Lease 42,068.00 10,412.94 0.00 3,470.98 13,883.92 28,184.08 33.00
01-00-00-46-6511 WSCDC Rental Income 50,722.00 20,987.05 0.00 0.00 20,987.05 29,734.95 41.38
01-00-00-46-8001 IRMA Excess 75,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 0.00

Miscellaneous 322,716.00 79,842.03 0.00 17,870.28 97,712.31 225,003.69 30.28

01-00-00-46-6521 Law Enforcement
Training Reimb

2,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,100.00 0.00

01-00-00-46-6524 ISEARCH Grant 8,750.00 8,500.00 0.00 0.00 8,500.00 250.00 97.14
01-00-00-46-6525 Bullet Proof Vest

Reimb-DOJ
3,833.00 505.37 0.00 449.50 954.87 2,878.13 24.91

01-00-00-46-6528 IDOT Traffic Safety
Grant

19,788.00 2,166.37 0.00 0.00 2,166.37 17,621.63 10.95

01-00-00-46-6620 State Fire Marshal
Training

4,050.00 1,261.90 0.00 0.00 1,261.90 2,788.10 31.16

01-00-00-46-7388 Sustainability Comm
Donations

0.00 83.00 0.00 0.00 83.00 -83.00 0.00

Grants & Contributions 38,521.00 12,516.64 0.00 449.50 12,966.14 25,554.86 33.66

01-00-00-48-8000 Sale of Property 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
Other Financing
Sources

1,000.00

       
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
1,000.00

       
0.00

   

00 15,655,737.00

            
4,367,191.76

           
5,627.38

       
1,839,884.95

           
6,201,449.33

           
9,454,287.67

           
39.61

    

Revenue 15,655,737.00 4,367,191.76 5,627.38 1,839,884.95 6,201,449.33 9,454,287.67 39.61

10 Administration
01-10-00-51-0200 Salaries Regular 568,424.00 141,935.96 56,086.39 0.00 198,022.35 370,401.65 34.84
01-10-00-51-1700 Overtime 500.00 351.10 0.00 0.00 351.10 148.90 70.22
01-10-00-51-1950 Insurance Refusal Reimb 2,265.00 555.00 185.00 0.00 740.00 1,525.00 32.67
01-10-00-51-3000 Part-Time Salaries 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00

Personal Services 576,189.00 142,842.06 56,271.39 0.00 199,113.45 377,075.55 34.56

01-10-00-52-0320 FICA 32,242.00 8,765.97 3,453.97 0.00 12,219.94 20,022.06 37.90
01-10-00-52-0325 Medicare 8,423.00 2,051.84 807.80 0.00 2,859.64 5,563.36 33.95
01-10-00-52-0330 IMRF 63,244.00 15,335.47 6,056.54 0.00 21,392.01 41,851.99 33.82
01-10-00-52-0350 Employee Assistance

Program
1,750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,750.00 0.00

01-10-00-52-0375 Fringe Benefits 7,830.00 2,017.56 672.52 0.00 2,690.08 5,139.92 34.36
01-10-00-52-0400 Health Insurance 61,861.00 12,408.48 4,895.40 632.25 16,671.63 45,189.37 26.95
01-10-00-52-0420 Health Insurance -

Retirees
50.00 -44.00 730.03 1,450.26 -764.23 814.23 -1,528.46

01-10-00-52-0425 Life Insurance 720.00 176.45 80.75 24.26 232.94 487.06 32.35

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 3



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01-10-00-52-0430 VEBA Contributions 15,643.00 8,755.36 0.00 0.00 8,755.36 6,887.64 55.97
01-10-00-52-0500 Wellness Program 1,500.00 844.00 0.00 0.00 844.00 656.00 56.27

Benefits 193,263.00 50,311.13 16,697.01 2,106.77 64,901.37 128,361.63 33.58

01-10-00-53-0200 Communications 29,825.00 7,626.23 2,682.37 0.00 10,308.60 19,516.40 34.56
01-10-00-53-0300 Audit Services 20,090.00 1,810.23 8,400.00 0.00 10,210.23 9,879.77 50.82
01-10-00-53-0350 Actuarial Services 9,800.00 575.00 0.00 0.00 575.00 9,225.00 5.87
01-10-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 130,000.00 36,111.43 13,043.27 0.00 49,154.70 80,845.30 37.81
01-10-00-53-0410 IT Support 123,925.00 22,580.66 5,744.64 63.61 28,261.69 95,663.31 22.81
01-10-00-53-0429 Vehicle Sticker Program 17,625.00 11,012.97 0.00 0.00 11,012.97 6,612.03 62.48
01-10-00-53-1100 HealthInspection Services 15,500.00 3,862.50 0.00 0.00 3,862.50 11,637.50 24.92
01-10-00-53-1250 Unemployment Claims 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00
01-10-00-53-2100 Bank Fees 11,998.00 3,412.21 1,598.64 0.00 5,010.85 6,987.15 41.76
01-10-00-53-2200 Liability Insurance 279,790.00 67,892.07 22,630.69 0.00 90,522.76 189,267.24 32.35
01-10-00-53-2250 IRMA Liability

Deductible
35,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00

01-10-00-53-3300 Maint of Office
Equipment

11,041.00 2,231.36 777.59 0.00 3,008.95 8,032.05 27.25

01-10-00-53-4100 Training 7,000.00 764.00 55.00 0.00 819.00 6,181.00 11.70
01-10-00-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 9,550.00 3,099.60 1,615.00 0.00 4,714.60 4,835.40 49.37
01-10-00-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 25,545.00 9,246.74 12,352.29 0.00 21,599.03 3,945.97 84.55
01-10-00-53-4350 Printing 3,400.00 984.50 0.00 0.00 984.50 2,415.50 28.96
01-10-00-53-4400 Medical & Screening 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00
01-10-00-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal Notice 2,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,600.00 0.00
01-10-00-53-5600 Community and Emp

Programs
9,250.00 7,713.59 50.00 0.00 7,763.59 1,486.41 83.93

Contractual Services 744,939.00 178,923.09 68,949.49 63.61 247,808.97 497,130.03 33.27

01-10-00-54-0100 Office Supplies 16,125.00 2,709.43 3,039.34 0.00 5,748.77 10,376.23 35.65
01-10-00-54-0150 Office Equipment 3,000.00 14.99 0.00 0.00 14.99 2,985.01 0.50
01-10-00-54-1300 Postage 10,500.00 2,050.00 1,058.47 58.47 3,050.00 7,450.00 29.05

Materials & Supplies 29,625.00 4,774.42 4,097.81 58.47 8,813.76 20,811.24 29.75

01-10-00-57-5032 Transfer to TIF-North 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 100.00
Other Financing Uses 50,000.00

        
50,000.00

        
0.00

   
0.00

   
50,000.00

        
0.00

   
100.00

     

10 Administration 1,594,016.00 426,850.70 146,015.70 2,228.85 570,637.55 1,023,378.45 35.80

14 E911
01-14-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
01-14-00-53-0410 IT Support 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00
01-14-00-53-3100 Maintenance of

Equipment
500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

01-14-00-53-4100 Training 1,050.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,050.00 0.00
01-14-00-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00
01-14-00-53-4275 WSCDC Contribution 382,306.00 66,322.74 31,153.23 0.00 97,475.97 284,830.03 25.50
01-14-00-53-4277 Citizens Corps Council 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 4



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01-14-00-53-4278 Medical Reserve Corp 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
Contractual Services 401,856.00

         
66,322.74

        
31,153.23

        
0.00

   
97,475.97

        
304,380.03

         
24.26

    

14 E911 401,856.00 66,322.74 31,153.23 0.00 97,475.97 304,380.03 24.26

15 Boards and
Commissions

01-15-00-52-0320 FICA 0.00 0.00 33.72 0.00 33.72 -33.72 0.00
01-15-00-52-0325 Medicare 0.00 0.00 7.89 0.00 7.89 -7.89 0.00
01-15-00-52-0330 IMRF 0.00 0.00 59.87 0.00 59.87 -59.87 0.00

Benefits 0.00 0.00 101.48 0.00 101.48 -101.48 0.00

01-15-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 77,450.00 1,018.77 589.78 0.00 1,608.55 75,841.45 2.08
01-15-00-53-0400 Secretarial Services 3,500.00 0.00 543.83 0.00 543.83 2,956.17 15.54
01-15-00-53-0420 Legal Services 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00
01-15-00-53-4100 Training 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
01-15-00-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00
01-15-00-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 375.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 375.00 0.00
01-15-00-53-4400 Medical & Screening 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
01-15-00-53-4450 Testing 15,000.00 3,890.58 8,453.31 0.00 12,343.89 2,656.11 82.29
01-15-00-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal Notice 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,250.00 0.00

Contractual Services 104,275.00 4,909.35 9,586.92 0.00 14,496.27 89,778.73 13.90

01-15-00-54-0100 Office Supplies 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
Materials & Supplies 150.00

     
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
150.00

     
0.00

   

15 Boards and
Commissions

104,425.00 4,909.35 9,688.40 0.00 14,597.75 89,827.25 13.98

20 Building and
Development

01-20-00-51-0200 Full-Time Salaries 247,556.00 61,406.18 20,590.55 0.00 81,996.73 165,559.27 33.12
01-20-00-51-1700 Overtime 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
01-20-00-51-1950 Insurance Refusal

Reimbursemnt
1,373.00 337.50 112.50 0.00 450.00 923.00 32.77

Personal Services 249,429.00 61,743.68 20,703.05 0.00 82,446.73 166,982.27 33.05

01-20-00-52-0320 FICA 15,190.00 3,728.52 1,249.03 0.00 4,977.55 10,212.45 32.77
01-20-00-52-0325 Medicare 3,621.00 871.98 292.09 0.00 1,164.07 2,456.93 32.15
01-20-00-52-0330 IMRF 27,366.00 6,550.98 2,194.66 0.00 8,745.64 18,620.36 31.96
01-20-00-52-0375 Fringe Benefits 1,980.00 495.00 165.00 0.00 660.00 1,320.00 33.33
01-20-00-52-0400 Health Insurance 44,795.00 9,125.63 3,581.75 480.14 12,227.24 32,567.76 27.30
01-20-00-52-0425 Life Insurance 147.00 33.60 11.20 0.00 44.80 102.20 30.48
01-20-00-52-0430 VEBA Contributions 8,893.00 4,403.79 0.00 0.00 4,403.79 4,489.21 49.52

Benefits 101,992.00 25,209.50 7,493.73 480.14 32,223.09 69,768.91 31.59

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 5



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01-20-00-53-0370 Professional Services 11,450.00 2,024.94 960.22 0.00 2,985.16 8,464.84 26.07
01-20-00-53-1300 Inspection Services 65,350.00 11,615.00 6,040.00 0.00 17,655.00 47,695.00 27.02
01-20-00-53-1305 Plan Review Services 30,000.00 422.01 0.00 0.00 422.01 29,577.99 1.41
01-20-00-53-3200 Vehicle Maintenance 400.00 41.99 0.00 0.00 41.99 358.01 10.50
01-20-00-53-4100 Training 500.00 35.00 195.00 0.00 230.00 270.00 46.00
01-20-00-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 845.00 575.00 0.00 0.00 575.00 270.00 68.05
01-20-00-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal Notices 0.00 0.00 742.00 0.00 742.00 -742.00 0.00

Contractual Services 108,545.00 14,713.94 7,937.22 0.00 22,651.16 85,893.84 20.87

01-20-00-54-0100 Office Supplies 400.00 962.00 0.00 0.00 962.00 -562.00 240.50
01-20-00-54-0150 Office Equipment 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
01-20-00-54-0200 Gas & Oil 280.00 0.00 35.79 0.00 35.79 244.21 12.78
01-20-00-54-0600 Operating Supplies 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

Materials & Supplies 1,330.00 962.00 35.79 0.00 997.79 332.21 75.02

01-20-00-57-5013 Transfer to CERF 2,687.00 671.76 223.92 0.00 895.68 1,791.32 33.33
Other Financing Uses 2,687.00

       
671.76

     
223.92

     
0.00

   
895.68

     
1,791.32

       
33.33

    

20 Building and
Development

463,983.00 103,300.88 36,393.71 480.14 139,214.45 324,768.55 30.00

30 Legal Services
01-30-00-53-0420 Labor and Employment

Legal Svc
20,000.00 11,060.00 9,116.25 0.00 20,176.25 -176.25 100.88

01-30-00-53-0425 Village Attorney 100,000.00 10,348.26 20,672.53 0.00 31,020.79 68,979.21 31.02
01-30-00-53-0426 Village Prosecutor 12,000.00 1,533.00 2,000.00 0.00 3,533.00 8,467.00 29.44

Contractual Services 132,000.00

         
22,941.26

        
31,788.78

        
0.00

   
54,730.04

        
77,269.96

        
41.46

    

30 Legal Services 132,000.00 22,941.26 31,788.78 0.00 54,730.04 77,269.96 41.46

40 Police Department
01-40-00-51-0100 Salaries Sworn 2,671,534.00 657,132.90 207,480.64 0.00 864,613.54 1,806,920.46 32.36
01-40-00-51-0200 Salaries Regular 130,730.00 33,026.14 12,020.43 0.00 45,046.57 85,683.43 34.46
01-40-00-51-1500 Specialist Pay 40,426.00 8,028.00 2,846.00 0.00 10,874.00 29,552.00 26.90
01-40-00-51-1600 Holiday Pay 125,869.00 5,295.17 0.00 0.00 5,295.17 120,573.83 4.21
01-40-00-51-1700 Overtime 175,000.00 45,078.00 10,070.89 0.00 55,148.89 119,851.11 31.51
01-40-00-51-1727 IDOT STEP Overtime 19,788.00 1,745.24 0.00 0.00 1,745.24 18,042.76 8.82
01-40-00-51-1800 Educational Incentives 40,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,100.00 0.00
01-40-00-51-1950 Insurance Refusal Reim 1,525.00 225.00 75.00 0.00 300.00 1,225.00 19.67
01-40-00-51-3000 Part-Time Salaries 46,592.00 8,375.33 2,884.19 0.00 11,259.52 35,332.48 24.17

Personal Services 3,251,564.00 758,905.78 235,377.15 0.00 994,282.93 2,257,281.07 30.58

01-40-00-52-0320 FICA 12,079.00 2,476.56 909.16 0.00 3,385.72 8,693.28 28.03
01-40-00-52-0325 Medicare 44,672.00 10,373.43 3,282.77 0.00 13,656.20 31,015.80 30.57

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 6



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01-40-00-52-0330 IMRF 18,364.00 4,511.32 1,661.41 0.00 6,172.73 12,191.27 33.61
01-40-00-52-0375 Fringe Benefits 1,800.00 300.00 100.00 0.00 400.00 1,400.00 22.22
01-40-00-52-0400 Health Insurance 482,880.00 120,298.63 47,308.11 6,900.79 160,705.95 322,174.05 33.28
01-40-00-52-0420 Health Insurance -

Retirees
83,526.00 19,524.93 16,991.18 10,022.25 26,493.86 57,032.14 31.72

01-40-00-52-0425 Life Insurance 2,057.00 488.58 582.28 425.50 645.36 1,411.64 31.37
01-40-00-52-0430 VEBA Contributions 76,614.00 45,201.05 0.00 0.00 45,201.05 31,412.95 59.00
01-40-00-53-0009 Contribution to Police

Pension
1,483,000.00 459,849.47 228,304.62 0.00 688,154.09 794,845.91 46.40

Benefits 2,204,992.00 663,023.97 299,139.53 17,348.54 944,814.96 1,260,177.04 42.85

01-40-00-53-0200 Communications 3,068.00 570.89 286.48 0.00 857.37 2,210.63 27.95
01-40-00-53-0385 Administrative

Adjudication
23,220.00 2,560.00 1,550.00 0.00 4,110.00 19,110.00 17.70

01-40-00-53-0410 IT Support 14,266.00 327.72 0.00 0.00 327.72 13,938.28 2.30
01-40-00-53-0430 Animal Control 2,500.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 2,470.00 1.20
01-40-00-53-3100 Maint of Equipment 14,816.00 472.00 0.00 0.00 472.00 14,344.00 3.19
01-40-00-53-3200 Maintenance of Vehicles 45,000.00 6,425.23 2,340.05 0.00 8,765.28 36,234.72 19.48
01-40-00-53-3600 Maintenance of Buildings 1,000.00 335.00 0.00 0.00 335.00 665.00 33.50
01-40-00-53-4100 Training 24,950.00 5,448.67 1,485.97 0.00 6,934.64 18,015.36 27.79
01-40-00-53-4200 Community Support

Services
102,605.00 24,411.32 7,384.31 0.00 31,795.63 70,809.37 30.99

01-40-00-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 4,450.00 416.89 47.71 0.00 464.60 3,985.40 10.44
01-40-00-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 8,303.00 2,763.00 295.00 0.00 3,058.00 5,245.00 36.83
01-40-00-53-4350 Printing 5,790.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,790.00 0.00
01-40-00-53-4400 Medical & Screening 5,015.00 80.00 5,330.00 0.00 5,410.00 -395.00 107.88
01-40-00-53-5400 Damage Claims 2,500.00 3,039.20 606.24 0.00 3,645.44 -1,145.44 145.82

Contractual Services 257,483.00 46,879.92 19,325.76 0.00 66,205.68 191,277.32 25.71

01-40-00-54-0100 Office Supplies 10,000.00 2,502.54 304.92 0.00 2,807.46 7,192.54 28.07
01-40-00-54-0200 Gas & Oil 40,581.00 8,723.22 3,558.91 0.00 12,282.13 28,298.87 30.27
01-40-00-54-0300 Uniforms Sworn

Personnel
27,400.00 3,530.57 2,151.77 0.00 5,682.34 21,717.66 20.74

01-40-00-54-0310 Uniforms Other Personnel 800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00
01-40-00-54-0400 Prisoner Care 2,608.00 593.70 0.00 0.00 593.70 2,014.30 22.76
01-40-00-54-0600 Operating Supplies 9,868.00 138.15 0.00 0.00 138.15 9,729.85 1.40
01-40-00-54-0601 Radios 12,595.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,595.00 0.00
01-40-00-54-0602 Firearms and Range

Supplies
16,440.00 2,223.54 0.00 0.00 2,223.54 14,216.46 13.53

01-40-00-54-0603 Evidence Supplies 6,950.00 0.00 438.55 0.00 438.55 6,511.45 6.31
01-40-00-54-0605 DUI Expenditures 7,632.00 0.00 211.61 0.00 211.61 7,420.39 2.77
01-40-00-54-0610 Drug Forfeiture

Expenditures
6,110.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,110.00 0.00

01-40-00-54-0615 Article 36 Exp 6,560.00 0.00 95.00 0.00 95.00 6,465.00 1.45
Materials & Supplies 147,544.00 17,711.72 6,760.76 0.00 24,472.48 123,071.52 16.59

01-40-00-57-5013 Transfer to CERF 158,304.00 39,576.00 13,192.00 0.00 52,768.00 105,536.00 33.33
Other Financing Uses 158,304.00 39,576.00 13,192.00 0.00 52,768.00 105,536.00 33.33

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 7



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

                                                       

40 Police Department 6,019,887.00 1,526,097.39 573,795.20 17,348.54 2,082,544.05 3,937,342.95 34.59

50 Fire Department
01-50-00-51-0100 Salaries Sworn 1,818,361.00 425,651.75 141,228.66 0.00 566,880.41 1,251,480.59 31.18
01-50-00-51-0200 Salaries Regular 111,206.00 19,854.06 6,618.02 0.00 26,472.08 84,733.92 23.80
01-50-00-51-1500 Specialist Pay 136,475.00 34,068.34 11,402.78 0.00 45,471.12 91,003.88 33.32
01-50-00-51-1600 Holiday Pay 77,311.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 77,311.00 0.00
01-50-00-51-1700 Overtime 120,000.00 35,312.84 9,510.11 0.00 44,822.95 75,177.05 37.35
01-50-00-51-1800 Educational Incentives 14,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,600.00 0.00
01-50-00-51-3000 Part-Time Salaries 0.00 7,486.65 2,392.83 0.00 9,879.48 -9,879.48 0.00

Personal Services 2,277,953.00 522,373.64 171,152.40 0.00 693,526.04 1,584,426.96 30.45

01-50-00-51-1950 Insurance Refusal Reimb 1,500.00 375.00 125.00 0.00 500.00 1,000.00 33.33
01-50-00-52-0320 FICA 6,932.00 1,677.29 552.72 0.00 2,230.01 4,701.99 32.17
01-50-00-52-0325 Medicare 33,048.00 7,153.95 2,353.58 0.00 9,507.53 23,540.47 28.77
01-50-00-52-0330 IMRF 12,244.00 2,937.23 967.77 0.00 3,905.00 8,339.00 31.89
01-50-00-52-0375 Fringe Benefits 1,200.00 300.00 100.00 0.00 400.00 800.00 33.33
01-50-00-52-0400 Health Insurance 310,124.00 74,458.22 29,611.88 4,198.18 99,871.92 210,252.08 32.20
01-50-00-52-0420 Health Insurance -

Retirees
40,174.00 8,577.46 11,748.56 8,028.84 12,297.18 27,876.82 30.61

01-50-00-52-0425 Life Insurance 1,487.00 344.37 241.17 126.38 459.16 1,027.84 30.88
01-50-00-52-0430 VEBA Contributions 54,194.00 34,048.23 0.00 0.00 34,048.23 20,145.77 62.83
01-50-00-53-0010 Contribution to Fire

Pension
1,324,000.00 375,505.67 186,370.18 0.00 561,875.85 762,124.15 42.44

Benefits 1,784,903.00 505,377.42 232,070.86 12,353.40 725,094.88 1,059,808.12 40.62

01-50-00-53-0200 Communications 6,300.00 178.69 85.88 0.00 264.57 6,035.43 4.20
01-50-00-53-0410 IT Support 7,126.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 6,826.00 4.21
01-50-00-53-3100 Maintenance of

Equipment
7,300.00 168.49 599.00 0.00 767.49 6,532.51 10.51

01-50-00-53-3200 Maintenance of Vehicles 38,250.00 2,789.35 7,942.60 0.00 10,731.95 27,518.05 28.06
01-50-00-53-3300 Maint of Office

Equipment
500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

01-50-00-53-3600 Maintenance of Buildings 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00
01-50-00-53-4100 Training 24,750.00 1,365.66 1,075.00 0.00 2,440.66 22,309.34 9.86
01-50-00-53-4200 Community Support

Services
16,300.00 10,000.00 510.00 0.00 10,510.00 5,790.00 64.48

01-50-00-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 6,550.00 992.55 40.00 0.00 1,032.55 5,517.45 15.76
01-50-00-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 3,465.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 3,390.00 2.16
01-50-00-53-4400 Medical & Screening 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00

Contractual Services 129,041.00 15,869.74 10,252.48 0.00 26,122.22 102,918.78 20.24

01-50-00-54-0100 Office Supplies 1,500.00 90.25 0.00 0.00 90.25 1,409.75 6.02
01-50-00-54-0200 Gas & Oil 14,850.00 2,582.98 929.33 0.00 3,512.31 11,337.69 23.65
01-50-00-54-0300 Uniforms Sworn

Personnel
17,400.00 7.00 0.00 0.00 7.00 17,393.00 0.04

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 8



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01-50-00-54-0600 Operating Supplies 23,300.00 7,491.74 3,051.54 2,077.19 8,466.09 14,833.91 36.34
Materials & Supplies 57,050.00 10,171.97 3,980.87 2,077.19 12,075.65 44,974.35 21.17

01-50-00-57-5013 Transfer to CERF 148,093.00 37,023.24 12,341.08 0.00 49,364.32 98,728.68 33.33
Other Financing Uses 148,093.00

         
37,023.24

        
12,341.08

        
0.00

   
49,364.32

        
98,728.68

        
33.33

    

50 Fire Department 4,397,040.00 1,090,816.01 429,797.69 14,430.59 1,506,183.11 2,890,856.89 34.25

60 Public Works
01-60-01-51-0200 Salaries Regular 494,546.00 123,379.20 41,920.09 0.00 165,299.29 329,246.71 33.42
01-60-01-51-1500 Certification Pay 7,950.00 8,550.00 0.00 0.00 8,550.00 -600.00 107.55
01-60-01-51-1700 Overtime 50,000.00 7,899.44 0.00 0.00 7,899.44 42,100.56 15.80
01-60-01-51-3000 Part-Time Salaries 8,000.00 2,752.14 1,798.88 0.00 4,551.02 3,448.98 56.89

Personal Services 560,496.00 142,580.78 43,718.97 0.00 186,299.75 374,196.25 33.24

01-60-01-52-0320 FICA 34,105.00 8,705.55 2,663.90 0.00 11,369.45 22,735.55 33.34
01-60-01-52-0325 Medicare 8,117.00 2,036.04 623.04 0.00 2,659.08 5,457.92 32.76
01-60-01-52-0330 IMRF 54,875.00 15,062.17 4,501.65 0.00 19,563.82 35,311.18 35.65
01-60-01-52-0375 Fringe Benefits 4,140.00 1,049.00 345.00 0.00 1,394.00 2,746.00 33.67
01-60-01-52-0400 Health Insurance 134,187.00 32,376.20 11,546.04 673.38 43,248.86 90,938.14 32.23
01-60-01-52-0420 Health Insurance -

Retirees
14,790.00 1,776.08 4,640.55 4,946.60 1,470.03 13,319.97 9.94

01-60-01-52-0425 Life Insurance 264.00 45.45 84.07 64.04 65.48 198.52 24.80
01-60-01-52-0430 VEBA Contributions 5,963.00 4,582.62 0.00 0.00 4,582.62 1,380.38 76.85

Benefits 256,441.00 65,633.11 24,404.25 5,684.02 84,353.34 172,087.66 32.89

01-60-01-53-0200 Communications 1,210.00 223.62 65.30 0.00 288.92 921.08 23.88
01-60-01-53-0380 Consulting Services 20,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,500.00 0.00
01-60-01-53-0410 IT Support 22,080.00 3,415.73 1,707.87 0.00 5,123.60 16,956.40 23.20
01-60-01-53-1310 Julie Notifications 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
01-60-01-53-3100 Maintenance of

Equipment
3,500.00 428.13 567.58 229.00 766.71 2,733.29 21.91

01-60-01-53-3200 Maintenance of Vehicles 25,500.00 3,334.52 73.00 0.00 3,407.52 22,092.48 13.36
01-60-01-53-3400 Maintenance TrafficSt

Lights
73,380.00 9,289.38 6,479.49 0.00 15,768.87 57,611.13 21.49

01-60-01-53-3550 Tree Maintenance 89,500.00 11,727.50 1,485.00 0.00 13,212.50 76,287.50 14.76
01-60-01-53-3600 Maintenance of Bldgs &

Grounds
65,040.00 15,384.81 400.88 0.00 15,785.69 49,254.31 24.27

01-60-01-53-3610 Maintenance Sidewalks 55,000.00 0.00 62,375.21 0.00 62,375.21 -7,375.21 113.41
01-60-01-53-3620 Maintenance Streets 108,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 108,000.00 0.00
01-60-01-53-4100 Training 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00
01-60-01-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 6,460.00 465.00 894.32 0.00 1,359.32 5,100.68 21.04
01-60-01-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 2,310.00 720.00 3,925.00 0.00 4,645.00 -2,335.00 201.08
01-60-01-53-4400 Medical & Screening 1,550.00 261.00 95.00 0.00 356.00 1,194.00 22.97
01-60-01-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal Notice 1,000.00 32.59 302.03 0.00 334.62 665.38 33.46
01-60-01-53-5350 Dumping Fees 13,000.00 5,803.27 1,260.12 0.00 7,063.39 5,936.61 54.33
01-60-01-53-5400 Damage Claims 25,000.00 386.00 3,835.14 0.00 4,221.14 20,778.86 16.88

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 9



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % ExpCol

01-60-01-53-5450 St Light Electricity 27,500.04 957.68 633.01 0.00 1,590.69 25,909.35 5.78
01-60-05-53-5500 Collection & Disposal 1,067,161.00 177,684.68 88,875.38 0.00 266,560.06 800,600.94 24.98
01-60-05-53-5510 Leaf Disposal 68,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 68,000.00 0.00

Contractual Services 1,677,891.04 230,113.91 172,974.33 229.00 402,859.24 1,275,031.80 24.01

01-60-01-54-0100 Office Supplies 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
01-60-01-54-0200 Gas & Oil 19,551.00 2,652.42 1,005.95 0.00 3,658.37 15,892.63 18.71
01-60-01-54-0310 Uniforms 5,575.00 203.24 174.94 0.00 378.18 5,196.82 6.78
01-60-01-54-0500 Vehicle Parts 10,000.00 0.00 252.07 0.00 252.07 9,747.93 2.52
01-60-01-54-0600 Operating Supplies &

Equipment
45,620.00 8,392.19 4,840.40 0.00 13,232.59 32,387.41 29.01

01-60-01-54-0800 Trees 22,000.00 15,832.00 0.00 0.00 15,832.00 6,168.00 71.96
01-60-01-54-2100 Snow & Ice Control 39,930.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39,930.00 0.00
01-60-05-54-0600 Operating Supplies 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

Materials & Supplies 144,176.00 27,079.85 6,273.36 0.00 33,353.21 110,822.79 23.13

01-60-01-57-5013 Transfer to CERF 115,087.00 28,771.74 9,590.58 0.00 38,362.32 76,724.68 33.33
Other Financing Uses 115,087.00

         
28,771.74

        
9,590.58

       
0.00

   
38,362.32

        
76,724.68

        
33.33

    

60 Public Works 2,754,091.04

           
494,179.39

         
256,961.49

         
5,913.02

       
745,227.86

         
2,008,863.18

           
27.06

    

Expense 15,867,298.04

            
3,735,417.72

           
1,515,594.20

           
40,401.14

        
5,210,610.78

           
10,656,687.26

            
32.84

    

01 General Fund 211,561.04 -631,774.04 1,521,221.58 1,880,286.09 -990,838.55 1,202,399.59 -468.35

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 10



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

02 Water & Sewer
Fund

00
02-00-00-42-2360 Permit Fees 19,350.00 7,000.00 0.00 2,950.00 9,950.00 9,400.00 51.42

Licenses & Permits 19,350.00 7,000.00 0.00 2,950.00 9,950.00 9,400.00 51.42

02-00-00-43-3100 Water Sales 3,296,587.00 699,833.41 123.21 393,061.40 1,092,771.60 2,203,815.40 33.15
02-00-00-43-3150 Sewer Sales 2,161,431.00 460,349.62 15.37 254,254.54 714,588.79 1,446,842.21 33.06
02-00-00-43-3160 Water Penalties 28,588.00 5,251.14 609.69 6,282.13 10,923.58 17,664.42 38.21
02-00-00-43-3515 NSF Fees 200.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 150.00 25.00

Charges for Services 5,486,806.00 1,165,484.17 748.27 653,598.07 1,818,333.97 3,668,472.03 33.14

02-00-00-45-5100 Interest 13,486.00 3,985.27 0.00 4,694.47 8,679.74 4,806.26 64.36
02-00-00-45-5200 Net Change in Fair

Value
0.00 68.13 0.00 70.51 138.64 -138.64 0.00

Interest 13,486.00 4,053.40 0.00 4,764.98 8,818.38 4,667.62 65.39

02-00-00-46-6410 Miscellaneous 5,000.00 300.00 0.00 400.00 700.00 4,300.00 14.00
02-00-00-46-6415 Reimbursement of

Expenses
0.00 8,210.00 0.00 0.00 8,210.00 -8,210.00 0.00

02-00-00-46-6417 IRMA
Reimbursements

2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00

02-00-00-46-6580 Sale of Meters 10,000.00 4,118.00 0.00 2,266.00 6,384.00 3,616.00 63.84
Miscellaneous 17,000.00

        
12,628.00

        
0.00

   
2,666.00

       
15,294.00

        
1,706.00

       
89.96

    

00 5,536,642.00

           
1,189,165.57

           
748.27

     
663,979.05

         
1,852,396.35

           
3,684,245.65

           
33.46

    

Revenue 5,536,642.00 1,189,165.57 748.27 663,979.05 1,852,396.35 3,684,245.65 33.46

60 Public Works
02-60-06-51-0200 Salaries Regular 772,629.00 190,683.29 65,033.54 0.00 255,716.83 516,912.17 33.10
02-60-06-51-1500 Specialists Pay 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 0.00 2,100.00 0.00 100.00
02-60-06-51-1700 Overtime 12,000.00 1,773.92 472.20 0.00 2,246.12 9,753.88 18.72
02-60-06-51-1950 Insurance Refusal

Reimb
338.00 82.50 27.50 0.00 110.00 228.00 32.54

02-60-06-51-3000 Part-Time Salaries 15,200.00 4,776.31 1,410.00 0.00 6,186.31 9,013.69 40.70
Personal Services 802,267.00 199,416.02 66,943.24 0.00 266,359.26 535,907.74 33.20

02-60-06-52-0320 FICA 49,030.00 12,121.99 4,065.30 0.00 16,187.29 32,842.71 33.02
02-60-06-52-0325 Medicare 11,741.00 2,834.89 950.71 0.00 3,785.60 7,955.40 32.24
02-60-06-52-0330 IMRF 87,069.00 21,206.85 7,031.47 0.00 28,238.32 58,830.68 32.43
02-60-06-52-0375 Fringe Benefits 5,150.00 1,243.48 409.16 0.00 1,652.64 3,497.36 32.09
02-60-06-52-0400 Health Insurance 191,393.00 44,365.76 15,944.79 983.41 59,327.14 132,065.86 31.00
02-60-06-52-0420 Health Insurance -

Retirees
3,016.00 782.39 730.00 995.98 516.41 2,499.59 17.12

02-60-06-52-0425 Life Insurance 435.00 114.72 179.28 145.92 148.08 286.92 34.04

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 11



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

02-60-06-52-0430 VEBA Contributions 13,588.00 9,311.36 0.00 0.00 9,311.36 4,276.64 68.53
Benefits 361,422.00 91,981.44 29,310.71 2,125.31 119,166.84 242,255.16 32.97

02-60-06-53-0100 Electricity 38,004.00 5,546.19 3,359.61 0.00 8,905.80 29,098.20 23.43
02-60-06-53-0200 Communications 6,780.00 1,959.82 712.68 0.00 2,672.50 4,107.50 39.42
02-60-06-53-0300 Auditing 9,075.00 969.77 4,565.00 0.00 5,534.77 3,540.23 60.99
02-60-06-53-0380 Consulting Services 8,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,500.00 0.00
02-60-06-53-0410 IT Support 66,270.00 6,619.67 2,450.86 0.00 9,070.53 57,199.47 13.69
02-60-06-53-1300 Inspections 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
02-60-06-53-1310 Julie Participation 2,271.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,271.00 0.00
02-60-06-53-2100 Bank Fees 31,558.00 6,071.37 2,505.20 0.00 8,576.57 22,981.43 27.18
02-60-06-53-2200 Liability Insurance 37,864.00 9,187.95 3,062.65 0.00 12,250.60 25,613.40 32.35
02-60-06-53-2250 IRMA Deductible 9,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,500.00 0.00
02-60-06-53-3050 Water System

Maintenance
146,500.00 6,914.96 3,408.70 0.00 10,323.66 136,176.34 7.05

02-60-06-53-3055 Hydrant Maintenance 24,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00
02-60-06-53-3200 Maintenance of

Vehicles
8,000.00 1,656.13 2,757.76 0.00 4,413.89 3,586.11 55.17

02-60-06-53-3300 Maint of Office
Equipment

1,000.00 226.09 86.79 0.00 312.88 687.12 31.29

02-60-06-53-3600 Maintenance of
Buildings

15,250.00 1,938.22 2,643.19 0.00 4,581.41 10,668.59 30.04

02-60-06-53-3620 Maintenance of
Streets

8,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00

02-60-06-53-3630 Overhead Sewer
Program

59,000.00 8,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 47,000.00 20.34

02-60-06-53-3640 SewerCatch Basin
Repair

50,000.00 30,209.15 129.44 0.00 30,338.59 19,661.41 60.68

02-60-06-53-4100 Training 1,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,150.00 0.00
02-60-06-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 3,185.00 275.00 275.00 0.00 550.00 2,635.00 17.27
02-60-06-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 1,460.00 170.00 0.00 0.00 170.00 1,290.00 11.64
02-60-06-53-4350 Printing 6,309.00 850.19 322.73 0.00 1,172.92 5,136.08 18.59
02-60-06-53-4400 Medical & Screening 700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 700.00 0.00
02-60-06-53-4480 Water Testing 12,490.00 720.00 1,435.00 0.00 2,155.00 10,335.00 17.25
02-60-06-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal

Notice
500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

02-60-06-53-5350 Dumping Fees 20,000.00 4,062.15 1,521.93 0.00 5,584.08 14,415.92 27.92
02-60-06-53-5400 Damage Claims 4,000.00 1,832.20 0.00 0.00 1,832.20 2,167.80 45.81

Contractual
Services

572,366.00 87,208.86 33,236.54 0.00 120,445.40 451,920.60 21.04

02-60-06-54-0100 Office Supplies 500.00 1,764.20 179.00 0.00 1,943.20 -1,443.20 388.64
02-60-06-54-0200 Gas & Oil 12,770.00 3,095.74 1,391.83 0.00 4,487.57 8,282.43 35.14
02-60-06-54-0310 Uniforms 1,475.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,475.00 0.00
02-60-06-54-0500 Vehicle Parts 8,000.00 1,747.98 440.17 0.00 2,188.15 5,811.85 27.35
02-60-06-54-0600 Operating Supplies 26,900.00 6,461.19 3,250.04 0.00 9,711.23 17,188.77 36.10
02-60-06-54-1300 Postage 9,000.00 1,435.66 770.35 0.00 2,206.01 6,793.99 24.51
02-60-06-54-2200 Water from Chicago 1,666,525.00 278,560.65 185,757.51 0.00 464,318.16 1,202,206.84 27.86

Materials &
Supplies

1,725,170.00 293,065.42 191,788.90 0.00 484,854.32 1,240,315.68 28.10

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 12



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

02-60-06-55-0500 Building
Improvements

25,000.00 4,239.12 400.88 0.00 4,640.00 20,360.00 18.56

02-60-06-55-1150 Sewer System
Improvements

175,000.00 0.00 156,590.82 0.00 156,590.82 18,409.18 89.48

02-60-06-55-1300 Water System
Improvements

434,000.00 45,235.94 145,142.88 0.00 190,378.82 243,621.18 43.87

02-60-06-55-1400 Meter Replacement
Program

16,000.00 15,101.72 0.00 0.00 15,101.72 898.28 94.39

02-60-06-55-9100 Street Improvements 70,000.00 50,276.00 0.00 0.00 50,276.00 19,724.00 71.82
Capital Outlay 720,000.00 114,852.78 302,134.58 0.00 416,987.36 303,012.64 57.91

02-60-06-55-0010 Depreciation Expense 355,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 355,000.00 0.00
Depreciation 355,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 355,000.00 0.00

02-60-06-56-0070 Series 08B Principal 170,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 170,000.00 0.00
02-60-06-56-0071 Series 08B Interest 6,970.00 3,485.00 0.00 0.00 3,485.00 3,485.00 50.00
02-60-06-56-0102 Community Bank

Loan Principal
49,813.00 12,357.51 37,465.99 0.00 49,823.50 -10.50 100.02

02-60-06-56-0103 Community Bank
Loan Interest

696.00 269.49 209.89 2.29 477.09 218.91 68.55

02-60-06-56-0104 IEPA Loan Principal 620,893.00 308,740.48 0.00 0.00 308,740.48 312,152.52 49.73
02-60-06-56-0105 IEPA Loan Interest 296,253.00 149,832.42 0.00 0.00 149,832.42 146,420.58 50.58

Debt Service 1,144,625.00 474,684.90 37,675.88 2.29 512,358.49 632,266.51 44.76

02-60-06-57-5013 Transfer to CERF 95,305.00 23,826.24 7,942.08 0.00 31,768.32 63,536.68 33.33
Other Financing
Uses

95,305.00

        
23,826.24

        
7,942.08

       
0.00

   
31,768.32

        
63,536.68

        
33.33

    

60 Public Works 5,776,155.00

           
1,285,035.66

           
669,031.93

         
2,127.60

       
1,951,939.99

           
3,824,215.01

           
33.79

    

Expense 5,776,155.00

           
1,285,035.66

           
669,031.93

         
2,127.60

       
1,951,939.99

           
3,824,215.01

           
33.79

    

02 Water & Sewer
Fund

239,513.00 95,870.09 669,780.20 666,106.65 99,543.64 139,969.36 41.56

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 13



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

03 Motor Fuel Tax
Fund

00
03-00-00-45-5100 Interest 6,937.00 1,933.06 0.00 1,873.09 3,806.15 3,130.85 54.87
03-00-00-45-5200 Net Change in Fair

Value
0.00 144.51 0.00 130.76 275.27 -275.27 0.00

Interest 6,937.00 2,077.57 0.00 2,003.85 4,081.42 2,855.58 58.84

03-00-00-47-7090 State Grants and
Reimbursemnts

116,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 116,000.00 0.00

03-00-00-47-7100 State Allotment 287,679.00 70,699.46 0.00 25,326.18 96,025.64 191,653.36 33.38
Intergovernmental 403,679.00

         
70,699.46

        
0.00

   
25,326.18

        
96,025.64

        
307,653.36

         
23.79

    

00 410,616.00

         
72,777.03

        
0.00

   
27,330.03

        
100,107.06

         
310,508.94

         
24.38

    

Revenue 410,616.00 72,777.03 0.00 27,330.03 100,107.06 310,508.94 24.38

00
03-00-00-53-0390 Engineering Fees 145,000.00 1,607.21 18,760.62 0.00 20,367.83 124,632.17 14.05
03-00-00-53-2100 Bank Fees 60.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60.00 0.00
03-00-00-53-3620 Street Maintenance 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00

Contractual
Services

195,060.00 1,607.21 18,760.62 0.00 20,367.83 174,692.17 10.44

03-00-00-55-9100 Street Improvement 455,000.00 152,231.00 0.00 0.00 152,231.00 302,769.00 33.46
Capital Outlay 455,000.00

         
152,231.00

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
152,231.00

         
302,769.00

         
33.46

    

00 650,060.00

         
153,838.21

         
18,760.62

        
0.00

   
172,598.83

         
477,461.17

         
26.55

    

Expense 650,060.00

         
153,838.21

         
18,760.62

        
0.00

   
172,598.83

         
477,461.17

         
26.55

    

03 Motor Fuel Tax
Fund

239,444.00 81,061.18 18,760.62 27,330.03 72,491.77 166,952.23 30.28

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 14



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

05 Debt Service Fund
00
05-00-00-41-1000 Prior Yrs Taxes 125,173.00 72,626.08 0.00 42,276.49 114,902.57 10,270.43 91.80
05-00-00-41-1021 Property Taxes

Current
136,163.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 136,163.00 0.00

Property Taxes 261,336.00 72,626.08 0.00 42,276.49 114,902.57 146,433.43 43.97

05-00-00-45-5100 Interest 1,711.00 863.74 0.00 610.27 1,474.01 236.99 86.15
Interest 1,711.00

       
863.74

     
0.00

   
610.27

     
1,474.01

       
236.99

     
86.15

    

00 263,047.00

         
73,489.82

        
0.00

   
42,886.76

        
116,376.58

         
146,670.42

         
44.24

    

Revenue 263,047.00 73,489.82 0.00 42,886.76 116,376.58 146,670.42 44.24

00
05-00-00-53-2100 Bank Fees 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00

Contractual
Services

1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00

05-00-00-56-0033 2018 GO Bond
Principal

246,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 246,000.00 0.00

05-00-00-56-0034 2018 GO Bond
Interest

7,584.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,584.00 0.00

Debt Service 253,584.00

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
253,584.00

         
0.00

   

00 255,084.00

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
255,084.00

         
0.00

   

Expense 255,084.00

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
255,084.00

         
0.00

   

05 Debt Service Fund -7,963.00 -73,489.82 0.00 42,886.76 -116,376.58 108,413.58 1,461.47

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 15



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

09 Police Pension Fund
00
09-00-00-45-5100 Interest 461,605.00 106,043.91 0.00 0.00 106,043.91 355,561.09 22.97
09-00-00-45-5200 Net Change in Fair

Value
1,085,918.00 467,946.90 0.00 0.00 467,946.90 617,971.10 43.09

Interest 1,547,523.00 573,990.81 0.00 0.00 573,990.81 973,532.19 37.09

09-00-00-41-1100 Employer
Contribution

1,483,000.00 459,849.47 0.00 228,304.62 688,154.09 794,845.91 46.40

09-00-00-46-7350 Employee
Contribution

284,418.00 66,443.53 0.00 20,799.71 87,243.24 197,174.76 30.67

Grants &
Contributions

1,767,418.00

           
526,293.00

         
0.00

   
249,104.33

         
775,397.33

         
992,020.67

         
43.87

    

00 3,314,941.00

           
1,100,283.81

           
0.00

   
249,104.33

         
1,349,388.14

           
1,965,552.86

           
40.71

    

Revenue 3,314,941.00 1,100,283.81 0.00 249,104.33 1,349,388.14 1,965,552.86 40.71

00
09-00-00-52-6100 Pensions 2,275,501.00 554,124.99 0.00 0.00 554,124.99 1,721,376.01 24.35
09-00-00-52-6150 Pension Refund 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00

Benefits 2,325,501.00 554,124.99 0.00 0.00 554,124.99 1,771,376.01 23.83

09-00-00-53-0300 Audit Services 2,118.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,118.00 0.00
09-00-00-53-0350 Actuarial Services 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
09-00-00-53-0360 Payroll Services 27,130.00 2,365.00 0.00 0.00 2,365.00 24,765.00 8.72
09-00-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 35,300.00 11,446.10 0.00 0.00 11,446.10 23,853.90 32.43
09-00-00-53-0420 Legal Services 18,000.00 13,425.49 0.00 0.00 13,425.49 4,574.51 74.59
09-00-00-53-2100 Bank Fees 8,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,600.00 0.00
09-00-00-53-4100 Training 4,000.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 3,250.00 18.75
09-00-00-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 3,000.00 367.58 0.00 0.00 367.58 2,632.42 12.25
09-00-00-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 815.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 815.00 0.00
09-00-00-53-4400 Medical & Screening 5,000.00 1,800.00 0.00 0.00 1,800.00 3,200.00 36.00
09-00-00-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal

Notice
100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00

09-00-00-54-3100 Misc Expenditures 13,550.00 4,449.43 0.00 0.00 4,449.43 9,100.57 32.84
Contractual
Services

120,613.00

         
34,603.60

        
0.00

   
0.00

   
34,603.60

        
86,009.40

        
28.69

    

00 2,446,114.00

           
588,728.59

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
588,728.59

         
1,857,385.41

           
24.07

    

Expense 2,446,114.00

           
588,728.59

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
588,728.59

         
1,857,385.41

           
24.07

    

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 16



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

09 Police Pension Fund -868,827.00 -511,555.22 0.00 249,104.33 -760,659.55 -108,167.45 87.55

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 17



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

10 Fire Pension Fund
00
10-00-00-45-5100 InterestDividends 407,493.00 81,818.75 0.00 0.00 81,818.75 325,674.25 20.08
10-00-00-45-5200 Net Change in Fair

Value
616,199.00 292,018.14 0.00 0.00 292,018.14 324,180.86 47.39

Interest 1,023,692.00 373,836.89 0.00 0.00 373,836.89 649,855.11 36.52

10-00-00-41-1100 Employer
Contribution

1,324,000.00 375,505.67 0.00 186,370.18 561,875.85 762,124.15 42.44

10-00-00-46-7350 Employee
Contribution

193,520.00 43,588.05 0.00 14,629.06 58,217.11 135,302.89 30.08

Grants &
Contributions

1,517,520.00

           
419,093.72

         
0.00

   
200,999.24

         
620,092.96

         
897,427.04

         
40.86

    

00 2,541,212.00

           
792,930.61

         
0.00

   
200,999.24

         
993,929.85

         
1,547,282.15

           
39.11

    

Revenue 2,541,212.00 792,930.61 0.00 200,999.24 993,929.85 1,547,282.15 39.11

00
10-00-00-52-6100 Pensions 1,862,337.00 444,846.36 0.00 0.00 444,846.36 1,417,490.64 23.89

Benefits 1,862,337.00 444,846.36 0.00 0.00 444,846.36 1,417,490.64 23.89

10-00-00-53-0300 Audit Services 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00
10-00-00-53-0350 Actuarial Services 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00
10-00-00-53-0360 Payroll Services 14,010.00 2,760.00 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 11,250.00 19.70
10-00-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 36,500.00 3,138.62 0.00 0.00 3,138.62 33,361.38 8.60
10-00-00-53-0420 Legal Services 10,000.00 2,395.00 0.00 0.00 2,395.00 7,605.00 23.95
10-00-00-53-2100 Bank Fees 4,200.00 1,762.66 0.00 0.00 1,762.66 2,437.34 41.97
10-00-00-53-4100 Training 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
10-00-00-53-4250 Travel & Meeting 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
10-00-00-53-4300 Dues & Subscriptions 825.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 825.00 0.00
10-00-00-53-4400 Medical & Screening 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
10-00-00-54-1300 Postage 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
10-00-00-54-3100 Misc Expenditures 9,010.00 2,946.05 0.00 0.00 2,946.05 6,063.95 32.70

Contractual
Services

86,645.00

        
13,002.33

        
0.00

   
0.00

   
13,002.33

        
73,642.67

        
15.01

    

00 1,948,982.00

           
457,848.69

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
457,848.69

         
1,491,133.31

           
23.49

    

Expense 1,948,982.00

           
457,848.69

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
457,848.69

         
1,491,133.31

           
23.49

    

10 Fire Pension Fund -592,230.00 -335,081.92 0.00 200,999.24 -536,081.16 -56,148.84 90.52

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 18



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

13 Capital Equip
Replacement Fund

00
13-00-00-45-5100 Interest 47,673.00 11,435.57 0.00 6,223.59 17,659.16 30,013.84 37.04
13-00-00-45-5200 Net Change in Fair

Value
0.00 1,840.55 0.00 1,271.47 3,112.02 -3,112.02 0.00

Interest 47,673.00 13,276.12 0.00 7,495.06 20,771.18 26,901.82 43.57

13-00-00-46-6410 Miscellaneous 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 100.00
Miscellaneous 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 100.00

13-00-00-47-7001 From General Fund 424,171.00 106,042.74 0.00 35,347.58 141,390.32 282,780.68 33.33
13-00-00-47-7002 Transfer from Water

and Sewer
95,305.00 23,826.24 0.00 7,942.08 31,768.32 63,536.68 33.33

13-00-00-48-8000 Sale of Property 50,000.00 2,235.85 0.00 0.00 2,235.85 47,764.15 4.47
Other Financing
Sources

569,476.00

         
132,104.83

         
0.00

   
43,289.66

        
175,394.49

         
394,081.51

         
30.80

    

00 622,149.00

         
150,380.95

         
0.00

   
50,784.72

        
201,165.67

         
420,983.33

         
32.33

    

Revenue 622,149.00 150,380.95 0.00 50,784.72 201,165.67 420,983.33 32.33

00
13-00-00-53-2100 Bank Fees 100.00 50.00 25.00 0.00 75.00 25.00 75.00

Contractual
Services

100.00 50.00 25.00 0.00 75.00 25.00 75.00

13-00-00-55-8700 Police Vehicles 85,983.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 85,983.00 0.00
13-00-00-55-8720 Police Equipment 25,605.00 5,341.98 13,495.87 0.00 18,837.85 6,767.15 73.57
13-00-00-55-8800 Fire Dept Vehicle 26,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,000.00 0.00
13-00-00-55-8850 Fire Dept Equipment 106,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106,000.00 0.00
13-00-00-55-8910 PW Vehicles 445,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 445,000.00 0.00
13-00-00-55-8925 PW Equipment 90,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00 0.00

Capital Outlay 778,588.00

         
5,341.98

       
13,495.87

        
0.00

   
18,837.85

        
759,750.15

         
2.42

   

00 778,688.00

         
5,391.98

       
13,520.87

        
0.00

   
18,912.85

        
759,775.15

         
2.43

   

Expense 778,688.00

         
5,391.98

       
13,520.87

        
0.00

   
18,912.85

        
759,775.15

         
2.43

   

13 Capital Equip
Replacement Fund

156,539.00 -144,988.97 13,520.87 50,784.72 -182,252.82 338,791.82 -116.43

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 19



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

14 Capital
Improvement Fund

00
14-00-00-43-3200 Metra Daily Parking

Fees
10,654.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,654.00 0.00

14-00-00-43-3220 Parking Lot Permit
Fees

24,846.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,846.00 0.00

Charges for Services 35,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,500.00 0.00

14-00-00-44-4240 Automated Traffic
Enf Fines

809,343.00 255,108.10 379.12 56,224.41 310,953.39 498,389.61 38.42

Fines & Forfeits 809,343.00 255,108.10 379.12 56,224.41 310,953.39 498,389.61 38.42

14-00-00-45-5100 Interest 22,640.00 6,295.83 0.00 1,569.54 7,865.37 14,774.63 34.74
14-00-00-45-5200 Net Change in Fair

Value
0.00 664.65 0.00 195.49 860.14 -860.14 0.00

Interest 22,640.00

        
6,960.48

       
0.00

   
1,765.03

       
8,725.51

       
13,914.49

        
38.54

    

00 867,483.00

         
262,068.58

         
379.12

     
57,989.44

        
319,678.90

         
547,804.10

         
36.85

    

Revenue 867,483.00 262,068.58 379.12 57,989.44 319,678.90 547,804.10 36.85

00
14-00-00-53-4290 License Fees 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 100.00

Contractual
Services

12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 100.00

14-00-00-55-0500 Building
Improvements

210,740.00 94,415.37 96,856.47 0.00 191,271.84 19,468.16 90.76

14-00-00-55-1205 Streetscape
Improvements

146,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 146,000.00 0.00

14-00-00-55-1250 Alley Improvements 950,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 950,000.00 0.00
14-00-00-55-8620 Information

Technology Equipme
258,660.00 4,924.95 2,465.21 0.00 7,390.16 251,269.84 2.86

14-00-00-55-9100 Street Improvements 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00
Capital Outlay 1,585,400.00

           
99,340.32

        
99,321.68

        
0.00

   
198,662.00

         
1,386,738.00

           
12.53

    

00 1,597,400.00

           
111,340.32

         
99,321.68

        
0.00

   
210,662.00

         
1,386,738.00

           
13.19

    

Expense 1,597,400.00

           
111,340.32

         
99,321.68

        
0.00

   
210,662.00

         
1,386,738.00

           
13.19

    

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 20



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

14 Capital
Improvement Fund

729,917.00 -150,728.26 99,700.80 57,989.44 -109,016.90 838,933.90 -14.94

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 21



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

16 Economic
Development Fund

00
16-00-00-45-5100 Interest 540.00 785.97 0.00 297.09 1,083.06 -543.06 200.57

Interest 540.00 785.97 0.00 297.09 1,083.06 -543.06 200.57

16-00-00-43-4025 Reimbursements
from Villages

2,959.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,959.00 0.00

Intergovernmental 2,959.00

       
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
2,959.00

       
0.00

   

00 3,499.00

       
785.97

     
0.00

   
297.09

     
1,083.06

       
2,415.94

       
30.95

    

Revenue 3,499.00 785.97 0.00 297.09 1,083.06 2,415.94 30.95

00
16-00-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 18,445.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,445.00 0.00
16-00-00-53-0420 Legal Services 25,000.00 307.50 695.30 0.00 1,002.80 23,997.20 4.01

Contractual
Services

43,445.00 307.50 695.30 0.00 1,002.80 42,442.20 2.31

16-00-00-55-4300 Other Improvements 142,196.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 142,196.00 0.00
Capital Outlay 142,196.00

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
142,196.00

         
0.00

   

00 185,641.00

         
307.50

     
695.30

     
0.00

   
1,002.80

       
184,638.20

         
0.54

   

Expense 185,641.00

         
307.50

     
695.30

     
0.00

   
1,002.80

       
184,638.20

         
0.54

   

16 Economic
Development Fund

182,142.00 -478.47 695.30 297.09 -80.26 182,222.26 -0.04

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 22



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

31 TIF-Madison Street
00
31-00-00-41-1000 Property Taxes-Prior

Years
119,037.00 18,503.95 0.00 37,582.69 56,086.64 62,950.36 47.12

Property Taxes 119,037.00 18,503.95 0.00 37,582.69 56,086.64 62,950.36 47.12

31-00-00-45-5100 Interest 0.00 194.39 0.00 103.74 298.13 -298.13 0.00
Interest 0.00

   
194.39

     
0.00

   
103.74

     
298.13

     
-298.13

      
0.00

   

00 119,037.00

         
18,698.34

        
0.00

   
37,686.43

        
56,384.77

        
62,652.23

        
47.37

    

Revenue 119,037.00 18,698.34 0.00 37,686.43 56,384.77 62,652.23 47.37

00
31-00-00-53-0100 Electricity & Natural

Gas
0.00 50.00 39.29 0.00 89.29 -89.29 0.00

31-00-00-53-0300 Audit Services 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
31-00-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 22,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22,500.00 0.00
31-00-00-53-0425 Village Attorney 20,000.00 287.00 1,044.62 0.00 1,331.62 18,668.38 6.66
31-00-00-53-0440 Property Taxes 0.00 6,257.64 0.00 0.00 6,257.64 -6,257.64 0.00
31-00-00-53-4350 Printing 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00
31-00-00-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal

Notice
2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00

Contractual
Services

48,500.00 6,594.64 1,083.91 0.00 7,678.55 40,821.45 15.83

31-00-00-55-0700 Property Purchase 0.00 -2.00 0.00 0.00 -2.00 2.00 0.00
Capital Outlay 0.00 -2.00 0.00 0.00 -2.00 2.00 0.00

31-00-00-56-0081 Interest on Interfund
Loan

26,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,000.00 0.00

Debt Service 26,000.00

        
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
0.00

   
26,000.00

        
0.00

   

00 74,500.00

        
6,592.64

       
1,083.91

       
0.00

   
7,676.55

       
66,823.45

        
10.30

    

Expense 74,500.00

        
6,592.64

       
1,083.91

       
0.00

   
7,676.55

       
66,823.45

        
10.30

    

31 TIF-Madison Street -44,537.00 -12,105.70 1,083.91 37,686.43 -48,708.22 4,171.22 109.37

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 23



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

32 Tif - North Avenue
00
32-00-00-45-5100 Interest 0.00 118.71 0.00 70.02 188.73 -188.73 0.00

Interest 0.00 118.71 0.00 70.02 188.73 -188.73 0.00

32-00-00-47-7001 Transfer from
General Fund

50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 100.00

Other Financing
Sources

50,000.00

        
50,000.00

        
0.00

   
0.00

   
50,000.00

        
0.00

   
100.00

     

00 50,000.00

        
50,118.71

        
0.00

   
70.02

    
50,188.73

        
-188.73

      
100.38

     

Revenue 50,000.00 50,118.71 0.00 70.02 50,188.73 -188.73 100.38

00
32-00-00-53-0380 Consulting Services 20,000.00 2,975.00 700.00 0.00 3,675.00 16,325.00 18.38
32-00-00-53-0425 Village Attorney 25,000.00 4,152.70 4,706.04 0.00 8,858.74 16,141.26 35.43
32-00-00-53-4350 Printing 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00
32-00-00-53-5300 AdvertisingLegal 2,500.00 2,068.00 0.00 0.00 2,068.00 432.00 82.72

Contractual
Services

50,000.00

        
9,195.70

       
5,406.04

       
0.00

   
14,601.74

        
35,398.26

        
29.20

    

00 50,000.00

        
9,195.70

       
5,406.04

       
0.00

   
14,601.74

        
35,398.26

        
29.20

    

Expense 50,000.00

        
9,195.70

       
5,406.04

       
0.00

   
14,601.74

        
35,398.26

        
29.20

    

32 Tif - North Avenue 0.00 -40,923.01 5,406.04 70.02 -35,586.99 35,586.99 0.00

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 24



Account Number Description Budget Beg Bal Debits Credits End Bal Remaining % Exp/Col

35 Infrastructure Imp
Bond Fund

00
35-00-00-45-5100 Interest 2,500.00 1,921.82 0.00 501.51 2,423.33 76.67 96.93

Interest 2,500.00

       
1,921.82

       
0.00

   
501.51

     
2,423.33

       
76.67

    
96.93

    

00 2,500.00

       
1,921.82

       
0.00

   
501.51

     
2,423.33

       
76.67

    
96.93

    

Revenue 2,500.00 1,921.82 0.00 501.51 2,423.33 76.67 96.93

00
35-00-00-55-9100 Street Improvements 250,000.00 161,499.61 0.00 0.00 161,499.61 88,500.39 64.60

Capital Outlay 250,000.00

         
161,499.61

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
161,499.61

         
88,500.39

        
64.60

    

00 250,000.00

         
161,499.61

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
161,499.61

         
88,500.39

        
64.60

    

Expense 250,000.00

         
161,499.61

         
0.00

   
0.00

   
161,499.61

         
88,500.39

        
64.60

    

35 Infrastructure Imp
Bond Fund

247,500.00 159,577.79 0.00 501.51 159,076.28 88,423.72 64.27

GL - Village of River Forest (09/12/2018 - 08:55 AM) Page 25



                              Through 08/31/2018
                              Fiscal Year 2019 Village of River Forest Investments

Market ValuePar ValueCostMaturity DatePurchase DateInterest RateBankIDFun

2016-10 Discover Bank 01.650% 9/30/2015 10/1/2018 $247,690.03 $247,000.00 $246,972.3401

2018-02 MB Financial 01.340% 7/5/2017 10/5/2018 $210,273.31 $210,273.31 $213,105.1501

2016-21 Pacific Western Bank 01.061% 8/22/2016 10/31/2018 $244,200.00 $244,200.00 $244,200.0001

2016-12 FFCB 01.340% 12/7/2015 11/30/2018 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $99,772.6001

2018-07 American Express Bank 01.610% 9/6/2017 12/6/2018 $247,969.44 $248,000.00 $247,779.5301

2016-11 American Express Centurion 01.650% 12/9/2015 12/10/2018 $247,690.03 $247,000.00 $246,791.7801

2017-08 Keybank 01.400% 4/12/2017 4/12/2019 $248,487.44 $248,000.00 $247,109.6801

2018-15 MB Financial Bank 02.270% 6/29/2018 6/29/2019 $203,403.89 $203,403.89 $203,416.5401

2017-12 Ally Bank 01.650% 6/29/2017 7/1/2019 $247,000.00 $247,000.00 $245,755.8601

2018-18 MB Financial 02.270% 7/3/2018 7/4/2019 $508,489.94 $508,489.94 $508,489.9401

2018-05 Private Bank 01.675% 8/21/2017 8/21/2019 $241,600.00 $241,600.00 $241,600.0001

2018-13 Morgan Stanley Private Bank 02.200% 3/15/2018 9/16/2019 $247,109.27 $247,000.00 $246,398.8001

2018-19 Servisfirst Bank 02.413% 8/16/2018 10/15/2019 $243,000.00 $243,000.00 $243,000.0001

2017-05 Wells Fargo 01.750% 3/1/2017 3/2/2020 $249,364.25 $249,000.00 $246,010.7601

2017-06 Capital One Bank 01.800% 3/8/2017 3/9/2020 $247,000.00 $247,000.00 $243,985.6101

2018-14 Bank of China 02.335% 3/7/2018 3/23/2020 $238,100.00 $238,100.00 $238,100.0001

2017-09 FHLMC 01.500% 4/4/2017 2/17/2021 $330,165.00 $330,000.00 $328,544.7001

$4,291,033.29

2017-03 Enerbank 01.700% 1/31/2017 12/18/2018 $150,456.56 $149,400.00 $149,289.8902

Page 1



                              Through 08/31/2018
                              Fiscal Year 2019 Village of River Forest Investments

Market ValuePar ValueCostMaturity DatePurchase DateInterest RateBankIDFun

2018-17 Mainstreet Bank 02.525% 7/18/2018 7/18/2019 $243,800.00 $243,800.00 $243,800.0002

$393,089.89

2018-08 Washington Trust Company 01.510% 9/8/2017 3/8/2019 $151,200.27 $151,000.00 $150,666.7403

$150,666.74

2018-03 MB Financial 01.340% 7/5/2017 10/5/2018 $210,273.30 $210,273.30 $213,105.1613

2016-24 Community State Bank 01.260% 10/31/2016 10/31/2018 $245,000.00 $245,000.00 $245,000.0013

2016-25 CIT Bank/One West Bank 01.250% 10/31/2016 10/31/2018 $244,400.00 $244,400.00 $244,400.0013

2016-13 FFCB 01.340% 12/7/2015 11/30/2018 $230,000.00 $230,000.00 $229,476.9813

2014-34 Enerbank USA 01.700% 12/18/2014 12/18/2018 $99,792.77 $99,600.00 $99,526.6013

2016-27 FHLB 3130AAE46 01.250% 12/23/2016 1/16/2019 $199,900.00 $200,000.00 $199,266.0013

2017-07 FHLMC 3134GA6H2 01.375% 3/30/2017 2/28/2019 $599,934.00 $600,000.00 $597,312.0013

2018-11 Stearns Bank 01.350% 11/1/2017 5/3/2019 $248,021.68 $249,000.00 $247,708.9413

2018-16 First Internet Bank of Indiana 02.486% 7/18/2018 7/18/2019 $243,900.00 $243,900.00 $243,900.0013

2018-09 Capital One Natl Assoc 01.750% 11/8/2017 11/8/2019 $247,000.00 $247,000.00 $244,855.0513

2018-10 Morgan Stanley Bank 01.750% 11/9/2017 11/12/2019 $247,000.00 $247,000.00 $244,823.1913

2007-01 GNMA #781459 06.000% 8/15/2007 6/15/2032 $0.00 $0.00 $0.0013

2007-02 FHLMC #8016 06.000% 8/23/2007 10/1/2034 $0.00 $0.00 $0.0013

$2,809,373.92

2018-12 First National Bank 01.332% 11/1/2017 10/1/2018 $240,300.00 $240,300.00 $240,300.0014

Page 2



                              Through 08/31/2018
                              Fiscal Year 2019 Village of River Forest Investments

Market ValuePar ValueCostMaturity DatePurchase DateInterest RateBankIDFun

2016-14 FFCB 01.340% 12/7/2015 11/30/2018 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $99,772.6014

2016-28 FHLB 3130AAE46 01.250% 12/23/2016 1/16/2019 $199,900.00 $200,000.00 $199,266.0014

2018-04 Farmers & Merchants Union Bk 01.493% 8/14/2017 2/5/2019 $244,500.00 $244,500.00 $244,500.0014

$783,838.60

$8,428,002.44

Page 3



                   MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Date:  September 12, 2018 
 
To:   Eric Palm, Village Administrator 
 
From:   Joan Rock, Director of Finance 
 
Subject:  Expenditures – August 2018 
 

 
Attached for your review and approval is a list of payments made to vendors by account number for the 
period from August 1 - 31, 2018.  The total payments made for the period, including payrolls, are as 
follows:  

 

   
 
Requested Board Actions:   

1. Motion to Approve the August 2018 Accounts Payable and Payroll transactions totaling 
$1,834,151.93. 

2. Motion to Approve the August 2018 Accounts Payable transactions for the Economic Development 
Fund (16) totaling $695.30, the TIF-Madison Street Fund (31) totaling $1,083.91 and for the TIF-
North Avenue Fund (32) totaling $5,406.04. 

EXPENDITURES
MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2018

FUND FUND # VENDORS PAYROLLS TOTAL

General Fund 01 514,079.81      535,476.01$  1,049,555.82    

Water & Sewer Fund 02 575,563.39      77,075.43     652,638.82      

Motor Fuel Tax 03 18,760.62        -               18,760.62        

Debt Service 05 -                  -               -                  

Capital Equip Replacement 13 13,495.87        -               13,495.87        

Capital Improvement Fund 14 99,700.80        -               99,700.80        

Economic Development Fund 16 695.30             -               695.30             

TIF-Madison 31 1,083.91          -               1,083.91          

TIF-North 32 5,406.04          -               5,406.04          

Infrastructure Imp Fund 35 -                  -               -                  

  Total Village Expenditures 1,228,785.74$  612,551.44$  1,841,337.18$  

VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST



User:

Printed: 09/12/2018 -  8:55AM

jrock

Transactions by Account

Batch: 00000.00.0000

Accounts Payable

Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-00-00-13-0009  BKD LLP FY 2018 AUDIT FINAL  47781  2,117.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  2,117.50

01-00-00-13-0010  BKD LLP FY 2018 AUDIT FINAL  47781  2,117.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  2,117.50

01-00-00-17-0010  Bell Fuels Inc PURCHASE OF GASOLINE & DIESEL FUEL  47710  10,423.1508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  10,423.15

01-00-00-17-0025 Roy Strom Refuse Removal Inc RF STICKER SALES & REFUSE REMOVAL PER CONTRACT  0  2,950.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  2,950.00

01-00-00-21-0026  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN-DUE TO IPBC  169  31.5308/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  31.53

01-00-00-21-0043  Genesis Employee Benefits Inc PR Batch 00015.08.2018 VEBA Contribution  999953  3,161.8008/15/2018

01-00-00-21-0043  Genesis Employee Benefits Inc PR Batch 00031.08.2018 VEBA Contribution  999951  3,167.3808/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 1

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-13-0009
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BKD
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a5550ad2-b766-4fa2-9820-4b1d940cbacc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-13-0010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BKD
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=1f24db6f-780d-4075-8012-73fa97c22f11
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-17-0010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BELLFUEL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=569ca443-9cf5-490b-b71e-d05c21b074e8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-17-0025
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=STROM
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f2c6992f-9f3d-4f99-ada4-5b9be2ae0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0026
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d971dd80-301a-46cd-9ce4-79d716c7f7b0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0043
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=genesis
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=063ef0df-9abb-43a3-89a3-a09df4b47dd8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0043
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=genesis
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5103616d-60f1-42cd-ad48-c1abf867424c


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  6,329.18

01-00-00-21-0050  Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor CouncilPR Batch 00031.08.2018 Police Union Dues  5893  1,075.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,075.00

01-00-00-21-0050  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  1,256.1808/01/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  18.0308/01/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  5,390.2408/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  6,664.45

01-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00015.08.2018 Public Works Union Admin Dues  5894  258.3208/15/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00031.08.2018 Public Works Union Admin Dues  5894  265.6108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  523.93

01-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00015.08.2018 Public Works Union Member Dues  5895  50.8208/15/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00031.08.2018 Public Works Union Member Dues  5895  52.2808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  103.10

01-00-00-21-0050  NCPERS Group Life Ins PR Batch 00015.08.2018 Supplemental Life Insurance  5896  54.4008/15/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  NCPERS Group Life Ins PR Batch 00031.08.2018 Supplemental Life Insurance  5896  54.4008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  108.80

01-00-00-21-0050  State Disbursement Unit PR Batch 00015.08.2018 Doran-1703100/2013D0250068  999954  531.4008/15/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  State Disbursement Unit PR Batch 00015.08.2018 Nolan-17111 16DV450/McHenry Co  999954  1,200.0008/15/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  State Disbursement Unit PR Batch 00031.08.2018 Nolan-17111 16DV450/McHenry Co  999952  1,200.0008/31/2018

01-00-00-21-0050  State Disbursement Unit PR Batch 00031.08.2018 Doran-1703100/2013D0250068  999952  434.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  3,365.90

01-00-00-23-0060  River Forest Public Library LIBRARY PPRT  47749  209.2108/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 2

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ILFOP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0bfbd5bc-ebbf-4005-88f7-7d5ec0a15fac
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=838f35bd-d4e0-40e2-9800-731586792bc8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=24caec15-4524-4316-a90e-64308c2d5db3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f051bd20-bfc1-4eb2-8bd7-308623edb5d7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150Ad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=98886da1-25a4-40a9-9710-90d86a9d108b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150Ad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=86ae9175-4a14-40e7-9b8d-ca23eea7b8d4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150ME
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=11d3f184-f260-44de-a309-385ae49a8927
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150ME
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5616d3fd-729c-47af-b0f6-7205581d51bd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NCPERS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=aee46ea5-3383-4cc1-82df-ee89b5a3a88e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NCPERS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=36cd32a3-a884-48b5-8f69-42a9353ad2f6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=stdisbur
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=45e1149f-59aa-4314-8c11-030e8d289d11
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=stdisbur
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6cb1860b-f4c7-41ee-a49e-90695fd3c1eb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=stdisbur
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6ac15755-c41a-473c-a3ae-c4fb1fe87d65
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=stdisbur
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=dfbabe2d-630e-4b99-bc65-059389785cd2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-23-0060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=RFLib
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=72e5bd43-5c64-4cb3-a169-53ad036534ee


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  209.21

01-00-00-25-0021 Dan Bartelson REFUND DUMPSTER DEPOSIT  47708  350.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  350.00

01-00-00-25-0021 Irmtraut Gangl REFUND POD DEPOSIT  47729  350.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  350.00

01-00-00-25-0021  Outdoor Upgrades Inc REFUND APRON DEPOSIT  47832  150.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  150.00

01-00-00-25-0054  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd CHICAGO & HARLEM DEVELOPMENT  0  61.5008/31/2018

01-00-00-25-0054  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd CHICAGO & HARLEM DEVELOPMENT  0  328.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  389.50

01-00-00-25-0054  Roberta Signs PUBLIC HEARING SIGNS: CHGO & HARLEM PLANNED DEV  47838  792.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  792.00

01-00-00-25-0054  Wednesday Journal Inc PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE: CHGO & HARLEM PLANNED DEV  47860  168.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  168.00

01-00-00-25-0059  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd DRB/LAKE ST & LATHROP AVE REDEVELOPMENT  0  1,127.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,127.50

01-00-00-25-5216  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd DRB/CONCORDIA UNIVERSITY  0  1,623.9008/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 3

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0021
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BARTELSO
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f5b02ccc-34a0-49ad-a75c-f7e497f994ab
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0021
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GANGL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cc99c361-e4a1-4cd1-8737-736a9c115b36
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0021
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OUTDOOR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2f0b2981-6b0b-4e56-a260-903ef13ef6df
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0054
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e7db96e0-7670-43ad-9019-0bcfea20930e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0054
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d57c2693-3d8d-4707-ab18-7894a67b210c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0054
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ROBERTA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bcc97b53-c480-4a6c-9552-e2920def06f4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0054
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WEDNES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6f60b219-3662-4fed-9c01-588b5a05b6f1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-0059
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=01440c31-1a96-4c7f-8eea-b835a86a519f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-25-5216
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=65c9c9b5-0300-4bd2-85d6-5200985a3b3d


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,623.90

01-00-00-42-2120 Joseph Claps REFUND OVERPAYMENT OF VEHICLE STICKER  47716  45.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  45.00

01-00-00-42-2120 Gary Frantzen REFUND OVERPAYMENT OF VEHICLE STICKER  47727  10.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  10.00

01-00-00-42-2120 Margaret Green REFUND OVERPAYMENT OF VEHICLE STICKER  47806  5.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  5.00

01-00-00-42-2120 Kasey McNair REFUND OVERPAYMENT OF VEHICLE STICKERS  47823  30.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  30.00

01-00-00-42-2120 Rita Schelstraete REFUND DUPLICATE PAYMENT OF VEHICLE STICKER  47753  25.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  25.00

01-00-00-42-2368  Genesis Marketing REFUND SOLICITOR APP FEE/PERMIT DENIED  47730  25.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  25.00

01-00-00-43-3550  Paramedic Billing Services Inc PBS FEE/JUL 2018  47747  792.5608/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  792.56

01-00-00-44-4230 Matthew David REFUND DUPLICATE PAYMENT OF PARKING TICKET  47794  30.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  30.00

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 4

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-42-2120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CLAPS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3bb37a1d-1b2c-427a-a355-1f65f717e6a8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-42-2120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FRANTZEN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a985f03b-4de7-4312-8810-8a25cac37364
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-42-2120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GREENMAR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7348049c-090b-4ae2-8f09-f8e5a81af679
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-42-2120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MCNAIR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3550ba29-6bf6-40ef-80e5-1c2d64c622df
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-42-2120
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHELSTR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e35c1c5b-ebcd-4765-8008-4634adca307b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-42-2368
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GENESISM
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d4a2b437-bfbf-4ecb-8f75-d2374d71e010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-43-3550
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=pbs
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e743cec5-2418-4ff1-9913-08fdf1106ad6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-44-4230
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DAVIDM
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=06559ae8-4a62-4d2a-bbd1-331ffd30e4eb


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-00-00-44-4230 Edward MacFadyen REFUND DUPLICATE PAYMENT OF PARKING TICKET  47820  30.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  30.00

01-00-00-44-4230  Municipal Collection Services Inc PARKING TICKET COLLECTIONS/JUL 2018  0  558.5108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  558.51

01-00-00-44-4230 Robert Sarvis REFUND DUPLICATE PAYMENT OF PARKING TICKET  47751  30.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  30.00

01-00-00-44-4230 Timothy Sheahan REFUND OVERPAYMENT OF PARKING TICKET  47842  20.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  20.00

01-00-00-44-4300  Municipal Collection Services Inc LOCAL ORDINANCE COLLECTIONS/JUL 2018  0  11.7608/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  11.76

01-10-00-52-0400  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  4,895.4008/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  4,895.40

01-10-00-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  5.7008/01/2018

01-10-00-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  724.3308/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  730.03

01-10-00-52-0425  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  80.7508/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  80.75

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 5

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-44-4230
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MACFAD
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=35483e20-43da-45d1-9139-abb7c66089ec
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-44-4230
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MUNICOL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=61b4886c-263c-4234-b62a-9298d18c4679
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-44-4230
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SARVIS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=dca1449e-4ca5-468e-ab9f-c3a8a6f22c66
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-44-4230
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SHEAHAN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=64928c18-4a2d-4d5d-9d82-126aa85ae8ec
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-00-00-44-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MUNICOL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=34a098ec-0c1e-4902-9118-7f5038f360b6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f68fc7f6-055c-4ee9-9219-1eb91c6ed577
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5cc99496-7484-4fd0-a649-17f0929e8d01
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ed772081-1fc0-471a-bb56-edc73c8e56c0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-52-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=eed1e1e5-821a-4d5a-8018-cc4280f4770c


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-10-00-53-0200  AT&T MONTHLY ELEVATOR CHARGE  47707  296.7908/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  296.79

01-10-00-53-0200  AT&T HIGH SPEED INTERNET  47775  65.4608/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  65.46

01-10-00-53-0200  CALL ONE MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  47768  2,242.2108/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  2,242.21

01-10-00-53-0200  Verizon Financial Services LLC DATA SERVICE FOR TABLETS & MESSAGE BOARD  0  77.9108/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  77.91

01-10-00-53-0300  BKD LLP FY 2018 AUDIT FINAL  47781  8,400.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  8,400.00

01-10-00-53-0380  Ehlers & Associates Inc LAKE & PARK CONSULTING SERVICES  47798  600.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  600.00

01-10-00-53-0380  Houseal Lavigne Associates PLANNED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  47810  619.2408/31/2018

01-10-00-53-0380  Houseal Lavigne Associates PLANNED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  47810  1,711.2508/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  2,330.49

01-10-00-53-0380  KLOA Inc SAFE WALKING ROUTES TO SCHOOL - INVOICE #5  47742  3,202.5008/15/2018

01-10-00-53-0380  KLOA Inc SAFE WALKING ROUTES TO SCHOOL - INVOICE #7  47742  1,251.0808/15/2018

01-10-00-53-0380  KLOA Inc SAFE WALKING ROUTES TO SCHOOL - INVOICE #6  47742  3,012.5008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  7,466.08

01-10-00-53-0380  Lauterbach & Amen LLP PENSION FUNDING STUDY  0  1,750.0008/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 6

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=att
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4f5e366d-2a32-4d5f-9792-6dc271c1ba64
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=attt
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d264c85c-dd17-4766-ac80-64a00f4f3bb3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CALLONE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5ed2a1cb-1bfa-49c6-b597-cff0b90ef31b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=verizon
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=329dfa68-71d2-4c0d-8ed5-137f0321d4ee
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BKD
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7bbe0122-8fba-4d91-a6a1-9d5e6ee190bf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=EHLERS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f1c675ec-025d-4dbd-9251-35c00639642f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=houseal
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=fc74874c-26bb-46d4-85b7-d556af1d78c0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=houseal
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=56ee73db-13f1-4d1a-833b-b18200e9e01b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLOA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4df25eb4-6ec5-4970-9066-600ece779b2b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLOA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f4cf86d0-edb0-418d-a60c-0602b576b1ef
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLOA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2bb08852-fec4-47ca-97f9-56d4d68e69de
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=lauter
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=25cde5a6-5a15-4471-ab36-4a1872c9146f


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  1,750.00

01-10-00-53-0380  Total Administrative Services Corp VEBA/FSA ADMIN FEES  47760  624.2008/15/2018

01-10-00-53-0380  Total Administrative Services Corp COBRA ADMIN FEES  47760  196.0008/15/2018

01-10-00-53-0380  Total Administrative Services Corp COBRA ADMIN FEE  47851  76.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  896.70

01-10-00-53-0410  B&B Networks Inc PHONE MAINTENANCE  47776  300.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  300.00

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services 1 YEAR SUBSCRIPTION TO MALWAREBYTES  47769  110.0308/27/2018

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services LOGMEIN CENTRAL BASIC YEARLY SUBSCRIPTION  47769  899.9908/27/2018

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services AMAZON WEB SERVICES SALES TAX REFUND/JUN 2018  47769 -14.0808/27/2018

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services AMAZON WEB SERVICES SALES TAX REFUND/APR 2018  47769 -14.3708/27/2018

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services AMAZON WEB SERVICES SALES TAX REFUND/FEB 2018  47769 -9.4608/27/2018

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services CELL SIGNAL BOOSTERS  47769  1,070.7408/27/2018

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services AMAZON WEB SERVICES SALES TAX REFUND/MAR 2018  47769 -11.6208/27/2018

01-10-00-53-0410  Card Services AMAZON WEB SERVICES SALES TAX REFUND/MAY 2018  47769 -14.0808/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  2,017.15

01-10-00-53-0410  SHI International Corp PRINTER/SCANNER - G CARLINI  47843  193.8808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  193.88

01-10-00-53-0410  TKB Associates Inc 20 HRS OF HELP SERVICE/TRAINING FOR LASERFICHE  47850  2,975.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  2,975.00

01-10-00-53-0410  Webitects MONTHLY WEB HOSTING/AUG 2018  47859  195.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  195.00

01-10-00-53-3300  De Lage Landen Financial Svcs Inc LEASING (3) COPIERS/PRINTERS  47796  504.9908/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 7

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TASC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=77b0e70f-92d3-473d-a0ed-cec76b9f6673
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TASC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d4af6a26-575e-494e-8720-b736cb9bb5ed
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TASC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=28ba332d-c974-4a7f-92dd-335de1ff5b9d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=b b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=df0ea52a-cd64-475c-a165-22945c53eba0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=80e55265-ba0f-42a6-b029-bb33344d0c10
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=079f6db4-e4a9-44f4-be44-d840851b2180
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=226688d9-0a2c-4206-976b-a243014488f4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=45c8a3cd-2b96-4ede-8fbc-c385974f4b70
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5c8fb166-6bb2-4683-944e-dc03d6e61cb6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cbd505d6-e3f3-44ef-af6f-1d05994461b9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a78e7b33-59a1-4e56-8743-a86f6640953d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e9f6bf6b-7215-4d1c-8096-5c4712d426b7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SHIINTL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=605bd045-eb68-4d56-83f9-fab2d548ea8a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=tkb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c66cbf03-d2ef-4557-85c3-0d813e9b9b12
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WEBITECT
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=82a42482-1185-4ff3-8e74-8f1698ec9386
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-3300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DELAGE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3d59255f-b758-4a46-9723-9bf4fb8a7909


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  504.99

01-10-00-53-3300  Regal Business Machines Inc COPIER MAINTENANCE/TONER  47748  272.6008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  272.60

01-10-00-53-4100  Card Services IGFOA WEBINAR-BUDGET (C SCOTT)  47769  55.0008/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  55.00

01-10-00-53-4250  Card Services IGFOA CONFERENCE REGISTRATION/J ROCK  47769  350.0008/27/2018

01-10-00-53-4250  Card Services ICMA CONFERENCE REGISTRATION/E PALM  47769  685.0008/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  1,035.00

01-10-00-53-4250  West Central Municipal Conference WCMC GOLF OUTING  47861  580.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  580.00

01-10-00-53-4300  Card Services DROPBOX SUBSCRIPTION/JUL 2018 TO JUL 2019  47769  99.0008/27/2018

01-10-00-53-4300  Card Services CRAIN'S CHICAGO SUBSCRIPTION/E PALM  47769  84.0008/27/2018

01-10-00-53-4300  Card Services ELGL ORGANIZATIONAL MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  47769  300.0008/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  483.00

01-10-00-53-4300  ICMA Membership Renewals MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/J PAPE  47811  200.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  200.00

01-10-00-53-4300  Metropolitan Mayors Caucus 2017-2018 MEMBERSHIP DUES  47825  502.7408/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  502.74

01-10-00-53-4300  West Central Municipal Conference FY2018-2019 MEMBERSHIP DUES  47765  11,166.5508/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 8

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-3300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=REGALBUS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4f12f5b4-3707-447a-bb74-1bbb75c06d67
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=90c4e892-e611-426d-a5d8-d329973cdb4b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cefffcd6-5372-4bd6-9826-6445b86b9e86
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7e5b1226-2ba6-47b6-99f2-1ae658fc2030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=wcmc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=44aad217-ea02-4c72-a6a6-a63fcc59bb27
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=b05eb5e9-9091-4f6a-9e9d-e5620529fa71
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=66ace664-332f-4b8b-8210-b6a82e86f6bb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=af71bd1e-d003-47e6-8001-b79a2095b10f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ICMA7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=84d9edc1-4fbe-49f1-a776-a5e7a0e667c9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=metro
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9d9c08de-ba9f-4541-9a86-78f7553295a9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=wcmc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a9c4c1b5-863e-4bbf-b23c-727054298774


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  11,166.55

01-10-00-53-5600  Card Services MEMORIAL DONATION FOR SUE CROTHERS FATHER  47769  50.0008/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  50.00

01-10-00-54-0100  Card Services FRAMES FOR AWARDS  47769  65.3408/27/2018

01-10-00-54-0100  Card Services FRAMES FOR AWARDS  47769  59.2008/27/2018

01-10-00-54-0100  Card Services SUPPLIES FOR NEW OFFICES  47769  31.9408/27/2018

01-10-00-54-0100  Card Services MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47769  270.0908/27/2018

01-10-00-54-0100  Card Services KEYS FOR FILE CABINETS BY ADMIN POLICE DEPT  47769  83.4008/27/2018

01-10-00-54-0100  Card Services MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47769  250.3208/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  760.29

01-10-00-54-0100  Cintas #769 LOBBY FLOOR MATS/SEP 2018  47785  35.9508/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  35.95

01-10-00-54-0100  Classic Graphic Industries Inc ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS 48001 TO 50000  47787  251.9808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  251.98

01-10-00-54-0100  Datasource Ink TONERS  47719  595.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  595.00

01-10-00-54-0100 B Gunther & Company Inc (2) NEW COMMISSIONER NAMEPLATES  47808  34.7508/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  34.75

01-10-00-54-0100  Office Depot MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47830  113.3508/31/2018

01-10-00-54-0100  Office Depot MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47830  18.6508/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  132.00

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 9

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-53-5600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=487abfea-9d59-4243-b678-c957a72b59cb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=1215e58f-9144-478a-8cf9-52e9be7fb33d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8b7c661d-375c-44af-ac8e-bf30e74830df
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=30ba307f-a946-4e68-a6e0-3479f677169c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=01391d1c-33db-4754-abc5-719a08e48620
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6ec98daf-42f1-4964-a30f-f94cfabeaeef
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=990b2aab-5621-4f3c-8ee8-50c979c0ee7c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CINTAS2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a5bc750d-5196-480f-a307-8cb9a61a0d11
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CLASGRAP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d84e2fdb-df96-4b7b-a425-8f49c37c7297
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DATASOUR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=39be8115-77e1-4105-a070-9a2bf822cdf6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GUNTHER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d8fee63b-2ab4-465f-8fdf-6aef28302bcd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OFFDEP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3954bf2d-30e8-4243-a1d1-e6124fab0d31
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OFFDEP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cdac3ed6-8bda-42b5-8cbd-43fbca0a4e5c


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-10-00-54-0100 The Printing Store Inc RF MAILING ENVELOPES  47835  1,073.3008/31/2018

01-10-00-54-0100 The Printing Store Inc BUSINESS CARDS/C FOYTIK  47835  55.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  1,128.30

01-10-00-54-0100  Warehouse Direct Inc MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47763  101.0708/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  101.07

01-10-00-54-1300  FedEx POSTAGE/TRANSFER TAX STAMP  47722  58.4708/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:10  58.47

01-14-00-53-4275  West Suburban Consolidated MONTHLY CONTRIBUTION - 911 DISPATCHING  0  22,846.6708/15/2018

01-14-00-53-4275  West Suburban Consolidated MONTHLY CONTRIBUTION - 911 DISPATCHING  0  8,306.5608/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:14  31,153.23

01-15-00-53-0380  Card Services (10) FRAMES FOR SORT-IT-OUT STATIONS  47769  589.7808/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:15  589.78

01-15-00-53-4450  Resource Management Associates Inc BFPC POLICE CANDIDATE TESTING/EXAMS  47837  7,573.3108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:15  7,573.31

01-15-00-53-4450  Theodore Polygraph Services Inc BFPC POLYGRAPH & CREDIT FOR NEW POLICE OFFICER  47849  220.0008/31/2018

01-15-00-53-4450  Theodore Polygraph Services Inc BFPC POLYGRAPH & CREDIT FOR NEW POLICE OFFICERS  47849  660.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:15  880.00

01-20-00-52-0400  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  3,581.7508/01/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 10

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=printing
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2279b1d6-7b95-4029-825d-242ab666dbf1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=printing
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6bc06008-f60d-4541-ae0d-4a86c838ec2a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=warehous
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=440427a3-0767-4839-b52f-70f90d4f2fa5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-10-00-54-1300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FEDEX
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=aaba3614-1a21-4d67-84e6-9356404444af
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-14-00-53-4275
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=wscdc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3b9f424a-74c1-4b68-bb9d-a3e99073a1cb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-14-00-53-4275
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=wscdc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=52b8f1b3-92f0-4860-82fd-15c14c5645ee
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-15-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=733c805e-8132-43af-9c8e-1c3bd3822ee7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-15-00-53-4450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=RESOURCE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=97e8bfc5-a9fb-4fd7-afe2-780f30ca66ef
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-15-00-53-4450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=THEODORE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c3285c31-a9ae-4a84-851b-107c171921e6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-15-00-53-4450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=THEODORE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8b118f88-0d9c-4aad-8e65-113cbeefa934
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e21bd9ca-bf22-4303-8943-6beec0fa7493


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  3,581.75

01-20-00-52-0425  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  11.2008/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  11.20

01-20-00-53-0370  Envirosafe PEST CONTROL  47721  235.0008/15/2018

01-20-00-53-0370  Envirosafe PEST CONTROL  47800  270.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  505.00

01-20-00-53-0370  Kelty Lawn Care PROPERTY MAINTENANCE/7902 CHICAGO  47740  201.2508/15/2018

01-20-00-53-0370  Kelty Lawn Care LAWN MAINTENANCE/423 ASHLAND  47740  240.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  441.25

01-20-00-53-0370  Verizon Financial Services LLC DATA SERVICE FOR TABLETS & MESSAGE BOARD  0  13.9708/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  13.97

01-20-00-53-1300  B&F Construction Code Services Inc JULY 2018 INSPECTIONS  47777  6,040.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  6,040.00

01-20-00-53-4100  Building & Fire Code Academy SEMINAR/T VACLAV  47711  195.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  195.00

01-20-00-53-5300  Wednesday Journal Inc ZONING CODE TEXT AMENDMENT - SMALL CELL  47764  182.0008/15/2018

01-20-00-53-5300  Wednesday Journal Inc ZONING VARIATION PUBLIC HEARING  47764  168.0008/15/2018

01-20-00-53-5300  Wednesday Journal Inc ZONING VARIATION PUBLIC HEARING  47764  182.0008/15/2018

01-20-00-53-5300  Wednesday Journal Inc ZONING VARIATION PUBLIC HEARING  47764  210.0008/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 11

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-52-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=37f74907-6a38-4dec-a9a7-71a038c7c018
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-0370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ENVIROSA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e3474b9d-966c-4fc8-a1a3-8679be1be6fc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-0370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ENVIROSA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5e93476b-106f-485c-9b3e-d4715a7db330
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-0370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=keltyinc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=1fa1a046-120e-498a-a1f8-edd3e9f5c2e5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-0370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=keltyinc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=dc39ac7a-f0f0-453d-b7fc-3de5a03b6458
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-0370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=verizon
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=36466e71-6a40-42a9-8576-6c1130fcb8f2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-1300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=B FTECH
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bfa3ab55-1fb5-49cc-8808-3a99a01163be
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BFCA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6fc04e6a-03a1-46dd-a61e-bd15b745e2a0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-5300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WEDNES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3ab9dcb1-57a2-4caa-859b-9c4226f8a4ff
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-5300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WEDNES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=b9d43513-3926-4b76-9eb4-f1d80cbc8355
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-5300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WEDNES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c5884668-0fab-46ac-ae93-e60f78f3cb13
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-20-00-53-5300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WEDNES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f66764b4-cf93-4843-8dc5-b54ba23d1f81


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:20  742.00

01-30-00-53-0420  Clark Baird Smith LLP EMPLOYMENT LAW SERVICES  47717  9,116.2508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:30  9,116.25

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd 516 PARK AVE LITIGATION  0  1,089.4008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd 516 PARK AVE LITIGATION  0  427.0008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW  0  823.6008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd M GRILL POLICE OFFICER PENSION MATTER  0  246.0008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd FINANCE/ADMIN ADVISORY  0  7,121.5608/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd POLICE ADVISORY  0  1,189.0008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW  0  717.5008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd FINANCE/ADMIN ADVISORY  0  8,706.9708/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd PUBLIC WORKS ADVISORY  0  102.5008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd POLICE ADVISORY  0  249.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:30  20,672.53

01-30-00-53-0426  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd LOCAL PROSECUTION  0  1,000.0008/31/2018

01-30-00-53-0426  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd LOCAL PROSECUTION  0  1,000.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:30  2,000.00

01-40-00-52-0400  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  47,308.1108/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  47,308.11

01-40-00-52-0420  Benistar/Hartford-6795 RETIREE INSURANCE PREMIUMS/SEP 2018  47780  7,426.0608/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  7,426.06

01-40-00-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  9,513.8208/01/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 12

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CLARKBAI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4044059b-855e-49d2-8612-3cff4e996c48
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f838fd4c-2909-41a3-9455-f0e2df9d2a33
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2f467c33-62b3-465b-a22d-92cee5d77846
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=53acf0cc-571f-4cdb-b2bf-30c9f09073d6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=64aa1174-3c65-4c09-a127-dd55dd644f48
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=827de03e-23e1-4c3e-b1c1-fb5a1daea5db
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=b747f0c8-5649-4a7c-b17e-d687fa6bd999
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6492f79a-31e8-40bc-92f4-ee10ccdf5171
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=78839d3b-c572-4592-a049-1722d5d221c2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=abf2f168-962c-471c-beff-054cd3f3a7d6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ab20b57f-c8fb-4d8c-b159-6647fb030843
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0426
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=26d3d98c-b3be-4dbe-a140-1497a0119802
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-30-00-53-0426
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=50aa2e86-3b3f-4b39-b2ff-ee8629e4a227
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=474dda82-1190-48b0-9d52-3edf7fdca2ba
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BENISTAR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a41bd160-d19e-459a-9cbf-c9a4ca0bf9c4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9b0a79fa-2312-416a-b111-7129c7fe1277


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-40-00-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  51.3008/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  9,565.12

01-40-00-52-0425  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  582.2808/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  582.28

01-40-00-53-0200  AT&T Wireless AT&T CELLULAR TELEPHONE BILL  167  220.5308/12/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  220.53

01-40-00-53-0200  Verizon Financial Services LLC DATA SERVICE FOR TABLETS & MESSAGE BOARD  0  65.9508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  65.95

01-40-00-53-0385 Hon. Perry J Gulbrandsen Ret. ADJUDICATION HEARING SERVICES  47733  600.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  600.00

01-40-00-53-0385  Municipal Systems Inc MONTHLY SUBSCRIPTION FEE/JUL 2018  0  950.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  950.00

01-40-00-53-3200  CAMZ Communications Inc PD VEHICLE EQUIPMENT REPAIR  47783  270.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  270.00

01-40-00-53-3200  FedEx PD VEHICLE EQUIPMENT REPAIR  47801  62.6108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  62.61

01-40-00-53-3200  Havis VEHICLE REPAIR - COMPUTER DOCK  47809  199.0008/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 13

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2facd559-dbc9-43f1-a5fc-1803b682fcbb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-52-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=888b130d-621e-4a13-acbf-1845addff498
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AT TWI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ab4d1f97-aad2-44e7-ab5f-da7a9f285d20
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=verizon
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5f564862-5266-4621-a537-8c718d891cb6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-0385
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GULBRAND
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=60873ef5-7608-4863-94b2-96677c9188a6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-0385
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=munisys
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f9c4278b-a1d6-44fa-84ee-cca571ea9270
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CAMZ
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=99bcc2b5-82d8-4f72-afca-dec0710eb764
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FEDEX
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4620520a-c79e-4760-aa23-845d603633c8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=HAVIS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=70c497ab-e460-4542-9bc9-7d245f828e06


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  199.00

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2016 DODGE CHARGER #5  0  220.5608/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2017 FORD EXPLORER #6  0  29.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2015 DODGE CHARGER #2  0  489.9508/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2016 DODGE CHARGER #5  0  366.2508/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2018 FORD POLICE INTRCPTR UTILITY #1  0  24.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2017 DODGE DURANGO #12  0  70.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2016 FORD EXPLORER #3  0  232.1808/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2015 DODGE CHARGER #2  0  26.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2013 FORD TAURUS #16  0  225.5008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-3200  Pete's Automotive Service Inc SERVICE 2018 DODGE CHARGER #13  0  109.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  1,792.44

01-40-00-53-3200  Tennessee Dept of Revenue VEHICLE REGISTRATIONS FOR UNMARKED VEHICLES  47848  16.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  16.00

01-40-00-53-4100 Jennifer Casey REIMB MEAL EXPENSE/TRAINING  47713  26.0608/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  26.06

01-40-00-53-4100  North East Multi-Regional Training IncTRAINING CLASS/M LANDINI  47745  300.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-4100  North East Multi-Regional Training IncTRAINING/M OSTROWSKI  47745  35.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-4100  North East Multi-Regional Training IncTRAINING/M FRIES & D SZCZESNY  47829  800.0008/31/2018

01-40-00-53-4100  North East Multi-Regional Training IncTRAINING/M FRIES & D SZCZESNY  47829  250.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  1,385.00

01-40-00-53-4100 Maxwell Ostrowski REIMB MEAL EXPENSE/TRAINING  47831  18.0008/31/2018

01-40-00-53-4100 Maxwell Ostrowski REIMB MEAL EXPENSE/TRAINING  47831  41.9108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  59.91

01-40-00-53-4100 Daniel Szczesny REIMB MEAL EXPENSE/TRAINING  47757  15.0008/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 14

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=795b0978-e2aa-4932-bd59-f56de881e21f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=11ad2d96-4d60-4995-9ee8-06ef93f5032e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e4533233-e7ea-4c6f-872b-e4dc3253c34a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7155f5d7-233d-4fb5-b042-36ac440a8b6b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9e30889e-3831-4d59-a07b-2d4c37e4e660
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=11fa0845-1e8e-48f5-b565-5ea8328cd199
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e78e8e24-a02c-4ab7-8874-5dd3729d0ad0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=82c07cc9-3ff6-4e8d-a8eb-4859190708e6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2ba965d0-336a-4d6f-a13a-c589b4a7afa9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PETES
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=29ea9795-9845-4d00-8116-1345e043f98d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TENNESSE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cbda22c2-5e0f-4a7e-9b7d-0c19f697a2d8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CASEY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5ab5bca0-63d0-4746-b45a-1b4678ae89a3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NEMULTI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=588a3061-4ac9-4d85-9006-34ee378ec42c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NEMULTI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=1baf150c-2936-4214-bdce-fab63cb34849
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NEMULTI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=aab90551-84f0-4f77-9f80-58fc80955eb6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NEMULTI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=b0ebaf48-70d0-4b2f-8bcd-6a2e3ffd2953
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OSTROWSK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3ffaf726-73f8-4081-8ee2-ffdb5d442b2d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OSTROWSK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d5fc2f64-abc1-4a28-b4e5-7f9d24a8b10c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SZCZESNY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cbffb573-51db-4939-8444-a86f96fd8b59


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  15.00

01-40-00-53-4200  4AllPromos ISEARCH & COMMUNITY POLICING SUPPLIES  47771  871.6008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  871.60

01-40-00-53-4200  Andy Frain Services Inc CROSSING GUARD SERVICES/JUL 2018  0  1,870.8308/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  1,870.83

01-40-00-53-4200  Oak Park Township 4TH QTR 2018 YOUTH INTERVENTIONIST  0  3,173.8808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  3,173.88

01-40-00-53-4200  Porter Lee Corporation BEAST ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUPPORT (RFPD)  47834  1,468.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  1,468.00

01-40-00-53-4250 Michael Fries REIMB MEAL EXPENSES  47802  47.7108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  47.71

01-40-00-53-4300  Illinois Law Enforcement Alarm 2018 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUES  47737  120.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  120.00

01-40-00-53-4300  Thomson Reuters-West MONTHLY SUBSCRIPTION FEE/JUL 2018  47759  175.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  175.00

01-40-00-53-4400  Elmhurst Occupational Health EMPLOYEE MEDICAL  47720  80.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  80.00

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 15

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=4ALLPRO
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4f62945a-31fc-4e31-bd72-9907c3c2b346
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=andy
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4165de25-fc09-483a-9fc1-db030415b078
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OPTOWN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6189bad7-d920-446d-bb36-22464085aca2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=porter
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=26d4d5eb-5bfb-4db0-b254-21e51888b8de
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=fries
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5acad516-28a5-4a7f-a95c-fcb9cb91f43f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ileas
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4e49fca7-164c-48dc-9ab6-cb3a6f5f778d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=THOMSONR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9bd7a59b-7808-4daa-b40a-b3c021f8fed6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ELMHUROC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=920be109-e501-492a-b44a-64aaae8c989a


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-40-00-53-4400 Dennis Selvig PD EMPLOYEE MEDICAL  47754  750.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-53-4400 Dennis Selvig LEADERSHIP ASSESSMENT - PATROL COMMANDER  47754  4,500.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  5,250.00

01-40-00-53-5400 Leonard M Bulat PD CAR #1 CRASH REPAIR  47712  285.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  285.00

01-40-00-53-5400  Fleet Safety Supply PD SQUAD #3 CRASH REPAIR  47725  321.2408/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  321.24

01-40-00-54-0100  Card Services USB DRIVES FOR POLICE DEPT  47769  29.9508/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  29.95

01-40-00-54-0100  Warehouse Direct Inc PD MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47763  92.2808/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0100  Warehouse Direct Inc PD MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47763  63.3108/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0100  Warehouse Direct Inc MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES  47763  119.3808/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  274.97

01-40-00-54-0300  Galls LLC UNIFORMS/M LANDINI  47728  259.1908/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0300  Galls LLC UNIFORMS/P EBERLING  47803  32.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  291.19

01-40-00-54-0300  J.G. Uniforms Inc UNIFORMS/D HUMPHREYS  47738  297.8408/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0300  J.G. Uniforms Inc UNIFORMS/D DHOOGHE  47738  146.2508/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0300  J.G. Uniforms Inc BULLET PROOF VEST/D DHOOGHE  47738  935.0008/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0300  J.G. Uniforms Inc UNIFORMS/E BOWMAN  47738  196.2508/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0300  J.G. Uniforms Inc UNIFORMS/S HENEGHAN  47814  183.2508/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  1,758.59

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 16

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=person
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a735253f-6c4d-4b38-89f7-38afa3e47fb6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-4400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=person
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=accc1592-f334-408d-972d-abdb3a2db143
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-5400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=carref
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=51219b14-ed60-4a75-a422-a70b5f423145
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-53-5400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=fleet
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f859593c-2773-4cca-8ef3-20251e573758
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a816e66a-adf7-4b52-b335-e6e187c65364
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=warehous
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=87b5ecb9-5a63-4673-b6d7-8fa3e313f5d8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=warehous
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=905d3eb3-6956-4e19-9451-675b89e7096b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=warehous
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d8e1f481-6263-4a52-a293-8d51c5b09e24
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GALLS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=dd4c17c8-974a-45a3-a08e-f14fa83cb98b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GALLS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4d6f2621-27cb-4bca-b0b0-c6e7e6ad246f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=jgunif
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ca4f983f-62e7-4802-aba0-87c1b53c799c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=jgunif
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=77a37bce-2cad-4d25-8bd3-295485b349e2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=jgunif
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2d5a438d-9231-4817-bfd0-b8afe9a11adf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=jgunif
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0492c5cb-ac0f-4d67-9de4-e20aec3d42e0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=jgunif
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f7e21189-6e60-4f1c-a079-e5dfc789a81c


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-40-00-54-0300 Ray O'Herron Co. Inc UNIFORMS/T CARROLL  47746  101.9908/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  101.99

01-40-00-54-0603  TriTech Forensics Inc EVIDENCE SUPPLIES  47761  360.8508/15/2018

01-40-00-54-0603  TriTech Forensics Inc EVIDENCE SUPPLIES  47761  77.7008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  438.55

01-40-00-54-0605  NetworkFleet Inc/Verizon FLEET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM  47744  211.6108/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  211.61

01-40-00-54-0615  Secretary of State TITLE FOR 2007 TOYOTA SCION SEIZURE  47841  95.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:40  95.00

01-50-00-52-0400  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  29,611.8808/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  29,611.88

01-50-00-52-0420  Benistar/Hartford-6795 RETIREE INSURANCE PREMIUMS/SEP 2018  47780  1,474.2008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  1,474.20

01-50-00-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  37.0508/01/2018

01-50-00-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  10,237.3108/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  10,274.36

01-50-00-52-0425  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  241.1708/01/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 17

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OHERRON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9024d5ba-ce14-4981-93c2-1f5439099b82
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0603
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=tritech
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=56befef3-5832-4276-98c7-bf791266cb27
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0603
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=tritech
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9238940e-40cd-4369-a47d-d4e05af0414b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0605
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NETWORKF
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cfddfb10-b081-4888-9f0f-0c77b5617f26
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-40-00-54-0615
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SECRE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6bd3a3cb-54a1-4a1d-9d57-d9df1cf8dec6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c8f6f78c-3577-4bce-8731-761284df0511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BENISTAR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=72fd0667-cd52-4d2d-bb93-fa54ef4bee0f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ae82de05-e9ee-4855-b7a3-49aed272d3b1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=de63c5ab-113b-470e-a1e5-4ef6836f07b3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-52-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6a92bdbb-ced9-4b25-8ae4-e527f548b992


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  241.17

01-50-00-53-0200  AT&T Wireless AT&T CELLULAR TELEPHONE BILL  167  85.8808/12/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  85.88

01-50-00-53-3100  Air One Equipment Inc 6 MONTH COMPRESSOR MAINTENANCE  47705  599.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  599.00

01-50-00-53-3200  Certified Fleet Services Inc ENG 222 PREVENTATIVE MAINT & EMERGENCY REPAIRS  0  1,150.0008/31/2018

01-50-00-53-3200  Certified Fleet Services Inc ENG 222 PREVENTATIVE MAINT & EMERGENCY REPAIRS  0  6,052.8708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  7,202.87

01-50-00-53-3200  CJC Auto Parts & Tires AIR FILTER FOR UNIT 200  47786  15.7308/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  15.73

01-50-00-53-3200  Commercial Tire Service Inc ENG 222 NEW TIRE (MOUNT & DISMOUNT)  47791  724.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  724.00

01-50-00-53-4100  University of Illinois FIRE & ARSON INVESTIGATION I - A SEABLOM  47853  550.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  550.00

01-50-00-53-4100  Village of Romeoville Fire Academy ADVANCED TECH FF/M KRALL  47857  525.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  525.00

01-50-00-53-4200  WorldPoint ECC Inc CPR CARDS  47767  510.0008/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 18

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AT TWI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=59316842-db27-4375-8847-33099ad311e7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-3100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AIRONE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bc7613eb-fe34-477c-af89-63d28f8c536c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CERTFLE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=1bd6e236-47a9-4164-8f11-c0b9ce68527a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CERTFLE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e8820085-3fc4-44a6-bd67-6d327d72180a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CJCAUTO
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6364c069-43b7-4f22-8a6b-819de79c681e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COMMTIRE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c7cd337e-b943-4dd6-9609-1a336d04d819
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UNIVIL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=fb991d70-f30a-4e3c-a8b6-483de14214f2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-4100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=vilromeo
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2fd4ca3e-2b36-4cbd-ab70-a26f7a12ab11
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-4200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=worldp
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cd80e6a5-8a24-4dea-a33d-36e456b1f266


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  510.00

01-50-00-53-4250  Card Services METRO CHIEFS AUG 2018 MTG/K BOHLMANN & K WILEY  47769  40.0008/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  40.00

01-50-00-54-0600  Air One Equipment Inc CREDIT MEMO FOR RETURNED ITEMS  47705 -285.5008/15/2018

01-50-00-54-0600  Air One Equipment Inc PICKHEAD AXE  47705  96.3708/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50 -189.13

01-50-00-54-0600  Arrow E2-IO POWER DRIVER - IV ACCESS SYSTEM  47774  610.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  610.50

01-50-00-54-0600  CJC Auto Parts & Tires SPARE HEADLAMP FOR ENGINES/TRUCK  47786  10.1408/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  10.14

01-50-00-54-0600  W.S. Darley & Co FIRE HOSE  47762  181.2108/15/2018

01-50-00-54-0600  W.S. Darley & Co CREDIT ON INV #17331898  47858 -1,765.1408/31/2018

01-50-00-54-0600  W.S. Darley & Co SHUT OFF NOZZLE FOR FIRE DEPT  47858  1,765.2208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  181.29

01-50-00-54-0600  Pollardwater FIRE DEPT SUPPLIES  47833  128.9908/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  128.99

01-50-00-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware WD40 LUBRICANT FOR FD  47752  38.6808/15/2018

01-50-00-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware THERMOSTAT/BATTERIES FOR FD  47840  35.0808/31/2018

01-50-00-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware CREDIT MEMO FOR FD THERMOSTAT RETURN  47840 -23.3908/31/2018

01-50-00-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware PART FOR FIRE DEPT  47840  5.8408/31/2018

01-50-00-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware PARTS FOR APPARATUS FLOOR AIR SYSTEM  47840  16.1608/31/2018

01-50-00-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware CREDIT MEMO FOR RETURNED FD ITEMS  47840 -3.1608/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 19

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-53-4250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ae06179c-ab95-4030-a836-9f297b1bc7f0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AIRONE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=882d2bd2-c03c-42fe-ba29-baa69c6788fb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AIRONE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a5dd1c5b-9d6b-4591-831c-acdef5aa7950
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ARROW
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=353b14ea-f3c9-4f4c-ad68-81e6e851b6e9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CJCAUTO
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4d2f84fa-34bc-4257-89c7-81c3824a4705
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DARLEY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=60212b42-0c73-4514-9c9d-8bb0540f63c6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DARLEY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=632541c3-cdf1-4fcb-9161-9a8cdaa06e54
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DARLEY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f992e135-8432-4570-af5a-bc1d7fdbf5af
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POLLARDW
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6a017f00-df18-45a4-bfec-411bf702476f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=374340b9-f050-42e1-9b57-ab9068174ef4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a29d10b5-f499-4c86-bcc8-f3715cc2b778
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ee9720ac-5d29-4836-81e3-2062438abb44
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cafae3af-f0e1-4911-9bb7-de39683e08a1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7c0b8d91-45cc-4137-b21f-c4f1588d576f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e80d4607-0ba3-45f2-ba95-e779bec6b525


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  69.21

01-50-00-54-0600  US Gas OXYGEN CYLINDER RENTAL  0  163.3508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:50  163.35

01-60-01-52-0400  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  4,701.7408/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  4,701.74

01-60-01-52-0400  MOE Funds P/W EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS/OCT 2018  47827  6,844.3008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  6,844.30

01-60-01-52-0420  Benistar/Hartford-6795 RETIREE INSURANCE PREMIUMS/SEP 2018  47780  1,650.2208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,650.22

01-60-01-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  1,965.6308/01/2018

01-60-01-52-0420  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  5.7008/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,971.33

01-60-01-52-0420  Midwest Operating Eng-Pension Trust FundP/W RETIREE EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS/OCT 2018  47826  1,019.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,019.00

01-60-01-52-0425  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  84.0708/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  84.07

01-60-01-53-0200  Verizon Financial Services LLC DATA SERVICE FOR TABLETS & MESSAGE BOARD  0  47.2808/15/2018

01-60-01-53-0200  Verizon Financial Services LLC DATA FOR MESSAGE BOARD  0  18.0208/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 20

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-50-00-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=usgas
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a731b9fb-6959-45e6-a584-7542f3b3dc54
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bde2bb00-e356-49fc-bade-5648245427dc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MOEFUNDS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=577e2320-bf5e-4215-a7d8-7f62e0d19a7f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BENISTAR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=66de4372-a163-465e-a484-fdbfcce19084
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cdd82425-ac97-48a6-9240-e253582dee5f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0a238c65-d5a2-4aea-a2d4-aa9985bbb176
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=midhewel
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cb970c3b-d010-489f-8dda-70331df7dcff
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-52-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7d340308-d988-4a35-a215-082e4da3a48c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=verizon
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=546b8348-ea3c-4b02-917d-d417c2a66a46
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=verizon
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bf4d6ede-adb4-4e18-aafb-7578371d1cef


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  65.30

01-60-01-53-0410  MGP Inc GIS CONSORTIUM STAFFING SERVICES  0  1,707.8708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,707.87

01-60-01-53-3100  Russo's Power Equipment Inc ARMREST & GAS CAP FOR RIDING LAWNMOWER  47750  75.2008/15/2018

01-60-01-53-3100  Russo's Power Equipment Inc TIRE FOR RIDING LAWNMOWER  47839  263.3808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  338.58

01-60-01-53-3200  D & K Truck Safety Lane LLC P/W VEHICLE SAFETY INSPECTIONS  47793  73.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  73.00

01-60-01-53-3400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies ELECTRICAL REPAIR INTERSECTION ON FLASH  0  704.7508/15/2018

01-60-01-53-3400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies REPAIR CRACKED LIGHT POLE/1411 JACKSON  0  1,268.0008/15/2018

01-60-01-53-3400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies ELECTRICAL REPAIR ON THATCHER AVE  0  876.0008/31/2018

01-60-01-53-3400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies STREET LIGHT REPAIR - 1147 LATHROP AVE  0  730.0008/31/2018

01-60-01-53-3400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies REPLACE CONCRETE POLE - 1318 FRANKLIN AVE  0  584.0008/31/2018

01-60-01-53-3400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies FLASHING RED SIGNAL REPAIR AT LAKE & LATHROP  0  537.4008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  4,700.15

01-60-01-53-3400  State Treasurer MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS  47845  1,755.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,755.00

01-60-01-53-3400  UPS ST LIGHT FIXTURES SENT BACK FOR WARRANTY REPAIRS  47854  24.3408/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  24.34

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 21

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MGP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=86098862-4276-4c69-bff5-8b9d52356be6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=russop
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=1675cf3c-8856-4f0d-b455-080afef52cec
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=russop
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ec91b123-fb34-4f16-b15a-40636f3d8366
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=D KTRUCK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bdf85c4f-170b-4566-b248-7845a97ea486
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2a4567c6-7bbd-4642-b5de-565aa3ccd235
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=70fd6acf-be53-474b-bc25-c9876c82fffe
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9591ac9e-abff-432c-905d-78903c74d623
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9c838c5a-5526-42aa-806c-2b1c87cdff0d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a888d9d6-31f2-420d-977d-b53c76b13288
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=142d5a08-af0c-409d-9400-b2bf9bae902d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=StTreas
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=42b4e398-1557-4143-befe-f71f04f8628e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UPS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c34e5982-d889-430d-9334-caf6bda958ed


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-60-01-53-3550  Davis Tree Care Inc TREE TRIMMING  47795  1,485.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,485.00

01-60-01-53-3600  Aqua Fiori Inc SPRINKLER SYSTEM NOZZLE REPLACEMENTS  47773  17.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  17.50

01-60-01-53-3600  Bristol Hose & Fitting Inc REPLACEMENT HOSE & SPARE FOR GASOLINE PUMP  0  164.1808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  164.18

01-60-01-53-3600  Card Services DEPOSIT FOR WINDOW TREATMENTS/J O'SHEA OFFICE  47769  140.0008/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  140.00

01-60-01-53-3600  McMaster-Carr FLOOR MATS FOR VILLAGE HALL  47822  79.2008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  79.20

01-60-01-53-3610  Strada Construction Co. 2018 CURB & SIDEWALK PROJECT - PAYMENT #1  47756  62,375.2108/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  62,375.21

01-60-01-53-4250 Mark Janopoulos REIMB TRAVEL EXPENSES/ISA ANNUAL CONFERENCE  47816  894.3208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  894.32

01-60-01-53-4300  West Cook County Solid Waste AgencyFY2018-2019 MEMBERSHIP DUES  47766  3,925.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  3,925.00

01-60-01-53-4400  Elmhurst Occupational Health EMPLOYEE MEDICAL  47720  95.0008/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 22

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3550
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DAVISTR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=055df67d-121e-4b58-8fb3-cfe1f1fc3cfb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=aqua
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0e3d60e1-8d3c-4fcb-a37f-3842350c06b5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BRISTOL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6b9c0487-f8f8-4ba3-96b5-ddde127084b2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bddbbd59-e361-4109-a0c3-8679668200da
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=mcmaster
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=384504c8-e7c7-42b5-af19-b74b7eadf5e1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-3610
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=STRADA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9e81b4a4-d3c8-4a10-abfe-ade9aeb143dc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-4250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=JANOPOUL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f1791c9a-74e4-4684-bb61-26b2ca197b55
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-4300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WESTCOOK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=fd5dc7fb-2327-41e0-80cc-dc443239ec3f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-4400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ELMHUROC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e6af9066-0c12-44d3-88d5-d828e368983e


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  95.00

01-60-01-53-5300  Able Printing Service Inc TRAFFIC & SAFETY NOTIFICATION POSTCARDS  47704  295.4408/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  295.44

01-60-01-53-5300  UPS GALE ALLEY PERMIT SUBMITTAL  47854  6.5908/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  6.59

01-60-01-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC SEWER SWEEPING DEBRIS & STORM DAMAGE  47732  257.2008/15/2018

01-60-01-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC SWEEPINGS & STUMP GRINDINGS  47732  711.7208/15/2018

01-60-01-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC TREE DEBRIS & LOGS  47807  291.2008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,260.12

01-60-01-53-5400  Leyden Lawn Sprinklers Inc REPAIRED BREAK DUE TO STUMP REMOVAL  47819  126.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  126.00

01-60-01-53-5400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies ST LIGHTING REPAIRS/HARLEM AVE NORTH OF DIVISION  0  3,056.7408/31/2018

01-60-01-53-5400  Lyons & Pinner Electric Companies EMERGENCY REPAIR - STREET LIGHT CABLES HIT  0  652.4008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  3,709.14

01-60-01-53-5450  ComEd ALLEY LIGHTING  47789  559.4308/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  559.43

01-60-01-53-5450  ComEd MADISON ST LIGHTING  47790  73.5808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  73.58

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 23

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ABLEPR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5098fe7e-838e-48b8-967b-625827d24363
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UPS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=84d91c4d-45b3-4f1f-a28c-e53928b8308c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3416756f-5976-42ad-89ad-9b5c152ff411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=84a106bc-41b8-455f-9fba-adec2067f1db
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cbd55602-c74b-461c-8a3b-d3bb97e1ed8e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LEYDEN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=1471e736-bc23-4737-80aa-ce070ba05e22
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=738362e4-0046-46e2-9df7-8f6f5f2f97ac
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PINNER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2b47bc35-f7ea-41d5-9806-e5f3b85079e2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COMED2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4b2a7f6d-371f-48e8-ad0b-383d14fd53f4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-53-5450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COMED3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d85cd1f6-4fed-4581-bb2b-092545099ab3


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-60-01-54-0310 Alec Cepak REIMB UNIFORM ALLOWANCE  47714  53.0108/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  53.01

01-60-01-54-0310 Mark Janopoulos REIMB UNIFORM ALLOWANCE  47739  17.1608/15/2018

01-60-01-54-0310 Mark Janopoulos REIMB UNIFORM ALLOWANCE  47739  104.7708/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  121.93

01-60-01-54-0500  Wholesale Direct Inc P/W LED HIGHLIGHTER LIGHT  47862  252.0708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  252.07

01-60-01-54-0600  Airgas USA LLC WIRE FOR WELDER  47706  30.6508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  30.65

01-60-01-54-0600  Card Services MOUNTING BRACKET & CABLE PLATE FOR P/W  47769  31.9208/27/2018

01-60-01-54-0600  Card Services SILENCER METAL DOOR FOR P/W  47769  24.7508/27/2018

01-60-01-54-0600  Card Services CIRCUIT BREAKER PLATE  47769  29.0208/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  85.69

01-60-01-54-0600  Forestry Suppliers Inc TREE MEASURING TAPE  47726  99.8508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  99.85

01-60-01-54-0600 W.W. Grainger Inc HAND SOAP  47804  64.3808/31/2018

01-60-01-54-0600 W.W. Grainger Inc SAFETY GLASSES  47804  18.5908/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  82.97

01-60-01-54-0600  Hall Signs Inc SIGNS  47735  1,140.2208/15/2018

01-60-01-54-0600  Hall Signs Inc STREET SIGNS/SUPPLIES  47735  943.5508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  2,083.77

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 24

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0310
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CEPAK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0267005b-fb3a-44ec-894f-be0c63821daf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0310
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=JANOPOUL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f001c089-2d60-4831-827c-8d20bedabbd7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0310
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=JANOPOUL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=22d12ba2-a879-4026-b037-da64641108fa
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WHOLESAL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ce1bd31e-c9ae-4092-ac7d-375b421ae15b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AIRGAS2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a1dad7a7-fbf1-4b48-888d-089f37b2cbad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ee7caba7-85f9-4214-a84d-876e41452403
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=edca6eda-46ef-46a0-8aa7-b6efe8550d16
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c0355c68-35a5-4a80-acfb-1a20af6603b9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=forestsu
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=37d3b7f2-65d9-432b-ae36-754a59efe473
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GRAINGER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=a2e7e7c1-444f-4cd2-a137-a666d6c74d95
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GRAINGER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=049a9505-53a9-4049-965f-599dee3ec46f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=hallsign
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=97016e96-63bd-494a-bead-edeb03ec0a38
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=hallsign
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=37447e3f-113d-4700-96af-7427590894ae


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

01-60-01-54-0600  Healy Asphalt Company LLC COLD PATCH FOR POTHOLES  47736  1,126.6008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,126.60

01-60-01-54-0600  McAdam Landscaping Inc DIRT FOR STUMPS  47821  160.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  160.00

01-60-01-54-0600  McMaster-Carr REPLACEMENT BATTERIES FOR U.P.S. ON COMPUTER  47822  82.7408/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  82.74

01-60-01-54-0600  Menards P/W MISC SUPPLIES  47824  59.9408/31/2018

01-60-01-54-0600  Menards MISC P/W SUPPLIES  47824  98.3708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  158.31

01-60-01-54-0600  Midwest Lighting Inc LED HYBRID FLUORESCENT BULBS  47743  141.7008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  141.70

01-60-01-54-0600  Renewal Compounds Inc METAL FOR P/W  47836  267.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  267.00

01-60-01-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware DRILL & WASHERS FOR P/W  47840  17.2108/31/2018

01-60-01-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware BRAKE CLEANER  47840  18.8708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  36.08

01-60-01-54-0600  SiteOne Landscape Supply LLC GRASS SEED  47844  67.5708/31/2018

01-60-01-54-0600  SiteOne Landscape Supply LLC GRASS SEED  47844  67.5708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  135.14

01-60-01-54-0600  Suburban Welding & Steel LLC STEEL FLAT BAR  47847  349.9008/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 25

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=healy
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=31d32322-7d56-4ef2-8af2-73285e3a81c1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=mcadaml
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=eb874e28-3df1-4979-b012-b6651d3bd243
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=mcmaster
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7c79cb62-335d-4591-be3f-738fb2bdc867
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MENARDS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=32533b7c-12af-40ef-a8cc-3c1695576fa5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MENARDS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0310bdca-b780-47b1-8d2a-c31c5ebdf9e1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MIDWESLI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6ff7f33b-9857-4001-98fe-775b2ac1e882
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=RENEWAL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d2d909d9-2520-49c3-a7eb-d1a96331d9a8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=fae0d3d0-d455-4564-9367-f0dff57959db
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3c9d7b5c-de84-44ae-aac3-caba30b834aa
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SITEONE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0da86b38-e287-47f5-895c-b85131f9db73
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SITEONE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bd8a54c9-70b1-4561-a417-e156c7d144e5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-01-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SUBURBAW
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8368555b-7cdc-4a1b-b185-d0ced651f061


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  349.90

01-60-05-53-5500 Roy Strom Refuse Removal Inc RF STICKER SALES & REFUSE REMOVAL PER CONTRACT  0  88,875.3808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  88,875.38

Subtotal for Fund: 01  514,079.81

02-00-00-21-0000 Basil Demuer Refund Check  47797  92.7308/21/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  92.73

02-00-00-21-0027  Cerniglia Co REFUND HYDRANT METER DEPOSIT  47784  1,000.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,000.00

02-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00031.08.2018 Public Works Union Admin Dues  5894  320.4708/31/2018

02-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00015.08.2018 Public Works Union Admin Dues  5894  327.7608/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  648.23

02-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00031.08.2018 Public Works Union Member Dues  5895  62.4708/31/2018

02-00-00-21-0050  International Union of Operating EngineersPR Batch 00015.08.2018 Public Works Union Member Dues  5895  63.9308/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  126.40

02-00-00-21-0050  NCPERS Group Life Ins PR Batch 00031.08.2018 Supplemental Life Insurance  5896  9.6008/31/2018

02-00-00-21-0050  NCPERS Group Life Ins PR Batch 00015.08.2018 Supplemental Life Insurance  5896  9.6008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  19.20

02-00-00-43-3100  Cerniglia Co LESS ACTUAL WATER USAGE  47784 -481.5708/31/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 26

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:01-60-05-53-5500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=STROM
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c3b91094-4bee-425d-bd6d-30818652d24b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*11235
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9ea25178-bf40-4579-96a2-663441fee305
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0027
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CERNIGLI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=28244f5b-173f-483c-b1b6-739fe4ae642e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150Ad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8fc17729-b092-4ebe-b616-408cc1452feb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150Ad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d992a532-e5a2-4b9f-8ede-2c159875d603
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150ME
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2ae82acc-0384-4d52-b190-da9662095acf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOC150ME
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=50220f69-e905-4d67-bbdc-a4a8c531a987
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NCPERS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=80725fc5-4e7e-4077-86c5-8d6f41f6bea3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-21-0050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NCPERS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c7c55bf9-1196-49f4-9405-ee74a21a97ad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-43-3100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CERNIGLI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=77892a8f-8c55-4466-9cda-80484a590b05


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

02-00-00-43-3100  Cerniglia Co REFUND WATER DEPOSIT  47784  100.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00 -381.57

02-60-06-52-0400  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  7,400.0908/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  7,400.09

02-60-06-52-0400  MOE Funds P/W EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS/OCT 2018  47827  8,544.7008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  8,544.70

02-60-06-52-0420  Midwest Operating Eng-Pension Trust FundP/W RETIREE EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS/OCT 2018  47826  730.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  730.00

02-60-06-52-0425  Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit CooperativeHEALTH/LIFE/DENTAL BREAKDOWN  169  179.2808/01/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  179.28

02-60-06-53-0100  ComEd ELECTRICITY FOR PUMP STATION  47790  3,359.6108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  3,359.61

02-60-06-53-0200  CALL ONE MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  47768  560.5508/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  560.55

02-60-06-53-0200  Comcast Cable INTERNET FOR PUMP STATION  47788  104.8508/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  104.85

02-60-06-53-0200  Verizon Financial Services LLC DATA SERVICE FOR TABLETS & MESSAGE BOARD  0  47.2808/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 27

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-00-00-43-3100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CERNIGLI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=df96730b-864e-4712-80e1-d2bd269d277e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5400e8ec-5db3-4489-bd40-28d368b48dfd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-52-0400
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MOEFUNDS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=95012970-89ec-4ccd-b93f-8bc6b9c30646
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-52-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=midhewel
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6aacaa6e-e61f-43ae-8ed7-07646668f031
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-52-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPBC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f55c175a-0970-4780-991f-8c5207398002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COMED3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=116894e0-a116-4cf7-8964-a1ececfff086
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CALLONE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4dd1991b-a897-466f-88e2-5d821b8f7865
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=comcast
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=85b31dbc-6bd5-4dc3-84ef-3fa7ee36750a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-0200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=verizon
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=4e478cdf-3c9f-4e2e-9b8c-56b97a9e7029


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  47.28

02-60-06-53-0300  BKD LLP FY 2018 AUDIT FINAL  47781  4,565.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  4,565.00

02-60-06-53-0410  Accela Inc #774375 UB WEB PAYMENTS/JUL 2018  0  743.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  743.00

02-60-06-53-0410  MGP Inc GIS CONSORTIUM STAFFING SERVICES  0  1,707.8608/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,707.86

02-60-06-53-3050  Core & Main LP PARTS FOR WATER SERVICE REPAIR/625 FOREST AVE  47792  63.7008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  63.70

02-60-06-53-3050 Garrett Jackson REIMB HALF OF SEWER REPAIR  47815  3,345.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  3,345.00

02-60-06-53-3200  Wigit's Truck Center REPAIRS TO THE SWEEPER  47863  2,757.7608/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  2,757.76

02-60-06-53-3300  De Lage Landen Financial Svcs Inc LEASING (3) COPIERS/PRINTERS  47796  56.5008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  56.50

02-60-06-53-3300  Regal Business Machines Inc COPIER MAINTENANCE/TONER  47748  30.2908/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 28

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-0300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BKD
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d828cdda-8c18-411f-9237-580190f445f8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ACCELA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=60432268-010d-4232-940d-eae0710b2f05
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-0410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MGP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=615cf4d0-41cd-444b-bd46-ea0bacdcbd36
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COREMAIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=562a25d2-45da-4c00-9389-ec62aecc20f4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=JACKSONG
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=10c4e142-85e2-4e6b-81c0-e3398a2273bb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WIGITS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=b810523d-5405-4bb1-a7bc-6292976a481d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DELAGE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f0667c2d-21d1-4151-a89a-1bf17d118cf9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=REGALBUS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d0cce2cc-0f73-43e0-a69d-f3cc0db66a3e


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  30.29

02-60-06-53-3600  Alarm Detection Systems Inc QUARTERLY ALARM MONITORING  0  105.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  105.00

02-60-06-53-3600 F.W. Kline Inc REPAIR LOCK ON OFFICE DOOR AT PUMP STATION  47818  258.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  258.00

02-60-06-53-3600  Nicor Gas Company NATURAL GAS FOR PUMP STATION  47828  30.2208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  30.22

02-60-06-53-3600  Patten Industries Inc GENERATOR MAINTENANCE  0  940.9708/15/2018

02-60-06-53-3600  Patten Industries Inc ADVANTAGE GOLD SERVICE - OIL & COOLANT SAMPLES  0  1,309.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  2,249.97

02-60-06-53-3630 Scott Hall OVERHEAD SEWER REIMBURSEMENT  47734  4,000.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  4,000.00

02-60-06-53-3640 W.C. Schauer Hardware CONCRETE MIX FOR SEWER MANHOLE REPAIR  47840  71.9108/31/2018

02-60-06-53-3640 W.C. Schauer Hardware CONCRETE MIX FOR SEWER MANHOLE REPAIR  47840  43.1508/31/2018

02-60-06-53-3640 W.C. Schauer Hardware CONCRETE MIX FOR SEWER MANHOLE REPAIR  47840  14.3808/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  129.44

02-60-06-53-4250  IPWSOA WATER CONFERENCE REGISTRATION/M THOMASINO  47813  275.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  275.00

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 29

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=alarmd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c5ce3422-4d94-4466-967d-2a50824fe96a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLINE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=89d68e97-1170-431d-9e62-99bffa53bc2b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NICOR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=da304538-ba24-42a3-b3e2-2e06ef009228
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PATTEN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=65a354d6-8864-4b85-bdcb-81efa35071f3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PATTEN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d019df79-d28b-47b2-b8ba-5bfbad23cace
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3630
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=HALLSC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9f93f6fe-844e-4dd9-a8a1-c88e99775d6c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3640
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0eccac67-7177-4336-b82d-525a4ab39d33
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3640
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7c4447f0-6e5d-4f6f-b2fa-c279c99a7f77
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-3640
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=88b61f6a-cf69-4ae9-99ea-318d007b459c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-4250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=IPWSOA2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2f847ebd-b066-445c-ab3b-8c04f9ad8cdc


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

02-60-06-53-4350  Third Millennium UTILITY BILL PRINTING & POSTAGE  47758  322.7308/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  322.73

02-60-06-53-4480  Suburban Laboratories Inc WATER QUALITY TESTING  47846  1,435.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,435.00

02-60-06-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC STREET SWEEPING DEBRIS  47732  195.0408/15/2018

02-60-06-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC SWEEPINGS & STUMP GRINDINGS  47732  113.5508/15/2018

02-60-06-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC SEWER SWEEPING DEBRIS & STORM DAMAGE  47732  332.4808/15/2018

02-60-06-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC STREET SWEEPING/SEWER PIT DISPOSAL  47807  576.0008/31/2018

02-60-06-53-5350  Greenwood Transfer LLC STREET SWEEPINGS & SEWER BASINS  47807  304.8608/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,521.93

02-60-06-54-0100  Flash Printing Inc PAST DUE WATER BILL LETTERHEAD  47724  179.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  179.00

02-60-06-54-0500  A & M Parts Inc CABIN & ENGINE FILTER FOR SPRINTER VAN #64  47772  40.7708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  40.77

02-60-06-54-0500  Menards PARTS FOR SEWER TRUCK  47824  29.9708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  29.97

02-60-06-54-0500  Standard Equipment Company MAIN BROOM FOR SWEEPER  47755  369.4308/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  369.43

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 30

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-4350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=thirdm
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=312764a0-3bd0-47fb-ab63-d9c176b29499
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-4480
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SUBLAB
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=3e0e0345-12f6-4711-b146-3711b58c9fd3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9be294d6-3914-4091-9fc4-c78a9610b7e3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e178ff95-6662-43a7-a462-86d1b21684fc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=cc9907d7-19e8-4b45-82e2-766ab02f8ff4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=78e7533a-f089-4d63-a1cb-b40e31474ae8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-53-5350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=Green
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=962ecf37-a7ad-4e22-8cbb-a8676e761edc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FLASHP
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9e7de53b-6698-4de7-a337-80a31a1bae06
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=A   M
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=92ce0127-ec7c-4066-b50b-c7904953d9f4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MENARDS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=bde0a0cb-451d-4e48-9216-6f59ea4e3174
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=STANDARE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d690c2c3-49e2-4043-a50e-ef923b01b9de


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

02-60-06-54-0600  Core & Main LP NEW WATER METER/923 THATCHER AVE  47792  556.4008/31/2018

02-60-06-54-0600  Core & Main LP STOCK PARTS FOR B-BOX REPAIRS  47792  40.2008/31/2018

02-60-06-54-0600  Core & Main LP NEW WATER METER/522 WILLIAM ST  47792  554.0008/31/2018

02-60-06-54-0600  Core & Main LP NEW WATER METER/730 CLINTON PL  47792  556.4008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  1,707.00

02-60-06-54-0600  Environmental Products & Access. LLCROOT CUTTER BLADES FOR SEWER TRUCK  47799  488.2208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  488.22

02-60-06-54-0600  Hawkins Inc SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE  0  397.5008/15/2018

02-60-06-54-0600  Hawkins Inc SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE  0  367.7008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  765.20

02-60-06-54-0600 W.C. Schauer Hardware SUPPLIES FOR SEWER TRUCK  47840  6.7308/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  6.73

02-60-06-54-0600  USABlueBook STEEL PROBE FOR WATER DEPT  47855  105.9408/31/2018

02-60-06-54-0600  USABlueBook PARTS FOR MAINTENANCE OF CHLORINE EQUIPMENT  47855  176.9508/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  282.89

02-60-06-54-1300  Third Millennium UTILITY BILL PRINTING & POSTAGE  47758  98.4608/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  98.46

02-60-06-54-2200  City of Chicago PURCHASE OF WATER  47770  90,711.2408/27/2018

02-60-06-54-2200  City of Chicago PURCHASE OF WATER  47770  95,046.2708/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  185,757.51

02-60-06-55-0500  Ferguson Industries Inc SHORT PAID ON FINAL INVOICE FOR WINDOWS  47723  400.8808/15/2018

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 31

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COREMAIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=83810d43-82b4-4f57-b278-420446220988
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COREMAIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6e01a305-9cf8-4d3c-9a20-86a1d868a767
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COREMAIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9c6ae0d0-99f4-453e-a480-83b8fac38fc2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COREMAIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=5208715e-fa78-4aca-91e4-fa7d41454b06
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ENVIROPR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=2b166724-b1d8-4337-8401-deab8ef726e6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=HAWKINS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=150c30c8-d5cb-4533-a3df-a7f746f3b29b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=HAWKINS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0afa4076-c27d-4d15-866e-d849e3fbfe39
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SCHAUER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=6f90e9ad-46e7-4bb1-b0fd-7b5221e973ad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=USABLUE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8a7122d0-8885-4574-81e9-c2a7a9b3b0da
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-0600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=USABLUE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=225ca0ba-9248-4155-943d-9679ad4c0472
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-1300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=thirdm
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=04876493-1779-4264-add0-20cb42322138
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-2200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CITYCHIC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=140854dd-ffbf-4ebd-8f0c-d20e810762bb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-54-2200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CITYCHIC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=76a745d6-c805-4646-bf9b-ce11cd9853a6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-55-0500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FERGUSON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=74fe2d44-b249-45f7-912b-26b5b53c79ce


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  400.88

02-60-06-55-1150  Kenny Construction Co 2018 SEWER LINING - PAYMENT #1  47741  156,590.8208/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  156,590.82

02-60-06-55-1300 Christopher B. Burke Engineering Ltd CHGO AV WATER MAIN IMPROVE- CONST ENGR-PAY #3  0  7,440.0608/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  7,440.06

02-60-06-55-1300  Cerniglia Co 2018 WATER MAIN IMPROVE PROJECT - PAYMENT #1  47715  136,952.8208/15/2018

02-60-06-55-1300  Cerniglia Co 2018 WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENT  47715  750.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  137,702.82

02-60-06-56-0102  Community Bank SEWER LOAN PRINCIPAL & INTEREST  168  37,465.9908/14/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  37,465.99

02-60-06-56-0103  Community Bank SEWER LOAN PRINCIPAL & INTEREST  168  209.8908/14/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:60  209.89

Subtotal for Fund: 02  575,563.39

03-00-00-53-0390  BLA Inc CHICAGO AVE RESURFACING - PAYMENT #2  47782  18,760.6208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  18,760.62

Subtotal for Fund: 03  18,760.62

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 32

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-55-1150
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KENNYCON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=e1b9f8b5-661f-401a-9441-dfbe94a5134e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-55-1300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=burke
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=7ed2915d-773f-4771-a6b1-992adcd45794
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-55-1300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CERNIGLI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=ec4fdfa3-cdbb-4a87-81b3-825bf7b95bda
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-55-1300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CERNIGLI
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=d0d39cb2-8b6c-4005-9319-553c019b2cb0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-56-0102
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=commbank
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=503823c1-cb0b-4df0-a21a-858361c966a8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:02-60-06-56-0103
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=commbank
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=234086a1-0a77-4868-9f7a-dec95dc2f235
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:03-00-00-53-0390
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BLA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=fd2353fb-9caa-409b-ab93-c8c64dd17d0e


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

13-00-00-55-8720  Baltic Networks USA PD VIDEO SIKLU - WEST CAMERAS  47778  9,910.9708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  9,910.97

13-00-00-55-8720  Battery Service Corporation BATTERIES & EQUIPMENT FOR PD ST CAMERA SYSTEM  47779  1,089.9008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,089.90

13-00-00-55-8720  Greatline Communications CABLE INSTALL FOR RFPD PTZ CAMERA SYSTEM  47731  1,135.0008/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,135.00

13-00-00-55-8720  Tower Works SIKLU INSTALL PD EAST CAMERAS  47852  1,360.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,360.00

Subtotal for Fund: 13  13,495.87

14-00-00-44-4240  Municipal Collection Services Inc RED LIGHT CAMERA COLLECTIONS/JUL 2018  0  379.1208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  379.12

14-00-00-55-0500  Greatline Communications VILLAGE HALL CAMERA PULLS - FRONT COUNTER  47805  1,824.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,824.00

14-00-00-55-0500  Interiors for Business Inc SECOND FLOOR EFFICIENCY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT  47812  95,032.4708/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  95,032.47

14-00-00-55-8620  Vantage Point Corp LAPTOP/J PAPE  47856  2,465.2108/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  2,465.21

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 33

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:13-00-00-55-8720
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BALTIC
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f088916c-f7b7-48d7-9293-f924d3d41e41
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:13-00-00-55-8720
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=battserv
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8c4cdea1-afaa-43b8-983b-f875ef66c5f5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:13-00-00-55-8720
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GREATLIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=f223bf7f-a7b3-499e-8f37-aa8d1fb65e43
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:13-00-00-55-8720
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TOWER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=baf59a69-a271-40bf-a88a-c8adfa8da644
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:14-00-00-44-4240
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MUNICOL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8647c9cf-48d6-41d5-9ff1-2d35324ab81b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:14-00-00-55-0500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GREATLIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=48b70214-3a8b-4b99-a72e-feadaaa6a48f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:14-00-00-55-0500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=INTERIOR
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=373f9146-963f-44c3-9eb9-1d0d2c3a52c8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:14-00-00-55-8620
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=VANTAGE
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=9cb659e8-7383-4ffa-b7c4-e75e3a127a08


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Subtotal for Fund: 14  99,700.80

16-00-00-53-0420  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd TIF ISSUES (2008)  0  695.3008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  695.30

Subtotal for Fund: 16  695.30

31-00-00-53-0100  Card Services NATURAL GAS BILL FOR 10 LATHROP AVE  47769  28.3408/27/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  28.34

31-00-00-53-0100  ComEd ELECTRICITY FOR 10 LATHROP  47718  10.9508/15/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  10.95

31-00-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd MADISON ST TIF DISTRICT  0  1,044.6208/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  1,044.62

Subtotal for Fund: 31  1,083.91

32-00-00-53-0380  Kane, McKenna & Assoc Inc NORTH AVE TIF CONSULTING  47817  700.0008/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  700.00

32-00-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd NORTH AVE TIF DISTRICT  0  943.0008/31/2018

32-00-00-53-0425  Klein Thorpe and Jenkins Ltd NORTH AVE TIF DISTRICT  0  3,763.0408/31/2018

Vendor Subtotal for Division:00  4,706.04

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 34

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:16-00-00-53-0420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=c8742674-5c48-40f9-9961-86ae20cd57d0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:31-00-00-53-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CARDSVCS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=0def9034-fe06-4d69-8b8b-24504a3abbfd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:31-00-00-53-0100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COMED3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=8ba9b6f4-f338-4666-b200-8be3f1cce025
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:31-00-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=43cc6b31-85ac-44ea-ac23-da847989c934
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:32-00-00-53-0380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KANEMCK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=aa12942c-c32d-48db-96da-1a9e5403ab40
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:32-00-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=78661821-cd8d-4c36-b75e-12a024356979
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2019:32-00-00-53-0425
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KLEIN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APCheck&id=85af8084-0d83-4a89-8ad1-803d6b46dde4


Account Number Vendor AmountGL DateDescription Check No PO No

Subtotal for Fund: 32  5,406.04

Report Total:  1,228,785.74

AP-Transactions by Account (09/12/2018 -  8:55 AM) Page 35



 

 
 

Date: September 17, 2018 
 

To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
Village Board of Trustees 

 
From:   Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 

Subj: Village Administrator’s Report 
 

 

Upcoming Meetings (all meetings are at Village Hall unless otherwise noted) 
   

Wednesday, Sept. 19   
Thursday, Sept. 20  
Thursday, Sept. 27 
Tuesday, October 9  
Thursday, October 11 
Monday, October 15  
 

7:00 pm 
7:30 pm 
7:00 pm 
7:00 pm 
7:30 pm 
7:00 pm 
 
  

Traffic & Safety Commission Meeting 
Development Review Board Meeting  
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting  
Sustainability Commission 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Village Board of Trustees Meeting (Rescheduled from 10/8) 
 

Recent Payments of >$10,000 

In accordance with the purchasing policy, the following is a summary of payments between $10,000 and $20,000 that 
have occurred since the last Board meeting:  None 
 
 
 

No new Business Licenses issued. 
 
Thank you. 

MEMORANDUM 



 
 
 
 

        MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

TO:   Eric Palm 
   Village Administrator 
 
FROM:  Kurt Bohlmann 
   Fire Chief 
 
DATE:   September 13, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: New Fire Department Staff Vehicle  
 
 
 
Issue/Analysis: The 2019 Capital Improvement Plan provides for the replacement 
of one Fire Department staff vehicle.  The dollar amount allotted was $26,000.00 
based on the purchase of similar vehicles by the Police Department last year.  
Staff is recommending the purchase of a 2019 Ford Utility Interceptor AWD 
vehicle. 
 
Since the approval of the CIP, the actual cost of the vehicle has been released 
through the Suburban Purchasing Cooperative and the cost is slightly higher than 
the amount allocated in the CIP.  The base price is $26,456.00.  With several 
minor options added at a cost of $777.00, the total price for the vehicle is 
$27,233.00. 
 
The cost of these vehicles is projected to go up significantly during the next 
purchase period due to a complete redesign of the vehicle.  The Capital 
Equipment Replacement has reserve funds to handle the modest overage.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the waiver of formal bids and purchase of a 
2019 Ford Explorer through Currie Motors Fleet through the Suburban 
Purchasing Cooperative for  $27,233.00.   



















A Tradition of Service to the Community 
 

Village of River Forest 
 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Eric Palm- Village Administrator  
  

 FROM: James O’Shea- Chief of Police 
 

DATE: September 7, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: NIPAS Resolution 

 
Issue: The Village of River Forest has been a member of the Northern Illinois Police Alarm System since 
2003.  Our participation in NIPAS provides essential mutual aid support to the Village during times when 
a police emergency exceeds our capability.  NIPAS has grown in size since its inception to over one 
hundred participating agencies and has proven to be an essential asset to the region. During the NIPAS 
annual membership meeting on May 10, 2018, the NIPAS Board of Officers provided a report 
recommending NIPAS Agreement and the NIPAS Bylaws be updated.  The NIPAS Agreement is the 
foundation document adopted by action of the corporate authorities of each member agency.  The NIPAS 
Bylaws are adopted and modified from time to time by the NIPAS membership at its annual meeting or 
any special meeting. 
 
The following changes proposed by the NIPAS Board will be enabled by the new NIPAS Amended 
Agreement: 

1. General updates to a document that has not been modified since 1983. 
2. Allow for the expansion of NIPAS membership to included non-municipal law enforcement 

agencies within the NIPAS service area.  Such agencies are certified by the State of Illinois and 
often serve Colleges, Universities and other entities. 

3. Simplifies and clarifies procedures for entities wishing to terminate participation in NIPAS. 
4. Reduces NIPAS’s risk of liability by incorporating “best practice” language designed to aid in 

defending in case of legal challenges. 

The NIPAS Board has asked each participating member to seek approval from its corporate authorities to 
update the NIPAS Agreement.  The approval would take the form of adopting a Resolution on the agenda 
approving continued participation in NIPAS under the Amended Agreement.  Once three-fourths of the 
NIPAS members have adopted the Amended Agreement, the NIPAS Board will call a special meeting of 
all participating members.  Adequate notice will be provided to any participating member not yet taking 
action on adopting the Amended Agreement. It is anticipated NIPAS will adopt the new Amended 
Agreement and act to adopt the new NIPAS Bylaws at the special meeting to be held later in 2018.  Any 
participating agency that has not adopted the Amended Agreement by the time of the special meeting will 
cease to be a member of NIPAS. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Resolution. 
 
Recommendation: Motion to approve a Resolution authorizing The River Forest Police Department to 
continue to be a member of NIPAS. 
  
 



1 
 

VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST 
 

RESOLUTION  #:_____________        
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN  
AMENDED MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT FOR THE 
NORTHERN ILLINOIS POLICE ALARM SYSTEM  

 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution authorizes units of 
local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not 
prohibited by law or ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and the Illinois 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1, et seq., authorizes units of local government 
to exercise any power or powers, privileges or authority which may be exercised by the unit of 
local government individually to be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other local government 
or body in the State; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Northern Illinois Police Alarm System (“NIPAS”) is an 

intergovernmental organization established via an intergovernmental service and mutual aid 
agreement (“NIPAS Agreement”) entered into by law enforcement agencies serving the northern 
Illinois and Chicagoland region (“Participating Agencies”); and 
 

WHEREAS, through the NIPAS Agreement, the Participating Agencies have agreed to 
provide one another with mutual aid in the event of an emergency situation within the primary law 
enforcement jurisdiction of a Participating Agency that threatens or causes loss of life and property 
and exceeds the stand-alone physical and organizational capabilities of that Participating Agency; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, on ___September 17______, _2018_, the Village Board of Trustees adopted 
Resolution No. _                      _ approving the NIPAS Agreement whereby the Village’s police 
department became a Participating Agency in NIPAS subject to the terms and conditions of the 
NIPAS Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, as NIPAS has now expanded to over 100 Participating Agencies, the needs 
of NIPAS have evolved and grown in complexity beyond the constraints of the NIPAS Agreement 
as it is currently constituted; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to adequately continue to meet those needs and serve its growing 

number of Participating Agencies, NIPAS has requested that its Participating Agencies agree to 
amend the NIPAS Agreement by entering into an amended NIPAS Agreement (“Amended NIPAS 
Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village Board of Trustees has determined that it is in the best interests of 

the Village and its residents to enter into the Amended NIPAS Agreement; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board of Trustees of the 
Village of RIVER FOREST, COOK County, Illinois, as follows: 



2 
 

 
SECTION 1:  RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated into, and made a part 

of, this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2: APPROVAL OF AMENDED NIPAS AGREEMENT.  The Village 
Board/Board of Trustees hereby approves the Amended NIPAS Agreement in substantially the 
form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A. 
 

SECTION 3: AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE AMENDED NIPAS 
AGREEMENT.  The Village Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and directs the Village 
President and the Chief of Police to execute and the Village Clerk to attest, on behalf of the Village, 
the Amended NIPAS Agreement approved in Section 2 of this Resolution.  

 
SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from 

and after its passage and approval according to law. 
 

Passed on a roll call vote of the Corporate Authorities on the________ day of 

________________, 2018. 

AYES:  ___________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________ 

ATTEST: 

    __________________________________ 
    Village Clerk 
      

APPROVED by me this ________day of _______________, 2018. 

      ___________________________________ 
             Village President 
 

APPROVED and FILED in my office this ________day of ______________, 2018. 
and published in pamphlet form in the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois 

 

 



3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AMENDED NIPAS AGREEMENT 
 

 















MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: September 17, 2018 
 
TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
FROM: John Anderson, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order – 2018 Street Maintenance Program (Pavement Crack Sealing) 
  
 
Issue: Construction of the 2018 Street Maintenance Program (Pavement Crack Sealing) was 
completed during the month of September, 2018. Initially, $50,000 was budgeted for this work. 
 
Analysis: The original contract for this project was awarded to A.C. Pavement Striping Co. in the 
amount of $45,828.00 on July 9, 2018. In an attempt to maximize the contract award value, the 
contractor slightly exceeded the original contract amount. The cost of this overage brought the total 
amount of work completed to $45,899.42. While the cost is in excess of the original contract amount, 
it is still within the project budget of $50,000.00.  
 
Recommendation:  Consider a Motion to approve a Change Order in the amount of $71.42 for the 
construction of the 2018 Street Maintenance Program (Pavement Crack Sealing). 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



 382825_1 1 

RESOLUTION NO.   ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER NO.    1      

TO THE  A.C. PAVEMENT STRIPING CO.       CONTRACT RELATING TO  
THE  2018 STREET MAINTENANCE PROGRAM (PAVEMENT CRACK SEALING)  

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of River Forest (“Village”) is an Illinois municipal corporation 

organized under the Illinois Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, on ___July 9, 2018___, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 

approved and authorized the execution of a contract (“Contract”) for the ___2018 Street 

Maintenance Program (Pavement Crack Sealing)___ (“Project”) with ___A.C. Pavement Striping 

Co.___ (“Contractor”). The original amount of the Project was ___forty five thousand eight 

hundred twenty eight and (00/100)___ Dollars ($45,828.00). The anticipated completion date for 

the Project was ___September 15___, 2018 (“Project Completion Date”); and  

 WHEREAS, the Contractor has filed a request for payment of Change Order No. _1_ in 

the amount of ___seventy one and (42/100) ___ Dollars ($71.42), due to the need to 

___maximize contract award value___, and a request for an extension of time to the Project 

Completion Date of an additional ___zero___ (_0_) days. A copy of Change Order No. _1_ is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, based on the recommendation of the Contractor, the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village make the following findings and determinations in accordance 720 ILCS 

5/33E-9 regarding Change Order No. _1_ to the Contract: 

1.  Change Order No. _1_ (or a series of change orders): (a) are made necessary by 

circumstances not foreseeable at the time the Contract was signed; (b) are germane to 

the Contract as originally signed; and (c) are in the best interests of the Village. 



 382825_1 2 

WHEREAS, in addition, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village find and 

determine that, pursuant to 50 ILCS 525/5, Change Order No. _1_ (or a series of change orders) 

does not increase the original Contract price by fifty percent (50%) or more of the original 

Contract price, and thus the Village is not obligated to re-bid the additional work proposed under 

Change Order No. _1_; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village, pursuant to their powers 

as provided by 720 ILCS 5/33E-9, find that it is in the best interests of the Village and the public 

to approve Change Order No. _1_ because it relates to a public project and is for a public 

purpose.  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois: 

 SECTION 1: Each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated by reference into this 

Section 1 and made a part hereof as material and operative provisions of this Resolution. 

 SECTION 2: The President and Board of Trustees of the Village approve Change Order 

No. _1_ in the amount of ___ seventy one and (42/100) ___ Dollars ($71.42). The President and 

Board of Trustees further authorize and direct the Village President and the Village Clerk, or 

their designees, to execute Change Order No. _1_, execute the check or other payment to the 

Contractor in an amount not to exceed the amount of ___forty five thousand eight hundred 

ninety nine and (42/100)__ Dollars ($45,899.42) and execute any other necessary documents to 

implement Change Order No. _1_. The President and Board of Trustees also recognize and 

approve an increase in the completion time for the Project, as set forth in the Contract, by thirty 

(30) days or more. 

 
 



 382825_1 3 

 ADOPTED on a roll call vote of the Corporate Authorities on the _17__ day of 

September_, 2018. 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT: 

  
 

 APPROVED by me this _17__ day of _September__, 2018. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Village President 
 
 

 APPROVED and FILED in my office this _17__ day of __September__, 2018 and 
published in pamphlet form in the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois. 
 

   ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
  Village Clerk 

  



 382825_1 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 
CHANGE ORDER NO. _1_ TO THE CONTRACT  

(attached) 



jloster
Text Box
          Exhibit A



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 14, 2018 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees 
 
From: Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
Subj:  Madison Street Incentive Agreement – Skincare Company 
 ______________________________________________________________________________  
 
Issue: As previously discussed, attached please find an agreement with Skincare Company Spa 
Salon for incentives to relocate to 7756 Madison Street. 
 
Analysis:  Owner Sandra Capizzi provided two contractor quotes for the buildout work to her newly 
leased space at 7756 Madison Street.  The low bid total buildout is $72,500, of which this incentive 
will cover 50%, or $36,250.  The incentive will be paid out over three installments.   
 
The first installment ($12,250) will be paid at the time of the certificate of occupancy later this year.  
The second and third installments will be paid on the first and second anniversary of the first 
payment. 
 
The installments have been put into place for two reasons.  First, from a cash flow perspective, as 
the TIF is still in its infancy, this will limit the amount of money we will need to transfer to meet our 
obligation.  Second, Staff had looked at an upfront payment with a claw back provision.  With not 
much in terms of collateral to pledge for a claw back because the incentive is with the lease, Staff 
felt an incremental payment would make the most sense.  If the company stopped operating during 
the term of the incentives, no further payment would be made.  If we had to recoup the money with 
a non-collateralized claw back, we would be forced to file suit against the tenant for the funds. 
 
The EDC reviewed this agreement and suggested that Staff review the business financials before 
proceeding with the agreement.  The agreement has an “open book provision” that allows us to look 
at various items such as financials, loan agreements, etc. prior to and during the first year of the 
agreement.  This language will address the situation raised by the EDC. 
 
Currently, the owner of the center is paying a reduced amount in property taxes due to the vacancies 
of the entire center.  Of the five vacancies in the last assessment, this tenant will take three suites 
which will increase the assessed valuation of the property.  Staff believes the Village will get a 
return on its investment in five years or less. 



 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Village Board to consider the attached ordinance 
approving an agreement with Skincare Company Spa Salon. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Attachment – Ordinance with agreement 



 401164_2 1 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR THE 7756 MADISON STREET SKIN CARE COMPANY SPA SALON DEVELOPMENT 

COMPRISING A PART OF THE MADISON STREET TIF DISTRICT 
OF THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of River Forest, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1:  The President and Board of Trustees of the Village find as follows: 
 

A. The Village of River Forest (“Village”) is a non-home rule municipality pursuant to 
Section 7 of Article VII of the Constitution of the State of Illinois. 

 
B. The Village has the authority, pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois, 

including 65 ILCS 5/8-1-2.5, to promote the health, safety and welfare of the 
Village and its inhabitants, to prevent the presence of blight, to encourage private 
development in order to enhance the local tax base and increase additional tax 
revenues realized by the Village, to foster increased economic activity within the 
Village, to increase employment opportunities within the Village, and to enter into 
contractual agreements with third parties for the purpose of achieving the 
aforesaid purposes, and otherwise take action in the best interests of the Village. 

 
C. The State of Illinois has adopted tax increment financing pursuant to the Tax 

Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq., as 
amended from time to time (“TIF Act”).   

 
D. Pursuant to its powers and in accordance with the TIF Act, and pursuant to 

Ordinance Nos. 3630, 3631 and 3632, adopted on November 28, 2016, the River 
Forest Madison Street Tax Increment Financing District (“TIF District”) was 
formed as a TIF district, for a twenty-three (23) year period. Ordinance Nos. 
3630, 3631 and 3632 are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
E. Pursuant to and in accordance with the TIF Act and the Ordinances establishing 

the TIF District, the Corporate Authorities of the Village are empowered under 
Section 4(b) of the TIF Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-4(b), to make and enter into all 
contracts with property owners, developers, tenants and others necessary or 
incidental to the implementation and furtherance of the Redevelopment Plan and 
Project for the TIF District. 

 
F. Skin Care-SC, Inc. d/b/a Skin Care Company Spa Salon, an Illinois corporation 

(“Tenant”) is, or will be, the tenant of the real property located at 7756 Madison 
Street, Suites 7-9, River Forest, Illinois 60305 (“Property”), which is within the 
boundaries of the TIF District, and which Property was vacant and 
underperforming prior to Tenant’s possession of it.  
 

G.  The Village desires to reimburse the Tenant for certain costs eligible for 
reimbursement under the Act incurred by Tenant in its relocation to the Property 
and Tenant’s rehabilitation and renovation of the Property, all in furtherance of 
the Redevelopment Plan and Project for the TIF District, which costs Tenant 



 401164_2 2 

would not have incurred but-for the incentives provided by the Village in the 
enclosed Agreement (as defined in Section 1.H. below). 
 

H.  It is the desire of the Tenant to occupy the Property, to increase tax revenues in 
for the Village, to increase employment in the Village and to further positive 
economic growth within the TIF District on the terms set forth in the 
“Redevelopment Agreement For The 7756 Madison Street Skin Care Company 
Spa Salon Development Comprising A Part Of The Madison Street TIF District Of 
The Village Of River Forest, Illinois,” attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and made a 
part hereof (“Agreement”). 

 
I.  It is in the best interest of the Village to enter into the Agreement, to ensure that 

redevelopment within the TIF District continues. 
 

SECTION 2: Based upon the foregoing, the Village President and the Village Clerk be 
and are hereby authorized and directed to execute the Agreement, and the Village 
Administrator, and his designees, are further authorized and directed to undertake the Village’s 
obligations under the Agreement. 

 
 SECTION 3: That all ordinances and resolutions, or parts of ordinances or resolutions, 
in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby expressly repealed. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Each section, paragraph, sentence, clause and provision of this 
Ordinance is separable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or provision of this 
Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the unconstitutionality or 
invalidity of such section, paragraph, sentence, clause or provision shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than that part affected by such decision. 

 
SECTION 5:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 

 ADOPTED this 17th day of September, 2018, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:__________________________________________________ 

 NAYS:__________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: _______________________________________________ 

 APPROVED by me this 17th day of September, 2018. 
  
      ____________________________________ 
                         Catherine Adduci, Village President 
ATTEST:     
 
______________________________ 
Kathleen Brand-White, Village Clerk 
 
 Published by me in pamphlet form this 17th day of September, 2018. 
 
       _____________________________ 
                                        Kathleen Brand-White, Village Clerk 



 401164_2 3 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

(attached) 
 
 
 



 

 401163_2 1 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR THE 7756 MADISON STREET SKIN CARE COMPANY SPA SALON 

DEVELOPMENT COMPRISING A PART OF THE MADISON STREET TIF DISTRICT 
OF THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS 

 
This REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE 7756 MADISON STREET 

SKIN CARE COMPANY SPA SALON DEVELOPMENT COMPRISING A PART OF 
THE MADISON STREET TIF DISTRICT OF THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, 
ILLINOIS (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the _____ day of 
______________, 2018 (“Effective Date”) by and between the Village of River Forest, 
Illinois, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Village”) and Skin Care-SC, Inc. d/b/a Skin 
Care Company Spa Salon, an Illinois corporation (“Tenant”). The Village and the Tenant 
are sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the 
“Parties.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the Preliminary Statements, the mutual covenants herein 
contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS 
 

Among the matters of mutual inducement which have resulted in this Agreement 
are the following: 

 
A. The Village is a non-home rule unit of government in accordance with 

Article VII, Section 6 of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970. 
 

B. The Village has the authority, pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois, 
including 65 ILCS 5/8-1-2.5, to promote the health, safety and welfare of 
the Village and its inhabitants, to prevent the presence of blight, to 
encourage private development in order to enhance the local tax base and 
increase additional tax revenues realized by the Village, to foster 
increased economic activity within the Village, to increase employment 
opportunities within the Village, and to enter into contractual agreements 
with third parties for the purpose of achieving the aforesaid purposes, and 
otherwise take action in the best interests of the Village. 

 
C. The Village is authorized under the provisions of the Tax Increment 

Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq., as amended 
(“Act”), to finance redevelopment in accordance with the conditions and 
requirements set forth in the Act. 

 
D. Pursuant to Ordinance Numbers 3630, 3631 and 3632, adopted on 

November 28, 2016, the Village designated the tax increment 



 

 401163_2 2 

redevelopment project area (“Redevelopment Project Area”), approved a 
tax increment redevelopment plan and project (“TIF Plan”), and adopted 
tax increment financing relative to the Village's Madison Street Tax 
Increment Financing District (“TIF District”); said TIF District being legally 
described and depicted as set forth in EXHIBIT A-1 and EXHIBIT A-2, 
respectively, attached hereto and made part hereof. 

 
E. There is certain real estate located within the Redevelopment Project 

Area, said property being legally described on EXHIBIT B, attached hereto 
and made a part hereof, known as 7756 Madison Street, Suites 7-9, River 
Forest, Illinois 60305 (“Property”). 

 
F. The Tenant has secured a lease for the Property and intends to redevelop 

and rehabilitate the Property with a new interior build out, as depicted on 
the site plan attached hereto as EXHIBIT C, and made part hereof, and as 
described in further detail in EXHIBIT D, attached hereto and made part 
hereof (“Project”). 

 
G. It is necessary for the successful completion of the Project that the Village 

enter into this Agreement with the Tenant to provide for the redevelopment 
and rehabilitation of the Property, thereby implementing the TIF Plan. 

 
H. The Tenant has been unable and unwilling to undertake the 

redevelopment of the Property with the Project, but for certain tax 
increment financing (“TIF”) incentives, with regard to reimbursement of 
certain TIF eligible redevelopment project costs, to be provided by the 
Village in accordance with the Act and the powers of the Village, which the 
Village is willing to provide under the terms and conditions contained 
herein. The Tenant estimates that the Project will provide the following 
economic benefits to the TIF District and/or the Village: 

 
1. Employment: Ten (10) full time equivalent employees. 
 
2. Property Tax: 7756 Madison Street, River Forest, Illinois 

(“7756 Madison Street Property”) has experienced a sixty 
four percent (64%) decrease in assessed valuation due to 
vacancies in the building therein. The Tenant will eliminate 
fifty percent (50%) of the vacancies in the 7756 Madison 
Street Property and is expected to increase the real estate 
taxes from the 7756 Madison Street Property by 
approximately Sixteen Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($16,000.00) per year. 

 
3. Sales Tax: Fifteen Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($1,500.00) 

per year. 
 



 

 401163_2 3 

4. Other: Redevelopment and renovation of vacant commercial 
storefronts in the shopping center at 7756 Madison Street, 
River Forest, Illinois 60305. 

 
I. The Parties acknowledge and agree that but for the aforementioned TIF 

incentives, to be provided by the Village, Tenant cannot successfully and 
economically develop the Property with the Project in a manner or time 
satisfactory to the Village. The Village has determined that it is desirable 
and in the Village's best interest to assist the Tenant in the manner set 
forth herein, and as this Agreement may be supplemented and amended 
from time to time pursuant to the mutual agreement of the Parties and in 
the manner as herein provided.  

 
J. The incentives to be provided are summarized as follows, and shall be 

provided as set forth in this Agreement: 
 

1. Type of Incentive: Rehabilitation, renovation and relocation, 
see EXHIBIT E attached hereto and made a part hereof 

 
2. Incentive Amount: Thirty-Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty 

and No/100 Dollars ($36,250) (“Funding Cap”) 
 
3.  Payment Method: See Section IV.B. below, which is 

summarized as being a reimbursement from TIF District 
Incremental Property Taxes (as defined in Section II.E. 
below), with  Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and 
No/100 Dollars ($16,250.00) being paid to the Tenant upon 
on the Village issuing a certificate of occupancy (“C.O.”) for 
the Project, with Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($10,000.00) being paid to Tenant one (1) year after the 
C.O. has been issued, and with Ten Thousand and No/100 
Dollars ($10,000.00) being paid two (2) years after the C.O. 
has been issued, subject to the limitations set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 
K. The Village, in order to stimulate and induce redevelopment and 

rehabilitation of the Property with the Project, has agreed to provide 
certain incentives to the Tenant in accordance with the terms and 
provisions of the Act and this Agreement. 

 
L. This Agreement has been submitted to the Corporate Authorities of the 

Village (as defined below) for consideration and review, the Corporate 
Authorities have taken all actions required to be taken prior to the 
execution of this Agreement in order to make the same, and any and all 
actions taken by the Village in furtherance hereof, binding upon the Village 
according to the terms hereof, and any and all actions of the Corporate 



 

 401163_2 4 

Authorities of the Village precedent to the execution of this Agreement 
have been undertaken and performed in the manner required by law. 

 
M.  This Agreement has been submitted to the shareholders of the Tenant for 

consideration and review, the Tenant’s shareholders have taken all 
actions required to be taken prior to the execution of this Agreement in 
order to make the same binding upon the Tenant according to the terms 
hereof, and any and all action of the Tenant's members precedent to the 
execution of this Agreement have been undertaken and performed in the 
manner required by law. 

 
N. The Village is desirous of having the Redevelopment Project Area 

rehabilitated, developed and redeveloped in accordance with the TIF Plan, 
and particularly the Project as a part thereof, in order to serve the needs of 
the Village, arrest physical decay and decline in the Redevelopment 
Project Area, increase employment opportunities, eliminate vacancies, 
stimulate commercial growth and stabilize the tax base of the Village and, 
in furtherance thereof, the Village is willing to offer Tenant the TIF 
incentives referenced above, under the terms and conditions hereinafter 
set forth, to assist such development. 

 
II. DEFINITIONS 
 

For the purposes of this Agreement, unless the context clearly requires 
otherwise, words and terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings 
provided from place to place herein, and as follows: 

 
A. “Change in Law” means any of the following after the Effective Date: (1) 

the enactment, adoption, promulgation or modification of any federal, 
State or local law, ordinance, code, rule or regulation (other than by the 
Village, or, with respect to those made by the Village, only if they violate 
the terms of this Agreement); (2) the order or judgment of any federal or 
State court, administrative agency or other governmental body (other than 
the Village); or (3) the adoption, promulgation, modification or 
interpretation in writing of a written guideline or policy statement by a 
governmental agency. 

 
B. “Corporate Authorities” means the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of River Forest, Illinois. 
 

C. “Day” means a calendar day. 
 

D. “Effective Date” means the day on which this Agreement is executed by 
the Village, with said date appearing on page 1 hereof. 

 



 

 401163_2 5 

E. "Incremental Property Taxes" means that portion of the ad valorem real 
estate taxes, if any, arising from the taxes levied upon the Redevelopment 
Project Area, which taxes are actually collected and paid to the Village, 
and which are attributable to the increase in the equalized assessed 
valuation ("EAV") of the Property over and above the EAV of the 
Redevelopment Project Area at the time of the formation of the TIF 
District, all as determined by the County Clerk of the County of Cook, 
Illinois, pursuant to and in accordance with the TIF Act, those Ordinances 
referenced in Section I.D. above and this Agreement, and which have 
been received by the Village. 

 
F. “Incentive Fund” means the fund set up by the Village into which the 

Village will deposit Incremental Property Taxes. 
 

G. “Party” or “Parties” means the Village and/or the Tenant, 
individually/collectively, and their respective successors and/or assigns as 
permitted herein, as the context requires. 

 
H. “Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability 

company, joint venture, association, trust, or government or any agency or 
political subdivision thereof, or any agency or entity created or existing 
under the compact clause of the United States Constitution. 

 
I. “State” means the State of Illinois.  

 
J. "TIF Eligible Redevelopment Costs" means the costs of the Project, to 

be reimbursed, in part, from Incremental Property Taxes pursuant to the 
TIF Act, and permitted to be reimbursed as a “redevelopment project cost” 
in Section 3(q) of the TIF Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3(q), by the Village, as 
provided for in EXHIBIT E and as otherwise provided for in this 
Agreement. 

 
III. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS 
 

This Agreement, except where the context by clear implication shall otherwise 
require, shall be construed and applied as follows: 

 
A. Definitions include both singular and plural. Pronouns include both 

singular and plural and cover all genders. The words “include,” “includes,” 
and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without 
limitation”.  

 
 B. Headings of Sections herein are solely for convenience of reference and 

do not constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the meaning, 
construction or effect hereof.  

 



 

 401163_2 6 

 C. All exhibits attached to this Agreement shall be and are operative 
provisions of this Agreement and shall be and are incorporated by 
reference in the context of use where mentioned and referenced in this 
Agreement. In the event of a conflict between any exhibit and the terms of 
this Agreement, the Agreement shall control.  

 
 D. Any certificate, letter or opinion required to be given pursuant to this 

Agreement means a signed document attesting to or acknowledging the 
circumstances, representations, opinions of law or other matters therein 
stated or set forth. Reference herein to supplemental agreements, 
certificates, demands, requests, approvals, consents, notices and the like 
means that such shall be in writing whether or not a writing is specifically 
mentioned in the context of use.  

 
 E. The Village Administrator, unless applicable law requires action by the 

Corporate Authorities, shall have the power and authority to make or grant 
or do those things, certificates, requests, demands, notices and other 
actions required that are ministerial in nature or described in this 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Village and with the effect of binding 
the Village as limited by and provided for in this Agreement. The Tenant is 
entitled to rely on the full power and authority of the Persons executing 
this Agreement on behalf of the Village as having been properly and 
legally given by the Village.  

 
 F. In connection with the foregoing and other actions to be taken under this 

Agreement, and unless applicable documents require action by Tenant in 
a different manner Tenant hereby designates Sandra Capizzi as its 
authorized representatives who shall individually have the power and 
authority to make or grant or do all things, supplemental agreements, 
certificates, requests, demands, approvals, consents, notices and other 
actions required or described in this Agreement for and on behalf of the 
Tenant and with the effect of binding the Tenant in that connection (such 
individual being designated as an “Authorized Tenant Representative”). 
The Tenant shall have the right to change its Authorized Tenant 
Representative by providing the Village with written notice of such change 
from both authorized representatives which notice shall be sent in 
accordance with Section XV.B. of this Agreement. 

 
IV.  INCENTIVE 

 
A. Incentive Amount. 
 

1. The Village shall reimburse Tenant for TIF Eligible Redevelopment 
Costs, in relation to the Project, in an amount not to exceed the 
Funding Cap. 

 



 

 401163_2 7 

2. The total amount paid by the Village to the Tenant from the 
Incentive Fund shall not exceed the Funding Cap. 

 
3.  The Tenant shall apply for and receive all necessary building 

permits for the Project. The Village shall waive the Village’s building 
permit fees for the Project. 

 
B. Conditions and Procedure for Payment of Incentive. 

 
1. The Village’s obligation to reimburse the Tenant in relation to the 

Project from the Incentive Fund is subject to the following 
conditions precedent, in addition to those set forth elsewhere in this 
Agreement (i) the Tenant shall have provided the Village with an 
executed copy of its lease for the Property; (ii) the Tenant is 
operating the Project on the Property; (iii) the Tenant is current with 
all Federal, State and local tax obligations; (iv) the Incentive Fund 

has adequate Incremental Property Taxes to pay the amounts requested 

for reimbursement by the Tenant; and (v) the Tenant is in compliance 
with all of the terms of this Agreement and the laws and regulations 
of the Village, the State of Illinois and the United States of America. 

 
2. The Village shall reimburse the Tenant from Incremental Property 

Taxes deposited into the Incentive Fund, subject to the Funding 
Cap, for the Tenant’s actual expenditures of TIF Eligible 
Redevelopment Costs set forth in EXHIBIT E, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, relative to the Project (“Incentive”), incurred by 
the Tenant prior to or after the Effective Date. Said Incentive shall 
be paid to the Tenant as follows: 

 
i. The Village shall pay Incremental Property Taxes from the 

Incentive Fund to the Tenant on each June 1st and 
December 1st after the Effective Date (each a “Payment 
Date”), during the Term (as defined in Section XV.O. below) 
of this Agreement, provided the Village is in receipt of the 
Tenant's sworn request for reimbursement of TIF Eligible 
Redevelopment Costs documented by the Tenant to have 
been incurred by the Tenant in relation to the Project (which 
documentation shall accompany each such request for 
reimbursement), subject to the following additional timing 
limitations:  
 
a. Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and No/100 

Dollars ($16,250.00) of the Incentive shall be eligible 
to be paid upon on the Village issuing a certificate of 
occupancy for the Project (“C.O.”); 

 
 



 

 401163_2 8 

b. An additional Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($10,000.00) of the Incentive shall be eligible to be 
paid one (1) year after the date the C.O. was issued; 
and  

 
c. The remaining Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars 

($10,000.00) shall be eligible to be paid two (2) years 
after the date the C.O. was issued. 

 
ii. The Tenant’s sworn requests for payment of the Incentive 

shall be submitted using the form attached hereto as 
EXHIBIT F and made a part hereof. Unless the Village has 
good cause to believe that the Tenant's request for 
reimbursement seeks reimbursement for non-TIF Eligible 
Redevelopment Costs, the Village shall pay such request for 
reimbursement on the next Payment Date, provided there 
are sufficient Incremental Property Taxes within the 
Incentive Fund to do so. If the Village elects to withhold or 
deny such payment, the Village shall promptly (and in any 
event not later than the date payment would otherwise have 
been due) advise the Tenant in writing as to the specific 
basis for the Village’s position. 

 
iii. If the Tenant requests reimbursement from Incremental 

Property Taxes from the Incentive Fund, and if the Village 
authorizes the distribution of such funds in an amount 
greater than the then-existing balance of Incremental 
Property Taxes in the Incentive Fund, the Village shall 
distribute any approved but undistributed Incentive to Tenant 
on the next Payment Date, or a Payment Date thereafter, 
provided that the Village has received and deposited 
additional Incremental Property Taxes into the Incentive 
Fund, in an amount sufficient to cover all or a part of said 
authorized but undistributed Incentive. No interest shall 
accrue on any amount of authorized but undistributed 
Incentive. 

 
iv. The Incentive paid to the Tenant shall only be paid from 

Incremental Property Taxes actually received by the Village, 
unless the Village determines otherwise in its sole discretion. 

 
v. The Incentive by the Village shall cease upon the first of the 

Tenant’s receipt of the full amount of the Funding Cap or the 
cancellation or expiration of the Term (as defined in Section 
XV.O. below) of this Agreement. The date the Tenant 
receives the full amount of the Incentive up to the Funding 



 

 401163_2 9 

Cap shall be the “Incentive Funding Date.”  
 

3. The Incentive is not a general obligation of the Village, and the 
Village’s full faith and credit are not pledged or encumbered to 
provide the Tenant with the Incentive. The TIF Eligible 
Redevelopment Costs for the Project is set forth in EXHIBIT E, and 
the Village shall not reimburse the Tenant for any costs of the 
Project not listed on said EXHIBIT E. 

 
C. Termination of Incentive. If the Project ceases operating before two (2) 

years has passed from the date the C.O. was issued, the Village shall not 
pay any of the remaining Incentive owed to the Tenant, and the Tenant 
shall forfeit the remaining Incentive.  

 
V. UNDERTAKING ON THE PART OF THE VILLAGE 
   

The Village agrees to provide the Incentive. 
 

VI. TENANT’S OBLIGATIONS 
 

The Tenant shall use Incremental Property Taxes solely for TIF Eligible 
Redevelopment Costs, and the Tenant shall have those obligations elsewhere in 
this Agreement, for the development, construction, financing, completion and 
furtherance of the Project: 

 
VII. ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF TENANT 
 

A. Continued Existence. The Tenant will do or cause to be done all things 
necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect its existence and 
standing as an Illinois corporation for so long as the Tenant maintains an 
interest in the Property or has any other remaining obligation pursuant to 
the terms of this Agreement. 

 
B. Further Assistance and Corrective Instruments. The Village and the 

Tenant agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and 
deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such 
supplements hereto and such further instruments as may be reasonably 
required for carrying out the intention of or effectuate or facilitating the 
performance of this Agreement to the extent legally permitted and within 
the Village's sound legal discretion.  

 
C. No Gifts. The Tenant covenants that no director, employee or agent of the 

Tenant, or any other Person connected with the Tenant, has made, 
offered or given, either directly or indirectly, to any member of the 
Corporate Authorities, or any officer, employee or agent of the Village, or 
any other Person connected with the Village, any money or anything of 



 

 401163_2 10 

value as a gift or bribe or other means of influencing his or her action in 
his or her capacity with the Village. 

 
D. Disclosure. Concurrently with execution of this Agreement, the Tenant 

shall disclose to the Village the names, addresses and ownership interests 
of all Persons that have an ownership interest in the Tenant, together with 
such supporting documentation that may be reasonably requested by the 
Village. The Tenant further agrees to notify the Village throughout the term 
of this Agreement of the names, addresses and ownership interests of any 
changes of owners of the Tenant.  

 
E. Open Book. The Project shall be an “open book” project, meaning that 

the Tenant and the general contractor (or contractors, if more than one) 
will assure continuing access to the Village’s agents for the purpose of 
reviewing and auditing their respective books and records relating to any 
item necessary to determine the costs of the Project; provided, however, 
that all such access shall be limited to normal business hours upon 
reasonable prior notice and shall not occur more frequently than once per 
calendar quarter. The foregoing Village review rights shall terminate one 
(1) year after the Effective Date, unless the Tenant has failed to make 
available any such books and/or records requested in writing by the 
Village. Failure to provide the documents or allow review of the books 
within fifteen (15) days after request by the Village shall be an Event of 
Default.  

 
VIII. ADHERENCE TO VILLAGE CODES AND ORDINANCES 
 

Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, all development and 
construction of the Project shall comply in all respects with the provisions in the 
building, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, storm water management, fire 
prevention, property maintenance, zoning and subdivision codes of the Village 
and all other germane codes and ordinances of the Village in effect from time to 
time during the course of construction of the Project. The Tenant, by executing 
this Agreement, expressly warrants that it has examined and is familiar with all 
the covenants, conditions, restrictions, building regulations, zoning ordinances, 
property maintenance regulations, environmental laws (including any law relating 
to public health, safety and the environment and the amendments, regulations, 
orders, decrees, permits, licenses or deed restrictions now or hereafter 
promulgated thereafter) and land use regulations, codes, ordinances, federal, 
State and local ordinances, and the like, currently in effect. 

 
IX. SPECIAL CONDITION 
 

To the extent feasible, the Tenant shall make reasonable efforts to notify Village 
residents of employment opportunities that are available relative to the Project, 



 

 401163_2 11 

and, to the extent permitted by law, make reasonable efforts to employ qualified 
residents of the Village in relation to the Project. 

 
X. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF TENANT 
 

The Tenant represents, warrants and agrees as the basis for the undertakings on 
its part herein contained that as of the Effective Date and during the term of the 
Agreement: 

 
A. Existence and Authority. The Tenant is an Illinois corporation, and is 

authorized to and has the power to enter into, and by proper action has 
been duly authorized to execute, deliver and perform, this Agreement. The 
Tenant is solvent, able to pay its debts as they mature and financially able 
to perform all the terms of this Agreement. There are no actions at law or 
similar proceedings which are pending or threatened against the Tenant 
which would result in any material and adverse change to the Tenant's 
financial condition, or which would materially and adversely affect the level 
of the Tenant's assets as of the date of this Agreement or that would 
materially and adversely affect the ability of the Tenant to proceed with the 
construction and development of the Project.  

 
B. No Conflict. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the 

Tenant, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby by the 
Tenant, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement by the Tenant conflicts with or will result in a breach of 
any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any offerings or disclosure 
statement made or to be made on behalf of the Tenant (with the Tenant's 
prior written approval), any organizational documents, any restriction, 
agreement or instrument to which the Tenant or any of its partners, 
directors, or venturers is now a party or by which the Tenant or any of its 
partners, directors or venturers is bound, or constitutes a default under 
any of the foregoing, or results in the creation or imposition of any 
prohibited lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the 
assets or rights of the Tenant, any related party or any of its partners, 
directors or venturers under the terms of any instrument or agreement to 
which the Tenant, any related party or any of its partners, directors or 
venturers is now a party or by which the Tenant, any related party or any 
of its partners, directors or venturers is bound. 

 
C. Adequate Resources. The Tenant has sufficient financial and economic 

resources to complete the Tenant's obligations in this Agreement. 
 
D. No Adverse Notices. The Tenant represents and warrants that it has not 

received any notice from any local, State or federal official that the 
activities of the Tenant with respect to the Property and/or the Project may 
or will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation. The Tenant is 



 

 401163_2 12 

not aware of any State or federal claim filed or planned to be filed by any 
Party relating to any violation of any local, State or federal environmental 
law, regulation or review procedure, and the Tenant is not aware of any 
violation of any local, State or federal law, regulation or review procedure 
which would give any person a valid claim under any State or federal 
environmental statute. 
 

E. Experience. The Tenant represents and warrants to the Village that 
Tenant, and its respective principals, are experienced in the development 
and operation of business concerns similar or comparable to the Project, 
and are able to provide the Project with the necessary skill, knowledge 
and expertise as well as input from other experts and consultants in the 
operation of such a Project. 

 
F. Payment of Real Estate Taxes. The Tenant agrees to pay or cause to be 

paid all general and special real estate taxes levied during its respective 
period of tenancy against its respective interest in the Project and the 
Property on or prior to the date same is due and said taxes shall not 
become delinquent. The Tenant shall deliver evidence of payment of such 
taxes to the Village upon request. 

 
G. No Tax-Exempt Status. Consistent with its covenant in Section X.F. 

above, the Tenant shall not assert a tax-exempt status for the Property 
during its respective period of tenancy.  

 
H. No Broker. The Tenant represents and warrants to the Village that, in 

connection with this transaction, no third-party broker or finder has been 
engaged or consulted by it, or its subsidiaries or agents or employees, or, 
through such the Tenant’s actions (or claiming through such party), which 
is entitled to compensation as a consequence of this transaction. 
 
 
 

XI. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE VILLAGE 
 

The Village represents, warrants and agrees as the basis for the undertakings on 
its part herein contained that: 

 
A. Existence. The Village is an Illinois municipal corporation duly organized 

and validly existing under the laws of the State of Illinois, and has all 
requisite corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement. 

 
B. Authority. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement 

and the consummation by the Village of the transactions provided for 
herein and the compliance with the provisions of this Agreement: 

 



 

 401163_2 13 

1. have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the 
part of the Village;  

 
2. require no other consents, approvals or authorizations on the part 

of the Village in connection with the Village's execution and delivery 
of this Agreement; and  

 
3. shall not, by lapse of time, giving of notice or otherwise result in any 

breach of any term, condition or provision of any indenture, 
agreement or other instrument to which the Village is subject. 

 
C. Litigation. To the best of the Village's knowledge, there are no 

proceedings pending or threatened against or affecting the Village or the 
TIF District in any court or before any governmental authority which 
involves the possibility of materially or adversely affecting the ability of the 
Village to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
D. Adequate Resources. The Village has sufficient financial and economic 

resources to implement and complete the Village’s obligations contained 
in this Agreement. 

 
E. No Broker. The Village represents and warrants to the Tenant that, in 

connection with this transaction, no third-party broker or finder has been 
engaged or consulted by it, or its subsidiaries or agents or employees, or, 
through such the Village’s actions (or claiming through such party), is 
entitled to compensation as a consequence of this transaction. 

 
XII. INDEMNIFICATION, HOLD HARMLESS AND RELEASE PROVISIONS 

 
This Section XII. shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 
A. Release. The Tenant releases from and covenants and agrees that the 

Village, its governing body members, officers, agents, including 
independent contractors, consultants, attorneys, servants and employees 
thereof (for purposes of this Section XII., collectively the “Village 
Indemnified Parties”) shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless the Village Indemnified Parties against any loss or damage 
to property or any injury to or death of any person occurring at or about or 
resulting from any defect in the Project or the Property or arising pursuant 
to the Tenant’s obligations or warranties under this Agreement or actions 
in furtherance thereof to the extent not attributable to the gross negligence 
or willful misconduct of the Village Indemnified Parties; provided, that this 
waiver shall not apply to the warranties made or obligations undertaken by 
the Village in this Agreement. 

 



 

 401163_2 14 

B. Indemnification. Except for gross negligence or willful misconduct of the 
Village Indemnified Parties, Tenant agrees to indemnify the Village 
Indemnified Parties, now and forever, and further agrees to hold the 
aforesaid harmless from any claims, demands, suits, costs, expenses 
(including reasonable attorney's fees), actions or other proceedings 
whatsoever by any person or entity whatsoever arising or purportedly 
arising from the actions or inactions of Tenant (or if other Persons acting 
on their behalf or under its direction or control) under this Agreement, or 
the transactions contemplated hereby or the acquisition, construction, 
installation, ownership, and operation of the Project. 

 
 C. Environmental Disclaimer. Except as otherwise set forth herein, the 

Village makes no warranties or representations regarding, nor does it 
indemnify the Tenant with respect to, the existence or nonexistence on or 
in the vicinity of the Property, or anywhere within the TIF District of any 
toxic or hazardous substances of wastes, pollutants or contaminants 
(including, without limitation, asbestos, urea formaldehyde, the group of 
organic compounds known as polychlorinated biphenyls, petroleum 
products including gasoline, fuel oil, crude oil and various constituents of 
such products, or any hazardous substance as defined in the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 
of 1980 (“CERCLA”), 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601-9657, as amended) (collectively, 
the “Hazardous Substances”). The foregoing disclaimer relates to any 
Hazardous Substance allegedly generated, treated, stored, released or 
disposed of, or otherwise placed, deposited in or located on or in the 
vicinity of the Property, or within the TIF District, as well as any activity 
claimed to have been undertaken on or in the vicinity of the Property, that 
would cause or contribute to causing (1) the Property to become a 
treatment, storage or disposal facility within the meaning of, or otherwise 
bring the Property within the ambit of, the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act of 1976 (“RCRA”), 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq., or any similar 
State law or local ordinance, (2) a release or threatened release of toxic or 
hazardous wastes or substances, pollutants or contaminants, from the 
Property, within the meaning of, or otherwise bring the Property within the 
ambit of, CERCLA, or any similar State law or local ordinance, or (3) the 
discharge of pollutants or effluents into any water source or system, the 
dredging or filling of any waters or the discharge into the air of any 
emissions, that would require a permit under the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act, 33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq., or any similar State law or local 
ordinance. Further, the Village makes no warranties or representations 
regarding, nor does the Village indemnify the Tenant with respect to, the 
existence or nonexistence on or in the vicinity of the Project, or anywhere 
within the Property or the TIF District, of any substances or conditions in 
or on the Property, that may support a claim or cause of action under 
RCRA, CERCLA, or any other federal, State or local environmental 
statutes, regulations, ordinances or other environmental regulatory 



 

 401163_2 15 

requirements. The Village makes no representations or warranties 
regarding the existence of any above ground or underground tanks in or 
about the Property, or whether any above or underground tanks have 
been located under, in or about the Property have subsequently been 
removed or filled. 

 
D. Waiver. The Tenant waives any claims against the Village Indemnified 

Parties, and their members and boards, for indemnification, contribution, 
reimbursement or other payments arising under federal, State and 
common law relating to the environmental condition of the the Property. 

 
 E. No Personal Liability. No liability, right or claim at law or inequity shall 

attach to or shall be incurred by the Village’s President, Trustees, officers, 
officials, attorneys, agents and/or employees, and any such rights or 
claims of the Tenant against the Village’s President, Trustees, officers, 
officials, attorneys, agents and/or employees are hereby expressly waived 
and released as a condition of and as consideration for the execution of 
the Agreement by the Village. 

 
XIII. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

A. Tenant Events of Default. The following shall be Events of Default with 
respect to this Agreement: 

 
1. Default by Tenant for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice 

thereof in the performance or breach of any representation, 
warranty or covenant contained in this Agreement concerning the 
existence, structure or financial condition of Tenant; provided, 
however, that such default or breach shall not constitute an Event 
of Default if such default cannot be cured within said thirty (30) 
days and Tenant, within said thirty (30) days, initiates and diligently 
pursues appropriate measures to remedy the default and in any 
event cures such default within thirty (30) days after such notice. 

 
2. The commencement by Tenant of a voluntary case under the 

federal bankruptcy laws, as now or hereafter constituted, or an 
entry of a decree or order for relief by a court having jurisdiction in 
the premises in respect of Tenant in an involuntary case under the 
federal bankruptcy laws, as now or hereafter constituted, or any 
other applicable federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency or other 
similar law, or appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, 
trustee, sequestrator (or similar official) of Tenant for any 
substantial part of its property, or ordering the winding-up or 
liquidation of its affairs and the continuance of any such decree or 
order unstayed and in effect for a period of forty five (45) 
consecutive days. 



 

 401163_2 16 

 
3. Tenant abandons the Project on the Property. Abandonment shall 

be deemed to have occurred when work stops on the Property for 
more than thirty (30) consecutive days for any reason other than 
Uncontrollable Circumstances and such work is not resumed within 
thirty (30) days of written demand by the Village.  

 
4. Tenant fails to comply with applicable governmental codes and 

regulations in relation to the construction and maintenance of the 
Project contemplated by this Agreement and such failure continues 
for more than thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from the 
Village; provided, however, that such default or breach shall not 
constitute an Event of Default if such default cannot be cured within 
said thirty (30) days and Tenant, within said thirty (30) days, 
initiates and diligently pursues appropriate measures to remedy the 
default and in any event cures such default within sixty (60) days 
after such notice. 

 
B. Village Events of Default. The following shall be Events of Default with 

respect to this Agreement: 
 

1. Default by the Village in the performance or breach of any material 
covenant, warranty or obligation contained in this Agreement; 
provided, however, that such default shall not constitute an Event of 
Default if the Village, commences cure within thirty (30) days after 
written notice from Tenant and in any event cures such default 
within forty five (45) days after such notice. 

 
2. A material representation or warranty of the Village is not true for a 

period of thirty (30) days after written notice from Tenant; provided, 
however, that such default or breach shall not constitute an Event 
of Default if such default cannot be cured within said thirty (30) 
days and the Village, within said thirty (30) days, initiates and 
diligently pursues appropriate measures to remedy the default and 
in any event cures such default within forty five (45) days after such 
notice.  

 
C. Remedies for Default.   In the case of an Event of Default hereunder: 

 
1. The defaulting Party shall, upon written notice from the non-

defaulting Party, take prompt action to cure or remedy such Event 
of Default. If, in such case, any monetary Event of Default is not 
cured, or if in the case of a non-monetary Event of Default, action is 
not taken or not diligently pursued, or if action is taken and 
diligently pursued but such Event of Default or breach shall not be 
cured or remedied within the cure periods specified therefor, unless 



 

 401163_2 17 

extended by mutual agreement, the non-defaulting Party may 
institute such proceedings as may be necessary or desirable in its 
opinion to cure or remedy such default or breach, including, but not 
limited to, proceedings to compel specific performance of the 
defaulting Party’s obligations under this Agreement. 

 
2. In case a Party shall have proceeded to enforce its rights under this 

Agreement and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or 
abandoned for any reason, then, and in every such case, the 
Parties shall be restored respectively to their several positions and 
rights hereunder, and all rights, remedies and powers of Tenant 
and the Village shall continue as though no such proceedings had 
been taken. In no event shall either Party be liable to the other for 
any consequential or punitive damages suffered as a result of a 
default under this Agreement. 

 
D. Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. In the event an 

Event of Default is not cured within the applicable cure periods and the 
Parties employ an attorney or attorneys or incur other expenses for the 
collection of the payments due under this Agreement or the enforcement 
of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement herein 
contained, the non-prevailing Party shall pay, on demand, the prevailing 
Party’s reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable 
expenses in connection with such enforcement action. This Section XII.D. 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 
E. No Waiver by Delay or Otherwise. Any delay by any Party in instituting 

or prosecuting any actions or proceedings or otherwise asserting its rights 
under this Agreement shall not operate to act as a waiver of such rights or 
to deprive it of or limit such rights in any way (it being the intent of this 
provision that any Party should not be deprived of or limited in the 
exercise of the remedies provided in this Agreement because of concepts 
of waiver, laches or otherwise); nor shall any waiver in fact made with 
respect to any specific Event of Default be considered or treated as a 
waiver of the rights by the waiving Party of any future Event of Default 
hereunder, except to the extent specifically waived in writing. No waiver 
made with respect to the performance, nor the manner or time thereof, of 
any obligation or any condition under the Agreement shall be considered a 
waiver of any rights except if expressly waived in writing. 

 
F. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the 

Parties to this Agreement, whether provided by law or by this Agreement, 
shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any one or more of such remedies 
shall not preclude the exercise by such Party, at that time or different 
times, of any other such remedies for the same Event of Default.  

 



 

 401163_2 18 

G. Legal and Other Fees and Expenses. Other than for demands, suits, 
costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), actions or other 
proceedings covered by Section XII. above, in the event that any third 
party or parties institute any legal proceedings against the Tenant and/or 
the Village, which relate to the terms of this Agreement, then, in that 
event, the Parties shall cooperate in the defense of any such lawsuit, with 
each Party assuming, fully and vigorously, its own defense of such 
lawsuit, and all costs and expenses of its own defense, of whatever nature 
(including attorney’s fees). This Section XIII.G. shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
XIV. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 

A. No Discrimination. Tenant shall comply with all federal, state and local 
laws relating to equal employment opportunity. To the extent permitted by 
law, Tenant shall use reasonable efforts to employ qualified residents of 
the Village as to any direct hires by the Tenant, if applicable. 

 
B. Advertisements. Tenant shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for 

employees placed by or on behalf of Tenant, if applicable, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

 
C. Contractors. Any contracts made by Tenant with any general contractor, 

agent, employee, independent contractor or any other Person in 
connection with the Project shall contain language similar to that recited in 
Sections XIV.A. and B. above. The Tenant shall make reasonable efforts 
to incorporate language similar to that recited in Sections XIV.A. and B. in 
any leases made by Tenant in connection with the Project. 

 
XV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
A. Cancellation. Notwithstanding any terms in this Agreement to the 

contrary, in the event Tenant or the Village shall be prohibited, in any 
material respect, from performing covenants and agreements or enjoying 
the rights and privileges herein contained, or contained in the TIF Plan, 
including Tenant's duty to operate the Project, by the order of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, or in the event that all or any part of the Act or any 
ordinance adopted by the Village in connection with the Project, shall be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, in whole or in part, by a final decision 
of a court of competent jurisdiction and such declaration shall materially 
affect the Project or the covenants and agreements or rights and 
privileges of Tenant or the Village, then and in any such event, the Party 
so materially affected may, at its election, cancel or terminate this 
Agreement in whole (or in part with respect to that portion of the Project 
materially affected) by giving written notice thereof to the other Parties 



 

 401163_2 19 

within one hundred twenty (120) days after such final decision or 
amendment. Further, the cancellation or termination of this Agreement 
shall have no effect on the authorizations granted to Tenant for buildings, 
or the remodeling of any building, permitted and under construction, to the 
extent permitted by said court order; and the cancellation or termination of 
this Agreement shall have no effect on perpetual easements contained in 
any recorded, properly executed document. 

 
B. Notices. All notices, certificates, approvals, consents or other 

communications desired or required to be given hereunder shall be given 
in writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the following means: 
(1) personal service, (2) electronic mail, telex, but only if followed up, 
within one (1) business day, by another method of notice, (3) overnight 
courier, or (4) registered or certified first class mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested. 

 
  If to Village:  Catherin Adduci, President 
     Village of River Forest 
     400 Park Avenue  
     River Forest, Illinois 60305 
     Email: cadduci@vrf.us 
  
  With a copy to: Eric Palm, Village Administrator 
     Village of River Forest 
     400 Park Avenue  
     River Forest, Illinois 60305 
     Email: epalm@vrf.us 
   
  and:   Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins, Ltd. 
     20 North Wacker Drive, Suite 1660 
     Chicago, Illinois 60606 
     Attention:  Gregory T. Smith 
     Email: gtsmith@ktjlaw.com 
 
  If to Tenant:  _____________________________ 

_____________________________ 
_____________________________ 
Attn:  ________________________ 
Email: _______________________ 

      
The Parties, by notice hereunder, may designate any further or different 
addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates, approvals, consents 
or other communications shall be sent. Any notice, demand or request 
sent pursuant to either clause (1) or (2) hereof shall be deemed received 
upon such personal service or upon dispatch by electronic means. Any 
notice, demand or request sent pursuant to clause (3) shall be deemed 



 

 401163_2 20 

received on the day immediately following deposit with the overnight 
courier, and any notices, demands or requests sent pursuant to clause (4) 
shall be deemed received forty-eight (48) hours following deposit in the 
mail. 

 
C. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the date for performance of any of the 
terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall fall on a 
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, then the date of such performance 
shall be extended to the next business day. 

 
D. Integration. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this 

Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions 
relative to the subject matter hereof and is a full integration of the 
agreement of the Parties.  

 
E. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, but in no event less than two (2) counterparts, each of which 
shall be an original and each of which shall constitute but one and the 
same Agreement. 

 
F. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or any Section, sentence, 

clause, phrase or word, or the application thereof, in any circumstance, is 
held to be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall be construed as if 
such invalid part were never included herein, and this Agreement shall be 
and remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
G. Choice of Law / Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, and any 
court proceedings between the Parties hereto shall be brought in Cook 
County, Illinois. 

 
H. Entire Contract and Amendments. This Agreement (together with the 

exhibits attached hereto) is the entire contract between the Village and the 
Tenant relating to the subject matter hereof, supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous negotiations, understandings and agreements, written 
or oral, between the Village and the Tenant, and may not be modified or 
amended except by a written instrument executed by the Parties hereto. 

 
I. Third Parties. Nothing in this Agreement, whether expressed or implied, 

is intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this 
Agreement on any other Person other than the Village and the Tenant, nor 
is anything in this Agreement intended to relieve or discharge the 
obligation or liability of any third parties to the Village and the Tenant, nor 
shall any provision give any third parties any rights of subrogation or 
action over or against the Village or the Tenant. This Agreement is not 



 

 401163_2 21 

intended to and does not create any third party beneficiary rights 
whatsoever. 

 
J. Waiver. Any Party to this Agreement may elect to waive any right or 

remedy it may enjoy hereunder, provided that no such waiver shall be 
deemed to exist unless such waiver is in writing. No such waiver shall 
obligate the waiver of any other right or remedy hereunder, or shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of other rights and remedies provided 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
K. Cooperation and Further Assurances. The Village and the Tenant each 

covenant and agree that each will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver 
or cause to be done, executed and delivered, such agreements, 
instruments and documents supplemental hereto and such further acts, 
instruments, pledges and transfers as may be reasonably required for the 
better clarifying, assuring, mortgaging, conveying, transferring, pledging, 
assigning and confirming unto the Village or the Tenant, or other 
appropriate Persons, all and singular the rights, property and revenues 
covenanted, agreed, conveyed, assigned, transferred and pledged under 
or in respect of this Agreement. 

 
L. No Joint Venture, Agency or Partnership Created. Nothing in this 

Agreement, or any actions of the Parties to this Agreement, shall be 
construed by the Parties or any third party to create the relationship of a 
partnership, agency or joint venture between or among such Parties. 

 
M. No Personal Liability of Officials of the Village or the Tenant. No 

covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to 
be the covenant or agreement of the Corporate Authorities, Village 
Manager, any elected official, officer, partner, member, shareholder, 
manager, director, agent, employee or attorney of the Village or the 
Tenant, in his or her individual capacity, and no elected official, officer, 
partner, member, director, agent, employee or attorney of the Village or 
the Tenant shall be liable personally under this Agreement or be subject to 
any personal liability or accountability by reason of or in connection with or 
arising out of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, 
or any failure in that connection. 

 
N. Repealer. To the extent that any ordinance, resolution, rule, order or 

provision of the Village's code of ordinances, or any part thereof, is in 
conflict with the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be controlling, to the extent lawful. 

 
O. Term. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the 

termination of the Redevelopment Project Area. 
 



 

 401163_2 22 

P. Estoppel Certificates. Each of the Parties hereto agrees to provide the 
other, upon not less than fifteen (15) days prior request, a certificate 
(“Estoppel Certificate”) certifying that this Agreement is in full force and 
effect (unless such is not the case, in which case such Party shall specify 
the basis for such claim), that the requesting Party is not in default of any 
term, provision or condition of this Agreement beyond any applicable 
notice and cure provision (or specifying each such claimed default) and 
certifying such other matters reasonably requested by the requesting 
Party. If either Party fails to comply with this provision within the time limit 
specified, and if, after an additional seven (7) days’ notice there still is no 
compliance, then said non-complying Party shall be deemed to have 
appointed the other as its attorney-in-fact for execution of same on its 
behalf as to that specific request only. 

 
Q. Assignment. This Agreement, and the rights and obligations hereunder, 

may not be assigned by Tenant, unless the Village consents in writing to 
such assignment, which consent the Village may withhold in its sole and 
absolute discretion. 

 
R. Municipal Limitations. All Village commitments hereunder are limited to 

the extent required by law. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed on or as of the day and year first above written. 

 
VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, 
an Illinois municipal corporation    ATTEST: 
 
 
By:_______________________________  By:________________________ 
 Catherine Adduci, Village President            Kathleen Brand-White, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
SKIN CARE -SC INC., 
an Illinois corporation   ATTEST: 
         
 
By:_______________________________  By:________________________ 
            Sandra Capizzi, President                   ___________, ________ 
  



 

 401163_2 23 

 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
State of Illinois ) 
   ) SS 
County of Cook ) 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that Catherine Adduci and Kathleen Brand-White, personally 
known to me to be the President and Village Clerk of the Village of River Forest, and 
personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and severally 
acknowledged that as such President and Village Clerk, they signed and delivered the 
said instrument and caused the corporate seal of said municipal corporation to be 
affixed thereto, pursuant to authority given by the Board of Trustees of said Illinois 
municipal corporation, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act 
and deed of said Illinois municipal corporation, for the uses and purposes therein set 
forth. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and official seal, this _____ day of _______________, 
2018. 
 
 
      _____________________________________  
                              Notary Public 
 
 
  



 

 401163_2 24 

 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
 
State of Illinois ) 
   ) SS 
County of Cook ) 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that ____________________ and ____________________, 
personally known to me to be the ____________________ and 
____________________, respectively, of ____________________, and personally 
known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing 
instrument, appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that as 
such ____________________ and ____________________, they signed and delivered 
the said instrument and caused the corporate seal of said ___________ to be affixed 
thereto, pursuant to authority given by the ____________, as their free and voluntary 
act, and as the free and voluntary acts and deeds of said ____________, for the uses 
and purposes therein set forth. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and official seal, this _____ day of _______________, 
2018. 
 
 
            
       ________________________________ 
                           Notary Public  
 

  



 

 401163_2 25 

 
EXHIBIT A-1 

 
Madison Street TIF District 

 
Legal Description 

 
(attached) 

  



LEGAL DESCRIPTION (RIVER FOREST NORTH AVENUE TIF): 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 1 IN TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST 

OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, BEING DESCRIBED AS 

FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 1; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG 

THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 1 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY 

EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 20 FEET 11 INCHES OF LOT 30 IN BLOCK 1 

IN ROSSELL’S BONNIE BRAE ADDITION TO RIVER FOREST, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID 

NORTH HALF OF SECTION 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE 8, 1926 

AS DOCUMENT NO. 9301663; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND 

SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 20 FEET 11 INCHES OF LOT 30 TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-

OF-WAY LINE OF THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY IN SAID BLOCK 1; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG 

SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY 

EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 15 FEET OF LOT 18 IN BLOCK 2 OF SAID 

ROSSELL’S BONNIE BRAE ADDITION TO RIVER FOREST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID 

EASTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 15 FEET OF LOT 18 AND ALONG THE 

WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE BONNIE 

BRAE PLACE; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 30 IN BLOCK 3 OF SAID ROSSELL’S BONNIE BRAE ADDITION 

TO RIVER FOREST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 30 TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF, SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF LOT 17 IN SAID BLOCK 3; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 

LOT 17 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 IN BLOCK 1 OF O.C. BRAESE’S SUBDIVISION, BEING A 

SUBDIVISION IN SAID NORTH HALF OF SECTION 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 

RECORDED JANUARY 29, 1923 AS DOCUMENT NO. 7788819; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE 

SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 6 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF, SAID SOUTHWEST 

CORNER ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 IN SAID BLOCK 2 OF SAID O.C. 



BRAESE’S SUBDIVISION ; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 6 TO 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 IN BLOCK 3 OF SAID O.C. BRAESE’S SUBDIVISION; THENCE 

WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 6 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF, 

SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 IN BLOCK 1 IN 

WILLIAM H. BECKMAN’S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID NORTH HALF OF 

SECTION 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JANUARY 29, 1923 AS 

DOCUMENT NO. 7790766; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 6 TO 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF, SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER BEING A POINT ON THE 

EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JACKSON AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE  TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF LEMOYNE STREET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A 

POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LATHROP AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION 

WITH THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 2.67 FEET OF LOT 56 IN EDWIN E. WOOD’S 

SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SAID NORTH HALF OF SECTION 1 ACCORDING TO 

THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AS TORRENS DOCUMENT NO. 202871; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF LOT 51 IN SAID EDWIN E. WOOD’S 

SUBDIVISION; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 

OF SAID LOT 51; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 51 TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF LOT 43 IN SAID EDWIN E. WOOD’S SUBDIVISION; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG 

THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 43 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF, SAID 

SOUTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 33 IN SAID EDWIN E. 

WOOD’S SUBDIVISION; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 33 TO A 

POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 19 FEET OF SAID LOT 33; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE AND WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT ON THE WEST 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FRANKLIN AVENUE; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-



OF-WAY LINE TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 27 IN SAID EDWIN E. WOOD’S 

SUBDIVISION; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 27 TO A POINT ON 

THE EAST LINE OF LOT 135 IN SAID EDWIN E. WOOD’S SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTHERLY 

ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 135; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 135 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE 

SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 135 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH 

THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN THE RESUBDIVISION OF THAT 

PART OF LOT 2 IN OWNER’S SUBDIVISION LYING EAST OF THATCHER ROAD, BEING A 

RESUBDIVISION IN SAID NORTH HALF OF SECTION 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 

RECORDED AUGUST 20, 1923 AS DOCUMENT NO. 8070779; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID 

EASTERLY EXTENSION AND SOUTH LINE TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2, SAID 

SOUTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 7 IN SAID 

RESUBDIVISION OF THAT PART OF LOT 2 IN OWNER’S SUBDIVISION LYING EAST OF 

THATCHER ROAD; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 7 TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A LINE TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF LOT 10 IN SAID RESUBDIVISION OF THAT PART OF LOT 2 IN OWNER’S 

SUBDIVISION LYING EAST OF THATCHER ROAD; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID LOT 10 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF, SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER 

ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 14 IN SAID RESUBDIVISION OF THAT PART 

OF LOT 2 IN OWNER’S SUBDIVISION LYING EAST OF THATCHER ROAD; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 14 AND WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT 

OF INTERSECTION WITH THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THATCHER AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND NORTHERLY 

EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 

SECTION 1; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 



 

 401163_2 26 

 
EXHIBIT A-2 

 
Madison Street TIF District 

 
Map 

 
(attached) 

 
  



CALC.

DWN.

CHKD.

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET    OF

Rosemont, Illinois 60018

(847) 823-0500

9575 West Higgins Road, Suite 600

ENGINEERING, LTD.
IN

PREPARED FOR

1 1

1"=200'

170329

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING NO.

RIVER FOREST NORTH AVENUE TIF

VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

KANE, MCKENNA AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

SCALE IN FEET

0200 200

TIF170329

S
:\

R
IV

E
R

F
O

R
E
S

T
\
17

0
3
2
9
\

S
U

R
V

E
Y
\

T
IF

17
0
3
2
9
.S

U
R

KJR

AJK

JRM

  
  

43
.1 

AC.+
/-

NOR
TH
 A

VE
NUE
 T
IF

RIV
ER
 F

OR
ES

T 

08-14-2018

NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 1-39-12

E
A
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
N

O
R
T
H
E
A
S
T
 
Q

U
A

R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
1-

3
9
-
12

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
1-

3
9
-
12

W
E
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
N

O
R
T
H
E
A
S
T
 

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
1-

3
9
-
12

E
A
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
N

O
R
T
H

W
E
S
T
 

NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1-39-12

W
E
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
N

O
R
T
H

W
E
S
T
 
Q

U
A

R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
1-

3
9
-
12

E
A
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
N

O
R
T
H
E
A
S
T
 
Q

U
A

R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
2
-
3
9
-
12

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
3
6
-
4
0
-
12

E
A
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
S

O
U
T
H
E
A
S
T
 

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
3
6
-
4
0
-
12

W
E
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
S

O
U
T
H
E
A
S
T
 

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
3
6
-
4
0
-
12

E
A
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
S

O
U
T
H

W
E
S
T
 

SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36-40-12

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
3
6
-
4
0
-
12

W
E
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
S

O
U
T
H

W
E
S
T
 

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
3
5
-
4
0
-
12

E
A
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
S

O
U
T
H
E
A
S
T
 

W
E
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
N

O
R
T
H

W
E
S
T
 
Q

U
A

R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
6
-
3
9
-
13

Q
U

A
R
T
E
R
 

O
F
 
S
E
C
T
IO

N
 
3
1-

4
0
-
13

W
E
S
T
 
L
IN

E
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
S

O
U
T
H

W
E
S
T
 

VILLAGE OF ELMWOOD PARK
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 

QUARTER OF SECTION 36-40-12
SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 

VILLAGE OF ELMWOOD PARK
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 

V
IL

L
A

G
E
 
O
F
 
O

A
K
 
P

A
R

K
C

O
R
P

O
R

A
T
E
 
L
IM
IT

S
 

O
F
 
T
H
E
 

T
H
E
 
C
IT

Y
 

O
F
 
C

H
IC

A
G

O
C

O
R
P

O
R

A
T
E
 
L
IM
IT

S
 

O
F
 

POINT OF BEGINNING



 401163_2 27

EXHIBIT B 

Legal Description of the Property 

P.I.N.: 15-12-320-039-0000

Common Address: 7756 Madison Street, River Forest, IL 60305



 

 401163_2 28 

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
Site Plan for the Project 

 
 (attached) 

  





 

 401163_2 29 

 
EXHIBIT D 

 
Detailed Description of the Project 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  















 401163_2 30

EXHIBIT E 

TIF Eligible Redevelopment Costs 
Relative to the Project  

Subject to Reimbursement Under the Agreement 

TIF Eligible Redevelopment 
Project Cost Description 

Redevelopment Project Cost Category 
Under 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3(q) 

Amount 

Rehabilitation and renovation under 65 
ILCS 5/11-74.4-3(q)(3) 

$ 36,250 

Relocation under 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-
3(q)(8) 

$0



 

 401163_2 31 

 

EXHIBIT F 

SWORN REQUEST FOR INCENTIVE DISBURSEMENT  

(attached) 

  



 

 401163_2 32 

SWORN REQUEST FOR INCENTIVE DISBURSEMENT UNDER THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE ___________________ 

DEVELOPMENT COMPRISING A PART OF THE MADISON STREET TIF DISTRICT 
OF THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 I, ______________________, on behalf of ________________ (“Tenant”), 
hereby submit the following request for disbursement of “Incentive” as defined in, and 
pursuant to the “Redevelopment Agreement for the ____________ Development 
Comprising a Part of the Madison Street TIF District of the Village of River Forest, 
Illinois” (“Agreement”), under oath and penalty of perjury: 
 
 

1. Amount Requested: _____________________ Dollars ($________________) 
  

2. To Be Paid To: ___________________________________________________ 
  

3. To Be Paid For: __________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

4. Invoices / Documents Attached: Attached is a true and accurate copy of 
invoice(s) and/or document(s) substantiating this request for disbursement. The 
Tenant shall provide such additional documents and information requested by 
the Village, including but not limited to, closing statements, paid invoices, 
contracts, contractors’ affidavits, lien waivers, copies of checks and any other 
documentation specified by the Village and/or in the possession of the Tenant 
relating to this request. 
 

5. Covenants and Warranties: The Tenant covenants and warrants as material 
inducement for the Village of River Forest to consider, process, and disburse the 
Incentive that as of the date of this request, through the date of disbursement: 
 

a. The Tenant is not in default of any provision of the Agreement, and the 
Tenant is in compliance with all federal, State, and Village laws, 
ordinances, and regulations. 
  

b. The amounts disbursed pursuant to this request shall only be spent, or 
reimbursed, for “redevelopment project costs” as defined in Section 11-
74.4-3(q) of the Illinois Tax Incrementing Allocation Financing Act, 65 
ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq. within the categories and cumulative amounts 
permitted in EXHIBIT E to the Agreement. 



 

 401163_2 33 

  
c. No amounts disbursed pursuant to this request shall be spent on any 

matter, except for the direct costs of TIF Eligible Redevelopment Costs for 
the “Project,” as defined and set forth in the Agreement, including in 
Exhibit E thereto. 

 
       

 _____________________________ 
 Signature 
 

       _____________________________ 
        Name 

       
 _____________________________ 

        Date 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this ____ day of ______________, 201_. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Notary Public 



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 12, 2018 
 
To: Eric Palm, Village Administrator  
 
From: Jonathan Pape, Management Analyst  
 
Subj: Fire Sprinkler and Fire Alarm Monitoring Requirements in One and Two Family 

Dwelling Units 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Issue 

 

The Village Board of Trustees has requested that historical information regarding the 

Village’s requirements for fire sprinkler systems and fire alarm monitoring in residential 

homes be prepared to help facilitate a discussion on the topics.  

 

Background 

 

Ordinance 3150 

 

In 2006, the Village Board of Trustees adopted the 2003 edition of the International Residential 

Code with specific amendments under Village Ordinance 3150. Included in those amendments 

were fire sprinkler system requirements in accordance with the National Fire Protection 

Associations (NFPA) standard 13D. 13D, as it is commonly known, requires that all new 

residential construction of one and two family dwelling units have automatic fire protection 

sprinkler systems installed. In addition to the standard 13D requirement, the Village Board of 

Trustees adopted local amendments specifying that residential additions of one and two family 

dwelling units adding 50% or more square footage to the existing structure, are required to 

install and maintain an approved automatic fire protection sprinkler system throughout the 

newly constructed portion of the structure. Furthermore, amendments were adopted that 

required all automatic fire protection sprinkler systems be; 1) equipped with a horn and strobe 

audible alarm outside the structure, and 2) have the alarm system monitored directly by the 

Village’s emergency communication center.  



 

Ordinance 3239 

 

In 2008, the Village Board of Trustees adopted Village Ordinance 3239 which further amended 

the Village’s building codes. Amongst these amendments was the extension of the requirements 

for the provision of automatic fire suppression sprinkler systems in one and two family 

dwellings to include structures where 50% or more of the building is being substantially 

renovated, or where the sum of the areas of an addition and substantial renovation equals or 

exceeds 50% of the area of the existing building. 

 

Prior to the passage of both ordinances, notice was given to the public and Public Informational 

Hearings were held. During these meetings, the proposed code changes were reviewed and 

comments were received.  

 

In summary, the Village’s regulations for automatic fire suppression sprinkler systems and 

alarms in one and two family dwelling units are as follows. All can be found in 4-1-9, R313.3 of 

the Village code.  

 

Approved automatic fire suppression sprinkler systems shall be provided in the following: 

1) New construction. 

2) In the newly constructed portion of any addition which adds 50% or more square 

footage to the area of an existing residence. 

3) In the renovated portion of any residence where 50% or more of the existing area of 

the residence is being substantially renovated. 

4) In the renovated and newly constructed portion of any residence where the sum 

total of the area of the addition and the area of the portion being substantially 

renovated exceeds 50% of the area of an existing residence. 

 

Water flow alarms shall be required on all approved automatic fire protection sprinkler 

systems.  

1) An interior, six (6) inch water flow bell shall be mounted to the return duct of each 

furnace in the structure. In lieu of the water flow bells an audible alarm horn shall 

be installed adjacent to each sleeping area, with a minimum decibel rating of 70 db 

at pillow level in occupiable areas. 

2) A weatherproof horn/strobe audible alarm, for the approved automatic fire 

protection sprinkler system, shall be mounted on the outside of the structure at a 

location causing it to be heard and seen from the public right-of-way, adjacent to the 

structure. 

3) The approved automatic fire protection sprinkler system shall be monitored, 

including the water flow and control valve position (tamper switch). The system 



shall be monitored directly by the village's emergency communication center and 

not by a private alarm monitoring company. 

 

Analysis 

 

Automatic Fire Suppression Sprinkler System Requirement 

 

Although River Forest was an early adopter of the 13D requirement in Illinois when it first 

required it in 2006, at least 109 municipalities in Illinois now have some iteration of the 

requirement. The most common adoption of the 13D requirement is its application to new 

residential construction. By requiring that all new one and two family dwelling units be built 

with automatic fire suppression sprinkler systems, 13D communities prepare to have safer 

residential structures in the future. In addition to the standard 13D requirements, River Forest 

also requires automatic fire suppression sprinkler systems to be installed in one and two family 

dwelling units that meet one or more of the following thresholds; 1) an addition is being built 

that is adding 50% or more to the existing structure, 2) a substantial renovation of 50% or more 

of the existing structure is being completed, 3) a renovation and addition are being completed 

where the sum total area of the project exceeds 50% of the existing residence. In each of these 

situations, only the area of new construction or new renovation is required to be equipped with 

a sprinkler system. 

 

The code defines substantial renovation as the total area of each room where 50% or more of 

the wall and ceiling finishes are being removed down to the framing. The calculation of square 

footage for the purpose of these thresholds includes the full above ground floors of the structure 

and the portion of any half story or attic which has headroom of at least seven feet. The 

calculation does not include detached structures or below grade basements.  

   

In 2006 when the 13D requirement was first enacted, it only included new construction and 

additions over the 50% threshold. At that time, the Village Board of Trustees directed Staff to 

continue to study an expansion of the ordinance and report back. The result was the 2008 

amendments regarding the requirement for substantial renovation. These requirements are 

consistent with the approach of not retroactively requiring automatic fire suppression 

sprinkler systems, but instead trying to ensure that structures going forward are best 

protected.  

 

Monitoring Requirement 

 

While automatic fire protection sprinkler systems are an excellent first defense against fighting 

home fires, it is still necessary to notify public safety personnel as soon as possible after a fire 

starts. Accordingly, many 13D code requirements have an amendment necessitating that an 



audible horn and visible strobe alarm are installed either inside the property or on the exterior 

of the home adjacent to the street. This horn/strobe alarm is activated with the automatic fire 

protection sprinkler system in an attempt to alert anyone in or around the home, a nearby 

neighbor, or passerby to call for help. The River Forest code does require a horn/strobe alarm 

on the exterior of the property but goes one step further by requiring that the system have an 

alarm monitored directly by the Village’s emergency communication center. Under these 

circumstances, the activation of an automatic fire protection sprinkler systems automatically 

alerts the dispatch center of an emergency. This is currently the monitoring requirement for all 

new automatic fire protection sprinkler systems in one and two family dwelling units.  

 

It is most common for 13D requirements to only require a local alarm system on the property. 

Furthermore, of those 13D communities that do require 24/7 electronic monitoring of the 

system, many only require that the monitoring be done by any approved alarm company. River 

Forest is progressive in its requirement that the alarm system must be tied directly to the 

Village’s emergency communication center. While this requirement is less common, direct 

monitoring of the alarm system by the dispatch center allows for the fastest response time 

possible.  The direct signal eliminates the most potential fail points in the communications chain 

by bypassing a third party alarm monitoring company. By allowing for the fastest possible 

response time, this requirement provides the best possible public safety service.  

 

Monitoring Agreement 

 

In order to facilitate the direct monitoring of automatic fire protection sprinkler systems by 

the Village’s emergency communication center and not by a private alarm monitoring 

company, West Suburban Consolidated Dispatch Center (WSCDC) has an agreement with 

Alarm Detection Services, Inc (ADS). This agreement was put into place in 2002. The 

agreement stipulates that ADS provide and maintain equipment at WSCDC to receive and 

monitor the signals from the alarm equipment of the homes with automatic fire protection 

sprinkler systems. In exchange, ADS is entitled to charge subscriber fees to the users of the 

system. The agreement does not require that the Village have residents directly connect 

through ADS, but rather provides that ADS serve as the exclusive monitoring board for 

WSCDC. The agreement was reached in response to WSCDC’s 2001 Call for Proposals for the 

service. The agreement carried an initial term of ten years and has then been renewed on a 

year-by-year basis.  The cost to a resident for the monitoring service through ADS is $62.00 

per month.   

 

Potential Proposed Building Code Updates 

 

Village Staff is amidst discussions and planning as it prepares to propose an update to the 

Village’s building code. Amongst the discussions of proposed changes is the potential for an 



adjustment to the Village’s current alarm monitoring requirement. While Village staff feels that 

it is adamantly important for residential automatic fire protection sprinkler systems to be 

electronically monitored 24/7, the need for direct monitoring by WSCDC is a lower priority. 

Accordingly, Staff is considering proposing an amendment that would allow for residential 

automatic fire protection sprinkler systems to be monitored by any approved company that 

could provide electronic 24/7 monitoring of the system. While this amendment does create 

another step between the alarm system and WSCDC, Staff feels that this is manageable with 

modern technology. Additionally, it would accomplish the goal of allowing residents more 

options from which to purchase service while still ensuring that all alarms are monitored.  

 

In regards to the 13D requirements for automatic fire protection sprinkler systems for one and 

two family dwelling units, Staff is researching and considering using a graduated scale to 

determine the percentage threshold for an addition or substantial renovation. Currently, that 

threshold is 50% for all homes in the Village. Under a new scale, for example, homes with a 

smaller square footage could have a higher percentage threshold and homes with a larger 

square footage could have a lower percentage threshold. The purpose of the scale would be to 

ensure that the requirement does not have a disproportional adverse impact on smaller homes 

and likewise does not unintentionally exclude large work on homes with high square footage.   

 

Legal 

 

The Village’s Attorney has reviewed the Village’s current automatic fire suppression 

sprinkler system and alarm monitoring requirements and has found that the Village is in 

good legal standing. Additionally, the Village Attorney opined that the Village can legally 

make its requirements stricter as some other communities have, or repeal the requirements 

in part or in whole without future liability.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Requirement in Other Communities 

 
Municipality 13D Requirement Adopted External Monitor Requirement 

River Forest Yes – New construction + >50% addition 

and/ or renovation  
2006 Yes – direct to dispatch 

Oak Park Yes – New construction + >50% demolition 2015 No 

Forest Park Yes – New construction + >75% renovation 

for homes >2,500sqft 
2010 No 

Elmwood Park Yes – New construction + >50% demolition 2014 No 

Park Ridge Yes - + >50% addition or renovation (if 

>100% then entire house) 
2001 No 

Hinsdale No – No lightweight construction w/o 

sprinklers 
- No 

Riverside Yes – New construction and lightweight 

construction 
2009 No 

Western Spring Yes – New construction 2014 No 

Lincolnwood Yes – New construction + >50% addition or 

renovation (entire house) 
2005 No 

Wilmette Yes – Only lightweight construction 2010 No 

Lake Forest No -  No 

Glencoe Yes – New construction 2012 Yes – any central station 

 

Conclusion 

 

No action is being proposed or recommended at this time. This information is being presented 

as an aid for discussion on the topic. Staff will be available to take questions and gather a 

direction for further research and discussion.  

 

Attachments:  

- Ordinance 3150 
- Ordinance 3239 
- Village Board Meeting minutes from 2006 and 2008 passage 
- Memorandum from 2006 and 2008 passage 



ORDINANCE NO. 3150

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4, ENTITLED "BUILDING
REGULATIONS," CHAPTER 1, ENTITLED B̀UILDING CODES" OF THE

RIVER FOREST VILLAGE CODE

BE IT ORDAINED bythe President and Board of Trustees of the Village of River Forest,
Cook County, Illinois:

Section 1: That Title 4, entitled B̀uilding Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled
Building Codes," Section 4 -1 -9 entitled "CABO ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLING
CODE" of the River Forest Village Code be amended by deleting the section previously
adopted by Ordinance No. 2503 in its entirety and replacing with the following:

4 -1 -9: INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE /2003

A. The 2003 edition of the International Residential Code is hereby adopted by
reference as the One and Two FamilyDwelling Code of the Village, except for such
additions, insertions, deletions or changes as hereinafter prescribed in Section 2 of this
Ordinance.

Section 2: The following are amendments to the International Residential
Code /2003:

R101.1 Title. Insert the Village of River Forest.

R103.1 Creation of Enforcement Agency. Delete the entire paragraph after the
section heading and replace with: The Department of Public Works is hereby
considered to be the Building Department as well as the Department of Building Safety.
The Director of Public Works shall also be known as the Building Official.

R104.10.1Areas Prone to Flooding. Delete the entire paragraph after the section
heading and replace with: Construction within areas prone to flooding shall be in
accordance with Sections 4-12 -1 through 4 -12 -16 of this Title.

R105.2 Work Exempt from Permit. Delete the entire list following the subsection
entitled "Building" and replace with the following list:

1. Prefabricated sheds not with a floor area less than 100 square feet.
2. Painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, countertops and similar finish

work

3. Prefabricated swimming pools that are less than 24 inches deep.
4. Swings and other playground equipment accessory to the residence.

Add the following paragraph to the subsection entitled "Electrical."



Replacement of Electrical Equipment: Electrical Equipment maybe replaced in -kind
or repaired without a permit provided that no modifications to the system is required
and that such work is performed by a qualified person as defined by the National
Electric Code.

Delete the entire list following the subsection entitled "Mechanical" and replace with
the following list:

1. Portable heating, ventilating or cooling appliances.
2. Replacement of Mechanical Equipment in -kind shall not require a permit,

provided such equipment is connected to the same electric or fuel source
that the old equipment was connected to, the replacement equipment is the
same capacity or rating as the old equipment and further provided that such
work is performed by qualified personnel.

R105.2.3Public Service Agencies. Delete the entire paragraph after the section
heading and replace with: A permit shall not be required for the ordinary repairs of
above grade facilities and for the ordinary repairs of below grade facilities that are
located entirely on private property. Any repair requiring an excavation within the
Public Right of Way shall require a permit and shall be performed in accordance with
the Village's Standards for Construction of Facilities on Public Rights of Way contained
in Title 5 of the Municipal Code. Any installation of new facilities regardless of location
shall require a permit.

R105.3 Application for pern it. Add the following to the list of application
requirements:

8. All plans for projects shall be prepared, signed and sealed by a licensed architect
in the State of Illinois except for miscellaneous permits, detached garages,
sheds, other minor accessory structures and interior remodeling projects not
involving structural modifications.

9. All applications shall list the name, address and phone number of all
contractors involved in the project.

R105.3.1.1Substantially improved or substantially damaged existing buildings in
areas prone to flooding. Delete this section in its entirety.

R105.5 Expiration. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace
with: Permit expirations shall be in accordance with Section 4 -2 -3 of this Title.

R106.2 Site Plan. Rename this section Site, Grading and Drainage Plan and replace
the existing paragraph with: The construction documents submitted with the
application for permit shall be accompanied by a site plan showing the size and location
of all structures and paved surfaces (paved surfaces includes driveways, sidewalks,
patios etc) on the subject lot as well as on adjacent lots. The setbacks to all lot lines
shall be included on the plan. Included on the site plan or on a separate plan shall be a
grading plan which shows the proposed top -of- foundation elevation for all structures,



exterior grade elevation at all structures on the subject property as well as adjacent
properties. The elevation of the public walks adjacent to the property shall be shown.
When construction within the public right -of way is required, the plan shall also show
the specific location of parkway trees, light poles, fire hydrants, sign poles etc. The
grading plan should also show sufficient existing and proposed spot elevations to show
direction of all surface water flow. All elevations shall be shown using the Chicago
CityDatum (CCD). The Building Official may accept the use of a local datum
elevation if a convenient benchmark is not available. The Building Official may require
that the grading plan be prepared by a registered professional engineer.

For new one or two family structures, a survey of the foundation must be submitted to
the Village evidencing adherence with all applicable zoning requirements prior to
proceeding with above grade framing.

R112.1 General. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace with:
A Board of Appeals otherwise known as the Building Board of Appeals shall serve in
accordance with Title 2, Chapter 6 of the River Forest Village Code.

112.2 through 112.4. Delete these sections in their entirety.

R201.3 Terms Defined in other Codes. Add the following paragraph: The following
terms as defined in Section 10 -3 -1 of the River Forest Zoning Code and shall supercede
the definitions in this chapter. AOCESSORY STRUCTURE(BUILDING),
BASEMENT, BUILDING, DWELLING, GRADE, HEIGHT, (of) BUILDING,
LOT, STORY, STRUCTURE, YARD.

Table R301.241). Insert the following data:

TABLE R301.2(1)
CLIMATIC AND GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA

GROUND

SNOW

WIND

SPEED

SEISMIC

DESIGN

SUBJECT' TO DAMAGE FROM
WINTER

DESIGN

ICE SHIELD

UNDER -

LAYMENT FLOOD

AIR

FREEZING

MEAN

ANNUALFrost line

LOAD mph) CATEGORY Weathering depth Terrrute Decay TEMP REQUIRED HAZARD INDEX TEMP

Moderate Slight to
90

30 P.S.F. mph B Severe 48" to Heavy Moderate 2o F Yes 1700 49 ° F

Construction in flood prone areas shall be in accordance with Sections 4 -12 -1 through 4-
12 -16 of this Title

R302.1 Exterior walls. Add the following: The fire separation distance from a
detached garage and the dwelling it is accessory to shall not be less than 15 feet unless
the garage is equipped with an approved supervised heat detection system in which
case the minim fire separation distance maybe reduced to 10 feet.



Delete in its entirety the second exception in this section pertaining to tool, storage
sheds, playhouses and similar structures.

8309.1 Opening protection. Add the following: Doors shall be self closing.

8309.2 Separation required. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading
and replace with: An attached garage shall be separated from the residence and its
attic area by not less than 5/8 inch Type X gypsum board or equivalent applied to the
garage side. Where the separation is a floor - ceiling assembly, the walls supporting this
assemblymust be similarly protected.

8309.5 Flood hazard areas. Delete this section and following subsections in their
entirety.

8310.1 Emergency escape and rescue required. Delete the words "with habitable
space" from the first sentence in this section.

8313 Smoke Alarms. Rename this section Smoke Alarms, Carbon Monoxide
Detectors and Sprinkler Systems. Delete the existing language after the section heading
in its entirety and replace with:

R313.1 Smoke alarms. Smoke alarms shall be installed in the following locations:

1. In each sleeping room
2. Outside each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the

bedrooms.
3. One each additional story of the dwelling, including basements but

not including crawl spaces and uninhabitable attics. In dwellings or
dwelling units with split levels and without an intervening door
between the adjacent levels, a smoke alarm installed on the upper
level shall suffice for the adjacent lower level provided that the lower
level is less than one full story below the upper level.

When more than one smoke alarm is required to be installed within an individual
dwelling unit the alarm devices shall be interconnected in such a manner that the
actuation of one alarm will activate all of the alarms in the individual unit. The alarm

shall be clearly audible in all bedrooms over background noise levels with all
intervening doors closed.

All smoke alarms shall be listed and installed in accordance with the provisions of
this code and the household fire warning equipment provisions of NFPA 72.

R313.1.1Alterations, repairs and additions. When interior alterations,
repairs or additions requiring a permit occur, or when one or more sleeping
rooms are added or created in existing dwellings, the individual dwelling unit
shall be provided with smoke alarms located as required for new dwellings;
the smoke alarms shall be interconnected and hard wired.



Exceptions:

Smoke alarms in existing areas shall not be required to be
interconnected and hard wired where the alterations or repairs do not
result in the removal of interior wall or ceiling finishes exposing the
structure, unless there is an attic, crawl space, or basement available
which could provide access for hard wiring and interconnection
without the removal of interior finishes.

2. Repairs to the exterior surfaces of dwellings are exempt from the
requirements of this section.

8313.2 Carbon Monoxide Detectors. Carbon Monoxide Detectors shall be

installed in the following locations:

1. Outside each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the
sleeping room(s).

2. On every floor on which a fossil fuel burning boiler, water heater,
furnace or appliance is located.

8313.3 Sprinkler Systems. All new construction and any additional adding 50% or
more square footage to the existing name, from foundation up, is required to install
and maintain an approved automatic fire protection sprinkler system throughout the
newly constructed portion of the structure. The system shall be installed meeting the
requirements of NFPA 13 D (2002 edition) and NFPA 101 (2006 edition) Sections
9.7, 24.3.5.1 and 24.3.5.2 as modified herein. Amendments to NFPA 13 D (2002
edition) are as follows:

4.2.4Antifreeze Systems. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading
and replace with: Automatic fire protection sprinkler systems are prohibited from
using antifreeze solutions in any of said system.

7.6 Alarms. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace
with: Water flow alarms shall be required on all approved automatic fire
protection sprinkler system. An interior, six (6) inch water flow bell shall be
mounted to the return duct of each furnace in the structure. In lieu of the water
flow bells an audible alarm horn shall be installed adjacent to each sleeping area,
with a minimum decibel rating of 70db at pillow level in occupiable areas.

A weatherproof horn / strobe audible alarm, for the approved automatic fire
protection sprinkler system, shall be mounted on the outside of the structure at a
location causing it to be heard and seen from the public right -of -way, adjacent to
the structure.

The approved automatic fire protection sprinkler system shall be monitored,
including the water flow and control valve position (tamper switch). The system
shall be monitored directly by the Village's emergency communication center and
not by a private alarm monitoring company.



8.6.4 Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace with:
Sprinklers shall be installed in attached garages to protect common walls, ceilings
and openings.

R313.4 Power source. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and
replace with: In new construction, the required smoke alarms or carbon monoxide
detectors shall receive their primary power from the building wiring when such
wiring is served from a commercial. source, and when primary power is interrupted,
shall receive power from a battery. Wiring shall be permanent and without a
disconnecting switch other than those required for overcurrent protection. Smoke
alarms or carbon monoxide detectors shall be permitted to be battery operated when
installed in buildings without commercial power or in buildings that undergo
alterations, repairs of additions regulated by Section R313.1.1.

R401.1 Application. Delete the last sentence of this section and replace with: Wood
foundations are not allowed and all subsequent references to wood foundations in this
chapter are hereby deleted.

R401.3 Drainage. Add the following: Grades shall gradually meet existing elevations
at all points along lot lines.

R403.1.4.1Frost Protection. Delete the reference to Section R403.3 as an acceptable
method of frost protection and delete the exceptions section in its entirety and replace
with the following: Exception: Single story accessory structures with and area 500
square feet or less with non - masonry or other non -rigid wall construction shall not be
required to be protected.

R403.1.7.3Foundation elevation. Delete the entire paragraph after the section
heading and replace with: The top of any exterior foundation wall shall extend a
minim of 8 inches above exterior finished grade adjacent to the foundation at all
points. Elevations shall be established to promote positive drainage without adversely
impacting adjoining properties. Where the foundation elevations of adjoining lots vary
greatly, the new foundation elevation on the subject lot shall be established as
approximately the average of the elevations of the foundation said adjoining lots. The

Building Official may require the submission of a grading plan stamped by a
professional engineer prior to the issuance of a permit as well as a submission of an as-
built grading certificate prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy demonstrating
the project has been constructed in accordance with the approved grading plan. The
Building Official may consider unique grading conditions and has the authority to
approve a foundation elevation based on sound engineering judgment.

R403.3 Frost Protected Shallow Foundations. Delete this section and following
subsections in their entirety.

R 502.1.4Prefabricated wood I- joists. Add the following: Wood I- joists may not
remain exposed and shall be protected with a minim 5/8 inch Type "X" gypsum
board or equivalent.



R504 Pressure Preservatively- Treated Wood Floors (On Ground). Delete this
section and following subsections in their entirety.

R611 Insulating Concrete Form Wall Construction. Delete this section and
following subsections in their entirety.

R702.3.4Insulating Concrete Form Walls. Delete this section in its entirety.

Table R702.3.5MINIMUM THICKNESS AND APPLICATION OF GYPSUM

BOARD. Minimum gypsum Board thickness to be 5/8 inch. References to thickness
and application of gypsum board less than 5/8 inches thick are hereby deleted.

M1703 ALL AIR FROM OUTDOORS. Add the following section:

M 1703.2.2Location of openings. Openings may be located within 20 feet of
any above grade fuel gas source or piping and shall be located a minim of 3 feet
above the exterior grade.

APPENDIX G SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS AND HOT TUBS. Appendix G is
hereby adopted and made part of the Code.

AG 101.1 General. Add the following paragraph to this section: Garden,
landscape and fish ponds containing water over 24 inches in depth are hereby
regulated by the Code and are subject to all applicable provisions.

Section 3: That all ordinances, or parts of ordinances in conflict with this
Ordinance, are hereby expressly repealed.

Section 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its

passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

Approved this 13` day of March, 2006.

AYES: Trustees

NAYS: None

ABSENT: None

O'Connell, O'Brien, Dillon, Graham, Nummer and Swanson

ATTEST:

VffllageClerk
Published in pamphlet form this 14` day of March, 2006



ORDINANCE NO. 3239

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4, ENTITLED "BUILDING
REGULATIONS," CHAPTER 1, ENTITLED "BUILDING CODES"

OF THE RIVER FOREST VILLAGE CODE

WHEREAS, the Village Board recognizes the need to establish minimum regulations governing
the design, construction, alteration, enlargement, repair, demolition, removal, maintenance and use ofall
buildings and structures; providing for the issuance ofpermits, performance of inspections; and by
providing standards for supplied utilities and facilities and other physical things and conditions essential to
ensure that buildings and structures are safe, sanitary, and fit for occupation and use; and

WHEREAS, the Village Board also recognizes that such regulations must be modern and up -to-
date, to allow for the safe usage oftechnological advancements in design and construction.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village ofRiver Forest, Cook County, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: That Title 4, entitled "Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled "Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -3 entitled "BOCA NATIONAL BUILDING CODE /1990" of the River Forest
Village Code be amended by deleting the following:

4 -1 -3: BOCA NATIONAL BUILDING CODE /1990:

A. The Building Officials and Code Administrators International, Inc., national building
code/ 1990, eleventh edition, is hereby adopted by reference as the building code of the
village with modifications as indicated. Copies of such regulations are filed in the department
ofpublic works and there kept available for public use, inspection and examination.

B. The following sections of BOCA national building code /1990 are hereby amended, as
indicated:

Sec. 100.1- Title: Insert village ofRiver Forest.

Sec. 103.4 - Existing Structures Rehabilitation: Insert June 9, 1992.

Add this section:

Sec. 106.1.1- Moving Of Buildings: The fee for a building permit for the removal of a
building or structure from one lot to another or to a new location on the same lot shall be at
the rate of $0.40 per $100.00 of the estimated cost ofmoving plus one percent of the cost of
new foundations and all work necessary to place the building or structure in its completed
condition in the new location.



Sec. 109.1- Department Of Building Inspection: Delete section and add the following:
Any reference in the B.O.C.A. national building code /1990 to the code official shall mean
the director ofpublic works ofthe village ofRiver Forest."

Sec. 114.3.1- Fee Schedule: A fee for each plan examination, building permit and
inspection shall be paid as set forth in the River Forest village code under building permits,
title 4, chapter 2.

Sec. 117.4 - Violation Penalties: Insert misdemeanor as the specific offense, $500.00 as the
fine and delete the imprisonment provision.

Sec. 118.2 - Stop Work Order, Unlawful Continuance: Insert $100.00 and $500.00.

Sec. 122.1- Posting Structures: Delete section.

Sec. 123.3 - Compensation Of Board Of Survey: Compensation to be agreed upon by
members of the board of survey.

Add this section:

Sec. 200.5: Conflicting Definitions: In case of conflict with definitions within the River
Forest village code , such village code definitions shall apply.

Sec. 201.0 - General Definitions. Attic (habitable): delete definition and insert the
following; Attic (habitable): A habitable attic is one which has a stairway as a means of
access and egress and in which at least one half of the floor area has a ceiling height of at
least seven feet (7).

Sec. 309.4 - Use Group R -3 Structures: Delete the following words from the last sentence;
2 -hour fire separation assembly" (see Section 909.0). and insert: "fire wall or party wall'
see Section 907.0). Add to this section the sentence: "Mobile homes may not be used as
dwellings."

Sec. 512 - Physically Handicapped and Aged: This section shall comply with the most
current Illinois Accessibility Code.

Sec. 609.2.1- Public Garages, Sprinkler System: Delete Section 609.2.1 and renumber
Section 609.2.2as 609.2.1 and Section 609.2:3as 609.2.2.

Sec. 621.1 - Radio and Television Towers, General: Add to this section the following:
Height restrictions and setback requirements for radio and television towers shall be
governed by the limits established for all other structures in each zoning district as put forth
in the River Forest Village Code."

Sec. 622.1 - Radio and Television Antennas, Permits Not Required: Delete this section
and reference Title 4, Chapter 15 of the River Forest Village Code.



Sec. 622.2 - Radio and Television Antennas, Permits Required: Delete this section and
reference Title 4, Chapter 15 of the River Forest Village Code.

Sec. 622.3.1 - Radio and Television Antennas, Permits: Delete the section and reference
Title 4, Chapter 15 of the River Forest Village Code.

Sec. 623.9.3 - Swimming Pools, Alternate Devices: Delete section.

Article 8 Means of Egress. Delete this article in its entirety and insert the following: "The
1991 Edition ofNFPA 101 Life Safety Code published by the National Fire Protection
Association is hereby adopted to regulate means of egress for all buildings and structures."

Sec. 907.6 Continuity of Walls: delete the words "except as provided for in Sections 907.6.1
through 907.6.3." Delete Sections 907.6.1 and 907.6.2and renumber Section 907.6.3 to
907.6.1

Sec. 1002.4 Use Group A -3: Delete the first sentence and insert the following: "Where a Use
Group A -3 fire area exceeds 5,000 square feet (465 m2) or is more than one story in height,
an automatic fire suppression system shall be provided as follows:"

Sec. 1002.6 Use Group I: Delete thl- four exceptions.

Sec. 1002.7 Use Groups M, S -1 and F -1: Delete the section in its entirety and insert the
following: "Throughout all buildings with a Use Group M, S or F fire area, an automatic fire
suppression system shall be provided as follows:

1.) Where any Use Group M, S, or F fire area exceeds 5,000 square feet (465 m2) in
area;

2.) Where the total combined area of all Use Group M, S or F fire areas on all floors
exceeds 10,000 square feet (932 m2); or
3.) Where any Use Group M, S, or F fire area is more than two stories in height."

Sec. 1205.1- Depth of Footings, Frost Protection. Amend the first sentence of this section
to read as follows: "Except when erected upon solid rock or otherwise protected from frost or
when supporting detached, private Nvoodframe garages or detached, woodframe sheds of
comparable size foundation walls, piers and other permanent supports of all buildings shall
extend to the frost line of the locality, and spread. footings of adequate size shall be provided
where necessary to distribute properly the load within the allowable bearing of the soil."

Sec. 2605.2 - Existing Elevators and Escalators, Referenced Standard: All existing
elevators and escalators shall conform to Section 3.11 of ASNIE A17.3 - 1986 and with the

applicable chapters of ASME A17.1 -1987.

Article 29 Signs. Delete article and reference Title 4, Chapter 5 ofthe River Forest Village
Code. In no case shall any sign exceed 80 square feet.



APPENDIX A REFERENCED STANDARDS: Under NFiPA delete all the standards
listed and insert the following: All NFiPA standards listed in the Numerical Listing of the
1991 National Fire Code Contents shall be used when such standards are referenced in the
National Building Code. A copy of the listing is attached to the National Building Code and
made a part thereof.
Ord. 2503, 6 -22 -1992)

C. Safety Violations:
1. The injury to any person or damage to any property adjacent to a project site shall
be prima facie evidence of a violation of BOCA code (1990) article 30, section
3006.1.

2. Any such injury or damage shall be reported immediately to the director of public
works.

3. No further work shall be performed until: a) the director has inspected the site and
is satisfied that adequate safety measures are in place, and b) the contractor provides a
written program, or other assurances satisfactory to the director, that any property
damage will be repaired or replaced. (Ord. 3041, 8 -11 -2003)

Section 2: That Title 4, entitled 'Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled 'Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -3 to be titled "INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE /2003" of the River
Forest Village Code be amended to read as follows:

4 -1 -3: INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE / 2003

The 2003 edition of the International Building Code is hereby adopted by reference as the
Building Code of the Village, except for such additions, insertions, deletions or changes as
hereinafter prescribed in Section 3 of this Ordinance.

Section 3: The following are amendments to the International Building Code /2003:

101.1 Title. Insert "the Village of River Forest ".

101.4.1Electrical. Delete the words "ICC Electrical Code" from this section and substitute
National Electrical Code, 2005 Edition, as amended ".

101.4.4Plumbing. Delete the words "International Plumbing Code" from this section and
substitute "current edition of the Illinois Plumbing Code ".

Add the following sections:
101.4.8NFPA 101 Life Safety Code. For all buildings and structures which are subject to
this code, the Means of Egress must also comply with the requirements of the Life Safety
Code, the same edition as currently enforced by the Illinois Office of the State Fire Marshal.

101.4.9NFPA Standards. For any and all conditions and situations, which are not regulated
by this code, or by the Codes listed in sections 101.4.1 through 101.4.8, the NFPA Standards
listed in the Numerical Listing ofNFPA Technical Committee Documents, as shown in the
2007 Directory of the National Fire Protection Association, shall govern.

4



101.4.10NFPA 1 Uniform Fire Code. For all buildings and structures which are subject to
this code, the fire prevention code must also comply with the requirements of the Uniform
Fire Code, the same edition as currently enforced by the Illinois Office of the State Fire
Marshal.

103.1 Creation of Enforcement Agency. Delete the entire paragraph after the section
heading and replace with: The Department ofPublic Works is hereby considered to be the
Building Department as well as the Department of Building Safety. The Director of Public
Works shall also be known as the Building Official.

Add the following section:

104.10.1Areas Prone to Flooding. Construction within areas prone to flooding shall be in
accordance with Sections 4 -12 -1 through 4 -12 -16 of this Title.

105.1.1 and 105.1.2 Delete these sections in their entirety.

105.2 Work Exempt from Permit. Delete the entire list following the subsection entitled
Building" and replace with the following list:

J. Prefabricated sheds with a floor area less than 100 square feet.
2. Painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, countertops and similar finish

work.

3. Prefabricated swimming pools that are less than 24 inches deep.
4. Swings and other playground equipment accessory to the residence.

Add the following paragraph to the subsection entitled "Electrical."
Replacement of Electrical Equipment: Electrical Equipment may be replaced in -kind or
repaired without a permit provided that no modifications to the system is required and that
such work is performed by a qualified person as defined by the National Electric Code.

Delete the entire list following the subsection entitled "Mechanical" and replace with the followinglist:

1. Portable heating, ventilating or cooling appliances.
2. Replacement ofMechanical Equipment in -kind shall not require a permit,

provided such equipment is connected to the same electric or fuel source that
the old equipment was connected to, the replacement equipment is the same
capacity or rating as the old equipment and further provided that such work is
performed by qualified personnel.

105.2.3Public Service Agencies. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and
replace with: A permit shall not be required for the ordinary repairs of above grade facilities
and for the ordinary repairs ofbelow grade facilities that are located entirely on private
property. Any repair requiring an excavation within the Public Right of Way shall require a
permit and shall be performed in accordance with the Village's Standards for Construction of
Facilities on Public Rights ofWay contained in Title 5 of the Municipal Code. Any
installation ofnew facilities regardless of location shall require a permit.



105.3 Application for permit. Add the following to the list ofapplication requirements:
8. All plans for projects shall be prepared, signed and sealed by a licensed

architect in the State of Illinois except for miscellaneous permits, detached
garages, sheds, other minor accessory structures and interior remodeling
projects not involving structural modifications.

9. All applications shall list the name, address and phone number of all contractors
involved in the project.

105.5 Expiration. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace with:
Permit expirations shall be in accordance with Section 4 -2 -3 of this Title.

106.2 Site Plan. Rename this section Site, Grading and Drainage Plan and replace the
existing paragraph with: The construction documents submitted with the application for
permit shall be accompanied by a site plan showing the size and location of all structures and
paved surfaces (paved surfaces includes driveways, sidewalks, patios etc.) on the subject lot
as well as on adjacent lots. The setbacks to all lot lines shall be included on the plan. Included
on the site plan or on a separate plan shall be a grading plan which shows the proposed top -
of- foundation elevation for all structures, exterior grade elevation at all structures on the
subject property as well as adjacent properties. The elevation of the public walks adjacent to
the property shall be shown. When construction within the public right -ofway is required,
the plan shall also show the specific location of parkway trees, light poles, fire hydrants, sign
poles etc. The grading plan should also show sufficient existing and proposed spot elevations
to show direction of all surface water flow. All elevations shall be shown using the
Chicago City Datum (CCD). The Building Official may accept the use of a local datum
elevation if a convenient benchmark is not available. The Building Official may require that
the grading plan be prepared by a registered professional engineer.

108.2 Schedule of Permit Fees: Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and
replace with: A fee for each plan examination, building permit and inspection shall be paid
as set forth in the River Forest Village Code under Building Permits Fees, title 4, chapter 2,
section 1.

112.1 General. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace with: A
Board ofAppeals otherwise known as the Building Board ofAppeals shall serve in
accordance with Title 2, Chapter 6 of the River Forest Village Code.

112.2 and 112.3. Delete these sections in their entirety.

113.4 Violation Penalties. Delete the words "shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by
law" from this section and substitute "shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine
of not more than $750.00 ".

114.3 Unlawful Continuance. Delete the words "shall be subject to penalties as prescribed
by law" from this section and substitute "shall be liable to a fine of not less than $100.00 or
more than $750.00 ".

6



201.3 Terms Defined in other Codes. Add the following paragraph: The following terms as
defined in Section 10 -3 -1 of the River Forest Zoning Code and shall supersede the definitions
in this chapter: ACCESSORY STRUCTURE (BUILDING), BASEMENT, BUILDING,
DWELLING, GRADE, HEIGHT, (of) BUILDING, LOT, STORY, STRUCTURE, YARD.

406.1.4Separation: Delete Item 1, and replace as follows: The private garage shall be
separated from the dwelling unit and its attic area by means of minimum 5/8 inch Type X
gypsum board applied to the garage side. Garages beneath habitable rooms shall be
separated from all habitable rooms by not less than 5/8" Type X gypsum board. Walls
supporting a floor - ceiling separation shall be protected to the same level ofprotection. Door
openings between a private garage and the dwelling unit shall be equipped with either solid
wood doors, or solid or honeycomb core steel doors not less than 13/8 inches (34.9 mm)
thick, or doors in compliance with Section 715.3.3. Doors shall be self closing, and shall be
weather - stripped. Openings from a private garage directly into a room used for sleeping
purposes shall not be permitted.

504 Height Modifications. Delete this section in its entirety.

508.4 Parking Beneath Group R. Delete this section in its entirety.

705.6 Vertical Continuity. Delete Exceptions 2, 3, and 4, of this section entirely.

705.6.1 Stepped Buildings. Delete the Exception entirely.

711.3 Fire - resistance rating. Delete the Exception entirely.

712.4.1 Through Penetrations. Delete Exceptions 1 and 2 of this section entirely.

Delete 903.2, and 903.2.1 through 903.2.13 in their entirety, and replace as follows:
903.2 Where required. An approved automatic fire suppression sprinkler system shall be
installed and maintained throughout all new buildings and structures, and shall also be
provided in every addition to or renovation of an existing building, in accordance with the
following:

903.2.1 Definitions and calculations:

1. The calculation of the areas of existing construction and new
construction shall be calculated as follows: The areas to be included in

the calculation shall include the gross area on floors of the building
above grade. The base area of the existing building shall include only
those areas of the existing building which are to remain, and the area of
new construction shall include the gross area of all additions, without
deductions.

2. For the purpose of calculating the percentage of the addition to the
building, the area of the addition and renovation shall be construed to be
the total area of all additions and renovations made within any 3 year



period, and the area of the existing building shall be the existing area (as
defined above) prior to that 3 year period.

3. The area of "substantial renovation" shall be defined to include the total
area of each room where 50% or more of the wall and ceiling finishes
plaster, plaster board, gypsum board, suspended ceiling systems, etc.)
is being removed down to the framing.

903.2.2 Where required in existing buildings and structures. An approved
automatic fire suppression sprinkler system shall be provided in every addition to or
renovation of an existing building, in accordance with the following:

1. In the newly constructed portion of any addition which adds 50% or
more square footage to the area ofan existing building.

2. In the renovated portion of any building where 50% or more of the
existing area of the building is being substantially renovated.

3. In the renovated and newly constructed portions of any building where
the sum total of the area of the addition and the area of the portion being
substantially renovated exceeds 50% ofthe area of an existing building.

903.2.3 Exceptions:
Exception No. 1. Spaces and areas in telecommunications buildings used exclusively
for telecommunications equipment, associated electrical power distribution
equipment, batteries and standby engines, provided those spaces or areas are
equipped throughout with an automatic fire alarm system monitored by the local
jurisdiction, and separated from the remainder of the building by a wall with a fire
resistance rating ofnot less than 1 hour and a floor /ceiling assembly with a fire
resistance rating ofnot less than 2 hours.

Exception No. 2 Detached accessory buildings shall be exempt from the requirement
for automatic sprinkler protection subject to all of the following conditions:

The building is an accessory to primary building on the same site, and
the building has a gross area of 500 square feet or less, and
the building is protected with an automatic fire detection system, monitored by
the local jurisdiction, and
the primary and accessory buildings are in compliance with Table 602 for Fire
Separation Distance.

905.3.1 Building Height. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace
with: Standpipe systems shall be installed in all buildings where the most distant occupied
floor is more than 20 feet above or below the point of Fire Department vehicle access, or is
more than 2 stories in height.

Add the following section:
907.20 Carbon Monoxide Detectors. Carbon Monoxide Detectors shall be installed in all
Group I and R occupancies in the following locations:

1. Outside each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the sleeping
room(s).



2. On every floor on which a fossil fuel burning boiler, water heater, furnace or
appliance is located.

1008.1.8.7 Stairway Doors. Delete item 3 from the list of Exceptions.

Add the following section:
1012.3.1 Ladder Effect. Where the guard protects an open -sided floor surface which is 72
inches or more above the floor or grade below, the guard shall not have an ornamental pattern
that would provide a ladder effect. For this purpose, the guard shall be considered to include
all construction from the floor surface up to the top of the required height of the guard.

1805.2.1 Frost Protection. Delete the three conditions for the Exception and add the
following condition: 1. Single story accessory structures with an area 500 square feet or less
with non - masonry or other non -rigid wall construction shall not be required to be protected.

2303.1.2Prefabricated wood I- joists. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading
and replace as follows:
The use ofprefabricated wood 1-joists shall not be permitted for buildings regulated by the
International Building Code in the Village of River Forest.

2506.1 General. Add the following: The minimum Gypsum Board thickness shall be 5/8
inch. References to thickness and application of gypsum board less than 5/8 inches thick are
hereby deleted.

Delete Sections 3001 through 3006 in their entirety and add new Section 3001 as follows:

3001 Scope: All elevators and other conveyances in new and existing buildings shall be
designed, permitted, constructed, inspected, certified, and maintained in accordance with the
Illinois Elevator Safety and Regulation Act, and rules promulgated in accordance with said
Act as may be amended from time to time.

Add the following sections:
3107.2 Limitations: The types and sizes of signage is regulated by Title 4, Chapter 5 of the
Village Code. In no case shall any sign exceed 80 square feet.

3108.1.1 General: Height restrictions and setback requirements for Radio and Television
Towers shall be governed by the limits established for all other structures in each zoning
district as put forth in the River Forest Village Code. Refer to Title 4, Chapter 15 for
regulation ofRadio and Television Antennas.

3301.3 Safety Violations:
1. The injury to any person or damage to any property adjacent to a project site

shall be primafacie evidence of a violation of International Building Code
2003), chapter 33, sections 3306 and 3307.

2. Any such injury or damage shall be reported immediately to the Director of
Public Works.



3. No further work shall be performed until: (A) the Director has inspected the
site and is satisfied that adequate safety measures are in place, and; (B) the
contractor provides a written program, or other assurances satisfactory to the
Director, that any property damage will be repaired or replaced.

3408.2 Moving Of Buildings: The fee for a building permit for the removal of a building or
structure from one lot to another or to a new location on the same lot shall be at the rate of

0.40 per $100.00 of the estimated cost ofmoving plus one percent of the cost ofnew
foundations and all work necessary to place the building or structure in its completed
condition in the new location.

3410.2 Applicability: Insert "May 12,2008".

Section 4: That Title 4, entitled "Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled "Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -4 entitled "BOCA PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE /1990" of the River
Forest Village Code be amended by deleting the following:

44-4: BOCA NATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE /1990:
A. The building officials and code administrators national property maintenance code /1990,
third edition, is hereby adopted by reference as the property maintenance code of the village,
except for such deletions or substitutions of sections as are hereinafter provided. Copies of
such regulations are filed in the department of public works and there kept available for
public use, inspection and examination.
B. The following sections of said BOCA national property maintenance code /1990 are
hereby amended:

Sec. PM -100.1 - Title: Insert Village of River Forest.

Sec. PM -109.2 - Penalty: Insert not less than $100.00 and not more than $500.00, and delete
the imprisonment provision.

Add the section:

Sec. PM -200.6 - Conflicting Definitions: In case of conflict with definitions found in the
River Forest Village Code, such Village Code definitions shall apply.

Sec. PM- 302.12 - Insert April 1 and November 30.

Sec. PM - 601.1 Heating Facilities, Residential Buildings. Delete and reference Title 4
Chapter 7 of the River Forest Village Code.

Sec. PM - 601.2 Heating Facilities, Non - Residential Structures. Delete and reference Title
4, Chapter 7 of the River Forest Village Code.
Ord. 2503, 6 -22 -1992)

10



Section 5: That Title 4, entitled 'Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled 'Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -4 to be titled "INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE
CODE /2003" of the River Forest Village Code be amended to read as follows:

4 -1 -4: INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE / 2003

The 2003 edition ofthe International Property Maintenance Code is hereby adopted by
reference as the Property Maintenance Code of the Village, except for such additions,
insertions, deletions or changes as hereinafter prescribed in Section 6 of this Ordinance.

Section 6: The following are amendments to the International Property Maintenance
Code /2003:

101.1 Title: Insert Village of River Forest.

106.4 Violation penalties: Insert the following after the first sentence: Any person, firm or
corporation, who shall violate any provision of this code shall, upon conviction thereof, be
subject to a fine of not less than $100.00 nor more than $750.00.

Add the following section:
201.3.1 Conflicting Definitions: In case of conflict with definitions found in the River
Forest Village Code, such Village Code definitions shall apply.

304.14 Insect screens: Insert "April 1" and "November 30 ".

602.2 Residential occupancies. Delete this section in its entirety and reference Title 4
Chapter 7 of the River Forest Village Code.

602.3 Heat Supply. Delete this section in its entirety and reference Title 4 Chapter 7 of the
River Forest Village Code.

602.4 Occupiable work spaces. Delete this section in its entirety and reference Title 4
Chapter 7 of the River Forest Village Code.

602.5 Room temperature measurement. Delete this section in its entirety and reference
Title 4, Chapter 7 ofthe River Forest Village Code.

Section 7: That Title 4, entitled 'Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled 'Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -5 entitled "BOCA MECHANICAL CODE /1990" of the River Forest Village
Code be amended by deleting the following:

4 -1 -5: BOCA NATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE /1990:

A. The building officials and code administrators national mechanical code /1990, seventh
edition, is hereby adopted by reference as the mechanical code of the village, except for such
deletions or substitutions of sections as hereinafter provided. Copies of such regulations are
filed in the department ofpublic works and there kept available for public use, inspection and
examination.

11



B. The following sections of said BOCA national mechanical code /1990 are hereby
amended:

Sec. M- 100.1- Title. Insert Village of River Forest.

Sec. M -114.2 - Fees, Periodic Inspections. Delete section.

Sec. M -114.3 - Fee Schedule. Insert $25.00.

Sec. M -117.4 - Violations, Penalties. Insert misdemeanor as the specific offense, a fine of
500.00 and delete the imprisonment provision.

Sec. M -118.2 - Stop Work Order, Unlawful Continuance. Insert fine of not less than
100.00 nor more than $500.00.

Ord. 2503, 6 -22 -1992)

Add the section:

Sec. M -403.6 Location of Air- Conditioning Equipment. The location of all unitary air
conditioners shall be regulated by the sound pressure level they generate. Existing
installations may be replaced in the same location, provided there is no increase in capacity or
sound pressure rating. The location of new equipment shall be subject to the requirements of
the following table when installed on a parcel adjacent to a residential use parcel:

Side Yard Installation

Side yard Setback (feet)

Less than 3

3 or greater

Rear Yard Installation

Side yard Setback (feet)

Less than 3

3 to 10

10 or greater

Maximum Sound Pressure Rating db(a)

Installation not allowed

74

Maximum Sound Pressure Rating db(a)

Installation not allowed

78

82

The Village Board shall have the authority to hear requests for and grant relief from any of
these location requirements.
Ord. 2942,10-22-2001)

Sec. M -801.0

Add new entry in Table M -801.2 to read as follows:
Table M -801.2

Fuel Gas Pipe

12



Materiall Standard(see Appendix A)
Stainless steel/ ASTMA240

pipe and tubing

Add new subsection to read as follows:

Sec. M- 801.11- Interior gas piping systems using corrugated stainless steel tubing (conduit)
shall be tested and labeled by an approved testing agency for such use and shall be installed
in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.

Sec. M -908.3 Fuel Dispensing Outside the Building: Delete the sentence, "Where a
dispenser fronts on a street or public way, the separation distance shall be measured to the
centerline of the street or public way." And add the following: "Where fuel is dispensed to
motor vehicles, the motor vehicle being served shall be on the premises."

Sec. M- 1500.2 - Annual Inspections: Amend to read as follows: "All crematories and
incinerators except Class 1, Class 1 A and domestic, shall be inspected annually by the
mechanical official and the fee for such inspection shall be $25.00 per incinerator or
crematory."
Ord. 2503, 6 -22 -1992)

Section 8: That "Title 4, entitled "Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled "Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -5 to be titled "INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE /2003" of the River
Forest Village Code be amended to read as follows:

4 -1 -5: INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE / 2003

The 2003 edition of the International Mechanical Code is hereby adopted by reference as the
Mechanical Code of the Village, except for such additions, insertions, deletions or changes as
hereinafter prescribed in Section 9 of this Ordinance.

Section 9: The following are amendments to the International Mechanical Code /2003:

101.1 Title. Insert Village of River Forest.

106.5.2 Fee Schedule. Delete this section and reference Title 4, Chapter 2 of the River
Forest Village Code.

108.4 Violations penalties. Insert misdemeanor as the specific offense, a fine of $750.00
and delete the imprisonment provision.

108.5 Stop Work Orders. Insert fine ofnot less than $100.00 nor more than $750.00.

Add the following section:
303.6.1 Location of Equipment. The location of all unitary air conditioners, air
conditioning compressors, generators, and similar appliances and equipment in outdoor
locations, shall be regulated by the sound pressure level they generate. Existing installations

13



may be replaced in the same location, provided there is no increase in capacity or sound
pressure rating. The location of new equipment shall be subject to the requirements of the
following table when installed on a parcel adjacent to a residential use parcel:

Side Yard Installation

Side yard Setback (feet) Maximum Sound Pressure Rating db(a)
Less than 3 Installation not allowed

3 or greater 74

Rear Yard Installation

The Village Board shall have the authority to hear requests for and grant relief from any of
these location requirements.

Side yard Setback (feet) Maximum Sound Pressure Rating db(a)
Less than 3 Installation not allowed

3to 10 — 78

10 or greater — 82

Section 10: That Title 4, entitled 'Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled 'Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -6 entitled "BOCA NATIONAL FIRE PREVENTION CODE /1990" of the
River Forest Village Code be amended by deleting the following:

4 -1 -6: BOCA NATIONAL FIRE PREVENTION CODE /1990:
A. The Building Officials and Code Administrators National Fire Prevention Code /1990,
eighth edition, is hereby adopted by reference as the Fire Prevention Code of the village,
except for such deletions or substitution of sections as are hereinafter provided. Copies of
such regulations are filed in the office of the fire chief and there kept available for public use,
inspection and examination.

B. The following sections of said BOCA National Fire Prevention Code /1990 are hereby
amended:

Sec. F -100.1 - Title. Insert Village ofRiver Forest.

Sec. F- 2601.2 - General Requirements, Storage. Delete the following words in the first
sentence: "limitations established by law as the limitations of the district in which such
storage is to be prohibited," add the following words in lieu thereof. "Village limits ofRiver
Forest."

APPENDIX A REFERENCED STANDARDS

Under NFiPA delete all the standards listed and insert the following: All NFiPA standards
listed in the numerical listing of the 1991 national fire code contents shall be used when such

14



standards are referenced in the fire prevention code. A copy of the listing is attached to the
fire prevention code and made a part thereof.
Ord. 2503, 6 -22 -1992)

Section 11: That Title 4, entitled "Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled "Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -6 to be titled "INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE /2003" of the River Forest
Village Code be amended to read as follows:

4 -1 -6: INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE / 2003

The 2003 edition of the International Fire Code is hereby adopted by reference as the Fire
Code of the Village, except for such additions, insertions, deletions or changes as hereinafter
prescribed in Section 12 of this Ordinance.

Section 12: The following are amendments to the International Fire Code /2003:

101.1 Title. Insert Village ofRiver Forest.

105.6.21 Hazardous materials. Add the following at the end of this paragraph: An
operational permit may also be required at the discretion of the authority having jurisdictions
AHJ)•

109.3 Violations penalties. Insert misdemeanor as the specific offense, a fine of $750.00
and delete the imprisonment provision.

111.4 Failure to Comply. Insert fine ofnot less than $100.00 nor more than $750.00.

407.2 Material Safety Data Sheets. Add the following at the end of this paragraph:
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) shall be stored at a location, and in a manner, approved
by the fire department for immediate emergency access.
Hazardous Material Inventory Statements (HMIS) shall be included. HMIS shall be revised
semi - annually unless approved by the fire department.

3304 EXPLOSIVE MATERIALS STORAGE AND HANDLING. Delete sections
3304.1 through 3304.10.7, and replace with the following section:
3304.1 Storage Prohibited. The storage of explosives and explosive materials, small arms
ammunition, small arms primers, propellant- actuated cartridges and smokeless propellants in
magazines is prohibited within the Village limits of River Forest.

Section 13: That Title 4, entitled 'Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled 'Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -7 entitled "BOCA NATIONAL PLUMBING CODE/ 1990 of the River Forest
Village Code be amended by deleting the following:

4 -1 -7: BOCA NATIONAL PLUMBING CODE /1990:
A. The Building Officials and Code Administrators national plumbing code /1990, eighth
edition, is hereby adopted by reference as the plumbing code of the village, except for such

15



deletions or substitutions of sections as are hereinafter provided. Copies of such regulations
are filed in the department of public works and there kept available for public use, inspection
and examination.

B. The following sections of said BOCA national plumbing code /1990 are hereby
amended:

Sec. P -100.1 - Title: Insert village of River Forest.

Sec. P -104.1 - Existing Use, Continuation: Insert June 9, 1992.

Sec. P -114.2 - Fee Schedule: The permit fees for all plumbing work shall be paid as set forth
in the River Forest village code under plumbing regulations, title 4, chapter 4.

Sec. P -117.4 - Penalties: Insert misdemeanor as the specific offense and a fine ofnot more
than $500.00 and delete the imprisonment provision.

Sec. P -118.2 - Unlawful Continuance: Insert not less than $100.00 nor more than $500.00.

Sec. P -303.2 - Public Systems Available: Insert 200 feet.

Sec. P -308.3 - Freezing: Insert 5 feet 0 inches.

Sec. P -308.4 - Sewer Depth: Insert 3 feet 6 inches for both.

Sec. P -904.3 - Vent Terminals Through The Wall: This section shall be deleted in its
entirety. In no case shall vent terminals extend through walls.

Sec. P -914 - Frost Closure. This section shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:
Where frost is likely to occur, each vent extension through a roof shall be at least 4 inches in
diameter and in no instance shall said vent extension be less than one pipe size larger than the
vent stack. The change in diameter shall be made inside the building at least one foot below
the roof with an approved fitting.

Sec. P- 1502.1- Water Service, Size Of Pipe: This section shall be amended by deleting the
number "3/4" and replacing it with the number "I".

C. In case of conflicting requirements between the BOCA basic /national plumbing
code/ 1990, the Illinois state plumbing code, and the village of River Forest code, the most
restrictive requirements shall apply. (Ord. 2503, 6 -22 -1992)

Section 14: That Title 4, entitled 'Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled 'Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -7 to be titled "PLUMBING CODE" of the River Forest Village Code be
amended to read as follows:

4 -1 -7: PLUMBING CODE

16



The current edition of the Illinois Plumbing Code, as promulgated by the Illinois Department
of Public Health is hereby adopted by reference as the Plumbing Code of the Village, except
for such additions, insertions, deletions or changes as hereinafter prescribed in Section 15 of
this Ordinance.

Section 15: The following are amendments to the Plumbing Code:

Add the following sections:
890.170 e) Public Systems Available. A public water main or public sewer system shall be
considered available to a structure where the structure is located within 200 feet of the public
water main or sewer.

890.210 a)1) Type "U copper tube shall be used for all water distribution piping above
grade, and Type "K" copper tube shall be used for all water distribution piping below grade
in the Village of River Forest.

890.1150 a)4) Water service piping shall be installed a minimum of 5 feet 0 inches below
grade in the Village ofRiver Forest.

890.1200 a) Water Service Pipe Sizing. This section shall be amended by deleting the
number " three - fourths (3/4) inch" and replacing it with the number "one (1) inch ".

890.1310 a)1) Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pipe with Cellular Core shall not be permitted to
be used in the Village of River Forest.

890.1320 c)1) Sewer Depth: All building sewers shall be a minimum of 3 feet 6 inches
below grade in the Village of River Forest.

890.1430 c) Location of Vent Terminal. This section shall be deleted in its entirety. In no
case shall vent terminals extend through walls.

890.1440 a) Vent Terminal Size. This section shall be deleted in its entirety after the
section heading and replaced with the following:
Each vent extension through a roof shall be at least 4 inches in diameter and in no instance
shall said vent extension be less than one pipe size larger than the vent stack. The change in
diameter shall be made inside the building at least one foot below the roof with an approved
fitting.

890.1500 Installation of Wet Venting This section shall be deleted in its entirety. Wet
Venting shall not be permitted in the Village ofRiver Forest.

890.1950 c) Violation Penalties. Any person who shall violate a provision of this code or
shall fail to comply with any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter or
repair plumbing work in violation of the approved construction drawings or directive of the
code official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be

17



guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine ofnot more than $750.00. Each day that a
violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate offense.

890.1950 d) Unlawful Continuance. Any person who shall continue any work in or about
the structure after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that
person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be liable to a
fine of not less than $100.00 or more than $750.00.

Section 16: That Title 4, entitled "Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled "Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -8 entitled "NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE /1990" of the River Forest
Village Code be amended by deleting the following:

4 -1 -8: NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE /1990:

The 1990 national electrical code published by the National Fire Protection Association is
hereby adopted by reference as the electrical code of the village, except for such deletions or
substitutions of sections as hereinafter provided. Copies of such regulations are filed in the
department ofpublic works and there kept available for public use, inspection and
examination. (Ord. 2503, 6 -22 -1992)

Section 17: That Title 4, entitled "Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled "Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -8 to be titled "NATIONAL, ELECTRICAL CODE /2005" of the River Forest
Village Code be amended to read as follows:

4 -1-8: NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE /2005:
The 2005 National Electrical Code published by the National Fire Protection Association is
hereby adopted by reference as the Electrical Code of the Village, except for such additions,
insertions, deletions or changes as hereinafter prescribed in Section 18 of this Ordinance.

Section 18: The following are amendments to the Electrical Code:

Article 320 Armored Cable

Section 320.10 Uses Permitted. Delete the entire section after the section heading and
replace with: Where necessary to pass wire through existing partitions, Cable Type
AC" may be used in the Village of River Forest, and to extend not more than 3 feet
beyond said partitions. All other uses are prohibited without special permission of the
code official.

Article 334 Nonmetallic- Sheathed Cable. Delete this article in its entirety. Nonmetallic
Sheathed Cable Types "NM ", "N"NIC ", and "NMS" are not permitted to be used in the
Village of River Forest.

Section 19: That Title 4, entitled 'Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled 'Building
Codes," Section 4 -1 -9 entitled "INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE" of the River Forest
Village Code be amended as follows:

18



R309.3 Floor Surface. Add the following: Attached garages shall be continuously
separated from the remainder ofthe building with a concrete curb, minimum 4" high, and
shall be poured integral with the floor slab.

8311.2.2 Under stair protection. Replace " % 2" gypsum board" with " 5/8" Type X
gypsum board"

R313.3 Sprinkler Systems. Delete the paragraphs after the section heading and replace with
the following: Approved automatic fire protection sprinkler systems shall be provided to
comply with this section.

R313.3.1 Definitions and calculations:
1. The calculation of the areas of existing construction and new construction

shall be calculated as follows:

The areas to be included in the calculation shall include the gross area on
the first and second floors of the building, and that portion of any half
story which has a headroom of at least T -0 ". The base area of the

existing building shall include only those areas of the existing building
which are to remain, and the area ofnew construction shall include the
gross area of all additions, without deductions.

2. For the purpose ofcalculating the percentage of the addition to the
building, the area of the addition and renovation shall be construed to be
the total area of all additions and renovations made within any 3 year
period, and the area ofthe existing building shall be the existing area (as
defined above) prior to that 3 year period.

3. The area of "substantial renovation" shall be defined to include the total
area of each room where 50% or more of the wall and ceiling finishes
plaster, plaster board, gypsum board, suspended ceiling systems, etc.) is
being removed down to the framing.

R313.3.2 Where required: Approved automatic fire protection sprinkler
systems shall be provided in the following:

1. New construction.
2. In the newly constructed portion of any addition which adds 50% or

more square footage to the area of an existing residence.
3. In the renovated portion of any residence where 50% or more of the

existing area of the residence is being substantially renovated.
4. In the renovated and newly constructed portion ofany residence where

the sum total of the area of the addition and the area of the portion being
substantially renovated exceeds 50% of the area of an existing residence.

R313.3.3 System requirements:

The system shall be installed meeting the requirements ofNFPA 13 D (2002 edition)
and NFPA 101 (2006 edition) sections 9.7, 24.3.5.1 and 24.3.5.2 as modified herein.
Amendments to NFPA 13 D (2002 edition) are as follows:

19



4.2.4 Antifreeze Systems. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading
and replace with: Automatic fire protection sprinkler systems are prohibited
from using antifreeze solutions in any portion of said system.

7.6 Alarms. Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace
with: Water flow alarms shall be required on all approved automatic fire
protection sprinkler system. An interior, six (6) inch water flow bell shall be
mounted to the return duct of each furnace in the structure. In lieu of the water

flow bells an audible alarm horn shall be installed adjacent to each sleeping
area, with a minimum decibel rating of 70 db at pillow level in occupiable
areas.

A weatherproof hom/strobe audible alarm, for the approved automatic fire
protection sprinkler system, shall be mounted on the outside of the structure at a
location causing it to be heard and seen from the public right -of -way, adjacent
to the structure.

The approved automatic fire protection sprinkler system shall be monitored,
including the water flow and control valve position (tamper switch). The
system shall be monitored directly by the village's emergency communication
center and not by a private alarm monitoring company.

8.6.4 Delete the entire paragraph after the section heading and replace with:
Sprinklers shall be installed in attached garages to protect common walls,
ceilings and openings.

8313.3.4 Acceptance requirements:
All systems shall be inspected, tested, and approved by the fire department in
accordance with the requirements ofNFPA 13D and NFPA 72, including but not
limited to initiating device, notification appliance, and remote station fire alarm
connection prior to scheduling Final Inspection for Certificate of Occupancy.

R321.1 Premises Identification. Add the following: Where a garage abuts a Public Alley,
approved house numbers shall be affixed to the face of the garage, minimum 4" high, in a
plainly visible location.

M1703.2..2 Location of openings. Replace "Openings" with "Combustion air intake
openings" at the beginning of the sentence.

Section 20: That Title 4, entitled "Building Regulations," Chapter 1, entitled "Building
Codes," is hereby amended by re- numbering Section 4 -1 -10 entitled "Violation Notices ", to Section
4 -1 -11, renumbering Section 4 -1 -11 entitled "Penalty ", to Section 4 -1 -12, and by adding new Section
4 -1 -10 to be titled "INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE /2003" of the River Forest Village Code
be adopted to read as follows:

4 -1 -10: INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE / 2003

The 2003 edition of the International Fuel Gas Code is hereby adopted by reference as the
Fuel Gas Code of the Village.

20



Section 21: That all ordinances, or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance, are
hereby expressly repealed.

Section 22: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

Passed this 12 day of May, 2008

AYES: Trustees Dudek, O'Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
NAYS None

ABSENT: None

ATTEST:

Village Clerk

Published in pamphlet form this 13 day of May, 2008

Village President

21



























VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES

May 12, 2008

A regular meeting of the Village of River Forest Board of Trustees was held at 7:33 p.m. on, 
Monday, May 12, 2008 in the Community Room of the Village Hall, 400 Park Avenue, River
Forest, Illinois. 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL

Upon roll call, the following persons were: 

Present: President Paris, Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and
Hoke

Absent:  None

Also Present: Village Clerk Adduci (7:45 p.m.), Village Administrator Gutierrez, 
Assistant Village Administrator Slowinski, Public Works Director Kramer, 
Deputy Fire Chief Nortier, Treasurer Soriano and Attorney Malina

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Board and audience members said the Pledge of Allegiance. 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

A. Public Testimony

Anthony Chiefari (1530 Lathrop) expressed concern about the parking lot behind Starbucks at
Lathrop and North. 

Hank Bode (7575 Lake) and Barbara Langer spoke regarding the state elevator law. 

B. Statements from Clerk, Board and President

None

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Trustee Dudek made a motion seconded by Trustee Nummer to approve the amended minutes
from the February 25, 2008 regular Board meeting.  Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

Trustee Dudek made a motion seconded by Trustee Dillon to approve the amended minutes
from the April 14, 2008 regular Board meeting. Roll call. 



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 May 12, 2008

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

Trustee Dudek made a motion seconded by Trustee Dillon to approve the minutes from the
April 28, 2008 Board meeting. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti and Hoke
Nays: None
Abstain: Trustee Nummer
Motion passed

V. CONSENT AGENDA

Trustee Dudek stated he would like to remove Item A. from the Consent Agenda. Trustee
O’Brien made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to remove Item A from the Consent
Agenda. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

B. Approval of Executive Session Minutes April 28, 2008

Trustee O’Brien made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to approve the minutes from the
April 28, 2008 executive session. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

C. Approval of Monthly Departmental Reports

Trustee O’Brien made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to approve the monthly departmental
reports. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

D. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports

Trustee O’Brien made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to approve the monthly financial
reports. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 May 12, 2008

A. Approval of Bond Payment – Amalgamated Bank & Wells Fargo Bank

Trustee Conti made a motion seconded by Trustee O’Brien to approve payment to Amalgamated
Bank and Wells Fargo Bank for the total amount of $3,153,701.90.  

Trustee Dudek had questions about the timing of the defeasance of the bond, the role of the
Village President as a stockholder in Amalgamated Bank and asked for background information
on Amalgamated Bank. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

VI. BID OPENINGS

A. Award of Contract – 2008 Sidewalk/ Curb Project

Trustee Dillon made a motion seconded by Trustee Nummer to award the contract to Schroeder
Schroeder, Inc. of Skokie IL for the 2008 Sidewalk/ Curb Project in the amount of $48,708.  

Trustee Nummer asked whether the contractor was willing to do private concrete work for
residents. Director Kramer responded that he typically suggests residents contact the contractor
directly to arrange private work and obtain a price. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

B. Award of Contract – 2008 Fire Hydrant Replacement Project

Trustee Nummer made a motion seconded by Trustee Dudek to approve the award of the
contract to Suburban General Construction, Inc. in the amount of $49,480. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

C. Award of Contract – 2008 Tree Removal Program (waiver of bids) 

Trustee Nummer made a motion seconded by Trustee Dudek to waive the formal bid process
and approve the award of the 2008 Tree Removal Program to Davis Tree Care and Landscape, 
Inc. in the amount of $64,750.  

Trustee Conti asked about Dutch Elm Disease and the Emerald Ash Borer. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 4 May 12, 2008

VII. RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES

A. Zoning Board of Appeals – Moratorium on Cell Towers

Trustee O’Brien made a motion seconded by Trustee Dillon to pass an ordinance establishing a
temporary six-month moratorium on the construction of cellular telephone towers within the
corporate boundaries of the Village of River Forest. Trustee Dudek said he would like to have
final corrected minutes prior to the Board meeting where he is expected to vote on an item. Roll
call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

B. Zoning Board of Appeals – Variation Request – 1044 Park

Trustee Hoke made a motion seconded by Trustee O’Brien to pass an ordinance granting a
variation to Section 10-9-7 of the Zoning Code for the property at 1044 Park. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

VIII.  RESOLUTIONS

A. Supporting Changes to Senate Bill 886-Amending the Elevator Safety and
Regulation Act

Trustee Nummer made a motion seconded by Trustee Dudek to approve the resolution
supporting an amendment to Senate Bill 866. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

IX. ORDINANCES

A. Increasing General Parking & Vehicle Compliance Fine Amount

Trustee O’Brien made a motion seconded by Trustee Nummer to pass an ordinance amending
Title 9, Chapter 6 Section 9 entitled “ Schedule of Fines and Penalties” increasing the general
parking and vehicle compliance fine amount from $20 to $30.  

Trustee Dudek questioned whether a $10.00 increase was enough. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 5 May 12, 2008

B. Adoption of Building Codes

Trustee Nummer made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to pass an ordinance amending Title
4, Building Regulations of the River Forest Village Code. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

X. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Appointments to Boards and Commissions

Trustee Conti made a motion seconded by Trustee Dillon to approve the following
appointments: 

Board of Fire and Police Commission
Mark J. Walsh

Plan Commission
Dennis McMahon

Zoning Board of Appeals
Charles Lucchesi

Traffic & Safety Commission
Brian O’Hara
R. Douglas Rees

Development Review Board
David Berni
Mary Ann Fishman

Trustee Dudek questioned why an architect was not appointed to the Development Review
Board. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

B. FY 07-08 Appointment of Independent Auditors

Trustee Conti made a motion seconded by Trustee Dudek to appoint Wolf & Company, LLP
and award professional auditing service contract to perform the annual audit for the fiscal year
ending 2007-2008 in the amount of $32,300. Roll call. 



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 6 May 12, 2008

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

C. Illinois Tomorrow Grant Intergovernmental Agreement

Trustee Nummer made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to authorize the Village President to
execute the proposed intergovernmental agreement with IDOT. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

Trustee Nummer made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to request the Plan Commission to
review any proposals submitted to perform the planning work associated with the Illinois
Tomorrow Grant. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

D. Village Administrator’s Report

The report was accepted as written. 

There was Board consensus to send a letter to Robert Coleman, Chairman of the Board of Fire
and Police Commission regarding the hiring of firefighters to fill two vacancies. 

The Board summer meeting schedule was discussed, and there was Board consensus to make a
decision at the next Board meeting. 

E. Executive Session

Trustee Hoke made a motion seconded by Trustee Dudek to recess to Executive Session at 9:12
p.m. for the purpose of discussing litigation, collective bargaining, and personnel. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

The Board reconvened in regular open session at 10:10 p.m. Upon roll call, the following were: 

Present: President Paris, Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti and Hoke
Absent:  None

President Paris said the Service Club needed convertibles for the Memorial Day Parade. 



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 7 May 12, 2008

XI.     ADJOURNMENT

Trustee Hoke made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to adjourn at 10: 13 p.m. Roll call.

Ayes:   Trustees Dudek, O'Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke

Nays:  None

Motion passed

Village Clerk



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 7 May 12, 2008

XI. ADJOURNMENT

Trustee Hoke made a motion seconded by Trustee Conti to adjourn at 10:13 p.m. Roll call. 

Ayes: Trustees Dudek, O’Brien, Dillon, Conti, Nummer and Hoke
Nays: None
Motion passed

Village Clerk



C:\Users\jpape\Desktop\Fire Sprinkler\Passage Documents\Ordinace Memo, Adoptiotion of 2003 Residential Building Code,  March 13,2006 
Board Meeting.doc 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: March 7, 2006 
 
TO:  Charles J. Biondo 

Village Administrator   
 
FROM: Gregory W. Kramer 

Director of Public Works 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Ordinance  
  Adoption of Residential Building Code  
 
Attached is an Ordinance adopting the 2003 International Residential Code (with amendments) as 
the One and Two Family Dwelling Code of the Village.   This matter was discussed with the Board 
on January 23rd with the primary discussion revolving around sprinkling requirements.   Also 
attached is the memo prepared for the Board at that time.   Since the new Ordinance is rather lengthy 
we are providing it to the Board in advance of the regular weekend packet to allow more time for 
review. 
 
At the January 23rd meeting, the Board indicated their concurrence with the series of Code 
amendments that were presented.  For sprinklers, it was agreed to require sprinklers for new 
construction only at this point.  Staff was directed to report back in 6 months regarding the issue of 
expanding the sprinkler requirements after further research with other communities as well as direct 
experience gained with residential sprinklers here in River Forest as a result of the new Code 
requirements. 
 
In accordance with state law, we provided notice to the Capitol Development Board (CBD) of our 
proposed adoption of the International Residential Code on February 10, 2006. (This notice may be 
viewed on their website at  www.cdb.state.il.us) This notice must occur at least 30 days in advance 
of adopting building code amendments. We also posted the proposed amendments on our own web 
site.  We have not received any inquires or comments to date as a result of the required CBD notice 
or local website posting. 
 
We will be prepared to discuss the proposed amendments in greater detail at the March 13, 2006 
Board Meeting.  In addition,  we will forward  any written commentary received regarding the 
proposed amendments if received prior to this weekend.  
 
Requested Board Action:  Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Title 4, Building Regulations 
of the River Forest Village Code adopting the 2003 International Residential Code with local 
amendements. 



C:\Users\jpape\Desktop\Fire Sprinkler\Passage Documents\Ordinace Memo, Adoptiotion of 2003  Building Codes,  January 28,2008 Board 
Meeting.doc 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: January 24, 2008 
 
TO:  Steven V. Gutierrez 

Village Administrator   
 
FROM: Gregory W. Kramer 

Director of Public Works 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Ordinance  
  Adoption of Building Codes 
  
 
Attached is an Ordinance adopting the 2003 International Building Code (with amendments) along 
with the “family” of related Codes as follows: 
 

 International Mechanical Code - 2003 
 International Fuel Gas Code - 2003 
 Illinois Plumbing Code - current edition 
 National Electric Code - 2005 
 International Fire Code - 2003 
 International Property Maintenance Code – 2003 

 
This matter was discussed on November 28, 2007 during a joint meeting of the Public Works and 
Fire Committees and by the full Board at their December 10, 2007 meeting.   During those meetings, 
the following substantive Code Revisions were reviewed: 
 

 Enact the 2003 International Building Code (and repeal of the 1990 BOCA National 
Building Code).  Re-enact all of the previous Building Code Amendments, as they are 
applicable to the new Code. 

 
 Delete various sections from the International Building Code which lessen the fire safety 

standards for multi story buildings, such as section 508.4 regarding parking areas below 
other uses, the Exception to 711.3 which lowers the required fire rating between dwelling 
units in certain Residential buildings, and Exceptions to section 712.4.1 which reduce the 
quality of Firestopping materials. 

 
 For all new buildings and additions to buildings which are regulated by the International 

Building Code, require the provision of automatic fire protection sprinkler systems; 
except for accessory buildings which are less than 500 square feet in gross area. 



C:\Users\jpape\Desktop\Fire Sprinkler\Passage Documents\Ordinace Memo, Adoptiotion of 2003  Building Codes,  January 28,2008 Board 
Meeting.doc 

 
 Require at least one elevator serving every floor to be large enough to provide stretcher 

access to each floor. 
 

 Adopt the 2005 National Electric Code, and amend the code to prohibit the use of Type 
“NM” cable (“Romex”), and to limit the use of Type “AC” cable (“BX”). 

 
 Adopt performance based requirements for Public Safety radio Amplification Systems in 

all buildings, new and existing.  The time frame for implementation will require  
existing buildings to be evaluated within 3 to 6 months of the enacted date of the 
ordinance and installation of the system within a year thereafter. 

 
 Adopt retro-fit requirements for the installation of Fire Detection and Alarm systems in 

all multiple dwelling unit residential buildings, and attached uses in mixed use residential 
buildings.  Systems shall include system smoke detection in corridors and common areas, 
system heat detection inside the dwelling units, local smoke detection inside the dwelling 
units, pull stations at the exits, and audible/visual alarm devices in the common areas and 
inside the dwelling units.  The time frame for implementation will require existing 
buildings to be evaluated within 3 to 6 months of the enacted date of the ordinance and 
installation of the system within a year thereafter. 

 
 Extend the requirements for the provision of automatic fire suppression sprinkler systems 

in one and two family dwellings to include the buildings where 50% or more of the 
building is being substantially renovated, or where the sum of the areas of addition and 
substantial renovation equals or exceeds 50% of the area of the existing building. 

 
The Committee during their meeting on November 28th, recommended that the Code 
Amendments be adopted as presented and the full Board at their meeting on December 10th, 
directed staff to present an Ordinance to the Board at their January 28th meeting to adopt the 
Code amendments. 
 
In accordance with state law, we subsequently provided notice to the Capitol Development Board 
(CBD) of our proposed adoption of the Codes on December 11, 2007. (This notice may be viewed  
on their website at  www.cdb.state.il.us) This notice must occur at least 30 days in advance of 
adopting building code amendments. We also posted the proposed amendments on our own web site 
and placed hard copies of all of the Code books in the River Forest Public Library. 
 
Finally, the Public Works and Fire Committees met again on January 16, 2008 for the purpose of 
conducting a Public Information Hearing on the proposed Code amendments.   We sent a notice to 
the two Universities and to the Owner, Condo Association or Property Managers of all multi-family 
buildings.  These properties were targeted as the recipient of the notice since the retroactive Fire 
Alarm and Public Safety Radio Amplification Systems requirement are primarily applicable to them 



C:\Users\jpape\Desktop\Fire Sprinkler\Passage Documents\Ordinace Memo, Adoptiotion of 2003  Building Codes,  January 28,2008 Board 
Meeting.doc 

and were the only items of concern being expressed to us. 
 
Approximately 20 people attended the meeting representing both the two universities and various 
apartment and condo buildings.   All those that provided testimony opposed the two proposed 
amendments that have retroactive impact citing, for the most part, the economic impact.   Many 
stated that further study should be performed prior to adopting the Ordinance. 
 
The Committee ultimately recommended that the two retroactive amendments be removed from the 
Code adoption Ordinance and that those two amendments be studied further with additional public 
involvement.   Accordingly the attached Ordinance does not contain these two specific amendments.  
 
The Ordinance is structured as follows: 
 

Section 1:    Deletes the old 1990 BOCA National Building Code 
Section 2:    Adopts the 2003 International Building Code 
Section 3:    Specifies amendments to the 2003 International Building Code 
Section 4:    Deletes the old 1990 BOCA Property Maintenance Code 
Section 5:    Adopts the 2003 International Property Maintenance Code 
Section 6:    Specifies amendments to the 2003 International Property Maintenance 

Code 
Section 7:    Deletes the old 1990 BOCA National Mechanical Code 
Section 8:    Adopts the 2003 International Mechanical Code 
Section 9:    Specifies amendments to the 2003 International Mechanical Code 
Section 10:   Deletes the old 1990 BOCA National Fire Prevention Code 
Section 11:  Adopts the 2003 International Fire Code 
Section 12:   Specifies amendments to the 2003 International Fire Code 
Section 13:   Deletes the old 1990 BOCA National Plumbing Code 
Section 14:   Adopts the Illinois Plumbing Code  (current edition) 
Section 15:   Specifies amendments to the Plumbing Code 
Section 16:   Deletes the old 1990 National Electric Code 
Section 17:   Adopts the 2005 National Electric Code 
Section 18:   Specifies amendments to the 2005 National Electric Code 
Section 19:   Amends the current International Residential Code 
Section 20:  Adopts the 2003 International Fuel Code 
 

Requested Board Action:   Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Title 4, Building Regulations 
of the River Forest Village Code adopting the 2003 International Building Code and related Codes 
with local amendments. 
 



C:\Users\jpape\Desktop\Fire Sprinkler\Passage Documents\Ordinace Memo, Adoption of 2003  Building Codes  May 12,2008 Board Meeting.doc 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: May 7, 2008 
 
TO:  Steven V. Gutierrez 

Village Administrator   
 
FROM: Gregory W. Kramer 

Director of Public Works 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Ordinance   
  Adoption of Building Codes 
  
 
On January 28th, 2008 the Board elected to defer action on the proposed Building Code amendments 
until another public meeting was held.   Attached is a copy of the memo prepared by staff at that time 
which details the proposed amendments as well as a current copy of the proposed Ordinance. 
 
The Public Information meeting was held on Wednesday evening, April 23, 2008 at the Roosevelt 
Middle School Auditorium.    Staff presented the proposed amendments which are the same as what 
was presented to the Board on January 28th, except for a change in the language for elevators.   In an 
effort to clarify the applicable codes on elevators we elected to delete all language which reiterated 
the applicable State Codes and are now merely adopting them by reference.    In essence there is no 
change in the Code as a result.   The State Codes are still applicable and cannot be relaxed by local 
amendment.  Attached is a copy of the power point presentation presented at the meeting.     
 
Overall the meeting went well with those in attendance being appreciative of the changes made from 
the originally proposed Ordinance.   As you recall the two key issues being objected two were the 
retroactive requirements for fire alarms in multi-family buildings and radio amplification systems for 
any building where it is determined that the Fire Department has difficulty with outside radio 
communication.   There were also several comments related to the State’s elevator requirements.  It 
was requested that the elected officials of the Village take a position opposing these requirements. 
 
As I stated above and at the last Board meeting,  we cannot relax the State requirements by local 
Ordinance .  The passage of the Ordinance being proposed  should not, in my opinion, be delayed 
pending legislative action on the Elevator Safety Act.    
 
Requested Board Action:  Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Title 4, Building Regulations 
of the River Forest Village Code. 
 

 


	3A. 08-20-18 VBOT Minutes
	3B. 08-20-18 VBOT Executive Session Minutes
	3C. 2018 Proclamation Suicide Awareness
	3D. 2018 Curb and Sidewalk Change Order
	VBOT Memo - Change Order
	Resolution - Change Order
	Exhibit A

	3E. 2018 Water Main Change Order
	VBOT Memo - Change Order
	Resolution - Change Order
	Exhibit A

	3F. VBOT Item - Gale Ave Alley Construction
	Gale Ave Alley
	Bid Tab - Gale Ave Alley Improvements
	1
	2


	3G.H. VBOT Item - Electric Power Supplier Agreements 9-18
	VBOT Memo - Electric Power Supplier Agreements 9-18
	Satori Pricing Results - River Forest 073018

	3I. ROW Encroachment - 400 Ashland
	3J. ROW Encroachment - 554 Forest
	3K. ROW Encroachment - 316 Lathrop
	3L. VBOT Memo - Letter to Fight Preemption in US Farm Bill
	3M.1. Police Department August 2018 Monthly Report
	3M.2. Fire Dept. Monthly Report August 2018
	3M.3. PW Monthly Report - August 2018
	3M.4. August 2018 Monthly Building Report
	3N. August 2018 PM Report
	3O. Financial Report 201808
	3P. Agenda Memo - AP Approval 082018
	3Q. VA Report 09-17-18
	3R. Fire Dept Ford Explorer Purchase
	Staff vehicle 9-13-18
	Price quote 9-18

	3S. NIPAS Resolution
	Memo to VBOT - NIPAS Resolution
	FILLED. NIPAS Resolution Approving Amended Member Agreement

	3T. VBOT Item Packet - Crack Sealing CO
	VBOT Memo - Change Order
	Resolution - Change Order
	Invoice #1

	7A. Skincare Incentive Agreement
	Skin Care CM
	401164_2
	401163_2

	7A. Sprinklers and Alarms Memo w Attachments.
	9-17-18 SVBOT.pdf
	VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST
	SPECIAL VILLAGE BOARD MEETING




